
I 6:00 P.M., COMMITTEE ROOM NO. 2 
Motion to close the meeting to the public in accordance with Section 90(1)(a), (c) and (i) of the Community 
Charter. 

 

II 7:00 P.M., COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

A. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 

1. Special Committee of the Whole Meeting held March 1, 2016 
2. Special Council Meeting held March 1, 2016 
3. Council Meeting held March 7, 2016 
4. Committee of the Whole Meeting held March 7, 2016 

 

B. BYLAWS FOR FINAL READING 
 

1. 4247, 4253, AND 4255 DIEPPE ROAD – REZONING TO CD-4DR, RS-4 AND RS-6 
P. 3   Rescind March 1, 2016 motion to approve Development Permit DPR00543, final reading of the 

“Zoning Bylaw, 2003, Amendment Bylaw, 2015, No. 9354” and approval of Development 
Permit DPR00543. To rezone three adjacent properties from A-1 (Rural) Zone and M-5 (Food 
Processing) Zone to CD-4DR (Comprehensive Development Dieppe Road) Zone, RS-4 (Single 
Family Dwelling) Zone, and RS-6 (Single Family Dwelling) Zone for a proposed mixed-use 
development comprising a 3,630m2 commercial/industrial building for food processing use, 33 
attached housing units in eight blocks, eight bare land strata lots and one fee simple lot for single 
family dwelling use. 

 

2. 4400 WEST SAANICH ROAD – LAND USE CONTRACT DISCHARGE BYLAW 
P. 4   Final reading of “Land Use Contract Discharge Bylaw, 2015 (4400 West Saanich Road), No. 

9363”. To grant a discharge of the current Land Use Contract. 
 

3. 4400 WEST SAANICH ROAD – REZONING TO P-2 AND P-4 
Final reading of “Zoning Bylaw, 2003, Amendment Bylaw, 2015, No. 9364” and approval of 
Development Permit DPR00596. To rezone from Zone M-2 (Wholesale, Warehouse & Office 
Zone) to Zone P-2 (Utility Zone) and Zone P-4 (Recreation and Open Space Zone)  to redevelop 
the existing BC Hydro Facility. 

  

C. PUBLIC INPUT (ON BUSINESS ITEMS D, E & F) 
 

D. RESOLUTIONS FOR ADOPTION 
 

1. FIRE DISPATCH AND COMMUNICATION SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ESQUIMALT 
P. 5  Report of the Fire Chief dated March 3, 2016 recommending that Council authorize the 

renewal of the Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement with the Township of 
Esquimalt for the period March 22, 2016 to December 31, 2016. 
 

2. SOLE SOURCE PURCHASE OF ORACLE LICENSES FOR THE JD EDWARDS UPGRADE  
      AND HR/PAYROLL SOFTWARE PROJECTS 

P. 15  Report from the Director of Corporate Services and the Director of Finance dated March 9, 2016 
recommending that Council approve the purchase of JDE Expense Management, JDE Payroll, 
and JDE User Productivity Kit in the amount of $299,670. 

 

3. REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 08/16 – JD EDWARDS UPGRADE PROJECT 
P. 18  Report from the Director of Finance and Director of Corporate Services dated March 9, 2016 

recommending that Council award RFP 08/16 for Systems Implementation and Managed 

 

AGENDA 

For the Council Meeting to be Held 
At the Saanich Municipal Hall,  

770 Vernon Avenue 
MONDAY, MARCH 14, 2016 

 

1



Services for the JD Edwards Upgrade, and change orders within the project budget, to ERP-One 
Consulting Inc., with an estimated cost of $1,094,360 (excluding GST) for systems 
implementation costs including travel and related expenses, and for an estimated cost of 
$67,196 annually for ongoing managed services, plus a one-time “Service Onboarding Fee” of 
$6,500. 
 

4. CRD BYLAW NO. 4058, CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT CLIMATE ACTION AND  
      ADAPTATION SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT BYLAW, 2008, AMENDMENT BYLAW NO. 1,   
      2016 

P. 20  Request from the Capital Regional District that Council review the amended bylaw and give 
consent to the adoption of the bylaw in accordance with Section 346 of the Local Government 
Act.  

 

E. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM COMMITTEES 
 

1. LESBIAN, GAY, BISEXUAL, TRANSGENDER AND QUEER SUB-COMMITTEE TERMS OF  
      REFERENCE 

P. 40  Recommendation from the February 24, 2016 Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee meeting that 
Council approve the Terms of Reference for the LGBTQ Sub-Committee as amended at the 
February 10, 2016 LGBTQ Sub-Committee meeting. 

 

F. REPORTS FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL  
 

1. POP FOR PARKS: ESTABLISHING A FUND FOR NATURE’S FUTURE 
P. 43  Joint report from Councillors Haynes and Derman dated February 22, 2016 recommending that 

Council endorse the resolution from the District of Highlands that UBCM request that the 
provincial government redirect unredeemed container deposits into an annual fund for the 
acquisition and protection of privately owned natural spaces in BC, and further that a letter be 
sent to the Environmental Committee at the Capital Regional District requesting their additional 
support. 

 

2. REDUCTION OF NON-MIGRATORY GEESE POPULATION TO HELP SUSTAIN LOCAL   
      FOOD 

P. 53  Report from Councillor Haynes dated February 29, 2016 recommending that Council direct staff 
to review the recommendation from Mike Hicks, Regional Director, Juan de Fuca Electoral Area, 
with respect to amending the District of Saanich firearms bylaw and report back to Council with 
options for an appropriate bylaw amendment, including any implications.  

 

   * * * Adjournment * * * 
 

 

                       AGENDA                         
         For the Committee of the Whole Meeting 
               ** IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING** 
     The Council Meeting in the Council Chambers 
  

1. MOMS LIKE US – PRESENTATION 
P. 56 Motion from the July 20, 2015 Council meeting that Council invite Moms Like Us to give a 

presentation to Council on the development of an accredited Clubhouse in Greater Victoria.  
 

2. 1550 ARROW ROAD – REZONING AND DEVELOPMENT PERMIT   
P. 84 Report of the Director of Planning dated February 18, 2016 recommending that Council approve 

the rezoning from Zone RA-1 (Apartment Zone) to Zone RA-3 (Apartment Zone) and that 
Development Permit DPR00614 be approved for a proposed construction of one three-storey 
and one three/four-storey building for affordable seniors housing. 

 

* * * Adjournment * * * 
 

“IN CAMERA” COUNCIL MEETING IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWS 

2



Memo 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Mayor and Councilors 

Donna Dupas. Legislative Manager 

March 9. 2016 

Mayor 
Councillors 
L\dministrator 

File: 2870-30 Dieppe 

Subject: 4247,4253,4255 Dieppe Road - Final Reading of "Zoning Bylaw, 2003, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2015, No. 9354" and Approval of Development Permit 

At the March 1. 2016 Council meeting. Council considered and gave final reading to Zoning Bylaw. 
2003. Amendment Bylaw. 2015. No. 9353 which established a new Comprehensive Development 
Zone and approved Development Permit DPR00543. Final reading of Bylaw 9354 to rezone the 
subject lands to the newly created zone is also required. 

Council is requested to: 
Rescind March 1. 2016 motion to approve Development Permit DPR00543 
Give final reading to "Zoning Bylaw. 2003. Amendment Bylaw. 2015. No. 9354" to rezone the 
lands from A-1 (Rural) and M-5 (Food Processing) to Zone CD-4DR (Comprehensive 
Development Dieppe Road). Zone RS-4 (Single Family Dwelling) and Zone RS-6 (Single 
Family Dwelling). 
Approve and issue Development Permit DPR00543. 

This item is scheduled for the Council Meeting on March 14. 2016. If you have any questions 
please contact me at extension 3500. 

dh 

cc: Paul Th rkelsson. Chief Administrative Officer 
Carrie MacPhee, Director of Legislative Services 
Sharon Hvozdanski. Director of Planning 
Harley Machielse, Director of Engineering 

G:\Clerks\Deb\MEMO\Dupas\Final Reading Dieppe Road 9354.docx Page 1 of 1 

3

Memo 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Mayor and Councilors 

Donna Dupas, Legislative Manager 

March 9, 2016 

Mayor 
Councillors 
4dministrator 

File: 2870-30 Dieppe 

Subject: 4247,4253,4255 Dieppe Road - Final Reading of "Zoning Bylaw, 2003, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2015, No. 9354" and Approval of Development Permit 

At the March 1, 2016 Council meeting, Council considered and gave final reading to Zoning Bylaw, 
2003, Amendment Bylaw, 2015, No. 9353 which established a new Comprehensive Development 
Zone and approved Development Permit DPR00543. Final reading of Bylaw 9354 to rezone the 
subject lands to the newly created zone is also required. 

Council is requested to: 
Rescind March 1, 2016 motion to approve Development Permit DPR00543 
Give final reading to "Zoning Bylaw, 2003, Amendment Bylaw, 2015, No. 9354" to rezone the 
lands from A-1 (Rural) and M-5 (Food Processing) to Zone CD-4DR (Comprehensive 
Development Dieppe Road), Zone RS-4 (Single Family Dwelling) and Zone RS-6 (Single 
Family Dwelling). 
Approve and issue Development Permit DPR00543. 

This item is scheduled for the Council Meeting on March 14, 2016. If you have any questions 
please contact me at extension 3500. 

dh 

cc: Paul Th rkelsson, Chief Administrative Officer 
Carrie MacPhee, Director of Legislative Services 
Sharon Hvozdanski. Director of Planning 
Harley Machielse, Director of Engineering 

G:\Clerks\Deb\MEMO\Dupas\Final Reading Dieppe Road 9354.docx Page 1 of 1 

HopkinDL
Text Box
Council March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CMB. 1



Memo 

LEGISLATIVE SERVICES c\\ 
co\}(\ \(~lU I 

\(\\S 
Mayor p..O\1\ \~ 
Councillors \>.tIeo ____ 
idminisfrator --::::::----

To: Mayor and Councilors File: 2870-30 West Saanich 

From: Donna Dupas, Legislative Manager 

Date: March 10, 2016 

Subject: 4400 West Saanich Road - Final Reading of "Land Use Contract Discharge 
Bylaw, 2015, (4400 West Saanich Road), No. 9363, ··Zoning Bylaw, 2003, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2015, No. 9364" and Approval of Development Permit 

At a Public Hearing held December 8, 2015, Council gave second and third reading to the above 
noted bylaws. Final reading of the bylaws and ratification of the Development Permit DPR00596 
were withheld pending completion of several outstanding items including Ministry of 
Transportation Authorization and registration of a covenant. 

Please note that all outstanding items have been addressed and Council is requested to: 
a) give final reading to the "Land Use Contract Discharge Bylaw, 2015, (4400 West Saanich 

Road), No. 9363"; 
b) give final reading to the "Zoning Bylaw, 2003, Amendment Bylaw, 2015, No. 9364"; and 
c) approve Development Permit DPR00596. 

This item is scheduled for the Council Meeting on March 14, 2016. If you have any questions 
please contact me at extension 3500. 

dh 

cc: Paul Thorkelsson, Chief Administrative Officer 
Carrie MacPhee, Director of Legislative Services 
Sharon Hvozdanski. Director of Planning 
Harley Machielse, Director of Engineering 

G:\Clerks\Deb\MEMO\Dupas\Final Reading - 4400 West Saanich.docx Page 1 of 1 

4

Memo 

LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 0\ 
cou~ \{3tU ' 

\~\S 
Mayor p..d{(' \3 
Councillors wed ____ 
l dministrator ~-

To: Mayor and Councilors File: 2870-30 West Saanich 

From: Donna Dupas, Legislative Manager 

Date: March 10, 2016 

Subject: 4400 West Saanich Road - Final Reading of "Land Use Contract Discharge 
Bylaw, 2015, (4400 West Saanich Road), No. 9363, ··Zoning Bylaw, 2003, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2015, No. 9364" and Approval of Development Permit 

At a Public Hearing held December 8, 2015, Council gave second and third reading to the above 
noted bylaws. Final reading of the bylaws and ratification of the Development Permit DPR00596 
were withheld pending completion of several outstanding items including Ministry of 
Transportation Authorization and registration of a covenant. 

Please note that all outstanding items have been addressed and Council is requested to: 
a) give final reading to the "Land Use Contract Discharge Bylaw, 2015, (4400 West Saanich 

Road), No. 9363"; 
b) give final reading to the "Zoning Bylaw, 2003, Amendment Bylaw, 2015, No. 9364"; and 
c) approve Development Permit DPR00596. 

This item is scheduled for the Council Meeting on March 14, 2016. If you have any questions 
please contact me at extension 3500. 

dh 

cc: Paul Thorkelsson, Chief Administrative Officer 
Carrie MacPhee, Director of Legislative Services 
Sharon Hvozdanski. Director of Planning 
Harley Machielse, Director of Engineering 

G:\Cierks\Deb\MEMO\Dupas\Finai Reading - 4400 West Saanich.docx Page 1 of 1 

HopkinDL
Text Box
Council March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CMB. 2



The Corporation of the District of Saanich 

Report 
To: Mayor and Council 

From: 

Date: 

Fire Chief Michael Burgess 

03/03/2016 

Mayor 
Councillors 
Admin!strator 

Subject: Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement with the Township 
of Esquimalt 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to seek Council approval for renewal of the Fire Dispatch and 
Communications Services Agreement with the Township of Esquimalt. 

BACKGROUND 

The current agreement has been in place since 2011 and will expire on March 21, 2016. The 
proposed Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement is for the period of March 22, 
2016 to December 31,2016. 

DISCUSSION 

The Saanich Fire Department has fire dispatch and communications service agreements in 
place with seven client municipalities. In 2015, the Fire Department engaged KPMG to 
independently identify the total cost of service and develop an updated cost allocation model for 
fire dispatch services. As Saanich Fire's regional dispatch service has evolved considerably 
since established in 2005 to include new) echnologies, equipment and personnel, it was time to 
update the cost allocation methodology to ensure it is effective in apportioning these costs to 
system users. 

To allow time to work through the revised cost allocation model with participating municipalities, 
the Fire Department is seeking authorization to renew the Fire Dispatch and Communications 
Services Agreement with the Township of Esquimalt for the period of March 22, 2016 to 
December 31,2016, including a 3.5% service fee increase. 

LF3.Gl.:il..f\lI\/E DIVISION 
DIS 1. RIC"'!' (;F SAANICH 

Page 1 of 2 

5

The Corporation of the District of Saanich 

Report 
To: Mayor and Council 

From: 

Date: 

Fire Chief Michael Burgess 

03/03/2016 

Mayor 
Councillors 
Admin!strator 

Subject: Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement with the Township 
of Esquimalt 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to seek Council approval for renewal of the Fire Dispatch and 
Communications Services Agreement with the Township of Esquimalt. 

BACKGROUND 

The current agreement has been in place since 2011 and will expire on March 21, 2016. The 
proposed Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement is for the period of March 22, 
2016 to December 31,2016. 

DISCUSSION 

The Saanich Fire Department has fire dispatch and communications service agreements in 
place with seven client municipalities. In 2015, the Fire Department engaged KPMG to 
independently identify the total cost of service and develop an updated cost allocation model for 
fire dispatch services. As Saanich Fire's regional dispatch service has evolved considerably 
since established in 2005 to include new)echnologies, equipment and personnel, it was time to 
update the cost allocation methodology to ensure it is effective in apportioning these costs to 
system users. 

To allow time to work through the revised cost allocation model with participating municipalities, 
the Fire Department is seeking authorization to renew the Fire Dispatch and Communications 
Services Agreement with the Township of Esquimalt for the period of March 22, 2016 to 
December 31,2016, including a 3.5% service fee increase. 

LF3.Gl.:il..f\lI\/E DIVISION 
DIS 1 RIC"'!' (;F SAANICH 

Page 1 of 2 

HopkinDL
Text Box
Council March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CMD. 1



During the term of the agreement Esquimalt will pay to Saanich a fee of $72,066 through the 
following instalment payments: 

(a) $25,540 on or before March 22nd, 2016; 

(b) $23,263 on or before July pt, 2016; and 

(c) $23,263 on or before October 1,2016. 

A draft renewal agreement document is attached for Council 's consideration and is pending the 
Township of Esquimalt Council approval. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council authorize the renewal of the Fire Dispatch and Communications Services 
Agreement with the Township of Esquimalt for the period of March 22, 2016 to December 31, 
2016. 

Prepared by 

Approved by 

MB/mr 

Attachment 

Michael Burgess 

Fire Chief 

Michael Burgess 

Fire Chief 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER'S COMMENTS: 

I endorse the recommendation from the Fire Chief. 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Page 2 of 2 

6

During the term of the agreement Esquimalt will pay to Saanich a fee of $72,066 through the 
following instalment payments: 

(a) $25,540 on or before March 22nd, 2016; 

(b) $23,263 on or before July pt, 2016; and 

(c) $23,263 on or before October 1,2016. 

A draft renewal agreement document is attached for Council's consideration and is pending the 
Township of Esquimalt Council approval. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council authorize the renewal of the Fire Dispatch and Communications Services 
Agreement with the Township of Esquimalt for the period of March 22, 2016 to December 31, 
2016. 

Prepared by 

Approved by 

MB/mr 

Attachment 

Michael Burgess 

Fire Chief 

Michael Burgess 

Fire Chief 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER'S COMMENTS: 

I endorse the recommendation from the Fire Chief. 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Page 2 of 2 



FIRE DISPATCH AND COMMUNICATIONS 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of the 22nd day of March, 2016. 

BETWEEN: 

AND: 

WHEREAS 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ESQUIMAL T 
1229 Esquimalt Road 

Esquimalt, B.C., V9A 3P1 

(hereinafter called "Esquimalt") 

OF THE FIRST PART 

THE CORPORATION OF THE DISTRICT OF SAANICH 
770 Vernon Avenue 

Victoria, B.C. vax 2W7 

(hereinafter called "Saanich") 

OF THE SECOND PART 

A. Esquimalt and Saanich are both local governments under the provisions of the 
Local Government Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 323; 

B. Esquimalt and Saanich are parties to a Fire Dispatch and Communications 
Services Agreement that expires March 21 5\2016, and wish to enter into a further 
agreement for the remainder of 2016 

C. Esquimalt and Saanich have the corporate power to enter into agreements 
respecting the provision of municipal services pursuant to the Community Charier, S.B.C. 
2003, c. 26; 

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that in consideration of the mutual 
promises exchanged herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties 
agree as follows: 

7

FIRE DISPATCH AND COMMUNICATIONS 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of the 22nd day of March, 2016. 

BETWEEN: 

AND: 

WHEREAS 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ESQUIMAL T 
1229 Esquimalt Road 

Esquimalt, B.C., V9A 3P1 

(hereinafter called "Esquimalt") 

OF THE FIRST PART 

THE CORPORATION OF THE DISTRICT OF SAANICH 
770 Vernon Avenue 

Victoria, B.C. vax 2W7 

(hereinafter called "Saanich") 

OF THE SECOND PART 

A. Esquimalt and Saanich are both local governments under the provisions of the 
Local Government Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 323; 

B. Esquimalt and Saanich are parties to a Fire Dispatch and Communications 
Services Agreement that expires March 21 5\2016, and wish to enter into a further 
agreement for the remainder of 2016 

C. Esquimalt and Saanich have the corporate power to enter into agreements 
respecting the provision of municipal services pursuant to the Community Charter, S.B.C. 
2003, c. 26; 

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that in consideration of the mutual 
promises exchanged herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties 
agree as follows: 



Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 2 of 8 

1.0 Definitions 

1.1 In this Agreement: 

(a) "CAD" means the Computer Aided Dispatch System maintained and used 
by the Saanich Fire Department; 

(b) "Esquimalt Duty Call-Out Officer" is the management officer of the 
Esquimalt Fire Department designated to be on call for a specified time; 

(c) "FDM" means the Fire Management Software program utilized by the 
Saanich Fire Department; 

(d) "FDM Module" means the individual modular component tools making up 
the composition of the FDM software program; 

(e) "Fire Dispatch and Communication Services" includes the services 
described in section 3.1; 

(f) "Fire Dispatch Centre" means the fire dispatch centre maintained by the 
Saanich Fire Department; 

(g) "Mutual Aid Agreement" means an agreement between one or more local 
governments under which fire fighting and other resources are provided in 
the event of an emergency; 

(h) "RMS" means the Fire Records Management System used by the Saanich 
Fire Department; 

(i) "Victoria Police Communications Centre" means the communications 
centre maintained by Victoria for the receipt and processing of emergency 
911 calls; 

0) "Term" means the term of this Agreement as provided for under Section 
2.1. 

2.0 TERM 

2.1 This Agreement is for a term commencing on March 22nd , 2016 and terminating on 
December 31 st , 2016, subject to early termination in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

2.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted as imposing any liability or obligation 
on the part of either Saanich or Esquimalt until the commencement of the Term, 
as established under section 2.1. 

8

Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 2 of 8 

1.0 Definitions 

1.1 In this Agreement: 

(a) "CAD" means the Computer Aided Dispatch System maintained and used 
by the Saanich Fire Department; 

(b) "Esquimalt Duty Call-Out Officer" is the management officer of the 
Esquimalt Fire Department designated to be on call for a specified time; 

(c) "FDM" means the Fire Management Software program utilized by the 
Saanich Fire Department; 

(d) "FDM Module" means the individual modular component tools making up 
the composition of the FDM software program; 

(e) "Fire Dispatch and Communication Services" includes the services 
described in section 3.1; 

(f) "Fire Dispatch Centre" means the fire dispatch centre maintained by the 
Saanich Fire Department; 

(g) "Mutual Aid Agreement" means an agreement between one or more local 
governments under which fire fighting and other resources are provided in 
the event of an emergency; 

(h) "RMS" means the Fire Records Management System used by the Saanich 
Fire Department; 

(i) "Victoria Police Communications Centre" means the communications 
centre maintained by Victoria for the receipt and processing of emergency 
911 calls; 

0) "Term" means the term of this Agreement as provided for under Section 
2.1. 

2.0 TERM 

2.1 This Agreement is for a term commencing on March 22nd , 2016 and terminating on 
December 31 st , 2016, subject to early termination in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

2.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted as imposing any liability or obligation 
on the part of either Saanich or Esquimalt until the commencement of the Term, 
as established under section 2.1. 



Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 3 of 8 

3.0 FIRE DISPATCH AND COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 

3.1 Throughout the Term, Saanich will provide Esquimalt with fire dispatch and 
communications services including the following: 

(a) 911 emergency calls for fire department assistance that originate in the 
District of Esquimalt will be received and processed by the Victoria Police 
Communications Centre and forwarded to the Fire Dispatch Centre; 

(b) the Fire Dispatch Centre will utilize its CAD system to initiate incident 
reporting and to dispatch the call to the Esquimalt Fire Department; 

(c) after the initial dispatch, the Fire Dispatch Centre will provide full incident 
command support to the Esquimalt Fire Department, including the call out 
of additional resources specific to the incident (including through the 
implementation of Mutual Aid Agreements) where required by the Esquimalt 
Fire Department. The responsibility of Saanich for the call out of Esquimalt 
Fire Department personnel additional to those on shift shall be limited to a 
single point of contact as mutually agreed to by the parties. 

3.2 Saanich will provide fire dispatch and communications services under this 
Agreement in accordance with the standards utilized by the Saanich Fire 
Department, unless a variance of such standards is mutually agreed between the 
parties. 

3.3 Saanich will provide at the Fire Dispatch Centre all equipment, computer software, 
and personnel necessary for the provision of fire dispatch and communications 
services under this Agreement, and will ensure that all Saanich personnel who 
participate in providing these services are fully trained. Esquimalt will on its 
premises provide all computer hardware and other equipment needed in order to 
maintain the required service link with the Fire Dispatch Centre. 

3.4 Saanich will provide Esquimalt with access to the FDM computer aided dispatch 
module, personnel module, property module, and incidents module, to facilitate fire 
dispatch, records management, and reporting functions. Saanich may provide 
additional FDM modules and/or related services or functionality to Esquimalt 
subject to further agreement between the parties and the payment of any additional 
one time and/or ongoing fees or charges as agreed to. Such additional agreements 
will be in the form of addendum to this agreement and for the duration of the 
agreement only. 

3.5 Esquimalt will provide to Saanich regular data updates, electronic or otherwise 
formatted, so that Saanich may ensure that the FDM system data base is current 
and compatible with the most recent FDM software version release. Such data 
updates will include but are not necessarily limited to Esquimalt property and 
business profile information, property reference contact information, street and 
hydrant location, and GIS mapping data. Esquimalt will be responsible for the 

9

Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 3 of 8 

3.0 FIRE DISPATCH AND COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 

3.1 Throughout the Term, Saanich will provide Esquimalt with fire dispatch and 
communications services including the following: 

(a) 911 emergency calls for fire department assistance that originate in the 
District of Esquimalt will be received and processed by the Victoria Police 
Communications Centre and forwarded to the Fire Dispatch Centre; 

(b) the Fire Dispatch Centre will utilize its CAD system to initiate incident 
reporting and to dispatch the call to the Esquimalt Fire Department; 

(c) after the initial dispatch, the Fire Dispatch Centre will provide full incident 
command support to the Esquimalt Fire Department, including the call out 
of additional resources specific to the incident (including through the 
implementation of Mutual Aid Agreements) where required by the Esquimalt 
Fire Department. The responsibility of Saanich for the call out of Esquimalt 
Fire Department personnel additional to those on shift shall be limited to a 
single point of contact as mutually agreed to by the parties. 

3.2 Saanich will provide fire dispatch and communications services under this 
Agreement in accordance with the standards utilized by the Saanich Fire 
Department, unless a variance of such standards is mutually agreed between the 
parties. 

3.3 Saanich will provide at the Fire Dispatch Centre all equipment, computer software, 
and personnel necessary for the provision of fire dispatch and communications 
services under this Agreement, and will ensure that all Saanich personnel who 
participate in providing these services are fully trained. Esquimalt will on its 
premises provide all computer hardware and other equipment needed in order to 
maintain the required service link with the Fire Dispatch Centre. 

3.4 Saanich will provide Esquimalt with access to the FDM computer aided dispatch 
module, personnel module, property module, and incidents module, to facilitate fire 
dispatch, records management, and reporting functions. Saanich may provide 
additional FDM modules and/or related services or functionality to Esquimalt 
subject to further agreement between the parties and the payment of any additional 
one time and/or ongoing fees or charges as agreed to. Such additional agreements 
will be in the form of addendum to this agreement and for the duration of the 
agreement only. 

3.5 Esquimalt will provide to Saanich regular data updates, electronic or otherwise 
formatted, so that Saanich may ensure that the FDM system data base is current 
and compatible with the most recent FDM software version release. Such data 
updates will include but are not necessarily limited to Esquimalt property and 
business profile information, property reference contact information, street and 
hydrant location, and GIS mapping data. Esquimalt will be responsible for the 



Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 4 of 8 

general input and updating of all routine property profile and reference updates, all 
incident property links, and final review of emergency incident data prior archiving. 
Standards for data input, management and storage shall be those reasonably 
established and followed by the Saanich FDM system administrator. Saanich will 
provide Esquimalt with the necessary data management support to ensure that 
system performance standards are met and that system security and data integrity 
are maintained. 

3.6 Saanich will retain all voice recordings of requests for emergency assistance 
received from within Esquimalt for a period of two (2) years or such longer time as 
may be required by law. Saanich will retain all 911 and other records normally 
kept by it under its own operating procedures in relation to the fire dispatch and 
communications services for a period of two (2) years or such longer time as may 
be required by law. All records and data maintained by Saanich will be stored in 
a secured area, and access to those records and data will be given to duly 
authorized personnel of the Esquimalt Fire Department. 

4.0 FEES 

4.1 During the Term of this Agreement Esquimalt will pay to Saanich a fee of $72,066 
through the following instalment payments: 

(a) $25,540 on or before March 22nd , 2016; 

(b) $23,263 on or before July 1St, 2016; and 

(c) $23,263 on or before October 1st, 2016. 

5.0 EQUIPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

5.1 Saanich and Esquimalt have each contributed equipment under the 2006 
agreement and each party agrees that such equipment will remain in place to 
facilitate this renewal agreement. 

5.2 During the Term of this Agreement, Esquimalt will reimburse Saanich for any other 
one-time start up costs incurred in relation to additional fire dispatch and 
communications services not specifically provided under this agreement. 

6.0 INDEMNITY 

6.1 Saanich agrees that it will indemnify and save harmless Esquimalt from and 
against any claims, suits, actions, causes of actions, costs, damages or expenses 
of any kind that result from: 

10

Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 4 of 8 

general input and updating of all routine property profile and reference updates, all 
incident property links, and final review of emergency incident data prior archiving. 
Standards for data input, management and storage shall be those reasonably 
established and followed by the Saanich FDM system administrator. Saanich will 
provide Esquimalt with the necessary data management support to ensure that 
system performance standards are met and that system security and data integrity 
are maintained. 

3.6 Saanich will retain all voice recordings of requests for emergency assistance 
received from within Esquimalt for a period of two (2) years or such longer time as 
may be required by law. Saanich will retain all 911 and other records normally 
kept by it under its own operating procedures in relation to the fire dispatch and 
communications services for a period of two (2) years or such longer time as may 
be required by law. All records and data maintained by Saanich will be stored in 
a secured area, and access to those records and data will be given to duly 
authorized personnel of the Esquimalt Fire Department. 

4.0 FEES 

4.1 During the Term of this Agreement Esquimalt will pay to Saanich a fee of $72,066 
through the following instalment payments: 

(a) $25,540 on or before March 22nd , 2016; 

(b) $23,263 on or before July 1St, 2016; and 

(c) $23,263 on or before October 1st, 2016. 

5.0 EQUIPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

5.1 Saanich and Esquimalt have each contributed equipment under the 2006 
agreement and each party agrees that such equipment will remain in place to 
facilitate this renewal agreement. 

5.2 During the Term of this Agreement, Esquimalt will reimburse Saanich for any other 
one-time start up costs incurred in relation to additional fire dispatch and 
communications services not specifically provided under this agreement. 

6.0 INDEMNITY 

6.1 Saanich agrees that it will indemnify and save harmless Esquimalt from and 
against any claims, suits, actions, causes of actions, costs, damages or expenses 
of any kind that result from: 



Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 5 of 8 

(a) the negligence of Saanich and its employees, contractors and agents in the 
provision of fire dispatch and communications services; or 

(b) a breach of this Agreement by Saanich. 

6.2 Esquimalt agrees that it will indemnify and save harmless Saanich from and 
against any claims, suits, actions, causes of actions, costs, damages or expenses 
of any kind that result from: 

(a) the negligence of Esquimalt and its employees, contractors and agents; or 

(b) a breach of this Agreement by Esquimalt. 

7.0 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

7.1 Neither Saanich nor any of its officers or employees shall be liable to Esquimalt or 
any owner or occupier of property in Esquimalt for any loss or damage caused by 
the failure of Saanich or its officers or employees to provide services under this 
contract or the breakdown or malfunction of Saanich equipment unless such 
failure, breakdown or malfunction was the result of a deliberate act or negligence 
of a Saanich officer or employee. 

B.O DEFAULT AND EARLY TERMINATION 

B.1 If either party is in breach of this Agreement, and the breach is not corrected within 
30 days after notice of the breach provided to that party, the party not in breach 
may terminate this Agreement. 

B.2 This Agreement will terminate in the event that the fire dispatch and 
communications services of both parties are consolidated with the fire 
communications services of one or more other local governments. 

9.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1 Notice 

It is hereby mutually agreed that any notice required to be given under this 
agreement will be deemed to be sufficiently given if: 

(a) delivered at the time of delivery; and 

(b) mailed from any government post office in the province of British Columbia 
by prepaid registered mail addressed as follows: 

11

Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 5 of 8 

(a) the negligence of Saanich and its employees, contractors and agents in the 
provision of fire dispatch and communications services; or 

(b) a breach of this Agreement by Saanich. 

6.2 Esquimalt agrees that it will indemnify and save harmless Saanich from and 
against any claims, suits, actions, causes of actions, costs, damages or expenses 
of any kind that result from: 

(a) the negligence of Esquimalt and its employees, contractors and agents; or 

(b) a breach of this Agreement by Esquimalt. 

7.0 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

7.1 Neither Saanich nor any of its officers or employees shall be liable to Esquimalt or 
any owner or occupier of property in Esquimalt for any loss or damage caused by 
the failure of Saanich or its officers or employees to provide services under this 
contract or the breakdown or malfunction of Saanich equipment unless such 
failure, breakdown or malfunction was the result of a deliberate act or negligence 
of a Saanich officer or employee. 

B.O DEFAULT AND EARLY TERMINATION 

B.1 If either party is in breach of this Agreement, and the breach is not corrected within 
30 days after notice of the breach provided to that party, the party not in breach 
may terminate this Agreement. 

B.2 This Agreement will terminate in the event that the fire dispatch and 
communications services of both parties are consolidated with the fire 
communications services of one or more other local governments. 

9.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1 Notice 

It is hereby mutually agreed that any notice required to be given under this 
agreement will be deemed to be sufficiently given if: 

(a) delivered at the time of delivery; and 

(b) mailed from any government post office in the province of British Columbia 
by prepaid registered mail addressed as follows: 



Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement 

if to Esquimalt: 

1229 Esquimalt Road 
Esquimalt, B.C., V9A 3P1 
Attention: Corporate Administrator 

if to Saanich: 

770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria, B.C. V8X 2W7 
Attention: Municipal Clerk 

Page 6 of 8 

Unless otherwise specified herein, any notice required to be given under this 
Agreement by any party will be deemed to have been given if mailed by prepaid 
registered mail, or sent by facsimile transmission, or delivered to the address of 
the other party set forth on the first page of this Agreement or at such other address 
as the other party may from time to time direct in writing, and any such notice will 
be deemed to have been received if mailed or faxed, 72 hours after the time of 
mailing or faxing and, if delivered, upon the date of delivery. If normal mail service 
or facsimile service is interrupted by strike, slow down, force majeure or other 
cause, then a notice sent by the impaired means of communication will not be 
deemed to be received until actually received, and the party sending the notice 
must utilize any other such services which have not been so interrupted or must 
deliver such notice in order to ensure prompt receipt thereof. 

9.2 Time 

Time is to be of the essence for this Agreement. 

9.3 Binding Effect 

This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto 
and their respective heirs, administrators, executors, successors, and permitted 
assignees. 

9.4 Waiver 

The waiver by a party of any failure on the part of the other party to perform in 
accordance with any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement is not to be 
construed as a waiver of any future or continuing failure, whether similar or 
dissimilar. 

9.5 Headings 

Section and paragraph headings are inserted for identification purposes only and 
do not form part of this Agreement. 

12

Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement 

if to Esquimalt: 

1229 Esquimalt Road 
Esquimalt, B.C., V9A 3P1 
Attention: Corporate Administrator 

if to Saanich: 

770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria, B.C. V8X 2W7 
Attention: Municipal Clerk 

Page 6 of 8 

Unless otherwise specified herein, any notice required to be given under this 
Agreement by any party will be deemed to have been given if mailed by prepaid 
registered mail, or sent by facsimile transmission, or delivered to the address of 
the other party set forth on the first page of this Agreement or at such other address 
as the other party may from time to time direct in writing, and any such notice will 
be deemed to have been received if mailed or faxed, 72 hours after the time of 
mailing or faxing and, if delivered, upon the date of delivery. If normal mail service 
or facsimile service is interrupted by strike, slow down, force majeure or other 
cause, then a notice sent by the impaired means of communication will not be 
deemed to be received until actually received, and the party sending the notice 
must utilize any other such services which have not been so interrupted or must 
deliver such notice in order to ensure prompt receipt thereof. 

9.2 Time 

Time is to be of the essence for this Agreement. 

9.3 Binding Effect 

This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto 
and their respective heirs, administrators, executors, successors, and permitted 
assignees. 

9.4 Waiver 

The waiver by a party of any failure on the part of the other party to perform in 
accordance with any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement is not to be 
construed as a waiver of any future or continuing failure, whether similar or 
dissimilar. 

9.5 Headings 

Section and paragraph headings are inserted for identification purposes only and 
do not form part of this Agreement. 



Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 7 of 8 

9.6 Language 

Wherever the singular, masculine and neuter are used throughout this Agreement, 
the same is to be construed as meaning the plural or the feminine or the body 
corporate or politic as the context so requires. 

9.7 Cumulative Remedies 

No remedy under this Agreement is to be deemed exclusive but will, where 
possible, be cumulative with all other remedies at law or in equity. 

9.8 Law Applicable 

This Agreement is to be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws 
applicable in the Province of British Columbia. 

9.9 Relationship of Parties 

No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to create a partnership or joint 
venture relationship, an employer-employee relationship, a landlord-tenant or a 
principal-agent relationship. 

9.10 Amendment 

This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by the written agreement 
of the parties. 

9.11 Integration 

This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding of the parties 
with respect to the matters contemplated by this Agreement and supersedes all 
prior and contemporaneous agreements between them with respect to such 
matters. 

9.12 Survival 

All representations and warranties set forth in this Agreement and all provisions of 
this Agreement, the full performance of which is not required -prior to a termination 
of this Agreement, shall survive any such termination and be fully enforceable 
thereafter. 

9.13 Notice of Violations 

Each party shall promptly notify the other party of any matter which is likely to 
continue to give rise to a violation of its obligations under this Agreement. 

9.14 Settlement 

The parties acknowledge that they have a common goal of providing public service 
and will attempt to settle any differences arising in the administration of this 

13

Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 7 of 8 

9.6 Language 

Wherever the singular, masculine and neuter are used throughout this Agreement, 
the same is to be construed as meaning the plural or the feminine or the body 
corporate or politic as the context so requires. 

9.7 Cumulative Remedies 

No remedy under this Agreement is to be deemed exclusive but will, where 
possible, be cumulative with all other remedies at law or in equity. 

9.8 Law Applicable 

This Agreement is to be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws 
applicable in the Province of British Columbia. 

9.9 Relationship of Parties 

No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to create a partnership or joint 
venture relationship, an employer-employee relationship, a landlord-tenant or a 
principal-agent relationship. 

9.10 Amendment 

This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by the written agreement 
of the parties. 

9.11 Integration 

This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding of the parties 
with respect to the matters contemplated by this Agreement and supersedes all 
prior and contemporaneous agreements between them with respect to such 
matters. 

9.12 Survival 

All representations and warranties set forth in this Agreement and all provisions of 
this Agreement, the full performance of which is not required -prior to a termination 
of this Agreement, shall survive any such termination and be fully enforceable 
thereafter. 

9.13 Notice of Violations 

Each party shall promptly notify the other party of any matter which is likely to 
continue to give rise to a violation of its obligations under this Agreement. 

9.14 Settlement 

The parties acknowledge that they have a common goal of providing public service 
and will attempt to settle any differences arising in the administration of this 



Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 8 of 8 

Agreement amicably through discussion in good faith with a view to providing 
quality public service at a reasonable cost. 

9.15 Arbitration 

(a) Disputes not capable of resolution through discussion under 9.14 shall be 
submitted to arbitration pursuant to the Commercial Arbitration Act, 
R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 55, to a single arbitrator appointed jointly by the parties. 

(b) No one shall be nominated to act as an arbitrator who is in any way 
financially interested in this Agreement or in the business affairs of either 
party. 

(c) If the parties cannot agree on the choice of any arbitrator each party shall 
select a nominee and the nominees shall jointly appoint an arbitrator. 

(d) The laws of the Province of British Columbia shall govern this Agreement 
and any arbitration or litigation in respect hereof. 

(e) The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hands and seals as of the day 
and year first above written. 

Executed by THE CORPORATION OF ) 
THE TOWNSHIP OF ESQUIMALT this _ ) 
day of , 2016: ) 

) 
) 
) 

Fire Chief ) 

Corporate Administrator 

) 
) 

Executed by THE CORPORATION OF ) 
THE DISTRICT OF SAANICH this _ day ) 
of ,2016: ) 

) 
) 
) 

Ma~r ) 
) 
) 

Municipal Clerk ) 

14

Fire Dispatch and Communications Services Agreement Page 8 of 8 

Agreement amicably through discussion in good faith with a view to providing 
quality public service at a reasonable cost. 

9.15 Arbitration 

(a) Disputes not capable of resolution through discussion under 9.14 shall be 
submitted to arbitration pursuant to the Commercial Arbitration Act, 
R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 55, to a single arbitrator appointed jointly by the parties. 

(b) No one shall be nominated to act as an arbitrator who is in any way 
financially interested in this Agreement or in the business affairs of either 
party. 

(c) If the parties cannot agree on the choice of any arbitrator each party shall 
select a nominee and the nominees shall jointly appoint an arbitrator. 

(d) The laws of the Province of British Columbia shall govern this Agreement 
and any arbitration or litigation in respect hereof. 

(e) The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hands and seals as of the day 
and year first above written. 

Executed by THE CORPORATION OF ) 
THE TOWNSHIP OF ESQUIMALT this _ ) 
day of , 2016: ) 

) 
) 
) 

Fire Chief ) 

Corporate Administrator 

) 
) 

Executed by THE CORPORATION OF ) 
THE DISTRICT OF SAANICH this _ day ) 
of ,2016: ) 

) 
) 
) 

Ma~r ) 
) 
) 

Municipal Clerk ) 



J4/'O·o'l +ina hCV 
)(. e; 3 -:::ro ·30 

The Corporation of the District of Saanich 

Report Mayor 
Councillors 
Administrator 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: 

Date: 

Laura Ciarniello, Director Corporate Services 
Valla Tinney, Director of Finance 

March 9, 2016 

Subject: Sole Source Purchase of Oracle Licenses for the JD Edwards Upgrade and 
HRlPayroli Software Projects 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to approve a sole source purchase of additional module licenses 
and associated maintenance costs related to the JD Edwards Upgrade and HRlPayroll Projects. 

BACKGROUND 

Strategic Initiative P3a under Service Excellence in the 2015-2018 Strategic Plan includes 
upgrade of JD Edwards (financial software) and replacement of ePersonality (Human 
Resources/Payroll software). These two projects are being consolidated into one project to take 
advantage of efficiencies and optimization of JD Edwards, the Enterprise Resource Planning 
(ERP) software for the District. Under the Agreement on Internal Trade (AIT) exceptions to open 
competition are allowed "to ensure compatibility with existing products" and "where there is an 
absence of competition for technical reasons and the goods or services can be supplied only by 
a particular supplier and no alternative or substitute exists". Oracle is the sole provider of JD 
Edwards products which is the established ERP for the District of Saanich. 

JD Edwards (JDE) 

The current version of JOE reaches the end of vendor support on December, 31 2016. 
Saanich currently owns and uses the following JOE modules and pays the associated 
annual maintenance fees: 

Accounts Payable 
Address Book 
Fixed Assets 
Inventory Foundation 
Project Costing 
HCM Foundation (HR) 

Accounts Receivable 
Capital Asset Management 
General Ledger 
Inventory Management 
Procurement and Subcontract Management 

All of these module were purchased as part of the initial acquisition and implementation 
of JOE. Ongoing annual maintenance fees of $105,864 are currently included in the IT 
budget. 

~[g©~O\w[g[Q) 
MAR 1 0 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTPJ.:~~~9£ ~MNI<]L~ , 

15

J4/'O·o'l +ina hCV 
)(. e; 3 -:::ro ·30 

The Corporation of the District of Saanich 

Report Mayor 
Councillors 
Administrator 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: 

Date: 

Laura Ciarniello, Director Corporate Services 
Valla Tinney, Director of Finance 

March 9, 2016 

Subject: Sole Source Purchase of Oracle Licenses for the JD Edwards Upgrade and 
HRlPayroli Software Projects 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to approve a sole source purchase of additional module licenses 
and associated maintenance costs related to the JD Edwards Upgrade and HRlPayroll Projects. 

BACKGROUND 

Strategic Initiative P3a under Service Excellence in the 2015-2018 Strategic Plan includes 
upgrade of JD Edwards (financial software) and replacement of ePersonality (Human 
Resources/Payroll software). These two projects are being consolidated into one project to take 
advantage of efficiencies and optimization of JD Edwards, the Enterprise Resource Planning 
(ERP) software for the District. Under the Agreement on Internal Trade (AIT) exceptions to open 
competition are allowed "to ensure compatibility with existing products" and "where there is an 
absence of competition for technical reasons and the goods or services can be supplied only by 
a particular supplier and no alternative or substitute exists". Oracle is the sole provider of JD 
Edwards products which is the established ERP for the District of Saanich. 

JD Edwards (JDE) 

The current version of JOE reaches the end of vendor support on December, 31 2016. 
Saanich currently owns and uses the following JOE modules and pays the associated 
annual maintenance fees: 

Accounts Payable 
Address Book 
Fixed Assets 
Inventory Foundation 
Project Costing 
HCM Foundation (HR) 

Accounts Receivable 
Capital Asset Management 
General Ledger 
Inventory Management 
Procurement and Subcontract Management 

All of these module were purchased as part of the initial acquisition and implementation 
of JOE. Ongoing annual maintenance fees of $105,864 are currently included in the IT 
budget. 

~[g©~O\w[g[Q) 
MAR 1 0 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTPJ.:~~~9£ ~MNlc;lL~ . 

HopkinDL
Text Box
Council March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CMD. 2



Page 2 

ePersonality 

The ePersonality HRlpayroll system will reach the end of vendor support in July 2017. 
The vendor has made considerable changes to how newer versions of its product are 
delivered. The decision has been made to retire the ePersonality program as an upgrade 
to a vendor supported version would involve a significant investment in both software 
and hardware. The expansion of JDE to incorporate HRlpayroll functionality will 
optimize and consolidate the compensation systems to seamlessly interact with the 
other JDE modules that Saanich has been using since implementation. It will also 
standardize the computer hardware requirements. Annual maintenance fees of $33,405 
for ePersonality are currently included in the IT budget. 

DISCUSSION 

The District is upgrading its current JD Edwards environment (including the implementation of 
JDE payroll) to the latest version to take advantage of new enhancements and improve overall 
performance and reliability. 

A critical objective of this project is to ensure that technological capabilities meet desired 
business and organizational objectives well into the future, while taking advantage of the 
efficiencies of having key business processes in one core system. Key to achieving this 
objective is for Saanich to: 

• Upgrade JDE to take advantage of the user productivity gains in the later versions 
of the software; 

• Replace legacy, outdated applications that are critical to maintaining reliable financial 
processes for the District; 

• Improve end user reporting and querying capabilities; 
• Implement a well-managed technical environment improving stability and reliability of 

the system; and 
• Create a management and support framework to assist in future business process 

change. 

To facilitate this objective, Saanich will need to purchase some additional modules from Oracle 
(Vendor of JD Edwards products) as follows: 

Module Initial Licence Annual Maintenance 
Cost Cost 

JDE Expense Management module $37,102 $8,164 
JDE Payroll Module $201,495 * $10,984 
JDE User Productivity Kit module $61,073 $13,493 

TOTAL $299,670 $32,641 .. 
• Incremental cost of the JOE annual maintenance charges of $44,389 and eXisting ePersonahty 
annual maintenance charges of $33,405. As the annual renewal for ePersonality is January 1, there 
will be a requirement to maintain support for the existing system until the T4 process is concluded; 
one-time funding of $33,405 is required in 2017. 

Annual maintenance costs for these modules commence at date of license purchase. 

16

Page 2 

ePersonality 

The ePersonality HRlpayroll system will reach the end of vendor support in July 2017. 
The vendor has made considerable changes to how newer versions of its product are 
delivered. The decision has been made to retire the ePersonality program as an upgrade 
to a vendor supported version would involve a significant investment in both software 
and hardware. The expansion of JDE to incorporate HRlpayroll functionality will 
optimize and consolidate the compensation systems to seamlessly interact with the 
other JDE modules that Saanich has been using since implementation. It will also 
standardize the computer hardware requirements. Annual maintenance fees of $33,405 
for ePersonality are currently included in the IT budget. 

DISCUSSION 

The District is upgrading its current JD Edwards environment (including the implementation of 
JDE payroll) to the latest version to take advantage of new enhancements and improve overall 
performance and reliability. 

A critical objective of this project is to ensure that technological capabilities meet desired 
business and organizational objectives well into the future, while taking advantage of the 
efficiencies of having key business processes in one core system. Key to achieving this 
objective is for Saanich to: 

• Upgrade JDE to take advantage of the user productivity gains in the later versions 
of the software; 

• Replace legacy, outdated applications that are critical to maintaining reliable financial 
processes for the District; 

• Improve end user reporting and querying capabilities; 
• Implement a well-managed technical environment improving stability and reliability of 

the system; and 
• Create a management and support framework to assist in future business process 

change. 

To facilitate this objective, Saanich will need to purchase some additional modules from Oracle 
(Vendor of JD Edwards products) as follows: 

Module Initial Licence Annual Maintenance 
Cost Cost 

JDE Expense Management module $37,102 $8,164 
JDE Payroll Module $201,495 * $10,984 
JDE User Productivity Kit module $61,073 $13,493 

TOTAL $299,670 $32,641 .. 
• Incremental cost of the JOE annual maintenance charges of $44,389 and eXisting ePersonahty 
annual maintenance charges of $33,405. As the annual renewal for ePersonality is January 1, there 
will be a requirement to maintain support for the existing system until the T4 process is concluded; 
one-time funding of $33,405 is required in 2017. 

Annual maintenance costs for these modules commence at date of license purchase. 



Page 3 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Reserve fund allocation for the JDE Upgrade and HRlPayroll projects is $1,808,900. 

The additional one time licence costs of $299,670 are funded from the capital budget allocated 
for this project. The increase in annual maintenance of $32,641 would be appropriately 
managed within the annual budget guideline increase for new inventory in 2017. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council approve the purchase of JDE Expense Management, JDE Payroll, and JDE User 
Productivity Kit in the amount of $299,670. 

Report prepared by: 

~ 
Laura Ciarniello 
Director of Corporate Services 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER'S COMMENTS: 

Directors of Corporate Services and Finance 

Paul 

17

Page 3 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Reserve fund allocation for the JDE Upgrade and HRlPayroll projects is $1,808,900. 

The additional one time licence costs of $299,670 are funded from the capital budget allocated 
for this project. The increase in annual maintenance of $32,641 would be appropriately 
managed within the annual budget guideline increase for new inventory in 2017. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council approve the purchase of JDE Expense Management, JDE Payroll, and JDE User 
Productivity Kit in the amount of $299,670. 

Report prepared by: 

~ 
Laura Ciarniello 
Director of Corporate Services 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER'S COMMENTS: 

Directors of Corporate Services and Finance 

Paul 



ILfIO·CH -hna(l(~ 
X', 53-qQ'30 

The Corporation of the District of Saanich 

Report 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Valla Tinney, Director of Finance 
Laura Ciarniello, Director of Corporate Services 

Date: March 9, 2016 

Subject: Award of RFP 08/16 - JD Edwards: Systems Implementation and Managed 
Services 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to award the contract for Systems Implementation and Managed 
Services for the JD Edwards Upgrade and HRlPayroll Projects. 

BACKGROUND 

Strategic Initiative P3a under Service Excellence in the 2015-2018 Strategic Plan includes 
upgrade of JD Edwards (financial software) and replacement of ePersonality (Payroll and 
Human Resources software). The projects are incorporated into 2016-2020 Financial Plan. 

DISCUSSION 

A Request for Proposal (RFP) 08/16 was issued for the selection of a qualified Proponent 
("Contractor") to conduct systems implementation and managed services for the upgrade of the 
District's financial software, JD Edwards and implementation of the payroll module to replace 
ePersonality. 

The implementation services provided under this contract include provision of an 
implementation team with specialized knowledge in system design, configuration, testing and 
training for each of the modules utilized by Saanich. The project start date is March 21 st; go live 
is established at December 17th , 2016, with an estimated project wind up date in February 2017. 

The managed service portion of the contract includes provision of Configuration Network 
Computing (CNC) and database services for JD Edwards. 

Four responses were received from the following vendors: 

• ERP-One Consulting Inc. 
• iSP31 Solution Providers Inc. 
• Mid-Range Software Solutions Inc. 
• TeamCain 

MAR 1 0 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

Proposals were evaluated on corporate profile, project team qualifications, project approach, 
methodology and project plan, conceptual design feasibility, managed services, pricing and 

18

ILfIO·CH -hna(l(~ 
X', 53-qQ'30 

The Corporation of the District of Saanich 

Report 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Valla Tinney, Director of Finance 
Laura Ciarniello, Director of Corporate Services 

Date: March 9, 2016 

Subject: Award of RFP 08/16 - JD Edwards: Systems Implementation and Managed 
Services 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to award the contract for Systems Implementation and Managed 
Services for the JD Edwards Upgrade and HRlPayroll Projects. 

BACKGROUND 

Strategic Initiative P3a under Service Excellence in the 2015-2018 Strategic Plan includes 
upgrade of JD Edwards (financial software) and replacement of ePersonality (Payroll and 
Human Resources software). The projects are incorporated into 2016-2020 Financial Plan. 

DISCUSSION 

A Request for Proposal (RFP) 08/16 was issued for the selection of a qualified Proponent 
("Contractor") to conduct systems implementation and managed services for the upgrade of the 
District's financial software, JD Edwards and implementation of the payroll module to replace 
ePersonality. 

The implementation services provided under this contract include provision of an 
implementation team with specialized knowledge in system design, configuration, testing and 
training for each of the modules utilized by Saanich. The project start date is March 21 st; go live 
is established at December 17th , 2016, with an estimated project wind up date in February 2017. 

The managed service portion of the contract includes provision of Configuration Network 
Computing (CNC) and database services for JD Edwards. 

Four responses were received from the following vendors: 

• ERP-One Consulting Inc. 
• iSP31 Solution Providers Inc. 
• Mid-Range Software Solutions Inc. 
• TeamCain 

MAR 1 0 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

Proposals were evaluated on corporate profile, project team qualifications, project approach, 
methodology and project plan, conceptual design feasibility, managed services, pricing and 

HopkinDL
Text Box
Council March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CMD. 3



Page 2 

sustainability practices. ERP-One Consulting Inc. scored the highest on the combined criteria 
with a thorough proposal and presentation. 

This implementation project is funded from the 2016 capital budget, managed services will be 
an ongoing operating expenditure commencing in 2017. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the contract for Systems Implementation and Managed Services for the JD Edwards 
Upgrade be awarded to ERP-One Consulting Inc., as the best overall proposal with an 
estimated cost of: 

1. $1,094,360 for systems implementation costs including travel and related expenses 
(excluding taxes, subject to change orders within approved budget) 

2. $67,196 annually for ongoing managed services, plus a one-time "Service Onboarding 
Fee" of $6,500. 

Prepared by 

Laura Ciarniello 
Director of Finance Director of Corporate Services 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER'S COMMENTS: 

~~~::.D:.::irectors of Corporate Services and Finance. 

Paul 

19

Page 2 

sustainability practices. ERP-One Consulting Inc. scored the highest on the combined criteria 
with a thorough proposal and presentation. 

This implementation project is funded from the 2016 capital budget, managed services will be 
an ongoing operating expenditure commencing in 2017. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the contract for Systems Implementation and Managed Services for the JD Edwards 
Upgrade be awarded to ERP-One Consulting Inc., as the best overall proposal with an 
estimated cost of: 

1. $1,094,360 for systems implementation costs including travel and related expenses 
(excluding taxes, subject to change orders within approved budget) 

2. $67,196 annually for ongoing managed services, plus a one-time "Service Onboarding 
Fee" of $6,500. 

Prepared by 

Laura Ciarniello 
Director of Finance Director of Corporate Services 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER'S COMMENTS: 

~~~::.D:.::irectors of Corporate Services and Finance. 

Paul 



Making a difference ... together 

March 2, 2016 

Ms. Donna Dupas 
Municipal Clerk 
District of Saanich 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Ms. Dupas: 

Capital Regional District 
625 Fisgard Street, PO Box 1000 

Victoria, BC, Canada V8W 256 

T: 250.360.3000 

F: 250.360.3234 

www.crd.bc.ca 

[R1~©~DW[g[Q) 

MAR 04 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

File 3900-03 

Mayor 
COuncillors 
Admin!strator 

RE: CRD Bylaw No. 4058, Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation 
Service Establishment Bylaw, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No.1, 2016 

Enclosed is a copy of CRD Bylaw No. 4058 at third reading. Please place CRD Bylaw No. 4058 
on your next Council agenda with a request to give consent to the adoption of the Bylaw in 
accordance with Section 346 of the Local Government Act. 

The purpose of the Bylaw is to amend CRD Bylaw No. 3510 (attached) to increase the maximum 
allowable requisition to the greater of $299,708 or an amount that could be raised by a property 
value tax rate of $0 .0036/$1,000 net taxable value of land and improvements within the service 
area. At a maximum, this allowable requisition would result in an increase of $0.0006/$1,000 or 
$0.3205 per $530,059 average household assessed at 2016 rates. The actual impact per 
household depends upon the annual budget as approved by the CRD Board. 

This increase would enable the Climate Action Service to continue to leverage funding to 
undertake regional studies, policy development, educational programing and implement projects 
that will advance the Board's climate action-focused objectives. 

As background, please find attached: 
• February 3, 2016 staff report to the CRD Finance Committee 
• Climate Action Program 2014 Annual Report 
• Maximum Requisition for 2015 and 2016 

For questions regarding the bylaw, please contact Rajat Sharma, AlChief Financial Officer 
rsharma@crd.bc.ca, 250.360.3011). 

Yours sincerely, 

Brent Reems 
Senior Manager 
Legislative and Information Services 
T 250.360.3128 
F 250.360.3130 
E breems@crd.bc.ca 

Encl. 

EXEC-220782437-296 
20

Making a difference ... together 

March 2, 2016 

Ms. Donna Dupas 
Municipal Clerk 
District of Saanich 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Ms. Dupas: 

Capital Regional District 
625 Fisgard Street, PO Box 1000 

Victoria, BC, Canada V8W 256 

T: 250.360.3000 

F: 250.360.3234 

www.crd.bc.ca 

[R1~©~OW[g[Q) 

MAR 04 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

File 3900-03 

Mayor 
CounCil/ors 
Admin!strator 

RE: CRD Bylaw No. 4058, Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation 
Service Establishment Bylaw, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No.1, 2016 

Enclosed is a copy of CRD Bylaw No. 4058 at third reading. Please place CRD Bylaw No. 4058 
on your next Council agenda with a request to give consent to the adoption of the Bylaw in 
accordance with Section 346 of the Local Government Act. 

The purpose of the Bylaw is to amend CRD Bylaw No. 3510 (attached) to increase the maximum 
allowable requisition to the greater of $299,708 or an amount that could be raised by a property 
value tax rate of $0 .0036/$1,000 net taxable value of land and improvements within the service 
area. At a maximum, this allowable requisition would result in an increase of $0.0006/$1,000 or 
$0.3205 per $530,059 average household assessed at 2016 rates. The actual impact per 
household depends upon the annual budget as approved by the CRD Board. 

This increase would enable the Climate Action Service to continue to leverage funding to 
undertake regional studies, policy development, educational programing and implement projects 
that will advance the Board's climate action-focused objectives. 

As background, please find attached: 
• February 3, 2016 staff report to the CRD Finance Committee 
• Climate Action Program 2014 Annual Report 
• Maximum Requisition for 2015 and 2016 

For questions regarding the bylaw, please contact Rajat Sharma, AlChief Financial Officer 
rsharma@crd.bc.ca, 250.360.3011). 

Yours sincerely, 

Brent Reems 
Senior Manager 
Legislative and Information Services 
T 250.360.3128 
F 250.360.3130 
E breems@crd.bc.ca 

Encl. 

EXEC-220782437-296 

HopkinDL
Text Box
Council March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CMD. 4



CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 
BYLAW NO. 4058 

***************.** ••••• ** •• ***********.*** •• ***** •• **.***************************************.*.************* 

A BYLAW TO AMEND BYLAW NO. 3510 "CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT CLIMATE 
ACTION AND ADAPTATION SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT BYLAW, 2008" 

*********************.*************************************************************.************************* 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Board of the Capital Regional District wishes to amend Capital Regional District Bylaw 
No. 3510, "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service Establishment 
Bylaw, 2008" to increase the maximum amount that may be requisitioned; 

B. Pursuant to Section 349 of the Local Government Act, participating area approval is required . 

NOW THEREFORE the Board of the Capital Regional District in open meeting assembled 
enacts as follows: 

1. Bylaw No. 3510 "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service 
Establishment Bylaw, 2008" is amended by replacing Section 6 in its entirety as follows : 

"6 . In accordance with Section 339(1 )(e) of the Local Government Act, the maximum amount 
that may be requisitioned annually for the cost of the Service is the greater of: 

a) Two Hundred Ninety-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred and Eight Dollars ($299,708) ; or 

b) A property value tax rate of $0.0036 per One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) that, when 
applied to the net taxable value of land and improvements in the Service Area, will 
yield the maximum amount that may be requisitioned for the Service." 

2. This Bylaw may be cited as the "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation 
Service Establishment Bylaw, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No. 1, 2016". 

READ A FIRST TIME THIS 10lh day of February 

READ A SECOND TIME THIS 10th day of February 

READ A THIRD TIME THIS 10lh day of February 

PARTICIPATING AREA CONSENT RECEIVED UNDER SECTION 349 OF THE 
GOVERNMENT ACT Ih day of 

ADOPTED THIS Ih day of 

CHAIR CORPORATE OFFICER 

FILED WITH THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES THIS th day of 

~ hereby ~ !I1e foregoing to be EI Irue and ~ 

copy of a ResoIutIoo of the Capital Regional Ofstri:t 

Boadoothe~daYOf~ ~( v Xl"Jn_ ... 2O.iL 

:u;s~~~~ 
Ct.'fPOf8te ~ 

2016 

2016 

2016 

LOCAL 
2016 

2016 

2016 

21

CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 
BYLAW NO. 4058 

***************.** ••••• ** •• ***********.*** •• ***** •• **.***************************************.*.************* 

A BYLAW TO AMEND BYLAW NO. 3510 "CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT CLIMATE 
ACTION AND ADAPTATION SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT BYLAW, 2008" 

*********************.*************************************************************.************************* 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Board of the Capital Regional District wishes to amend Capital Regional District Bylaw 
No. 3510, "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service Establishment 
Bylaw, 2008" to increase the maximum amount that may be requisitioned ; 

B. Pursuant to Section 349 of the Local Government Act, participating area approval is required . 

NOW THEREFORE the Board of the Capital Regional District in open meeting assembled 
enacts as follows: 

1. Bylaw No. 3510 "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service 
Establishment Bylaw, 2008" is amended by replacing Section 6 in its entirety as follows : 

"6 . In accordance with Section 339(1 )(e) of the Local Government Act, the maximum amount 
that may be requisitioned annually for the cost of the Service is the greater of: 

a) Two Hundred Ninety-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred and Eight Dollars ($299,708); or 

b) A property value tax rate of $0.0036 per One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) that, when 
applied to the net taxable value of land and improvements in the Service Area, will 
yield the maximum amount that may be requisitioned for the Service." 

2. This Bylaw may be cited as the "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation 
Service Establishment Bylaw, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No.1, 2016". 

READ A FIRST TIME THIS 10lh day of February 

READ A SECOND TIME THIS 10th day of February 

READ A THIRD TIME THIS 10lh day of February 

PARTICIPATING AREA CONSENT RECEIVED UNDER SECTION 349 OF THE 
GOVERNMENT ACT Ih day of 

ADOPTED THIS Ih day of 

CHAIR CORPORATE OFFICER 

FILED WITH THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES THIS th day of 

~ hereby ~ tile foregoing to be EI IJUe and ~ 

copy of a ResoIutIoo of the Capital Regional Ofstrd 

Boadoothe~daYOf~ ~(II Xl"Jn_ ... 20~ 

:u;s~~~~ 
Ct.'fPOf8te ~ 

2016 

2016 

2016 

LOCAL 
2016 

2016 

2016 



CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 

BYLAW NO. 3510 

************************************************************************************************************************ 

A BYLAW TO ESTABLISH AND PROVIDE THE SERVICE OF 
CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION IN THE CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 

************************************************************************************************************************ 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Capital Regional District may, under Section 796 of the Local Government Act, establish and 
provide any service that the Board considers necessary or desirable for all or part of the Capital 
Regional District; 

B. The Board of the Capital Regional District wishes to establish a service to provide for climate action 
and adaptation coordination in the Capital Regional District; 

C. The Regional Board has obtained Participating Area approval in accordance with Section 801.4 and 
Section 801.5 of the Local Government Act pursuant to Section 801 of the Local Government Act, 

D. The approval of the Inspector of Municipalities has been obtained under Section 801 (1 )(a) of the 
Local Government Act. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Capital Regional District in open meeting assembled enacts as 
follows: 

Service 

1. The Service being established and to be operated is a service for the purpose of regional climate 
action coordination, including: 

(a) monitoring and reporting on air quality, energy consumption and greenhouse gas 
emissions; 

(b) collaboration and cooperation with members on climate action and adaptation; and 

(c) information dissemination and public education. 

Boundaries 

2. The boundaries of the service are coterminous with the boundaries of the Capital Regional 
District. 

Participating Area 

3. All municipalities and electoral areas within the Capital Regional District are the participating 
areas for this service. 

22

CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 

BYLAW NO. 3510 

************************************************************************************************************************ 

A BYLAW TO ESTABLISH AND PROVIDE THE SERVICE OF 
CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION IN THE CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT 

************************************************************************************************************************ 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Capital Regional District may, under Section 796 of the Local Government Act, establish and 
provide any service that the Board considers necessary or desirable for all or part of the Capital 
Regional District; 

B. The Board of the Capital Regional District wishes to establish a service to provide for climate action 
and adaptation coordination in the Capital Regional District; 

C. The Regional Board has obtained Participating Area approval in accordance with Section 801.4 and 
Section 801.5 of the Local Government Act pursuant to Section 801 of the Local Government Act, 

D. The approval of the Inspector of Municipalities has been obtained under Section 801 (1 )(a) of the 
Local Government Act. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Capital Regional District in open meeting assembled enacts as 
follows: 

Service 

1. The Service being established and to be operated is a service for the purpose of regional climate 
action coordination, including: 

(a) monitoring and reporting on air quality, energy consumption and greenhouse gas 
emissions; 

(b) collaboration and cooperation with members on climate action and adaptation; and 

(c) information dissemination and public education. 

Boundaries 

2. The boundaries of the service are coterminous with the boundaries of the Capital Regional 
District. 

Participating Area 

3. All municipalities and electoral areas within the Capital Regional District are the participating 
areas for this service. 



CRD Bylaw No. 3510 Page 2 

Cost Recovery and Apportionment of Costs 

4. As provided in Section 803 of the Local Government Act, the annual cost of providing the service 
shall be recovered by one or more of the following: 

5. 

(a) property value taxes imposed in accordance with Division 4.3 of Part 24 of the Local 
Government Act, 

(b) fees and charges imposed under Section 363 of the Local Government Act, 

(c) revenues raised by other means authorized by the Local Government Act or another Act; 

(d) revenues received by way of agreement, enterprise, gift, grant or otherwise. 

(a) The annual costs for the service, net of grants and other revenues, shall be apportioned 
among the participating area as follows: 

(i) Fifty (50) per cent of the costs shall be recovered on the basis of population of 
the participating areas; and 

(ii) Fifty (50) per cent on the converted value of land and improvements in the 
participating areas. 

(b) Population, for the purpose of this section, is the population estimate determined annually 
by the Regional Planning Services Department of the Capital Regional District. 

Maximum Requisition 

6. The maximum amount that may be requisitioned under Section 803 for the Service will be the 
greater of: 

(a) Two Hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00); or 

(b) an amount equal to the amount that could be raised by a property value tax rate of 
$0.003 per ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) which when applied to the net 
taxable value of the land and improvements within the Service Area, will yield the 
maximum amount that may be requisitioned under Section 806.1 and 805.1 of the Local 
Government Act for the Service. 

Withdrawal from Service 

7. After two years from the date of adoption of this bylaw, a participating area may withdraw from 
the service provided that written notice that the participating area intends to withdraw is delivered 
to the CRD officer responsible for corporate administration on or before July 1 st in any year to be 
effective as of January 1 st the following year. 

Citation 

8. This bylaw may be cited as the "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service 
Establishment Bylaw, 2008." 

23

CRD Bylaw No. 3510 Page 2 

Cost Recovery and Apportionment of Costs 

4. As provided in Section 803 of the Local Government Act, the annual cost of providing the service 
shall be recovered by one or more of the following: 

5. 

(a) property value taxes imposed in accordance with Division 4.3 of Part 24 of the Local 
Government Act, 

(b) fees and charges imposed under Section 363 of the Local Government Act, 

(c) revenues raised by other means authorized by the Local Government Act or another Act; 

(d) revenues received by way of agreement, enterprise, gift, grant or otherwise. 

(a) The annual costs for the service, net of grants and other revenues, shall be apportioned 
among the participating area as follows: 

(i) Fifty (50) per cent of the costs shall be recovered on the basis of population of 
the participating areas; and 

(ii) Fifty (50) per cent on the converted value of land and improvements in the 
participating areas. 

(b) Population, for the purpose of this section, is the population estimate determined annually 
by the Regional Planning Services Department of the Capital Regional District. 

Maximum Requisition 

6. The maximum amount that may be requisitioned under Section 803 for the Service will be the 
greater of: 

(a) Two Hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00); or 

(b) an amount equal to the amount that could be raised by a property value tax rate of 
$0.003 per ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) which when applied to the net 
taxable value of the land and improvements within the Service Area, will yield the 
maximum amount that may be requisitioned under Section 806.1 and 805.1 of the Local 
Government Act for the Service. 

Withdrawal from Service 

7. After two years from the date of adoption of this bylaw, a participating area may withdraw from 
the service provided that written notice that the participating area intends to withdraw is delivered 
to the CRD officer responsible for corporate administration on or before July 1 st in any year to be 
effective as of January 1 st the following year. 

Citation 

8. This bylaw may be cited as the "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service 
Establishment Bylaw, 2008." 



CRD Bylaw No. 3510 Page 3 

READ A FIRST TIME THIS 13th day of February 2008 

READ A SECOND TIME THIS 13th day of February 2008 

READ A THIRD TIME THIS 9th day of July 2008 

APPROVED BY THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES THIS 19th day of December 2008 

ADOPTED THIS 14th day of January 2009 

SECRETARY 

OF MUNICIPALITIES THIS day of January 2009 

24

CRD Bylaw No. 3510 Page 3 

READ A FIRST TIME THIS 13th day of February 2008 

READ A SECOND TIME THIS 13th day of February 2008 

READ A THIRD TIME THIS 9th day of July 2008 

APPROVED BY THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES THIS 19th day of December 2008 

ADOPTED THIS 14th day of January 2009 

SECRETARY 

OF MUNICIPALITIES THIS day of January 2009 



CJ2.D 
Making a d"tflerence ••• loqelhet 

SUBJECT 

ISSUE 

REPORT TO THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MEETING OF WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 3,2016 

BYLAW NO. 4058: CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT CLIMATE ACTION AND 
ADAPTATION SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT BYLAW AMENDMENT 

The need to increase the maximum allowable requisition for the Capital Regional District (CRD) 
Climate Action and Adaptation Service. 

BACKGROUND 

The Climate Action Program was developed through the Climate Action and Adaptation Service 
Establishment Bylaw No. 3510 in 2008. The Program launched in spring 2009, and serves the 
region's municipalities and electoral areas by acting as a resource, hub and facilitator on both 
climate mitigation and adaptation issues. 

Climate change continues to be a complex and multi-year challenge facing the capital region. The 
CRD Board has acknowledged that taking action on climate change remains a priority, as 
exemplified in the four strategic priorities directly related to advancing community and corporate 
climate action in the 2015 - 2018 Board Strategic Plan. 

The CRD Climate Action Service facilitates regional coordination on climate action and provides 
direct support to municipalities, electoral areas and the CRD in achieving their objectives to 
reduce energy use and greenhouse gas emissions and prepare for climate change impacts. Staff 
also provide technical data and scientific expertise, disseminate information and engage 
community stakeholders on climate related issues. 

Since 2010, the Service has been able to leverage over $850,000 in external funding and grants 
for climate-related studies and programing in the capital region. Many of these new grant 

. opportunities require partial financial contributions to be eligible for participation and also require 
staff time to manage the programing. 

The Climate Action Program's budget is provided through an annual CRD tax requisition on behalf 
of all of the participants in the capital region. The Service's maximum allowable requisition has 
reached its limit and is no longer sufficient to support increased service initiatives. The increase 
of the Service's budget to maximum requisition would enable the Climate Action Service to 
continue to leverage funding to undertake regional studies, policy development, educational 
programing and implement projects that will advance the Board's climate action-focused 
objectives. 

The proposed bylaw amends Bylaw No. 3510, "Capital Regional District Climate Action and 
Adaptation Service Establishment Bylaw, 2008" to increase the maximum allowable requisition. 
Given that this increase is less than 25% over five years, the proposed bylaw does not require 
Inspector approval. 

Pursuant to Section 349 of the Local Government Act, this bylaw amendment requires the consent 
of at least 2/3 of the participating area municipalities and electoral areas. 

FINT-1152029205-1164 
25

CJ2.D 
Making a d"tflerence ••• loqelhet 

SUBJECT 

ISSUE 

REPORT TO THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MEETING OF WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 3,2016 

BYLAW NO. 4058: CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT CLIMATE ACTION AND 
ADAPTATION SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT BYLAW AMENDMENT 

The need to increase the maximum allowable requisition for the Capital Regional District (CRD) 
Climate Action and Adaptation Service. 

BACKGROUND 

The Climate Action Program was developed through the Climate Action and Adaptation Service 
Establishment Bylaw No. 3510 in 2008. The Program launched in spring 2009, and serves the 
region's municipalities and electoral areas by acting as a resource, hub and facilitator on both 
climate mitigation and adaptation issues. 

Climate change continues to be a complex and multi-year challenge facing the capital region. The 
CRD Board has acknowledged that taking action on climate change remains a priority, as 
exemplified in the four strategic priorities directly related to advancing community and corporate 
climate action in the 2015 - 2018 Board Strategic Plan. 

The CRD Climate Action Service facilitates regional coordination on climate action and provides 
direct support to municipalities, electoral areas and the CRD in achieving their objectives to 
reduce energy use and greenhouse gas emissions and prepare for climate change impacts. Staff 
also provide technical data and scientific expertise, disseminate information and engage 
community stakeholders on climate related issues. 

Since 2010, the Service has been able to leverage over $850,000 in external funding and grants 
for climate-related studies and programing in the capital region. Many of these new grant 

. opportunities require partial financial contributions to be eligible for participation and also require 
staff time to manage the programing. 

The Climate Action Program's budget is provided through an annual CRD tax requisition on behalf 
of all of the participants in the capital region. The Service's maximum allowable requisition has 
reached its limit and is no longer sufficient to support increased service initiatives. The increase 
of the Service's budget to maximum requisition would enable the Climate Action Service to 
continue to leverage funding to undertake regional studies, policy development, educational 
programing and implement projects that will advance the Board's climate action-focused 
objectives. 

The proposed bylaw amends Bylaw No. 3510, "Capital Regional District Climate Action and 
Adaptation Service Establishment Bylaw, 2008" to increase the maximum allowable requisition. 
Given that this increase is less than 25% over five years, the proposed bylaw does not require 
Inspector approval. 

Pursuant to Section 349 of the Local Government Act, this bylaw amendment requires the consent 
of at least 2/3 of the participating area municipalities and electoral areas. 

FINT-1152029205-1164 



Finance Committee - February 3, 2016 
Bylaw No. 4058: CRD Climate Action and Adaptation Service Establishment Bylaw Amendment 2 

ALTERNATIVES 

That the Finance Committee recommend to the CRD Board: 

1. That Bylaw No. 4058, "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service 
Establishment Bylaw No.1, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No.1, 2016" be introduced and read a 
first and second time, read a third time. 

2. That Bylaw No. 4058 be deferred pending further information from staff. 

IMPLICATIONS 

The proposed bylaw amendment increases the maximum allowable requisition to the greater of 
$299,708. or an amount that could be raised by a property value tax rate of $0.0036/$1,000 net 
taxable value of land and improvements within the service area. At a maximum, this allowable 
requisition would result in an increase of $0.0006/$1,000 or $0.3205 per $530,059 average 
household assessed at 2016 rates. The actual impact per household depends upon the annual 
budget as approved by the CRD Board. 

CONCLUSION 

The increase of the Service's budget to maximum requisition would enable the Climate Action 
Service to continue to leverage funding to undertake regional studies, policy development, 
educational programing and implement projects that will advance the Board's climate action
focused objectives. Given that the maximum requisition increase is less than 25% over five years, 
the proposed bylaw amendment does not require Inspector approval. 

Pursuant to Section 349 of the Local Government Act, the bylaw amendment requires the consent 
of at least 2/3 of the participating area municipalities and electoral areas. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Finance Committee recommend to the Capital Regional District Board: 

That Bylaw No. 4058, "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service 
Establishment Bylaw No.1, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No. 1, 2016" be introduced and read a first 
and second time, and read a third time. 

Submitted by: Rajat Sharma, MBA, CPA, CMA, Senior Manager, Finance 

Concurrence: Diana E. Lokken, CPA, CMA, General Manager, Finance and Technology 

Concurrence: Larisa Hutcheson, P.Eng., General Manager, Parks & Environmental Services 

Concurrence: Robert Lapham, MCIP, RPP, Chief Administrative Officer 

Attachments: Bylaw 4058 

26

Finance Committee - February 3, 2016 
Bylaw No. 4058: CRD Climate Action and Adaptation Service Establishment Bylaw Amendment 2 

ALTERNATIVES 

That the Finance Committee recommend to the CRD Board: 

1. That Bylaw No. 4058, "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service 
Establishment Bylaw No. 1, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No.1, 2016" be introduced and read a 
first and second time, read a third time. 

2. That Bylaw No. 4058 be deferred pending further information from staff. 

IMPLICATIONS 

The proposed bylaw amendment increases the maximum allowable requisition to the greater of 
$299,708. or an amount that could be raised by a property value tax rate of $0.0036/$1,000 net 
taxable value of land and improvements within the service area. At a maximum, this allowable 
requisition would result in an increase of $0.0006/$1,000 or $0.3205 per $530,059 average 
household assessed at 2016 rates. The actual impact per household depends upon the annual 
budget as approved by the CRD Board. 

CONCLUSION 

The increase of the Service's budget to maximum requisition would enable the Climate Action 
Service to continue to leverage funding to undertake regional studies, policy development, 
educational programing and implement projects that will advance the Board's climate action
focused objectives. Given that the maximum requisition increase is less than 25% over five years, 
the proposed bylaw amendment does not require Inspector approval. 

Pursuant to Section 349 of the Local Government Act, the bylaw amendment requires the consent 
of at least 2/3 of the participating area municipalities and electoral areas. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Finance Committee recommend to the Capital Regional District Board: 

That Bylaw No. 4058, "Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service 
Establishment Bylaw No.1, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No. 1, 2016" be introduced and read a first 
and second time, and read a third time. 

Submitted by: Rajat Sharma, MBA, CPA, CMA, Senior Manager, Finance 

Concurrence: Diana E. Lokken, CPA, CMA, General Manager, Finance and Technology 

Concurrence: Larisa Hutcheson, P.Eng., General Manager, Parks & Environmental Services 

Concurrence: Robert Lapham, MCIP, RPP, Chief Administrative Officer 

Attachments: Bylaw 4058 



Climate Action Program 
2014 Annual Report 
Cf2.f:) I Capital Regional District 

Climate change may be the single biggest issue facing our planet today. Whether it is impacts to our ecological or economic 
systems, human health or social systems, our communities will need to find ways to reduce energy and emissions and prepare for 
the climate of tomorrow. 

The Case for Action 

5 Investing in emission reduction activities generates a wide range of benefits. These benefits are both quantitative, such as costs 
'':: 
:g, savings from improving energy efficiency and reducing operation and maintenance requirements, and qualitative, such as 

'':: 
i improved public health and community well-being . 

. § Despite emission reductions, the capital region will continue to experience the impacts of climate change. The region will see -a increases in extreme weather events, shifting weather patterns and sea level rise. However, planning can be done now to 

~ minimize long-term costs of adaptation and reduce climate-related risks. 

CRD Climate Action 

Since 2008, the Capital Regional District (CRO) has been working to understand regional climate impacts, support municipalities 
in reaching their climate goals and undertake activities that reduce corporate and community emissions, and prepare for climate 
change. 

This report provides an overview of: CRO climate commitments to date, climate action trends in the capital region, the 2014 
activities of the CRO Climate Action Program and a discussion of 2015 programming. 
More information is available at www.crd.bc.ca. 27

Climate Action Program 
2014 Annual Report 
Cf2.f:) I Capital Regional District 

Climate change may be the single biggest issue facing our planet today. Whether it is impacts to our ecological or economic 
systems, human health or social systems, our communities will need to find ways to reduce energy and emissions and prepare for 
the climate of tomorrow. 

The Case for Action 

5 Investing in emission reduction activities generates a wide range of benefits. These benefits are both quantitative, such as costs 
'';: 

:g, savings from improving energy efficiency and reducing operation and maintenance requirements, and qualitative, such as 
'';: 

i improved public health and community well-being . 

. § Despite emission reductions, the capital region will continue to experience the impacts of climate change. The region will see -a increases in extreme weather events, shifting weather patterns and sea level rise. However, planning can be done now to 

~ minimize long-term costs of adaptation and reduce climate-related risks. 

CRD Climate Action 

Since 2008, the Capital Regional District (CRO) has been working to understand regional climate impacts, support municipalities 
in reaching their climate goals and undertake activities that reduce corporate and community emissions, and prepare for climate 
change. 

This report provides an overview of: CRO climate commitments to date, climate action trends in the capital region, the 2014 
activities of the CRO Climate Action Program and a discussion of 2015 programming. 
More information is available at www.crd.bc.ca. 



Climate Action Requirements & Commitments 
The Capital Regional District is required to take action to reduce 
corporate and community greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and 
prepare for the impacts of climate change under the following 
regulations and commitments: 

Local Government (Green Communities) Statutes Amendment 
Act (Bill 27) requires regional districts and local governments to 
include targets, policies and actions for the reduction of GHG emissions 
in Regional Growth Strategies and Official Community Plans, The 
Act also provides powers to local and regional governments to 
support mitigation and adaptation through development permit 
areas, development cost charges and parking and building code 
requirements. 

In 2009, all local governments in the region, including the CRD, 
became Signatories of the BC Climate Action Charter. 
This includes commitments to: 

Become carbon neutral in corporate operations starting in 2012 
work to create compact, more energy efficient communities 
Measure and report on our community's greenhouse gas 
emissions profile 

Since 2009, the CRD has participated in the provincial Carbon Tax 
Rebate Incentive Program (CARIP). By annually reporting on 
corporate energy use and corporate and community climate actions, 
the CRD receives a rebate for the carbon tax it pays. 

CRD Climate Related Plans 

In 2008, CRD Environment Committee adopted the 
target to reduce 33% of greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions by 2020 from a base year of 2007. 

The CRD has been measuring and reporting on 
corporate GHG emissions since 2009 and has been 
carbon neutral since 2012. Policies and actions 
supporting this commitment are included in the 
draft Regional Sustainability Strategy, which will be 
finalized in 2015. The CRD provides data to support 
the provincial development of the Community 
Energy and Emissions Inventories (CEEI). 

In 2015, the CARIP rebate will be used to support a 
one-year pOSition focused on identifying corporate 
GHG reduction and energy saving opportunities. 

In previous years, the CRD has recognized that climate action is a priority. This has been documented in the following plans: 

2007: CRD Capital Region Community Energy Plan 

2008: CRD Corporate Climate Action Plan 

2009 - 2011: CRD Strategic Plan. Climate action identified as a strategic priority 

2012 - 2014: CRD Strategic Plan. Climate action continued as a strategic priority 

2013: CRD began development of the Regional Sustainability Strategy. Both climate mitigation and adaptation related 
targets, policies and actions are embedded into strategy 

2014: CRD undertook development of a Climate Action Blueprint, a resource identifying further actions 

(limA!o t.rl ln n DrnnrAm - 7()1 ,1 t. n nllAI Donnrt 

28

Climate Action Requirements & Commitments 
The Capital Regional District is required to take action to reduce 
corporate and community greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and 
prepare for the impacts of climate change under the following 
regulations and commitments: 

Local Government (Green Communities) Statutes Amendment 
Act (Bill 27) requires regional districts and local governments to 
include targets, policies and actions for the reduction of GHG emissions 
in Regional Growth Strategies and Official Community Plans, The 
Act also provides powers to local and regional governments to 
support mitigation and adaptation through development permit 
areas, development cost charges and parking and building code 
requirements. 

In 2009, all local governments in the region, including the CRD, 
became Signatories of the BC Climate Action Charter. 
This includes commitments to: 

Become carbon neutral in corporate operations starting in 2012 
work to create compact, more energy efficient communities 
Measure and report on our community's greenhouse gas 
emissions profile 

Since 2009, the CRD has participated in the provincial Carbon Tax 
Rebate Incentive Program (CARIP). By annually reporting on 
corporate energy use and corporate and community climate actions, 
the CRD receives a rebate for the carbon tax it pays. 

CRD Climate Related Plans 

In 2008, CRD Environment Committee adopted the 
target to reduce 33% of greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions by 2020 from a base year of 2007. 

The CRD has been measuring and reporting on 
corporate GHG emissions since 2009 and has been 
carbon neutral since 2012. Policies and actions 
supporting this commitment are included in the 
draft Regional Sustainability Strategy, which will be 
finalized in 2015. The CRD provides data to support 
the provincial development of the Community 
Energy and Emissions Inventories (CEEI). 

In 2015, the CARIP rebate will be used to support a 
one-year pOSition focused on identifying corporate 
GHG reduction and energy saving opportunities. 

In previous years, the CRD has recognized that climate action is a priority. This has been documented in the following plans: 

2007: CRD Capital Region Community Energy Plan 

2008: CRD Corporate Climate Action Plan 

2009 - 2011: CRD Strategic Plan. Climate action identified as a strategic priority 

2012 - 2014: CRD Strategic Plan. Climate action continued as a strategic priority 

2013: CRD began development of the Regional Sustainability Strategy. Both climate mitigation and adaptation related 
targets, policies and actions are embedded into strategy 

2014: CRD undertook development of a Climate Action Blueprint, a resource identifying further actions 

rlim;:,!£) t.rl,nn Drnnr;:,m - 7()1,1 Ann,,;:,1 D£)nnrt 



Climate Action Community Emissions 

In order to achieve the region's targets for 2020 and 
beyond, significant actions will be required. 

Community Greenhouse Gas Emission Targets 

1800000 

1600000 
A 

1400000 

Ii 1200000 
0 
~ 1000000 • 
0 .. 

BOIllOO II 

" " ~ 6OCOOO ... 
4OOXlO 

20r000 

0 
2010 2015 20M 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Source: Community Energy Er Emissions Inventory 
(CEEI, 2014), Province of BC 

A 33% reduction in emissions by 2020 represents a 
decrease in emissions by over 500,000 tonnes of C02e. 

" 2010 CEEI 

-Projected 
Business 
As Usual 

CEEI includes production-based emissions from 
transportation, buildings and waste. It does not include 
marine, rail or air transportation within local government 
boundaries. The Province produces (EEl reports for local 
governments. The 2012 (EEl report is expected shortly. 

2010 Greenhouse Gas Emissions by Source 

91l,i:J 

• On-road 

tr ansportatlOn 

• BUildings 

56 tI 

- Solid Waste 

Source: Community Energy Er Emissions Inventory 
(CEEI, 2014), Province of BC 

Transportation is largely responsible for region-wide 
emissions, followed by buildings, then waste. Emissions 
data are useful in Informing regional actions, policies and 
programming. 

The (RD recognizes that local and senior levels of 
government, utilities, businesses, institutions and 
residents all playa role in reaching the community GHG 
reduction targets. 

Opportunities: 
Energy and GHG reductions through: 

- Buildings (residential, commercial, 
institutional) 

- Transportation 
- Waste 

Land use creating complete, compact 
communities 
Behavioural change 
Support Regional Sustainability Strategy 
policies and actions 
Advocacy to senior levels of government 

rlim;,tp Artlnn Prnnr;,m 7014 Annll;,1 Rpnnrt 

29

Climate Action Community Emissions 

In order to achieve the region's targets for 2020 and 
beyond, significant actions will be required. 

Community Greenhouse Gas Emission Targets 

1800000 

1600000 
A 

1400000 

Ii 1200000 
0 
~ 1000000 • 
0 .. 

BIXDOO II 

" " ~ 6OOJOO ... 
400000 

20r000 

0 
2010 2015 20M 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Source: Community Energy Er Emissions Inventory 
(CEEI, 2014), Province of BC 

A 33% reduction in emissions by 2020 represents a 
decrease in emissions by over 500,000 tonnes of C02e. 

" 2010 CEEI 

- Projected 
Business 
As Usual 

CEEI includes production-based emissions from 
transportation, buildings and waste. It does not include 
marine, rail or air transportation within local government 
boundaries. The Province produces (EEl reports for local 
governments. The 2012 (EEl report is expected shortly. 

2010 Greenhouse Gas Emissions by Source 

91l,t. 

• On-road 

tr ansportatlOn 

• BUildings 

56 tI 

- Solid Waste 

Source: Community Energy Er Emissions Inventory 
(CEEI, 2014), Province of BC 

Transportation is largely responsible for region-wide 
emissions, followed by buildings, then waste. Emissions 
data are useful in Informing regional actions, policies and 
programming. 

The (RD recognizes that local and senior levels of 
government, utilities, businesses, institutions and 
residents all playa role in reaching the community GHG 
reduction targets. 

Opportunities: 
Energy and GHG reductions through: 

- Buildings (residential, commercial, 
institutional) 

- Transportation 
- Waste 

Land use creating complete, compact 
communities 
Behavioural change 
Support Regional Sustainability Strategy 
policies and actions 
Advocacy to senior levels of government 

rlim;,tp Artlnn Prnnr;,m 7014 Annll;,1 Rpnnrt 



Climate Action Corporate Emissions 

The CRD also set a target to reduce corporate greenhouse 
gas (GHG) emissions 33% by 2020. 

Corporate GHG Emission Targets 

'000 

'500 

A-

:14 A-

I 

1 

2000 

.Annual EmrUloni 

. 2020 Target 

- Projeded 
8uSIness 

• As Usual 

1501l ~----

1

'000 1-1 ----
2006 2008 2010 lOU 20)Ao 2016 20ll!! 1Q20 2022 

2014 Corporate GHG Inventory 

The CRD generated 3,726 tonnes of C02e within corporate 
operations and services in 2014. This represents an increase 
of approximately 1 % above 2013 levels, and 30% above 
2007 levels. 

Note: Emissions liability is dictated by provincial reporting 
methodology. Numbers do not include Capital Regional 
Housing Corporation, CRD landfill emissions or emissions 
from buildings the CRD leases to the Vancouver Island 
Health Authority. 

Opportunities: 

2014 Corporate Emissions Breakdown 

Light Fuel Oilr Propane 
6'19 1% 

Buiklings(45%) 

Diesel 
35% 

Fleet (55%) 

Biodiesel 
2% 

The main source of emissions from CRD operations is from 
our vehicle fleet, and from the power to heat and cool our 
buildings. 

Carbon Neutrality 

Under the Climate Action Charter, the CRD is committed to 
measuring emissions, reducing emissions and offsetting 
residual emissions to achieve carbon neutrality. The CRD 
is carbon neutral in 2014 due to a landfill gas capture 
balancing project (as per provincial reporting methodology). 

Energy and GHG reductions through: 
- buildings (real-time energy monitoring, feasibility studies, retrofits) 
- fleet (right sizing, low emission vehicles, driver training) 
- infrastructure (asset management) 

Staff engagement 
Update of corporate climate action plan and corporate policies 

riim;1tp Ar tlnn Prnnr;1m - 7n14 Annll;11 Rpnnrt 

30

Climate Action Corporate Emissions 

The CRD also set a target to reduce corporate greenhouse 
gas (GHG) emissions 33% by 2020. 

Corporate GHG Emission Targets 

' 000 

'500 -

2000 ----- • 
1501l ~----

1

'000 1-1 ----
2006 2008 2010 lOU 20).6 2016 lOll!! 1Q20 2022 

2014 Corporate GHG Inventory 

.Annual Emruloft! 

. 2020 Target 

- Projeded 
BUSiness 
As Usual 

The CRD generated 3,726 tonnes of C02e within corporate 
operations and services in 2014. This represents an increase 
of approximately 1 % above 2013 levels, and 30% above 
2007 levels. 

Note: Emissions liability is dictated by provincial reporting 
methodology. Numbers do not include Capital Regional 
Housing Corporation, CRD landfill emissions or emissions 
from buildings the CRD leases to the Vancouver Island 
Health Authority. 

Opportunities: 

2014 Corporate Emissions Breakdown 

Light Fuel Oilr Propane 
6'19 1% 

Buiklings(45%) 

Diesel 
35% 

Fleet (55%) 

Biodiesel 
2% 

The main source of emissions from CRD operations is from 
our vehicle fleet, and from the power to heat and cool our 
buildings. 

Carbon Neutrality 

Under the Climate Action Charter, the CRD is committed to 
measuring emissions, reducing emissions and offsetting 
residual emissions to achieve carbon neutrality. The CRD 
is carbon neutral in 2014 due to a landfill gas capture 
balancing project (as per provincial reporting methodology). 

Energy and GHG reductions through: 
- buildings (real-time energy monitoring, feasibility studies, retrofits) 
- fleet (right sizing, low emission vehicles, driver training) 
- infrastructure (asset management) 

Staff engagement 
Update of corporate climate action plan and corporate policies 

riim;1tp Artlnn Prnnr;1m - 7n14 Annll;11 Rpnnrt 



Climate Action Adaptation 

The climate is changing. Scientists project that the capital region will experience: 

A shift in annual weather patterns 
More extreme precipitation events 
An increase in extreme temperatures with hotter, drier summers 
More frequent and intense rain and wind storms 
Sea level rise 

Without action, these changes threaten a variety of regional and local government services, as well as overall community 
health and wellbeing. The CRD needs to anticipate and prepare for these changes. 

Sea Level Rise Related Projects 

In 2014, working with a municipal project team, the CRD Climate Action Program led an initial project to understand sea level 
rise (SLR) implications within the region. The objective of the project is to guide future analysis, as well as support initial policy 
discussions on sea level rise. The first phase of this project was to identify and map areas that are potentially vulnerable to 
sea level rise; a secondary task was to understand the potential economic consequences of sea level rise. The second phase 
of the project, to be completed in 2015, will be development of a decision-making framework to assist the CRD and local 
governments in determining appropriate approaches to sea level rise. 

Concurrently, the province announced proposed amendments to the Flood Hazard Management Land Use Guidelines to 
include considerations for sea level rise. The CRD participated in the provincial working group in order to understand some of 
the implications, and provided feedback to the province during the consultation period. Work on this will continue throughout 
2015. 

Opportunities: 
Corporate focus on adaptation (ecosystem management, asset management, water management, etc.) 
Region-wide projects that better prepare residents for the impacts of climate change in both the rural and urban 
environment (e.g., sea level rise planning, biodiversity, community health, food and agriculture, climate preparedness, 
invasive species) 
Region-wide education on adaptation 
Advocacy to senior levels of government 

rlimrl p Artinn Prnnrrlm - 701 LI Annll;::!i Dpnnrt 

31

Climate Action Adaptation 

The climate is changing. Scientists project that the capital region will experience: 

A shift in annual weather patterns 
More extreme precipitation events 
An increase in extreme temperatures with hotter, drier summers 
More frequent and intense rain and wind storms 
Sea level rise 

Without action, these changes threaten a variety of regional and local government services, as well as overall community 
health and wellbeing. The CRD needs to anticipate and prepare for these changes. 

Sea Level Rise Related Projects 

In 2014, working with a municipal project team, the CRD Climate Action Program led an initial project to understand sea level 
rise (SLR) implications within the region. The objective of the project is to guide future analysis, as well as support initial policy 
discussions on sea level rise. The first phase of this project was to identify and map areas that are potentially vu lnerable to 
sea level rise; a secondary task was to understand the potential economic consequences of sea level rise. The second phase 
of the project, to be completed in 2015, will be development of a decision-making framework to assist the CRD and local 
governments in determining appropriate approaches to sea level rise. 

Concurrently, the province announced proposed amendments to the Flood Hazard Management Land Use Guidelines to 
include considerations for sea level rise. The CRD participated in the provincial working group in order to understand some of 
the implications, and provided feedback to the province during the consultation period. Work on this will continue throughout 
2015. 

Opportunities: 
Corporate focus on adaptation (ecosystem management, asset management, water management, etc.) 
Region-wide projects that better prepare residents for the impacts of climate change in both the rural and urban 
environment (e.g., sea level rise planning, biodiversity, community health, food and agriculture, climate preparedness, 
invasive species) 
Region-wide education on adaptation 
Advocacy to senior levels of government 

rlimrl p Artinn Prnnrrlm - 701 LI Annll;::!i Dpnnrt 



Climate Action Service Overview 

The CRO Board established the service in 2009 to serve local governments and support the CRO in reaching our climate action 
goals. The program directly supports stakeholders through five important roles: 

• Assisting local governments in developing and implementing emissions reductions and climate adaptation poliCies, actions 
and programs under their corporate and community portfolios. 

• Providing scientific information, data and indicators related to local and regional GHG emissions and projected climate 
impacts for the region. 

• Increasing public awareness of climate change issues and catalyzing action through partnerships with public and 
private sectors, non-governmental organizations and community organizations. 

• Liaising with senior levels of government on climate change related programs, policies and legislation that impact the 
capital region. 

• supporting the CRD in fulfilling its own corporate climate objectives on mitigation and adaptation. 

By acting as a resource, hub and facilitator on climate change issues, the Climate Action Program supports the necessary shifts in 
policy, infrastructure, behaviour and planning that are required to create a vibrant, low-carbon, climate resilient region. 

The Climate Action Program was developed through the Climate Action and 
Adaptation Service Establishment Bylaw No. 3510 in 2008. The program consists 
of 1.5 FTE. The Program's budget is provided through an annual CRO requisition of 
$279,000 on behalf of all of the municipalities and electoral areas in the capital 
region. 

The Climate Action Program reports to the CRO Environmental Services Committee. 

rlimi'ltp Artlon Promi'lm - 701 L! Annlli'll Rpoort 

32

Climate Action Service Overview 

The CRO Board established the service in 2009 to serve local governments and support the CRO in reaching our climate action 
goals. The program directly supports stakeholders through five important roles: 

• Assisting local governments in developing and implementing emissions reductions and climate adaptation poliCies, actions 
and programs under their corporate and community portfolios. 

• Providing scientific information, data and indicators related to local and regional GHG emissions and projected climate 
impacts for the region. 

• Increasing public awareness of climate change issues and catalyzing action through partnerships with public and 
private sectors, non-governmental organizations and community organizations. 

• Liaising with senior levels of government on climate change related programs, policies and legislation that impact the 
capital region. 

• supporting the CRD in fulfilling its own corporate climate objectives on mitigation and adaptation. 

By acting as a resource, hub and facilitator on climate change issues, the Climate Action Program supports the necessary shifts in 
policy, infrastructure, behaviour and planning that are required to create a vibrant, low-carbon, climate resilient region. 

The Climate Action Program was developed through the Climate Action and 
Adaptation Service Establishment Bylaw No. 3510 in 2008. The program consists 
of 1.5 FTE. The Program's budget is provided through an annual CRO requisition of 
$279,000 on behalf of all of the municipalities and electoral areas in the capital 
region. 

The Climate Action Program reports to the CRO Environmental Services Committee. 

rlimi'ltp Artlon Promi'lm - 701 L! Annlli'll Rpoort 



Climate Action 2014 Program 
Accomplishments Er Highlights 
Local Government Support 

Each community within the region has unique priorities for climate 
action. In order to respond to the ongoing needs of local governments, 
the program hosts a Climate Action Inter-Municipal Working Group and 
a Climate Action Inter-Municipal Steering Committee. Staff and elected 
officials part.icipate on these groups to share information, collaborate, 
review Climate Action Program deliverables, and provide input on the 
direction of future work of the service. 

In addition to ongoing support provided through these groups, 
program staff supported municipalities through the following activities: 

Assisting in the development of corporate and community-wide 
policies, programs, information reports and education initiatives 
Sharing information on projected climate impacts for the region 
Undertaking research on best practices related to climate 
mitigation and adaptation 
Communicating information and providing reporting support 
related to the BC Climate Action Charter Commitments 
Sharing updates on provincial programming, regulations and 
guidance documents 
Hosting capacity-building workshops, including: 

- A solar hot water training workshop for building inspectors. 
- A seminar for local government staff on the potential legal 

implications of the proposed amendments to the BC Flood 
Hazard Land Use Management Guidelines. 

The program produces a monthly e-newsletter that includes 
information, events, resources and funding opportunities for local 
government staff that is distributed to municipal partners and the 
public. 

In 2014, the CRD partnered with the City of Colwood 
to offer solar hot water incentives across the region. The incentives 
were funded by the Government of Canada through the Clean 
Energy Fund. 

33

Climate Action 2014 Program 
Accomplishments Er Highlights 
Local Government Support 

Each community within the region has unique priorities for climate 
action. In order to respond to the ongoing needs of local governments, 
the program hosts a Climate Action Inter-Municipal Working Group and 
a Climate Action Inter-Municipal Steering Committee. Staff and elected 
officials part.icipate on these groups to share information, collaborate, 
review Climate Action Program deliverables, and provide input on the 
direction of future work of the service. 

In addition to ongoing support provided through these groups, 
program staff supported municipalities through the following activities: 

Assisting in the development of corporate and community-wide 
policies, programs, information reports and education initiatives 
Sharing information on projected climate impacts for the region 
Undertaking research on best practices related to climate 
mitigation and adaptation 
Communicating information and providing reporting support 
related to the BC Climate Action Charter Commitments 
Sharing updates on provincial programming, regulations and 
guidance documents 
Hosting capacity-building workshops, including: 

- A solar hot water training workshop for building inspectors. 
- A seminar for local government staff on the potential legal 

implications of the proposed amendments to the BC Flood 
Hazard Land Use Management Guidelines. 

The program produces a monthly e-newsletter that includes 
information, events, resources and funding opportunities for local 
government staff that is distributed to municipal partners and the 
public. 

In 2014, the CRD partnered with the City of Colwood 
to offer solar hot water incentives across the region. The incentives 
were funded by the Government of Canada through the Clean 
Energy Fund. 



Climate Action in Your Community 
Mitigation Adaptation Community Outreach 

Solar CRD Program CRD Coastal Sea Level Rise Quarterly Resilient Region 
Mapping and Risk Assessment Breakfast Exchange 
Projecr''''' 

My Green High School Plan Consultation on proposed Climate Change Showdown 
amendments to the BC Flood Education Program (Grade 4 -6) 
Hazard Land Use Management 
Guidelines 

LiveSmart Small Business YesBC Youth Climate Action 
Program'" Summit & off the Grid Festival 

(High school) 
Regional Sustainability Strategy and Climate Action To Go Kits in local 
Climate Action Blueprint development support. libraries & local schools 

Climate Action Community 
E-newsletter 
Attendance at 21 community 
events & presentations 

Leveraging Funding 

·i: In 2013, CAP received provincial funding to administer this LiveSmart Small Business Program until early 2014. 
,:,,:, The CRD Coastal Sea Level Rise Project was made possible thanks to support received from Natural Resources Canada, 
Tides Canada, City of Victoria and the District of Saanich. 
,:,,:,,:, In 2014, CAP obtained a grant from BC Hydro to coordinate energy conservation messaging within relevant existing and 
new programming. CAP was able to use this funding to develop and administer community outreach programming. 

•••••••• •••••••• ••••••• ••••• 
solarcrd 

trd.bc.ca/solar 

In 2014, CAP directly engaged more than 3,700 citizens through 
targeted education & speaking engagements . 

LiveSmart 

Regional Sustainabi"Jity Strategy 

My Green High School Plan Partners 

BChydro m 
rOR GENERATIONS the resilient 

region exchange 
34

Climate Action in Your Community 
Mitigation Adaptation Community Outreach 

Solar CRD Program CRD Coastal Sea Level Rise Quarterly Resilient Region 
Mapping and Risk Assessment Breakfast Exchange 
Projecr''''' 

My Green High School Plan Consultation on proposed Climate Change Showdown 
amendments to the BC Flood Education Program (Grade 4 -6) 
Hazard land Use Management 
Guidelines 

liveSmart Small Business YesBC Youth Climate Action 
Program'" Summit & off the Grid Festival 

(High school) 
Regional Sustainability Strategy and Climate Action To Go Kits in local 
Climate Action Blueprint development support. libraries & local schools 

Climate Action Community 
E-newsletter 
Attendance at 21 community 
events & presentations 

Leveraging Funding 

·i: In 2013, CAP received provincial funding to administer this LiveSmart Small Business Program until early 2014. 
,:,,:, The CRD Coastal Sea Level Rise Project was made possible thanks to support received from Natural Resources Canada, 
Tides Canada, City of Victoria and the District of Saanich. 
,:,,:,,:, In 2014, CAP obtained a grant from BC Hydro to coordinate energy conservation messaging within relevant existing and 
new programming. CAP was able to use this funding to develop and administer community outreach programming. 

•••••••• •••••••• ••••••• ••••• 
solarcrd 

trd.bc.ca/solar 

In 2014, CAP directly engaged more than 3,700 citizens through 
targeted education & speaking engagements . 

LiveSmart 

Regional Sustainabi"Jity Strategy 

My Green High School Plan Partners 

BChydro m 
rOR GENERATIONS the resilient 

region exchange 



Climate Action Corporate Support 
Each CRD service, through its respective department, is responsible for implementing climate action in the respective work 
plans. The Climate Action Program provides support (e.g., data, research, logistics) to departments and staff on an as-needed 
basis. This includes: 

Reviewing grant applications for climate considerations 
Providing messaging for public outreach campaigns 
Disseminating climate mitigation and adaptation information to departments, as required 
Linking information from higher levels of government to operational needs and opportunities 
Supporting the development of relevant planning documents (such as the Regional Sustainability Strategy, strategic plans, etc.) 

Fulfilling the BC Climate Action Charter 

As part of the CRD's Climate Action Charter Commitments, the program is responsible for leading the annual GHG reporting on 
behalf of the organization. Each year, staff works with the Finance division to improve data collection and streamline reporting 
processes. 

In 2014, the CRD was able to claim carbon neutrality by applying landfill gas collection practices that are in place in advance of 
impending regulatory requirements. 

Annual Requirements: 
Measure - Measure corporate emissions 
Reduce - Continuously review corporate GHG reduction opportunities 
Offset - Balance corporate emissions through a landfill gas capture project 
Report - Report to external stakeholders, including the province 

35

Climate Action Corporate Support 
Each CRD service, through its respective department, is responsible for implementing climate action in the respective work 
plans. The Climate Action Program provides support (e.g., data, research, logistics) to departments and staff on an as-needed 
basis. This includes: 

Reviewing grant applications for climate considerations 
Providing messaging for public outreach campaigns 
Disseminating climate mitigation and adaptation information to departments, as required 
Linking information from higher levels of government to operational needs and opportunities 
Supporting the development of relevant planning documents (such as the Regional Sustainability Strategy, strategic plans, etc.) 

Fulfilling the BC Climate Action Charter 

As part of the CRD's Climate Action Charter Commitments, the program is responsible for leading the annual GHG reporting on 
behalf of the organization. Each year, staff works with the Finance division to improve data collection and streamline reporting 
processes. 

In 2014, the CRD was able to claim carbon neutrality by applying landfill gas collection practices that are in place in advance of 
impending regulatory requirements. 

Annual Requirements: 
Measure - Measure corporate emissions 
Reduce - Continuously review corporate GHG reduction opportunities 
Offset - Balance corporate emissions through a landfill gas capture project 
Report - Report to external stakeholders, including the province 



Climate Action Corporate Activities 
The CRD is required to publicly report on both the corporate GHG emissions and 
corporate and community climate actions. This includes an annual survey of all 
corporate and community focused climate actions that CRD departments engaged in. 

Some highlights reported by CRD departments in 2014 include: 

Parks « Environmental Services: 
Ongoing land acquisition strategy to purchase forested lands for carbon 
sequestration. 
Planting 150 indigenous trees along Regional Trails 
Continuing to generate electricity from landfill gas and optimize gas capture by 
installing 11 new gas wells and commissioning 15 additional gas wells 
Hosting Native Plant Workshops promoting drought tolerant plants, replacement 
of high water use lawns, increasing food security and composting 
Implementing Green 365 Community Education and Outreach campaign with 
outdoor, indoor, kitchen/cooking and spring cleaning components of integrated 
program messaging 

Planning and Protective Services: 
Developing the Regional Sustainability Strategy (continuation), Regional 
Transportation Plan, Regional Food and Agriculture Sub-Strategy 
Leading an innovative Cycling Infrastructure Funding Program and Active 
Transportation Special Event Funding Program for local governments and electora l 
areas 

Integrated Water Services: 
Conducting annual monitoring to detect forest insects/diseases and invasive 
species that could threaten forests and ecosystems in the Greater Victoria 
Watershed Area (ongoing) 
Upgrading drainage structures to incorporate 13% increase in peak flows in 
adapting to predicted climate changes (ongoing) 
Using energy efficient Variable Frequency Drives to reduce energy use at 
wastewater treatment plants 

Executive Services: 
Undertaking heat recovery project at headquarters data centre 
Investigating an energy management program in 9 facility management buildings 
Installing solar panels on the Juan de Fuca administration building 
Installing rain harvesting equipment at the Salt Spring Island library 

Capital Regional Housing Corporation: 
Working with BC Hydro to implement the Energy Conservation Assistance Program 
for residents 

See the 2014 Climate Action CARIP Public Report (Interim) at www.crd.bc.ca 
for a full list of reported actions. 

36

Climate Action Corporate Activities 
The CRD is required to publicly report on both the corporate GHG emissions and 
corporate and community climate actions. This includes an annual survey of all 
corporate and community focused climate actions that CRD departments engaged in. 

Some highlights reported by CRD departments in 2014 include: 

Parks « Environmental Services: 
Ongoing land acquisition strategy to purchase forested lands for carbon 
sequestration. 
Planting 150 indigenous trees along Regional Trails 
Continuing to generate electricity from landfill gas and optimize gas capture by 
installing 11 new gas wells and commissioning 15 additional gas wells 
Hosting Native Plant Workshops promoting drought tolerant plants, replacement 
of high water use lawns, increasing food security and composting 
Implementing Green 365 Community Education and Outreach campaign with 
outdoor, indoor, kitchen/cooking and spring cleaning components of integrated 
program messaging 

Planning and Protective Services: 
Developing the Regional Sustainability Strategy (continuation), Regional 
Transportation Plan, Regional Food and Agriculture Sub-Strategy 
Leading an innovative Cycling Infrastructure Funding Program and Active 
Transportation Special Event Funding Program for local governments and electoral 
areas 

Integrated Water Services: 
Conducting annual monitoring to detect forest insects/diseases and invasive 
species that could threaten forests and ecosystems in the Greater Victoria 
Watershed Area (ongoing) 
Upgrading drainage structures to incorporate 13% increase in peak flows in 
adapting to predicted climate changes (ongoing) 
Using energy efficient Variable Frequency Drives to reduce energy use at 
wastewater treatment plants 

Executive Services: 
Undertaking heat recovery project at headquarters data centre 
Investigating an energy management program in 9 facility management buildings 
Installing solar panels on the Juan de Fuca administration building 
Installing rain harvesting equipment at the Salt Spring Island library 

Capital Regional Housing Corporation: 
Working with BC Hydro to implement the Energy Conservation Assistance Program 
for residents 

See the 2014 Climate Action CARIP Public Report (Interim) at www.crd.bc.ca 
for a full list of reported actions. 



Climate Action Looking Ahead to 2015 
In 2015, the CRD will continue to focus on supporting municipalities in their climate action goals, while undertaking projects 
that reduce corporate and community emissions and better prepare the region for climate changes. Some of the planned 
2015 community work will include: 

• Sea level Rise Planning Approaches Project: Development of a decision-making framework to assist local 
governments in navigating the various approaches to adapting to sea level rise. 

• Resilient Region Breakfast Series: A quarterly breakfast meet-up designed to bring together stakeholders interested in 
fostering a sustainable region. 

• Tap by Tap Multi-Unit Residential Building Program: A high efficient faucet aerator and showerhead swap out 
program. 

• Climate Action To Go Kits: A unique way to reach households through the library system. Kits include books, videos, 
technology, tools and activities to inform residents on how to reduce household emissions. 

• Climate Action Blueprint: A guidebook that offers a myriad of climate actions the CRD and our partners can take to 
reduce emissions and adapt to climate change. 

On the corporate side, the CRD will support a 1-year staff position to address the goal of reducing GHG emissions 33% 
by 2020 within corporate operations. Funded through the CRD's accumulated carbon tax rebate, this position will identify 
strategies and actions to meet the reduction target and determine a cost of implementation. Throughout 2015, the pilot 
position will focus on: 

Developing a 2007 Corporate GHG Emissions Baseline and identifying CRD progress towards meeting emissions reduction 
targets. 
Conducting a detailed review of CRD fleet performance through the Energy Environment Excellence (E3) Fleet Program. 
Working with CRD utility providers (BC Hydro and Fortis Energy) to analyze and review opportunities to generate GHG 
emissions reductions, energy savings and financial savings within operation of CRD-owned facilities and infrastructure. 

2016 to 2019 Budget Planning 

The CRD recognizes that current resources limit the amount of support the Climate Action Program can proVide to local 
governments and the corporation. The program will look for direction from the CRD Board and Committees to determine 
climate action priorities in anticipation of our commitments for 2020 and beyond. 

rlimAte> Artinn PrnnrAm - ')n1,., A nniiAI De>nnrt 

37

Climate Action Looking Ahead to 2015 
In 2015, the CRD will continue to focus on supporting municipalities in their climate action goals, while undertaking projects 
that reduce corporate and community emissions and better prepare the region for climate changes. Some of the planned 
2015 community work will include: 

• Sea level Rise Planning Approaches Project: Development of a decision-making framework to assist local 
governments in navigating the various approaches to adapting to sea level rise. 

• Resilient Region Breakfast Series: A quarterly breakfast meet-up designed to bring together stakeholders interested in 
fostering a sustainable region. 

• Tap by Tap Multi-Unit Residential Building Program: A high efficient faucet aerator and showerhead swap out 
program. 

• Climate Action To Go Kits: A unique way to reach households through the library system. Kits include books, videos, 
technology, tools and activities to inform residents on how to reduce household emissions. 

• Climate Action Blueprint: A guidebook that offers a myriad of climate actions the CRD and our partners can take to 
reduce emissions and adapt to climate change. 

On the corporate side, the CRD will support a 1-year staff position to address the goal of reducing GHG emissions 33% 
by 2020 within corporate operations. Funded through the CRD's accumulated carbon tax rebate, this position will identify 
strategies and actions to meet the reduction target and determine a cost of implementation. Throughout 2015, the pilot 
position will focus on: 

Developing a 2007 Corporate GHG Emissions Baseline and identifying CRD progress towards meeting emissions reduction 
targets. 
Conducting a detailed review of CRD fleet performance through the Energy Environment Excellence (E3) Fleet Program. 
Working with CRD utility providers (BC Hydro and Fortis Energy) to analyze and review opportunities to generate GHG 
emissions reductions, energy savings and financial savings within operation of CRD-owned facilities and infrastructure. 

2016 to 2019 Budget Planning 

The CRD recognizes that current resources limit the amount of support the Climate Action Program can proVide to local 
governments and the corporation. The program will look for direction from the CRD Board and Committees to determine 
climate action priorities in anticipation of our commitments for 2020 and beyond. 

rlimAte> Artinn PrnnrAm - ,n111 A nniiAI De>nnrt 



CI21 ) 
Making a difference ... together 

38

CI21 ) 
Making a difference ... together 



Items to take into account: 
1) Requisition for 2016 PROJECTION ONLY 
2) Population and Converted Assessments change each year 
3) RPS Population is calculated in January 
4) Converted Assessments provided by BC Assessment at end of March 
5) Bylaw 4058 indicates maximum to be greater of $299,708.00 or 

- property value tax rate of $0.0036 per $1,000.00 
6) Maximum property value tax rate is calculated on participants' Total Actual Assessments 

for the year of the requisition as provided by BC Assessment 
1_309 CLIMATE ACTION and ADAPTATION 
- Bylaw 3510 - CRD Climate & Adaptation Est. bylaw, Jan. 2009, Bylaw 4058 amends max. levies. Feb. 2016 

Municipalities 

City of Colwood 
City of Victoria 
District of Central Saanich 
Township of Esquimalt 
City of Langford 
District of Saanich 
District of Oak Bay 
District of North Saanich 
District of Metchosin 
Town of Sidney 
Town of View Royal 
District of Highland 
District of Sooke 

Electoral Areas 
Juan de Fuca 
Saltspring Island 
Southern Gulf Islands 

First Nations 
Tsawout 
Songhees 

Maximum Levy: 

50% ofRPS 
Population 

16,506 
83,361 
16,456 
16,734 
32,566 

113,058 
18,361 
11,422 

4,969 
11,505 

9,967 
2,176 

12,563 

349,644 

4,703 
10,601 

5,094 

20,398 

1,759 
1,727 

373,528 
Rate/$1,OOO 

$0.003 

Basis of Percent of Approved 
Apportionment 50% Total Requisition in 2015 

Converted 
Assessments 

296,052,205 3.77% 9,047 
2,461,885,818 24.16% 57,930 

434,175,867 4.50% 10,780 
284,856,092 3.74% 8,978 
755,379,4;18 8.35% 20,017 

2,579,527,106 28.76% 68,951 
595,881,967 5.60% 13,439 
386,298,445 3.57% 8,558 

95,011,368 1.17% 2,798 
340,058,357 3.34% 7,999 
215,596,166 2.47% 5,929 

53,527,431 0.57% 1,376 
220,795,438 2.85% 6,828 

8,719,045,688 92_85% 222,628 

154,578,180 1.45% 3,467 
316,633,226 3.09% 7,412 
247,374,456 1.99% 4,767 

718,585,862 6.53% 15,646 

13,665,981 0.31% 738 
15,784,880 0.31% 754 

9,467,082,411 100_00% 239,766 
Amount 

$239,766 

PROPOSEDIDRAFT 2016 
Requisition 

11,346 
72,041 
13,453 
11,159 
25,590 
86,146 
16,852 
10,907 

3,449 
9,960 
7,391 
1,707 
8,551 

278,553 

4,374 
9,111 
5,837 

19,322 

907 
926 

299,708 
Rate $0.0036 
Amount $301,250 

39

Items to take into account: 
1) Requisition for 2016 PROJECTION ONLY 
2) Population and Converted Assessments change each year 
3) RPS Population is calculated in January 
4) Converted Assessments provided by BC Assessment at end of March 
5) Bylaw 4058 indicates maximum to be greater of $299,708.00 or 

- property value tax rate of $0.0036 per $1,000.00 
6) Maximum property value tax rate is calculated on participants' Total Actual Assessments 

for the year of the requisition as provided by BC Assessment 
1_309 CLIMATE ACTION and ADAPTATION 
- Bylaw 3510 - CRD Climate & Adaptation Est. bylaw, Jan. 2009, Bylaw 4058 amends max. levies. Feb. 2016 

Municipalities 

City of Colwood 
City of Victoria 
District of Central Saanich 
Township of Esquimalt 
City of Langford 
District of Saanich 
District of Oak Bay 
District of North Saanich 
District of Metchosin 
Town of Sidney 
Town of View Royal 
District of Highland 
District of Sooke 

Electoral Areas 
Juan de Fuca 
Saltspring Island 
Southern Gulf Islands 

First Nations 
Tsawout 
Songhees 

Maximum Levy: 

50% ofRPS 
Population 

16,506 
83,361 
16,456 
16,734 
32,566 

113,058 
18,361 
11,422 

4,969 
11,505 

9,967 
2,176 

12,563 

349,644 

4,703 
10,601 

5,094 

20,398 

1,759 
1,727 

373,528 
Rate/$1,OOO 

$0.003 

Basis of Percent of Approved 
Apportionment 50% Total Requisition in 2015 

Converted 
Assessments 

296,052,205 3.77% 9,047 
2,461,885,818 24.16% 57,930 

434,175,867 4.50% 10,780 
284,856,092 3.74% 8,978 
755,379,4;18 8.35% 20,017 

2,579,527,106 28.76% 68,951 
595,881,967 5.60% 13,439 
386,298,445 3.57% 8,558 

95,011,368 1.17% 2,798 
340,058,357 3.34% 7,999 
215,596,166 2.47% 5,929 

53,527,431 0.57% 1,376 
220,795,438 2.85% 6,828 

8,719,045,688 92_85% 222,628 

154,578,180 1.45% 3,467 
316,633,226 3.09% 7,412 
247,374,456 1.99% 4,767 

718,585,862 6.53% 15,646 

13,665,981 0.31% 738 
15,784,880 0.31% 754 

9,467,082,411 100_00% 239,766 
Amount 

$239,766 

PROPOSEDIDRAFT 2016 
Requisition 

11,346 
72,041 
13,453 
11,159 
25,590 
86,146 
16,852 
10,907 

3,449 
9,960 
7,391 
1,707 
8,551 

278,553 

4,374 
9,111 
5,837 

19,322 

907 
926 

299,708 
Rate $0.0036 
Amount $301,250 



Memo 

LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 

Mayor 
Councillors 
Admin!5trator 

To: Donna Dupas, Legislative Manager File: 1420-'03 LGBTQ 

From: 

Date: 

Elizabeth van den Hengel, Committee Clerk. 

March 10, 2016 

Subject: LESBIAN, GAY, BISEXUAL, TRANSGENDER AND QUEER SUB
COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 

At the February 24, 2016 Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee meeting the Chair updated the 
Committee on the amended Terms of Reference for the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender 
and Queer (LGBTQ) Sub-Committee. A discussion occurred and the Committee resolved as 
follows: 

"That the Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee recommends that Council 
approve the Terms of Reference for the LGBTQ Sub-Committee as amended at 
the February 10,2016 LGBTQ Sub-Committee meeting." 

A copy of the revised Terms of Reference with the amendments highlighted and an excerpt from 
the minutes are attached for your information. 

c~~ 
Elizabeth van den Hengel 
Committee Clerk 

levdh 

e-copy: Mayor Atwell 
Paul Thorkelsson, CAO 
Councillor Plant, Chair 

Attachments (2) 

G;\Clerks\Committees\HSAC\Memo\LGBTQTOR.docx 

POST TO Cr'''''''' ,.,:I/lYl I POSTED 

COpy TO 

ff 
.. 

INfORMATlON 
REPLY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO l£GlSt.ATIVE DMSION 
REPORT 0 

FOR 

ACKNOWLEOGEDz::::' 

(g1~©~OW~[Q) 
MAR 10 2016 

lEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

Page 1 of 1 40

Memo 

LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 

Mayor 
Councillors 
Admin!5trator 

To: Donna Dupas, Legislative Manager File: 1420-1:'3 LGBTQ 

From: 

Date: 

Elizabeth van den Hengel, Committee Clerk. 

March 10, 2016 

Subject: LESBIAN, GAY, BISEXUAL, TRANSGENDER AND QUEER SUB
COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 

At the February 24, 2016 Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee meeting the Chair updated the 
Committee on the amended Terms of Reference for the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender 
and Queer (LGBTQ) Sub-Committee. A discussion occurred and the Committee resolved as 
follows: 

"That the Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee recommends that Council 
approve the Terms of Reference for the LGBTQ Sub-Committee as amended at 
the February 10,2016 LGBTQ Sub-Committee meeting." 

A copy of the revised Terms of Reference with the amendments highlighted and an excerpt from 
the minutes are attached for your information. 

c~~ 
Elizabeth van den Hengel 
Committee Clerk 

levdh 

e-copy: Mayor Atwell 
Paul Thorkelsson, CAO 
Councillor Plant, Chair 

Attachments (2) 

G;\Clerks\Committees\HSAC\Memo\LGBTQTOR.docx 

POSTTO Cr'''''''''' :,,:I/lYl I POSTED 

COpy TO 

fr 
.. 

INfORMATION 
REPLY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO l£GISl.ATIVE DMSION 
REPORT 0 

F{)R 

AcKNOWLEDGED~ 

(g1~©~OW~[Q) 
MAR 10 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

Page 1 of 1 

HopkinDL
Text Box
Council March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CME. 1



Minutes - Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee February 24, 2016 

MOTIONS FROM THE LGBTQ SUB-COMMITTEE 

The Chair facilitated a discussion on the motions carried from the LGBTO sub-committee. The 
following was noted: 

LGBTO Terms of Reference: 

MOTION: Moved by J. Hodgson and seconded by D. Rosenberg: "That the 
Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee recommend that Council adopt the Terms of 
Reference for the LGBTQ Sub-Committee as amended at the February 10, 2016 
meeting." 

CARRIED 

Page 3 of 7 
41

Minutes - Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee February 24, 2016 

MOTIONS FROM THE LGBTQ SUB-COMMITTEE 

The Chair facilitated a discussion on the motions carried from the LGBTO sub-committee. The 
following was noted: 

LGBTO Terms of Reference: 

MOTION: Moved by J. Hodgson and seconded by D. Rosenberg: "That the 
Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee recommend that Council adopt the Terms of 
Reference for the LGBTQ Sub-Committee as amended at the February 10, 2016 
meeting." 

CARRIED 

Page 3 of 7 



Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer 
(LGBTQ) Sub-Committee 

Terms of Reference 
(one year trial) 

The purpose of the LGBTQ sub-committee is to advise the Healthy Saanich 
Advisory Committee on LGBTQ issues and suggest initiatives and encourage 
civic engagement to improve the quality of life for Saanich LGBTQ residents. 

Mandate 
The LGBTO sub-committee will, consistent with the purpose described above, undertake 
the following: 

• Provide advice and recommendations to the Healthy Saanich Advisory 
Committee relating to LGBTQ issues in Saanich; 

• Exchange information with the LGBTQ communities and the general public about 
relevant programs and areas of interest; 

• Engage in outreach to the LGBTO communities to disseminate information and 
encourage participation in Saanich events and initiatives; 

• Act as a resource for staff during the public participation process; 
• Act as a resource for staff to ensure that Saanich facilities and events are 

accessible to all people who identify or are perceived to identify as LGBTO, and 
include those who are outside the gender binary. 

• Consider any matters which may be referred to the committee by Council, staff , 
or the public; 

• May take positions on policy initiatives from other levels of government within the 
mandate of the sub-committee; 

• The sub-committee will strive to reflect the diversity of the LGBTO community; 
and 

• Advocate for members of the LGBTO community. 

Meetings 
The sub-committee will meet four to eight times per year in accordance with its schedule 
of meetings. No meetings are held during the summer and winter breaks (July, August 
and December). Special meetings may be held at the call of the Chair. The meeting 
rules and procedures will be in accordance with the Council Procedure Bylaw. 

Membership 
The sub-committee will consist of: 

• The Chair of the Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee to act as Chair of the sub
committee; and 

• Community representatives, appointed by the Healthy Saanich AdviSOry 
Committee, who may not currently be members of the HSAC. 

Staff Support 
The Legislative Division will provide secretarial and administrative support. 

Council Motion: October 26, 2015 

Revised: February 11 . 2016 

G:IClerks\CommitteesIHSACIlGBTQ Sub·commltteelTerms of Reference.doc 42

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer 
(LGBTQ) Sub-Committee 

Terms of Reference 
(one year trial) 

The purpose of the LGBTQ sub-committee is to advise the Healthy Saanich 
Advisory Committee on LGBTQ issues and suggest initiatives and encourage 
civic engagement to improve the quality of life for Saanich LGBTQ residents. 

Mandate 
The LGBTO sub-committee will, consistent with the purpose described above, undertake 
the following: 

• Provide advice and recommendations to the Healthy Saanich Advisory 
Committee relating to LGBTQ issues in Saanich; 

• Exchange information with the LGBTQ communities and the general public about 
relevant programs and areas of interest; 

• Engage in outreach to the LGBTO communities to disseminate information and 
encourage participation in Saanich events and initiatives; 

• Act as a resource for staff during the public participation process; 
• Act as a resource for staff to ensure that Saanich facilities and events are 

accessible to all people who identify or are perceived to identify as LGBTO, and 
include those who are outside the gender binary. 

• Consider any matters which may be referred to the committee by Council, staff , 
or the public; 

• May take positions on policy initiatives from other levels of government within the 
mandate of the sub-committee; 

• The sub-committee will strive to reflect the diversity of the LGBTO community; 
and 

• Advocate for members of the LGBTO community. 

Meetings 
The sub-committee will meet four to eight times per year in accordance with its schedule 
of meetings. No meetings are held during the summer and winter breaks (July, August 
and December). Special meetings may be held at the call of the Chair. The meeting 
rules and procedures will be in accordance with the Council Procedure Bylaw. 

Membership 
The sub-committee will consist of: 

• The Chair of the Healthy Saanich Advisory Committee to act as Chair of the sub
committee; and 

• Community representatives, appointed by the Healthy Saanich AdviSOry 
Committee, who may not currently be members of the HSAC. 

Staff Support 
The Legislative Division will provide secretarial and administrative support. 

Council Motion: October 26, 2015 

Revised: February 11 . 2016 

G:IClerks\CommitteesIHSACIlGBTQ Sub·commltteelTerms of Reference.doc 



43

II-IIO·OLf ~ I 

Report 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Mayor and Councillors 

Councillors Fred Haynes and Vic Derman 

February 22, 2016 

Pop for Parks: Establishing a Fund for Nature's Future 

Upon the purchase of a beverage, BC customers pay a deposit on the container, which is refunded 
when the container is returned. If the container is not returned, the deposit remains with the 
beverage industry (i.e., its product stewardship body). "Pop for Parks" proposes the redirection of 
unredeemed container deposits to an important cause: the acquisition and protection of ecologically 
sensitive private lands in BC. 

This approach has been taken in a number of US jurisdictions to raise money for environmental 
purposes. These states recognize that unredeemed containers litter the environment, burden 
landfills and impose other environmental costs - and these states recapture the windfall to enhance 
the environment. 

Working with the Environmental Law Centre, University of Victoria, Faculty of Law, the District of 
Highlands has identified an annual pool of $10-$15 million in unredeemed deposits which could be 
redirected to assist with the acquisition and protection of natural spaces in BC. This fund has no 
impact on taxes. Saanich Council has been asked to add its voice in support of this initiative 
(Resolution from District of Highlands attached). 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That Council endorse the resolution from the District of Highlands that UBCM request that the 
provincial government redirect unredeemed container deposits into an annual fund for the acquisition 
and protection of privately owned natural spaces in BC, and further that a letter be sent to the 
Environmental Committee at the Capital Regional District requesting their additional support. 

Councillor Fred Haynes Councillor Vic Derman 

[R1~©~~W~[Q) 
MAR 10 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

Page 1 of 1 

HopkinDL
Text Box
Council March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
Council March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CMF. 1



44

DISTRICT OF .............. 

HIGHLANDS 
February 16, 2016 

File: 0230-33 

Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities 
525 Government Street 
Victoria, BC VBV OAB 

Dear Sir/ Madame: 

Re: 2016 Resolution to 2016 AVICC AGM and Convention 

Enclosed please find one resolution for consideration at the 2016 AVICC AGM and 
Convention. Along with the resolution please find the appropriate background 
documentation. 

Thank you for your assistance and should you require any clarification please feel free to 
contact me directly. 

Sincerely, 

Tina Neurauter 
Corporate Officer 

T ... r. 
1980 Millstream Road, Victoria, B C V9B 6Hl 

Tel : 250-474-1773 Fax: 250-474-3677 Web: www.highlands.ca 



45

RESOLUTION: 

POP FOR PARKS: ESTABLISHING A FUND 'FOR NATURE'S 
FUTURE 

WHEREAS the protection of greenspace is essential to our 
environmental, social and economic wellbeing and many of BC's most 
valuable and most threatened ecosystems are found on private lands; 

AND WHEREAS $10- 15 million could be raised annually for 
conservation by following the example of several states and recapturing 
the windfall monies that accrue when consumers fail to redeem container 
deposits. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM request the provincial 
government redirect unredeemed container deposits into an annual fund 
for the acquisition and protection of privately owned natural spaces in 
BC. 

Council Motion: 
Regular Meeting of Council. February 15. 2016 

MOTION: 044/2016 
MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR ROESSINGH 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR MCLEAN 

That Council resolves to forward the resolution "Pop For Parks: Establishing a 
fund for Nature's Future" to the 2016 AVICC Convention by the deadline of 
February 22,2016. CARRIED 

IS .. E. 
1980 Millstream Road. Victoria, B C V9B 6H1 

Tel: 250·474· 1773 Fax: 250· 474·3677 Web: www.highlands.ca 



46

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

POP FOR PARKS: ESTABLISHING A FUND FOR NATURE'S FUTURE 

Upon the purchase of a beverage, Be customers pay a deposit on the container, which is refunded when the 
container is retumed. If the container is not retu rned, the deposit remains with the beverage industry (i.e., its 
product stewardship body). "Pop for Parks~ proposes the redirection of unredeemed container deposits to an 
important cause: the acquisition and protection of ecologically sensitive private lands in Be. This approach has 
been taken in a number of US jurisdictions to raise money for environmental purposes. These slates recognize 
that unredeemed containers titter the environment. burden landfills and impose other environmental costs - and 
these states recapture the windfall to enhance the environment. 

Natural spaces across British Columbia are under threat. Each year British Columbia grows by 50,000 people 
and 30,000 new houses. Asphalt is becoming the land's final crop as development engulfs the Fraser Valley, the 
Okanagan and southern Vancouver Island. Vast tracts in the Northeast are transforming from wilderness to 
industrial landscape with the advent of thousands of new gas wells. In many areas, forestry operations are 
clearing old growth forests and threatening critical watersheds. Already over 1600 species in BC are officially 
classified as "at risk~. 

Although over 90% of the province is Crown land, a high percentage of the most valuable and most threatened 
ecosystems are found on private lands in our fertile temperate valleys - where most humans live. These privately 
owned natural lands help keep our drinking water clean and our air pure. They moderate local climate, and 
support endangered and other species. They make our communities more beautiful and livable, and attract both 
tourists and 21&1 century businesses to the province. As a result, protection of these private lands is 
disproportionately important for conservation efforts in BC. 

Unfortunately, citizens , conservation groups, land trusts, and municipal governments often do not have ability to 
acquire this land before it is adversely impacted and the call for the Provincial Government to increase funding to 
protect these natural spaces is not new. However, such proposals often lack the means for the government to 
generate these funds. 

In January 2016, the UVic Environmental law Centre released a report calling upon the Provincial Government to 
invest $40 million annually to acquire important private lands for conservation.' The report suggests 16 
mechanisms that have proven successful in jurisdictions around North America for raising funds to acquire and 
protect natural lands. To date, 18 conservation and recreation groups have signed on in support of the report. 

MpOp for Parks" is one of the mechanisms described in the report. It is a particularly attractive suggestion as it 
does not require any increase in taxes, but simply redirects an industry windfall towards the enhancement of the 
environment. Conservation is a more appropriate public purpose for unredeemed deposits as it eliminates the 
beverage industry's economic incentive to discourage the return of containers, invokes the "polluter pays 
principle", and compensates for litter and other environmental damage caused by discarded containers. This 
mechanism has raised substantial funds for environmental protection in the USA: in 2011, New York State, 
Massachusetts, and Michigan collected significant amounts of unredeemed deposits: $104 million, $33.5 million, 
and $17.5 million, respectively. Massachusetts dedicated 100% of this money to environmental protection 
initiatives. New York and Michigan dedicated 75-80% to this purpose, with the remainder reserved for industry 
operation of the deposiUrefund system. BC has similar potential: in 2014, there was $16 million worth of 
unclaimed bottle deposits. 

The implementation of Pop for Parks is a politically feasible conservation action. The purchase of green space is 
a good investment both environmentally and economically and British Columbians across the province have 
shown a remarkable willingness to use public funds to acquire conservation and recreation lands. This UBCM 
resolution presents a unique and substantial source of funding to facilitate this important investment and enhance 
the natural legacy of British Columbia for generations to come. 



47

The conservation and recreational organizations that support the call for the Province of BC to invest $40 million 
annually to acquire important private lands for conservation include: 

Ancient Forest Alliance 
BC Nature 
BC Spaces for Nature 
BC Wildlife Federation 
Canadian Parks and Wildemess Society - BC Chapter 
Cariboo Chilcotin Conservation Society 
Federation of Mountain Clubs of Be 
Friends of the Nemaiah Valley 
ForestEthics Solutions 
Habitat Acquisition Trust 
North Columbia Environmental Society 
Port Albemi Watershed Forest Alliance 
Sierra Club of BC 
Skeena Wild Conservation Trust 
Trails Society of BC 
Wildemess Committee 
Wildsight 
Valhalla Wilderness Society 

1 See Finding the Money to Buy and Protect Natural Lands for further information and source at hno:flwww.elc.uvic.ca/. 

= 
1980 Millstream Road, Victoria , B C V9B 6Hl 

Tel: 250-474-1773 Fax: 250-474-3677 Web: www.highlands.ca 



48

February 22,2016 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors, 

Re: Endorsement of Pop for Parks Resolution 

Murray & Anne Fraser Building 
PO Box 1700 STN CSC 
Victoria, BC V8W 2Y2 

Phone: 250 721.8188 
Email: el @ uvi c .ca 

Web : www.e lc .uvi c .ca 

I am writing to encourage the support and endorsement of the District of Saanich for a resolution 
that has been submitted by the District of Highlands to the A VICCo This resolution, "Pop for 
Parks", seeks to direct unredeemed container deposits towards a provincial fund for the 
acquisition of privately-held ecologically important natural spaces. Such spaces on Vancouver 
Island and across BC have significant recreational and conservation value. I understand that 
Councillor Haynes has provided council with a copy of the Highlands resolution and 
backgrounder. 

Note that the full Environmental Law Centre submissions which first proposed the Pop for Parks 
initiative can be found at http://www.elc.uvic.calfunding-natures-future/ 

The District of Saanich has a long tradition of leading sustainability and conservation initiatives 
in British Columbia, and your endorsement and support for this resolution would provide a 
significant boost for the advancement of this resolution at the AVICe. 

Thank you for your support for this important initiative. 

Sincerely, 

Calvin Sandborn 

Legal Director, UVic Environmental Law Centre 

Page 1 of 1 



49

Jack Knox: Pop bottles could give green funding extra fizz 

Jack Knox / Times Colonist 

December 11, 2015 06:00 AM 

UVic law centre found 16 ways that other governments, mostly in the U.S., pay for conservation projects, including using 

unredeemed deposits on soft drinks and other containers. Photograph By Jeff Chiu, The Associated Press 

Could unredeemed pop- bottle deposits save B.C.'s precious green bits? Yes, says the 

Ancient Forest Alliance. So could a property-speculation tax, or money from the extraction 

of non-renewable natural resources, or a dozen other potential revenue streams. 

The Victoria-based conservation group wants the province to set up a $40-million-a-year 

fund to protect critical natural areas - crucial wildlife habitat, recreation corridors, sources 

of drinking water and so on - before they get covered in asphalt. 

The twist, though, is that the Alliance isn't asking the province to raise the money for the proposed Natural Lands 

Acquisition Program by simply dipping into general revenue. 

Instead, the group had the University of Victoria's Environmental Law Centre look at ways other jurisdictions fund similar 

endeavours. 

The law centre found 16 ways that other governments, mostly in the U.S., pay for conservation projects. 

Among them were: 

• "Pops For Parks": The law centre report says $10 million to $15 million a year could be raised by scooping up 

unredeemed deposits on soft drinks and other containers that B.C. consumers fail to return. 

Governments in New York, Connecticut, Massachusetts, Maine, and Michigan reason that unclaimed deposits rightly 

belong to the consumers who paid them, not the entities that keep them as an unearned windfall profit. Hence, those 

states claim the bulk of the money in the consumers' name, arguing that doing so makes up for all the containers that 

end up in the landfills and as roadside litter. 



50

• Resource Taxes: The law centre argues a small portion of B.C. resource revenue should be dedicated to the fund. 

The rationale is that the depletion of non-renewable natural resources should be offset by the acquisition and protection 

of natural lands. 

The U.S. federal government plows $900 million in resource taxes, mostly from the offshore oil and gas industry, into its. 

parks system each year. Individual states have similar programs . 

• Land-speculation tax: The idea would be to tax certain types of speculation, making up for the loss of land as B.C. adds 

30,000 homes a year. The law centre cited a Vermont tax aimed at property flippers. 

This one would be contentious, though: Remember that the province quickly slapped down Vancouver Mayor Gregor 

Robertson this year when he proposed such a tax to stop speculators from driving up housing prices in the Lower 

Mainland. 

The Ancient Forest Alliance wants the province to adopt those three measures as well as some combination of 13 other 

tools used elsewhere to fund conservation. Among the possibilities are a dedicated tax on outdoor equipment such as 

hunting rifles and fishing rods, a tax on environmentally harmful products and a fee for vanity-style licence plates sold to 

conservationists. 

"The mechanisms are creative," Alliance executive director Ken Wu says. 

The important thing, he says, is to come up with a dedicated, predictable source of funding, just as the Capital Regional 

District did when residents voted for a parkland-acquisition property tax in 1999. 

Not that the Natural Lands Acquisition Program would be just for parks. It could also be used to secure Port Alberni's 

water supply, say, or to put a protective covenant on wildlife habitat on private land. 

B.C. had a pretty aggressive parks-expansion program in the 1990s, but it was based on the dedication of Crown land, 

not the acquisition of private property. That's where the issue is particularly acute: the places where development sprawls 

into the same near-urban areas where fragile eco-systems exist. It's great to have a park in the wilderness, but you also 

have to protect your local water supply, or the bog that sponges up the rain and keeps your basement from flooding. 

Greater Victoria residents recognized that 16 years ago when they voted for the CRD's parks acquisition fund, which now 

generates about $3 million a year. It has been used to preserve much of the region's taken-for-granted greenery: the 

Sooke Potholes, bulldozer-bait property next to the Juan de Fuca trail, land linking Mount Work and Thetis Lake parks, 

and the massive swath of the Sooke Hills that Victorians view as the city's backdrop. 

"Repeatedly, voters have voted to tax themselves to protect parks," says Calvin Sandborn, the UVic law centre's legal 

director. That convinces him that there would be widespread public support for a dedicated provincewide conservation 

fund. 

That belief will be put to the test as Wu and his Ancient Rainforest Alliance attempt to get other conservation and 

recreation groups to sign on to the idea and, the real challenge, win over the government. 

© Copyright Times Colonist 



From:                Justine Murdy 
To:                     <council@saanich.ca>
CC:                    <councillors@victoria.ca>
Date:                 3/1/2016 3:15 PM
Subject:            BC Natural Lands Acquisition Fund

Dear Councillors and Mayor of Saanich,

As a resident of Saanich, who also identifies as a Victorian, please support the resolution calling on the 
province to establish a Fund for Nature's Future (ie. a BC Natural Lands Acquisition Fund) to purchase 
and protect endangered ecosystems on private lands.

Many of the most endangered ecosystems in British Columbia, including Garry Oak meadows, some old-
growth forests, endangered wetlands, and community drinking watersheds, are often found on private 
lands that are threatened with development.

Please ask that the provincial government follow the good example of the Capital Regional District's $3.7 
million/year Land Acquisition Fund, which has raised over $35 million since the year 2000 to purchase 
over 4500 hectares of private lands to add to the regional parks system, including such beloved places as 
Jordan River, the Sooke Hills, the Sooke Potholes, Burgoyne Bay and Mount Maxwell on Saltspring 
Island, and lands between Thetis Lake and Mount Work parks. A larger Provincial equivalent would be a 
major boost to conservation efforts in BC.

The report entitled, "Finding the Money to Buy and Protect Natural Lands", by the University of Victoria's 
Environmental Law Centre, details over a dozen mechanisms used in jurisdictions across North America 
to raise funds for protecting land, including the "Pop for Parks" mechanism where revenues from the 
unredeemed deposits of beverage containers (worth an estimated $10 to $15 million annually in BC) 
would go towards protecting land. Creative solutions like this can go a long way toward ensuring our 
Natural Lands are retained for the public’s benefit and the good health of our unique and magical 
ecosystem.

Thank you for your time and service.

Sincerely,

Justine Murdy
Mayfair Drive, 

Saanich, BC
V8P 1P8

51

FroudS
Text Box
48 Emails Indicating Support for BC Natural Lands Acquisition Fund Including Pop for Parks (previously distributed to Council)



From:                Tessa Fryer 
To:                     <council@saanich.ca>
Date:                 3/1/2016 5:33 PM
Subject:            Advocacy for BC Natural Lands Acquisition Fund

To the Council,

I am writing to express my support for the motion towards establishing a BC Natural Lands Acquisition 
Fund. I am aware of the councils vote coming up regarding this motion and I strongly urge you to support 
it. As a 4th year university student studying Archaeology and First Nations Studies, I am extremely aware 
of the importance of the environment for both cultural and ecological reasons. Over the last few years, 
when visiting my parents in my childhood neighbourhood, I have been pained to see that rare Garry Oak 
trees are continuously being cut down on private property. Likewise, the logging of old-growth forests is 
unacceptable and must be replaced with sustainable second-growth logging practices in the province. 
There is only a small portion of old-growth trees left and we will soon need to switch to second-growth 
logging, so why not make this switch early and protect the last of the hundreds of year old trees that are 
not only a foundation of our tourism industry but also vital to the environment and cultures of Indigenous 
peoples?  Additionally, I recently returned from traveling from Australia where I met many people from 
various countries comment on the natural beauty of British Columbia. As is the case with climate change, 
it often floors me how humanity can be so aware of the destruction we are causing yet our values are so 
fixed in the present that we take no action to address issues that will have negative and permanent 
consequences in the future. Please do not let this be the case for the non-replacable ecosystems and old-
growth trees on Vancouver Island and British Columbia.

As an individual of the community, I often feel powerless in effecting change. It is my hope that through 
this email and your vote my voice will be heard.

Sincerely,

Tessa Fryer

Savannah Avenue, 
Victoria, British Columbia, 
Canada, V8X 1T3

52

FroudS
Text Box
62 Emails Indicating Support for BC Natural Lands Acquisition Fund (previously distributed to Council)



l1-fJO-04- Council 
x: JJlO·3D FirearfY} 

Report 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Mayor and Councillors 

Councillor Fred Haynes 

February 29, 2016 

Mayor 
Councillors 
Admin!strator 

Subject: Reduction of Non-migratory Geese Population to Help Sustain Local Food 

Concerns about the non-migratory geese population in the Capital Region go back many years and 
were the impetus for the development of a Regional Canada Goose Management Strategy through 
the Capital Regional District (CRD). Recently, our attention was drawn once again to the damage 
done by the predations of our non-migratory Canadian Geese population to the crops essential to 
both our local food production, and the economic viability of our local farmers. Such consequences 
are inconsistent with the aspirations expressed in our Official Community Plan. 

Council's recognition of the importance of agriculture and local food is shown in its implementation of 
the Task Force on Agriculture and Food Security. Agriculture and agribusiness are also one of the 
eight sectors identified for regional economic development by the newly formed South Vancouver 
Island Economic Development Association (SVIEDA) in which the District of Saanich is a full funding 
partner. 

This year we received correspondence from Mike Hicks, Regional Director, Juan de Fuca Electoral 
Area (attached) asking that the rural municipalities in the CRD consider amendments to their 
firearms bylaws. The amendment suggested would allow farmers that qualify for a Federal 
Canadian Wildlife Service Crop Damage Permit a limited hunting opportunity to protect their crops 
from resident Canadian Geese in the hopes of reducing the overall numbers of the resident 
Canadian Geese that have made the CRD their permanent home. There are an estimated 6,000 
resident, non-migratory geese in the CRD and it is forecasted that these numbers will grow to 60,000 
in the next 20 years. The 6,000 present today already cause considerable harm to our farmers and 
60,000 will be devastating. 

Given that the District of Saanich is both an urban and rural municipality, careful consideration of the 
implications of any amendment to the firearms bylaw is necessary. With this in mind, I would like to 
see staff review the recommendation from Director Hicks and report back to Council with options for 
an appropriate bylaw amendment, including any implications. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That Council direct staff to review the recommendation from Mike Hicks, Regional Director, Juan de 
Fuca Electoral Area, with respect to amending the District of Saanich firearms bylaw and report back 
to Council with options for an appropriate bylaw amendment, including any implications. 

Councillor Fred Haynes Mft. R 1 0 LU10 
Page 1 of 1 53

l1-fJO -04- Counci l 
x: JUO·3D FirearfY} 

Report 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Mayor and Councillors 

Councillor Fred Haynes 

February 29, 2016 

Mayor 
Councillors 
Admin!strator 

Subject: Reduction of Non-migratory Geese Population to Help Sustain Local Food 

Concerns about the non-migratory geese population in the Capital Region go back many years and 
were the impetus for the development of a Regional Canada Goose Management Strategy through 
the Capital Regional District (CRD) . Recently, our attention was drawn once again to the damage 
done by the predations of our non-migratory Canadian Geese population to the crops essential to 
both our local food production, and the economic viability of our local farmers. Such consequences 
are inconsistent with the aspirations expressed in our Official Community Plan. 

Council's recognition of the importance of agriculture and local food is shown in its implementation of 
the Task Force on Agriculture and Food Security. Agriculture and agribusiness are also one of the 
eight sectors identified for regional economic development by the newly formed South Vancouver 
Island Economic Development Association (SVIEDA) in which the District of Saanich is a full funding 
partner. 

This year we received correspondence from Mike Hicks, Regional Director, Juan de Fuca Electoral 
Area (attached) asking that the rural municipalities in the CRD consider amendments to their 
firearms bylaws. The amendment suggested would allow farmers that qualify for a Federal 
Canadian Wildlife Service Crop Damage Permit a limited hunting opportunity to protect their crops 
from resident Canadian Geese in the hopes of reducing the overall numbers of the resident 
Canadian Geese that have made the CRD their permanent home. There are an estimated 6,000 
resident, non-migratory geese in the CRD and it is forecasted that these numbers will grow to 60,000 
in the next 20 years. The 6,000 present today already cause considerable harm to our farmers and 
60,000 will be devastating. 

Given that the District of Saanich is both an urban and rural municipality, careful consideration of the 
implications of any amendment to the firearms bylaw is necessary. With this in mind, I would like to 
see staff review the recommendation from Director Hicks and report back to Council with options for 
an appropriate bylaw amendment, including any implications. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That Council direct staff to review the recommendation from Mike Hicks, Regional Director, Juan de 
Fuca Electoral Area, with respect to amending the District of Saanich firearms bylaw and report back 
to Council with options for an appropriate bylaw amendment, including any implications. 

Councillor Fred Haynes Mft. R 1 0 LU10 
Page 1 of 1 

HopkinDL
Text Box
Council March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CMF. 2



Making a difference ... together 

Jan. 17,2015 

Mayor Atwell and Council 
District of Saanich 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria B.C. 
Canada V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor and Council, 

Mike Hicks 
Regional Director 
Juan de Fuca Electoral Area 
#3 - 7450 Butler Road 
Sooke, Be V9Z N1 
2502165802 
directorjdf@crd.bc.ca 

There are an estimated 6,000 resident, non-migratory geese in the CRD and it is 
forecasted that these numbers will grow to 60,000 in the next 20 years. The 6,000 are already 
causing incredible harm to our farmers and 60,000 will be devastating. The most practical, 
humane and cost effective method of maintaining or reducing the overall population is to allow 
limited and restricted hunting of geese. 

Currently Metchosin, Saanich, Central Saanich , North Saanich , the Juan de Fuca 
Electoral Area, Salt Spring and the Gulf Islands allow limited hunting of geese for those farms 
who have obtained a Crop Damage Permit from the Federal Canadian Wildlife Service. The two 
year permits are issued to qualified farms that have worked with the local police and 
municipality. They are required to register their hunters and abide by the regulations set by the 
police and municipality. 

Crop Damage Permits allow for the hunting of between 5 and 10 birds per week. 
Hunters are not allowed to use blinds or decoys and are forbidden from eating the geese. This 
activity is intended to scare away or "haze" geese and is not intended to have an impact on the 
total flock. 

The regular hunting season has 4 two week seasons spaced between September and 
March. The CRD Board passed a motion on January 13, requesting that the rural municipalities 
change their firearms bylaw to allow hunting to take place on farms that have obtained a Crop 
Damage Permit from the Federal Government's Canadian Wildlife Service. 

In practical terms farmers and their nominees would be allowed, in addition to their total of 
5 geese per week to hunt during these seasons with blinds and decoys and take 10 geese per 
day per hunter. They would also be permitted to keep and eat these beautiful birds. 

The restrictions imposed by the Wildlife Service and Crop Protection Permit would 
remain the same, the hunters would remain the same but the total number of geese would be 
dramatically reduced. 

54

Making a difference ... together 

Jan. 17,2015 

Mayor Atwell and Council 
District of Saanich 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria B.C. 
Canada V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor and Council, 

Mike Hicks 
Regional Director 
Juan de Fuca Electoral Area 
#3 - 7450 Butler Road 
Sooke, Be V9Z N1 
2502165802 
directorjdf@crd.bc.ca 

There are an estimated 6,000 resident, non-migratory geese in the CRD and it is 
forecasted that these numbers will grow to 60,000 in the next 20 years. The 6,000 are already 
causing incredible harm to our farmers and 60,000 will be devastating. The most practical, 
humane and cost effective method of maintaining or reducing the overall population is to allow 
limited and restricted hunting of geese. 

Currently Metchosin, Saanich, Central Saanich , North Saanich , the Juan de Fuca 
Electoral Area, Salt Spring and the Gulf Islands allow limited hunting of geese for those farms 
who have obtained a Crop Damage Permit from the Federal Canadian Wildlife Service. The two 
year permits are issued to qualified farms that have worked with the local police and 
municipality. They are required to register their hunters and abide by the regulations set by the 
police and municipality. 

Crop Damage Permits allow for the hunting of between 5 and 10 birds per week. 
Hunters are not allowed to use blinds or decoys and are forbidden from eating the geese. This 
activity is intended to scare away or "haze" geese and is not intended to have an impact on the 
total flock. 

The regular hunting season has 4 two week seasons spaced between September and 
March. The CRD Board passed a motion on January 13, requesting that the rural municipalities 
change their firearms bylaw to allow hunting to take place on farms that have obtained a Crop 
Damage Permit from the Federal Government's Canadian Wildlife Service. 

In practical terms farmers and their nominees would be allowed, in addition to their total of 
5 geese per week to hunt during these seasons with blinds and decoys and take 10 geese per 
day per hunter. They would also be permitted to keep and eat these beautiful birds. 

The restrictions imposed by the Wildlife Service and Crop Protection Permit would 
remain the same, the hunters would remain the same but the total number of geese would be 
dramatically reduced. 



A suggested amendment to your current Firearms bylaw could be: 

" Any landowner or nominee with a current Canadian Wildlife Service Crop Protection 
permit, may hunt on their permitted lands using the Federal Migratory Birds regulations and in 
possession of a valid federal Migratory Game Bird Hunting Permit./I 

We have a real problem in Saanich and throughout the CRD with the huge numbers of 
resident geese. If we all collectively change our bylaws to allow for limited and controlled 
hunting of geese on select farms, we can maintain or possibly reduce the numbers and 
hopefully give our farmers the means to help themselves. 

Please take this to your council table for consideration .If you need more information 
I would be delighted to attend your meeting and answer any questions. 

Thank you 

'/?//~/ 
,. 

Mike Hicks 
Regional Director 
Juan de Fuca Electoral Area 

55

A suggested amendment to your current Firearms bylaw could be: 

" Any landowner or nominee with a current Canadian Wildlife Service Crop Protection 
permit, may hunt on their permitted lands using the Federal Migratory Birds regulations and in 
possession of a valid federal Migratory Game Bird Hunting Permit./I 

We have a real problem in Saanich and throughout the CRD with the huge numbers of 
resident geese. If we all collectively change our bylaws to allow for limited and controlled 
hunting of geese on select farms, we can maintain or possibly reduce the numbers and 
hopefully give our farmers the means to help themselves. 

Please take this to your council table for consideration .If you need more information 
I would be delighted to attend your meeting and answer any questions. 

Thank you 

'/?//~/ 
.. 

Mike Hicks 
Regional Director 
Juan de Fuca Electoral Area 



Debra Hopkins - Presentation Saanich Council: March 14/16 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

Attached are materials regarding Clubhouse International - a successful, proven model of 
rehabilitation for the mentally ill. The "MLU Story" explains our journey. The description of 
Pathways Clubhouse www.pathwaysclubhouse.com in Richmond is included along with the 
international standards. The international standards ensure quality control to Clubhouses 
worldwide. The description included would apply to all Clubhouses too.

Much more information can be found at www.momslikeus.ca (including letters of support from 
the community - Mayors, Police Chiefs etc.)

The main website for Clubhouse International is www.iccd.org

We look forward very much to our presentation next week. We are passionate about this 
program - it saves lives along with saving dollars!

Thank you,

Jackie Powell, Founder
Moms Like Us
www.momslikeus.ca

Cherry Lynn Brown
Member, Moms Like Us

From: Jackie Powell <momslikeus2014@gmail.com>
To: <Debra.Hopkins@saanich.ca>
Date: 3/8/2016 4:14 PM
Subject: Presentation Saanich Council: March 14/16
CC:
Attachments: MLU Story.doc; Clubhouse Description & Standards.pdf; Vancouver Sun 

5mar2015 hospitalization.pdf; Case Statement 2016.doc; Clubhouses and 
Clubhouse Research Outcomes_2014-1.pdf; 2014-fountain-house-awarded-
humanitarian-prize.pdf; Press Release (April 2814) Pathways Clubhouse-3-1-
1-1.pdf

Page 1 of 1

3/8/2016file:///C:/Users/hopkindl/AppData/Local/Temp/XPgrpwise/56DEFA54SaanichMun_...

56

HopkinDL
Text Box
CW March 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CW  1



	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 
 
 
Formed  in March 2014, we are a group of passionate parents who are caregivers of adult children  living 
with mental  illness.     The majority of us had healthy children who became  ill  in their  late teens or early 
20’s. 
  
It is estimated that there is a minimum of 10,000 people with a severe and persistent mental illness in the 
Greater Victoria Area (GVA). Where exactly are they?  How do they spend their time?  Do they have family 
and friends? Are they partaking in employment?  Can or do they attend school?  Where do they live? Do 
they  have  an  addiction?    Are  they  isolating?   Are  they  homeless?    Is  there  police  involvement?    The 
questions are endless.   
 
Sadly, people fall through the cracks of society because these questions are not properly addressed and 
this  is why the Moms Like Us group formed.   We could see how easily our very own, much  loved, much 
wanted children might have ended up on the street or worse.  Without adequate access to mental health 
services ‐ homelessness, poverty, addiction, crime and repeated hospitalizations are common outcomes.   
 
We  have  learned  a  great  deal  about  the  services  available  to  people with mental  illness  and we  are 
particularly  focused on psychosocial rehabilitation  (PSR).   Rehabilitation  is crucial to get people back on 
track and to help steer them on the right path to a fulfilling meaningful life that is complete with friends 
and family. 
 
Through  networking,  research  and  reaching  out  to  the  community,  Clubhouse  International  was 
discovered and we as parents have been advocating relentlessly ensuring this community‐based model of 
PSR  is  established  here  in  the  GVA.    Clubhouse  will  compliment  existing  services  and  bring  a  new 
approach that is both holistic and very cost effective.  
 
Joel D. Corcoran, Executive Director of Clubhouse International has stated, “One thing we know for sure is 
that people living with mental illness are often alone, overlooked and invisible in their own communities.  
We also know that if their situation were turned around, these same individuals would thrive.” 
 
Since 1948, Clubhouse International has learned through research, study and experience that access to a 
caring  community of  support  can make all  the difference  for a person  isolated by his or her disability.  
Belonging somewhere, in a caring community, might be the single most effective and accessible means of 
preventing acts of desperation, hospitalization, imprisonment or worse. 
 
It will widen  the  tent  of  our  society.    In  place  of  isolation,  hopelessness  and  despair,  the  Clubhouse 
members will experience community, employment, hope and a reason to wake up in the morning. 

57



• 

7351 Elmbridgc Way, Richmond. BC V6X 188 
Phone: 604-276-8834 Fax: 604-276-0342 

Email: info.richmond@cmt...bc.ca 
www.ridunond.cmhll.bc.ca 

WHAT LS YATlIWAYS CLUBHOUSE 

PATHWAYS 
CLUBHOUSE 

Pathways Clubhouse belicns thai rc:habilitation of 
people with mental ill""$$ must involve the whole 
penon in R process of gmdual acceptance inlo, and 
being embraced by, a community ofmutuolity, respect 
and opportunity. With this kind o[support. men and 
women with menUlI illllC'S$. for so long deemed 
vocationally hopeless, can work and bewme fully 

participating m<:fllben oflheircommunilies. 

Fountain House, the first clubhouse. wu formed in New York City in 1948. Pathways 
Clubhouse opened in 1987 and;$ accredited by Clubhouse internat ional. 

MEM RERSHIP 
Membership is open to anyone who, at some: stage of their life, has been diagnosed with a mental 
illness. Like I fami ly, we do not put a lime limit on belonging, membership is for life. If you arc 
int~sted in becoming I member. al l you ~ to do is call the clubhouse for a lOUr and fill out 
the appropriate fonn!, We offer. th= day orientalion which will allow you 10 experience e.ch 
of the units and understand mon: about what Pathways Clubhouse has 10 offer. 

PathWllYs Clubhou$c does not offer any formal coW1SClin&- Howcver. community support 
Krvic:es ~ provided by members and slaffofw clubhou$e. Suppor1 is centred in the work
order«! day and includes help with housing, advocacy and financial aid, 

All of our services ~ offered in English. Cantonese and Mandarin. 

WIIAT WE DO 
Pathways Clubhouse revolves around a work-ordcred day. We believe a work CRvironment 
provides fOCU5 for all paru or. penon's lifc - skills. interests, relationships. Clubhouse: work is 
real and meaningful because it arises from the 8Clual needs of the members and the functioning 
of the clubhouse. To get ready for OUT day we hnc a morning mecting al 9:00 am. This is 
where we announce cum:nt events and what's happening for the day. All of the work that takes 
place with in the clubhouse is divided inlO the following 1 work unilS: 

58

7JSl Elmbridgc Way, Richmond, BC V6X 18 8 
Phone: 604-276-8834 Fax: 604-276-0342 

F..mail: info.richmond@CmllJ,.bc.ta 
www.ricIunond.Cmha.Ix:.CII 

WHAT IS PATlIWAYS CLUBHOUSE 

PATHWAYS 
CLUBHOUSE 

Pathways Clubhouse bdicns thai rt:habililation of 
people with menui illno:u must involve the whole 
pc:non in R procc~ ofgmdu.1 aceepumcc into. and 
being embraced by, a community ofmUlUolity, respect 
and opportun ity. With this kind of support. men and 
womm with menial illnns. for so long deemed. 
vocationally hopeless, can work and bewmc fully 

participating m<:lTlbers oftheircommunilic5. 

Fountain House, the first elub/lou$e, wu formed in New York City in 1948. Pathways 
Clubhouse opened in 1987 and is IICCrediled by Clubhouse lnternation.l. 

MEMBERSHIP 
Membership is open to an~ "'00, at some stage ofthcir life, has been diagnosed with a mcnllIl 
illneu. Like I fami ly, we do noI put a lime limit on belonging, membership is for life. If you an: 
inl~sted in boeoming a mo:mber, all you ~ to do is CIIlllhc clubhouse for. lOUr and lill out 
lhe: appropriate fonn!. We offer. three day orientation which will allow you to e)(~ricnce cath 
oflhe units and understand mon: about what Pathways Clubhouse has \0 offer. 

Pathways Clubhouse does 001 offer any formal rounsc:1in&- However. community suppon 
Krvic:Q ~ provided by members and 51.dfofthe clubhoLL$e. Support is centred in the work
ordcr«l day and includes help with housing. adv(l(&CY and financial aid. 

All of OIl' xrviccs an: offered in English. Cantonese and Mandarin. 

WItAT W E DO 
Pathways Clubhouse revolves around a work-ordercd day. We believe a work enyironment 
pI'Oyidcs focU5 for an pans ora penon's life - skills. interests, relationships. Clubhouse: work is 
real and meaningful because it ari5<:S from the actual nttds ofthc members and the functioning 
of!he clubhouse. To get ready for our dJy we have a l11OfT1ing meeting at 9:00 am. This is 
where we announce cum:nt Cycnts and what's hap~ning for the day. All ofthc work that takes 
place within !he ciubhous.e is divided into the following) work unil5! 



Our Food Services Unit 
I 

FOOD SERVICES UNIT 
I We have a full menu and waiter service 
12:30. meals is 52.00, and sides are 51.00. 

The Uni t also provides a rift paneake breakfast evcry 
Wednesday morning. Apart from preparing the daily Imlls, 
the Food Serviees Unit is also responsible for menu planning, 
grocery shopping, serv ing meals, setting dining room tables 
and cleaning. It is also responsib le for the Snack Bar. located 
by the dining room, which sells various SIIack items sueh as 

~;~~"l""~·;,j~'~;'~'.~· ~,o~m~,~~~'~':""':~Ot'~·"3"",~~,~ru,~;;,.::':hiPS' sandwiches. C'1c. lbcy al$(! sell items such as toothpaste, _p ,lid 

0;;;;;:;;; ii~;;;;;;;;; I I • to accommodale 

CLERlCALfORI EI"I'TATlONISOCIAL THRIFT STOKE UNIT 

The Clerical IOricntationlSocialfThrifl. Store Unit is responsible for various office duties and is 
divided into the following ilCClions: 

CLERICAL 
C lerical concentmtes on publishing th= newslette~ : one weekly 
internal Pf-per ('"Pathways WC'l:kly") which deal s with elubhousc: 
current events. one monthly literary new:sleucr ('"'The Lantern") 
which has poetry. stories, games C'1C, and one monthly paper (""The 
Good News") which deals with elubhotlse and mental IN'alth i5SUC5 
Ilnd is circulated world·wide. The minutes for all clubhouse 
meC'1ings are rcwrded and Iyped up. We rely on computers and 
other office equipment includ ing a fax machine, photocopier, 
shredder, laminator and a wide variety of office supplies and office software. The unit is al so 
respoMible for lIN' =eption area ofthc Clubhouse. Duties include answeringlU1 8 line 
telephone and greeting members and guests. Other duti" include accounting, paying bills, 
budgc1 proposals. petty cash. and hiring and lnIining of staff, This unit is an excellent place 10 
pick lip cleric.1 skills. Theft' are community and advocacy bulle!;n boards in the reccpcion are. 
as well as an in-house bulletin board regularly maintai~d by the cleri cal unit. 

ORIENTATIONfOUTKEAcn 
Orientation is mtponsible for lours, assisling ~w members in settling in •• nd processing ~w 
membership forms. The purpose ofOutrcach is 10 1C'1 memhcrs know Wt we care about them, 
that they are misscd.1lnd 10 find oot if there is some way ;n which the clubhouse may assist 
them. Outreach also invo lves vi siting members in hospital or at home, celebrating birthdays and 
other speci.1 occasions, and visiting other agencies and groups 10 educate tllcm on the clubhouse 
model and how we function. 

59

FOOD SERVICES UNIT 

'~~~tl~;::";.;:,~~:,;;:;"":w:;c have a full menu and wailer service 
~ 12:30. meals i3 52.00, and sides are 51.00. 

The Unit also provides. free pancake breakfast every 
Wednesday mom;n,_ Apart from pITpIlring the daily Imlls, 
the Food Servi<:<:s Unit i5 also responsible for menu planning. 
grocery shopping, serving meals, seuing dining room table! 
and cleaning. II is liso responsibk for the Snack Bar. louted 
by the dining room. which sells variou! SIlack items such as 
pop.juicc, colfee, cho<:olate ban.. fruil. chips, sandwiches. 
etc. TIley 11$(1 sell sundry items such as IOOth~le. _p and 

::;;;;;;;; ".~;;;;;;;;; -r;;;;;;;;";,"""'~-;;;;;POO' Prio;ing at the ClubiKllde SIrlves (() aco.:ommOOaLc 
" "II ofPathwl)'5community. 

CLERlCALfORIEI"I'TATIONISOCIAL THRIFT STOKE UN IT 

The Clerical IOricntalionlSocillfThrift Store Unit is responsible: for various office duties and i$ 
divided into the following III:(;lions: 

CLERICAL 
Clerical conccntmtes on publishing three newsletters: onc weekly 
internal paper ("Pathwa)'s Wo:o:kly") which d~8l s with elubhouse 
current c,'enlJl, one monthly literary ncwslencr (""1M Lantern,,) 
whieh has pactry, Slories. games etc, and one monthly paper (""The 
Good N~WSM) which dc;o.h with club/1Qusc and mental hulth issues 
and is circulated world·wilk. The minutes for all clubhouse 
meetings are recorded and typed up. We rely on computers and 
other office equipmcnt including a fax machine, photocopier, 
,h~der, laminator and a wide variet), of officc supplies and office software. 1M unit is al50 
resporuiblc for the m:cption areII ofthc Clubhouse. Duties ioclude answering an 8 line 
telcphon~ and lPftI ing members and guests. 0thcT duties include ao:;counting. pRying bills, 
budget propos..ls. peny cash. and hiring and lnIining ofmff. This unit is an el(ccl1cnt plao:;e to 
pick up clmal skills. Theft' an: community and advOQK:)' bulletin boards in the m:cption arel 
as well as an in-house bulletin board rt'gularly maintained by the clerieal unit. 

ORlENTATIONIOUTREAcn 
Orientation is responsible for tours. assisting new members in settling in •• nd processing new 
membership forms. The purpose ofOutrcach is to let members know tlull we care about thnn, 
that thc), Irt' missed, and to find out ifthCrt' is some way in which the clubhouse may assist 
them. Outreach also involves vi siting members in hospital or at home, cclebroting birthdaY' and 
other sp«ial occasions, and vi siting other agencies and groups to edw:ate tl\em on the clubhouse 
model and how wc function. 



SOCIAL 

T HRIFT STORE 

lbc Clerical Unit is responsible fOf organizing and implementing 
PathWllY$ ClubOOw;e's Social Program. 1\ $Chedule ofS(l<;ia] 
activities, both in-house and in the community. arc planned for each 
month. Each week, the committee, made up ofstafTand members. 
meet to explore possible new II(:ti~ities, organize existing aetivitie, 
and provide infonnation 10 person's in~ol~ed in the program. 

The tluift store works like all of our other uniu with members and 
staff working side by side. Members are ","Clcomc to mop in the 
thrift store which is also open to the public on certain days. The 
thrift store allows people to gain experience working in retail and 
dealing with customers while a\ the same time l"1I~ing much needed 
funds fOl" the clubhouse. 

UPSTAIRS UNIT 

EMPLOYMENT 
The Clubhouse strongly belie~es that members should ha~e the opportunity to return to paid 
employment and so we offn the following programs to help achieve th~ goal. 

TRAl"lSITIONAL EMPLOYMENT 
The Transitional Employment Program or TEP is an opportunity for members 10 re-enter the: 
paying work force with Oplimwn support from the elubbous.e. TEP is a right of all members \00'110 
participate in the: work-ordered day and who ha~e!he: desire to worK. 

Pathways Clubhouse staffand members secure entry.le~el positions in 
~arious businesses in Riehmood and Vancouvn. Staff will $Creen and 
learn the: position and then bin • member in tluit job site. If InC'mbers 
II/"C unable 10 work: for whatever reason. Pathw. ys Clubhouse staff will 
fill-in for thlt member. TEP sites are 6 10 9 months in length, and pay 
regular w.ges. 

TEP allows members to try various jobs, without the S\rC$S of 
interviews, being \nIined by strangers, and the worry of losing ajob 
because of absenteeism. Once members hl~c completed a TEP site. they 
m.y go onlO another TEP site or seek independent employment. 

SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT 
Supported Employrm:nl In: jobs in business and industry in the: community. SEjobs arc not 
time-limited and 8ft: eithn part-time or full-time. SEjob, arc at the: employer's "lace ofbusineS.'l 
and pay tke P"'''ailinll wage. SE is ideal for those members who aln:ady ha~c a career in mind 
and ncal help with educating em"lo)"Crs about mental illness and job I\<;commodatioll5. 

60

SOCIAL 

. . ' ":t"' -<' , - ... ~ 'f .-
, " '. \ ~ .. . - " ... - . 

THRIn STORE 

The Clcricsl Unit is ",sponsibl~ for organi7.ing and implementing 
PathWll),$ Clubhouse's Social Prognm. 1\ schedule of5Ol,:iai 
activities, both in-house and in the community. au planned for cuh 
month. Each week, the committee, made up ofstafTand members. 
m«t to explon:: po"ible new II(:tivities, Olganite existing activities 
and provide infOl1nltion 10 person's involved in the program. 

The tluift store works like all of our other units with members and 
stIIffwor1dn& side b)' side. Members an:: welcome 10 mop in the 
thrift SOOn:: which is also open to the public on cenain days. The 
thrift store allows people to gain experience working in retail and 
dealing with customcn while at the same time Mllsing much needed 
funds for the clubhouse. 

UPSTAIRS UNIT 

EMPLOYME/'I'T 
The Clubhouse strongl), believes that members should have the opportunity to return 10 paid 
employmcrtt and 50 we ofTer the following programs to Ilelp achieve thls goal. 

TRANSITIONAL EMPLOYMENT 
The Transitional Employment Program or TEP is an opponunity for members 10 n::-cnterthe 
paying work f~ with optimum support from the clubhouse. TEP i5 a right of all members \Oo·ho 
panicipate in the work·ordered da)' and who have !he desire 10 work. 

Pathways Clubhouse stBfTand members ~ure entry.level positions in 
various businesses in Richmood and Vancouver. Staifwill screen and 
learn !he position and then !nIin a member in that job site. If members 
III"e unable 10 work for whatever ",OO1On. Pathways Clubhouse sUtifwill 
Ii II-in for thlt member. TEP sites an:: 6 10 9 months in length, and pay 
rcgu.1ar w'gcs. 

TEP allow, members to try various jobs. without the stress of 
illterviews, beillg tnlined b)' :rtraf\gcrs, and the woIT)' of losing' job 
because oflbscnteeism, Once members hive completed I TEP site. they 
nuoy go onlO another TEP site or seek independellt employmem. 

SUPPORTED EM.PLOYMENT 
Supported Employment Ire jobs in business and industry in the community. SEjobs arc not 
time-limited and arc either pan-time or full-time. SEjob$ arc II the emplo)"~r's place or business 
and pay the prevailing wage. SE is ideal ror those members who already have _ career in mind 
and need help with educating emplo)TTS about mental iline" and job accommodations . 



Clubhouse staffwill help with the interview process and on the: job training but do not provide 
absence coverage. 

11'WEPENDENT EMPLOVMENT 
Independent employment helps people R:'lum 10 competitive employment in too community. 
Help for fiooing work includes: 

• Resume Writing 
• Interviewing Skills 
• Catur Exploration 
• Job Leads & Development 
• Advocacy for Benefits 
• Labour Market Information 

l1Ie Clubhouse willllso provide the suppon and rcSO\lrces fot any other n=:Is members may 
experience during thejob sellrCh. 

[l\lPLOYMENT DINNERS 

-
, 
• -~ . ): .' ..... ~-

Our monthly employment dill/lCJ'S foclI5 on a variety of 
employment issues brought up by the: group. It is an opportunity 10 
explore and exchange information and ideu regarding 
employment. It is also a time to suppor1those who arc working as 
well as meet new people. Employment dinners are held the last 
Thursday of every month at 4:00 pm. 

SUI'PORTED EDUCATIO:oI 
The goal ortlle Supported Education is 10 ass ist clubhouse 
members 10 rerum 10. or continue with. their education pursuits. 
Many memhcrs have been out of the organized edocational system 
for 'Iuite some time. 100 the thought of retuming ~ be very 
daunting. We are here 10 make a mum 10 school as s.mooth and 
!lreO! - free .. poMible. We provide scrvices such as: 

• He lp with school app lication forms and course selcction 
• Assistance with bursary application. 
• ()o.e 10 one and group tutoring 
• Aecess 10 local pm-secondary schools ' COUI'5C ca lendars 
• Uaison with student servicC$ representativc:s 
• Study space for those needing somewhere 10 do SChool won 

VOL UNTEERING 
TIM: focus of me Volunteer Program is to get memhcrs TnOI'e involved with their own 
rehabi litative process through community volunteering. Prospective volunteers are helped \0 
find volunteer sites throu"h VoluntCl'r Richmond's on_line database, or through our community 
contact5, and are then provided with on site one-on-oI\C support for IS long as is neceuary. 

61

ClublioU§C! SUlffwill m,lp with the inte ..... iew process and on the: job training but do not provide 
absence coverage. 

INDEPt:NDENT EM.PLOVJ\.lENT 
Independent employment helps people ~tum 10 competilive employment in tile community. 
I~el p for fiooing work includes: 

• Resume Writing 
• Inle ..... iewing Skills 
• Catur Exploration 
• Job Leads & Development 
• Advocacy for Benefits 
• Labour Market Information 

TIle Clubhouse will also provide the support and ~SO\If"(es fotany other ~ members may 
expc:riern:e during the: job sean:h. 

EJ\.fPLOYMENT DINNERS 

-
, 

~. ' . ): 
1' 
~-

Our monthly employment dil\llCJ'S focus on a variety of 
employment issues brQu&ht up by the group. It is an oppotIunity 10 

explore and exchange infonnalion and ideas ~gardinll 
employment. It is also II. time 10 support those who a~ working as 
well III mcelllCw people. Employmenl dinners are held the last 
Thursday of ever)' month at 4 :00 pm. 

SUPPORTED EDUCATION 
The 110.1 of tile Supported Education is to ass ist clubhouse 
members 10 rerum 10. or continue with. their educalion pursuits. 
Many members have been out of the orpnized edllClltional syuem 
for quite some lime. and the thought of returning Qf1 be very 
daunting. We are he~ 10 make a return to school as smooth and 
st~S!· free as possible. We provide .se ..... ices such as: 

• Help with school application fonns and course selection 
• Assistance wilh bunery appiiulioM 
• One 10 one and sroop tutoring 
• A«ess to local post-secondary schools' ooune ealendars 
• Liaison with student seI'YicC5 I'tpresentalivC5 
• Study space for those needing somewhe~ 10 do lChool work 

VOLUNTEERING 
TIM: focus of the VolWlteeT Program is to get members InOf'e involved with their m.n 
rehabilitative process Ihrough community volunteerins. Prospective volunteers are belped 10 
find volunteer sites Ihrough Volunteer Richmond's on·Jine database. or through our community 
conlacts. and a~ then provided with on sile onc-on-one support for IS long as is neassary. 



WELLNESS 
Our Wellncss program is a R'SOurte to assist members wilh t~ir physical wellness through 
exm:ise. nutrition. and speak~. We have a daily walking group that takes place each day after 
lunch. weekly yoga. and fitncu «nln: memberships. 

VOUNG ADULT PROGRAM 
The Pathways Clubhouse Young Adult Program is a program that 
engages young adults in the Clubhouse progrnms and specialized 
services. The program includes the following components: 

I. Establish liaison relationsh ip! with high schools, collego:s, 
community CCTlIRS. and youth organizations. 

2. Youth members welcomo: new youth members through tours, 
orientation, and buddy system. 

3. Immediate involvement of new and prospective youth in activities 
their needs and interests which include: 
• 5OI:iai media and relato:<! technology 
• youth 5OI:iai activities 
• $Upportcd education 
• acee" to physical fitness activities and gyms 

SUPPORTED HOUSING PROGRAM 
The goal of~ Supported Housing Program is to provide a 
continuum of 5IIfe. secure and affordable hotuin& opponunities in 
~ Richmond community for adults recovering from a mental 
illness. Support savites and mltal subsidies an.' adapted 10 the 
needs of the tenant. 

P UBLIC EDUCATION PROGRAM 
1lIc purpose of the Publ ic EduCluion Program is 10 incrtase 
awareness of mental health and to decrease the stigma of mental 
illness. By providing the public with current mental health 
infonnation. we are encouraging individuals 10 tab responsibility 
for their mental well-being. In fonnation is provided 10 the genera.! 
public. service providers. consumers and family member$ through 
iectwts, forums. wc:rkshops, videos. brochures, . R'SOurte library 
and the Intand. The Public Education Program 1150 offers 1 12 
hour course called Mental Health first Aid which teaches 
participants how to help someone showing signs ofl menul health problem or experiencing 1 
menul hcal1h crisis. 

62

WELLNESS 
Our Wellness prognun is ~ R'SQurte to assist members with I~ir physical wel1ness through 
exm:ise. nutrition, and speakers. We have I daily wilking group thai takes place each day after 
lunch. weekly yoga. and fitnc:5S ccnln: memberships. 

YOUNG ADULT PROGRAM 
The Pathways Clubhouse Young Adult Program is a proSTam that 
engages young adu lts in the Clubhouse programs and specialited 
services. The program includes the following components: 

l. Establish Iili50fl relationships with high Khools. colleges, 
community centres. and youth organizations. 

2. Youth members welcome new youth members through lOurs, 
orientation, and buddy system. 

3. Immediate involvement of new and prospective )'outh in activities 
their needs and inten:sts which include: 
• social media and relllted technology 
• youth social activities 
• 5UppC)ftCd education 
• aecess to physical fi lrlCSS aeliv ilies and gyms 

SUPPORTED HOUSING PROGRAM 
The goal of~ Supported Housing Progrvn is to provide a 
continuum of safe. secure.nd Iffordable housing opponunities in 
~ Ridunond communit), for adu llS Teem'enng from a mental 
illness. Support savices and rental subsidies are adapted to the 
nceds of the tenant. 

PUBLIC EDUCATION PROGRAM 
'The pIITJIOSC of the Publ ic Education Prognun is 10 increase 
awareness of menial health and to decrease the " igma of menial 
illness. B)' providing the public with current mental health 
information. we are encouragin!! individuals 10 take responsibil it)' 
for their men\ll.] well-being. Infonnation is provided 10 the general 
public. service providers. COII!UmaS Ind family members through 
lect~ rorums. workshops. videos. brochures •• resoUrte libnuy 
and the Intanet. The Public EdllCBtion Program also offers a 12 
hour CO\If5C called Mental Health First Aid which tcaehes 
panicipanl$ how to help someone showing signs ofa mcn\ll.] health problem or experiencing a 
mental health cri5is. 



HOUS .; AND DECISIONS MAKING MEETINGS 
Every wttk the: clubhouse holds two meetings to discuss issues Il:levantto our community. Our 
Hoose Meeting is held on Tuesday mornings in the dining room at 10:30. Informative 
pcncntations an: made Il:garding c,'cnts kallPC'ning in the clubhouse: and COfTImunity. Our 
Decisions Making Meeting is held on ThuOOaY .1\~moOIl$l1 I :30 pm. We make de<:isions on 
any issucs affecting the community as I whole. IS well as de<:isions Il:garding the clubhouse. 1l!c 
Decisions Making Meeting is a ~at place to cxpress you r own ideas and be part ofthc decision 
making process. 

SOCIAL PROGRAM 
Pathways Clubhouse is open on W~y and Fridays from 
4:00 pm to 9:00 pm, Sliurdays and Sundays. from 10:00 10110 
4:00 pm, as well as on holidays from 10:00 10110 4:00 pm. for 
s<xial/=reational fun. The S<x:ial Program is a combination 
of in-house and in the community cvents that allow for 
members and staff to enjoy s<xial ....:tivjt;cs (going 10 the: 
movies. playing ~s. going out for coffee and so forth) 
together as . group. It is. great time 10 meet new fricnds.join 
in on some organized IICtiv itics, kave IUlI(h. or just hang out. 

PATHWAYS CLUBHOUSE RULES 

dream freely envision excellence be extraordinary 
cherish your creations cultivate affection 

be energized be inspired encourage 
please yourself take pride In yourself create peace 

find knowledge believe strongly seek truth 
create love find knowledge spread joy 

love someone launch new Ideas be creative 
think big live fully grow reach out 

share kindness find happiness help someone 
expect the best be the best inspire others 

recognize your Inner beauty embark on adventure 
believe it's possible 

63

HOUSE ANU DECISIONS MAKI NG MEETINGS 
Every week the clubhouse holds 11'0'0 meetings to discuss Issues relevant to our communit),. Out 
House Meeting is held on T~y mornings in the dinins room al 10:)0. Informative 
prnentations Irc mBdc regarding CVCl'lts h.appening in the dl,lbhouse and community. Our 
Decisions Makins Meeting is held on Thuoo.y .f\~moons I ' I :JO pm. We make <k<:isions on 
any i'l.'lues .tT«ting the community as I wlKllc. IS ~1I1S decisions regard ing the clubhouse. ll!c 
Decisions Making Meeting is a gJ1)at place to express your own idea!; and be part afthe decision 
making process. 

SOCIAL PROGRAM 
""' .... _ .... PBlh"'ays Clubhouse is open on w~)' and Fridays from 

4 :00 pm 10 9:00 pm, Saturdays and Sundays. from 10:00 am 10 
4:00 pm. as wellll!! on hol idays from 10:00 am \0 4:00 pm. ((II' 
s<xia llm:reational fun. The S<x:ial Program is a combination 
orin-house and in the community events thaI allow for 
mcmben and !lltTlo enjoy sociallittivilies (going 10 1m: 
movies. playing gamc:s. going OUi for <:o ff« and so forth) 
together as a group. II is. great lime 10 meet new friends.join 
in on some organiud IIClivilies, have lull(h, or just hang out. 

PATHWAYS CLUBHOUSE RULES 

dream freely envision excellence be extraordinary 
cherish your creations cultivate affection 

be energized be inspired encourage 
please yourself take pride in yourself create peace 

find knowledge believe strongly seek truth 
create love find knowledge spread joy 

love someone launch new Ideas be creative 
think big live fully grow reach out 

share kindness find happiness help someone 
expect the best be the best inspire others 

recognize your Inner beauty embark on adventure 
believe it's possible 

• 



Clubhouse International 
~ c;.,.-...~ ~ .... I'I'<rtI '" "'-"01 t_ 

The Imrrnati.,...1 SUndards for CI\Ibho!.tse Programs. ronso:nsually mgreed upon by the .. "Oridwide 
CIII~communily, defi ... the Clubl>ouoe Model of rehabilitation. "The printiplcs ~~ in Ihne 
Standard. are at the heart Dr the Clubhouse community'. SIICCe5S ;n helping people Willi mental mn<SS \(I 
stay ou\ of hospitals while achieving social. financial . ..:Iucational and vocational aoals. The Standards 
81:;0 serve .S • "bill of rights" for m~mbcrs and a ~ode of C1hics for stalT. board and administrators. The 
Sumdards insisllMI. Clubhouse is I pia« thai offm res~l ..,d opponunily 10 its IIICmb«s. 

The SWIdards pn::wide!he basi. for assessin&Clu~ quality. through thc CILIIlIIouse International 
Accreditarion pmccss. 

Evo:<}' WoO yean the WQrldwidc Clubhoo.r$e o;ommunity review, these Standard., and amends Ihml II:! 
deemed !>eCc55Il)'.1lte proccs. i. coordinated by the CLubhouse InternaTional Standards Review 
Committee, made up of members. staff and board members from Accredited Clubhouses around the 
-« 

MEMBERSHIP 
I. Mcmbmhip i. voluntary and without lime limits. 
2. The Clubhouse has control ~r its K«ptance ofnew members. Membership 1$ open \0 anyOOl: with. 
hislQr)' of mental illne"5, unless thaI person poses a signifitllnt and current threat to the general safet~ of 
the CiubhoU$l: community. 
3. Members choose the way they utilize the CtubOOusc. and the , tilT with whom they worL Then! life no 
"&"'c ..... nts, ConlnoctJ. schedules, or rules intllf>'kd 10 enfOR:e participation of .....mbers. 
4. All membt:rs haveequalll«C$S 10 ~ Clubhouseopponunity with no diITl'mItial;on bawd on 
diagnosis or 1e~1 of functionina.-
S. Members II their choice life involved in the writinlt of all =onb refk(:tinlt their lW1idpatWn in the 
Clubhouse. All soch records arc 10 be signed by both member and stiff. 
6. Members have a right to immediate re...,nll)' into the Clubhouse community ancr any length of absence, 
unless wir n:tum pose. a thrcallO the Clubhouse community. 
7. The Clubhouse providn an dTectl~ reach out system to members who an: noI attending, bc<:omi", 
OOlated in thc ~ommunity or hospitalized. 

RELATIONSIIIPS 
S. All ClubhoU$l: mcctingi an: open to boIh members and staff. Tbere an: no formal ..... mber only 
mcetingi Or formal staff only m~lin~ where program dcci$iom and member issues are discu!Scd. 
9. Clubhouse ,taff an: sufficient to .npge the membership, yet few enough 10 I!UI.I;e carrying outlheir 
n:sponsibititin impossible without member involvement. 
10. ClubhouK staff h.a~c generalist role$.. All staff ~ employment. housing, even;", and wcck..oo.. 
holiday and unit responsibilities. Oubbouse staff do 001 divide their time betwem Clubhouse and 0Ihtr 
major wtrt n::sponsibilities tIw c:onnin " i th the uniq .. IIIture of mcmberl'taff n:1"ionships. 
II. Responsibility for the op«a1ion of the Clubhouse lies with the members and $taffond ultimately with 
the Clubhouse director. Centrai lo thi, Tnporuibility ;$ the engagement of members and staff in ail 
8Spel:1S of Clubhouse operation. 

64

Clubhouse International 
c-.e c--,.. ... ~ ... IN ... ~ "-"all. 

The Imrmallional SIAndanh fur ClubI!o_ Pmgram$. c;oosmsuaIly ~ upon by the " -orid,,,ide 
Clubhouse eommunily, ddl ... the Clu~ Model of !dwbiliwion. The prino;jplcs ~ in these 
Slandard. an: lithe heart ur the Clubhouse community'. slICCeu in ""lpinK people: Willi mcnw illness to 
stay oul "fhospltals while achieving social. financial. educational and vocational goals. The Standard! 
al$O serve., • "bill of rights" for membc>rs and a code of C1hics for stafT. board and tldminislralon. The 
Standards insist IM'a Clubhouse is. pia« thai offm ~~I ...d opponunlty 10 its mcmbm. 

The sw.dard$ provide the basis for assessill&Club/louse quality, thruugb the Clullhouse International 
Acaediwion process. 

Eve<)' l\Io-O yean IIv: won,j"idc Clubllou:sc rommunity TCview' the:«: Standafds, and lm<'nds them lIS 
deemed neu!Sat)I . 1lte process i. coordinated by the CLubhou§e Inlmlational Standards Review 
Committee. millie up of members. slatfand board members (rom Accredited Clubhouses around the 

""". 
MEMBE.RSHIP 
I. Mcmbaship is voluntary and without lime limits. 
2. The ClubbouK I\IIi5 control OV(f its K«ptancc "fnew members. Membership I. open 10 anyOl'll: with. 
hislQr)' of menw ilinclo5, unless thaI person poses a signiflc.nl and CUfn.'n1 !hreat 10 the general safelY of 
!he: Clubhouse: ~ommWlity. 
3. Members choose 1M way they ulilin 1M ClubOOuoc. ,nd IhI: staff with wl>om they work. The", are no 
~ ConIno;U, schedules,. or niles inlmtkd 10 cnfon:e panicipa!ion of IM1lIben. 
4. All membtrslll.ve equ.olllCCQ5 10 every CluiIhoLtSe opponUNty with no difTrmttialion bawd 00 
diagnosiJ or Ie""! of functioni .... 
S. Memben II theiT ct.o;a, an: involwd in the "'riting or.11 records rrl1«tin& their lW1icipalion In the 
Clubhouse. Allwc:h rec<lI"<h are to be signed by both member lJId staff. 
6. Mem bers have I righl to im~ilte re...,ntry into the Clubbousc community after any length of absence. 
unless their ... tum pose. a th ... llIlO!he: Clubhouse cornmunl1y. 
7. The Clubhouse provides an cff«tiV<l f\'ach out systCtn to members who an: IW)I attending. bccomin& 
i$Ollllal in the community or hospi .. lil%d. 

R£l..ATIONSlIIPS 
s. All Clubho~ meeti"" are open to both members lJId staff. Then: are no formal member only 
meetin!!" or form.l staff only m"lln~ whe ... program decislom and member Issues all! discussed. 
9. Clubhou!e SI.lffare sullicient 10 "!\&lie the membe,."hlp. yet few enough to m.akecanying OUt lheir 
=ponsibiHties impossible without member involV<lJflent 
10. Clubhouse staff have genenliS! role$.. All staff~ cmploymcnt. housing. evening and weekend.. 
holiday and unit rnponsibilities. Clubhouse staff do 001 divide their time betWftll Clubhouse and other 
major wonc ~ponsibililics that ronni(! ",ith the unique nltlft of IM1lIberfSl.lff ",lltioruhiplO. 
II. Responsibility for the operation oflhc Clubhouse lies with the memben and staffond ultimately with 
the Clubllow.e director. Central 10 this TCSporui ibility is the I:flgagement of members and 5taff ;n all 
Upe<:1S (If Clubhouse operation. 



SPACi: 
12. The Clu~ has it. own identity, including it. own name. malling IIddrC5S and tclepho~ number. 
13. The Clubhouse is located in Its own phy.ical space. It Illl'pasate from any mental Malth ccntcror 
inslitutlonai settings. one! is impenmable 10 otbt. progams. The ClubIleJuK II designed 10 fa.:ilila1C: Ihc: 
wort.-on.Ien:>d day IUId at ~ _ tilM be annoctl"", Ideq .... te in sin. and COlI"")' IIl'IIK of respect and 
dignity. 
]4. An Clubhouse 5pIICC is member and staffaocessible. The .... are no_!fonly ormember IIIlly ' pI«$. 

WORK-ORDERED DAY 
15. The work-ordered day engages members and stafflOgether . • idc:-by·side, in lhe nmningofthe 
Clubhouse. The Clubhouse focuses on sln.'!lgths.. talmts and abilities; therefore, the l'Iorlr.-ordered day 
mUSl no! include medic_ion clinics, ~ trea1./nenI orthefapy prograns within the Clubhouse. 
16. The wort. ....... in the Clubnou$e is exclusively the wort gn>mdro by the Clubhouse in the opetation 
and mhInccment of the C]uilhol& community. No WoR for oul'lidc: individuals or agrncics. .. "hdher for 
payor not, il Kuplable work in tN: Clubhou.c. Memben an: no! paid for any Clubhouse work. nor are 
the .... any artificial ",ward systems. 
17. The ClubhOlR i5 open atlu.t five days. w~k. The wotk-orderro day parallel . typical working 

"""'. 18. The ClubIIousc is organind intO OM or more wort units, n<h of which has lutrocimt su.ff. membm 
and mcanin&fW work 10 wsWn I fUll andengaging wOfk.-orden:d day. Unit meeti"" an: held 10 f05lcr 
.... Lationship'., well IS 10 O!pIlite and plan the work orthe: day. 
19. All wort. in the Clubhouse il designed to help members .... gain selfWQrth, pul"jXlSe 100 
confidence; it is not intended to be job specific training. 
20. Members have the opponunity to panicipate in.1I the work of the Clubhouse, includ ing 
administration. research, enrollment IlIId orientation. Inch out. hirinJl. lnIining and cVllU/ltion of 
staff, publ ic .... Iations, advocacy and evaluation ofClubhousc: effectiveness. 

£ MPt..OYM E/'o' 
21. The Clubhou!ie C1UIbles ilS membm to return 10 paid work through Transitiooal Employment, 
Supported Employment and Independent Employment: tM",fore. the Clubllowe don 1101 provide 
employment to members through In-house businesses.loe&n.'gElted Clubltouse mterprises or sheltered 
workshops. 

TRANSITION AL I:MPLOYM t'..NT 
22. The Clubl\ous.e orren its _ 'n Transitional Employmenl program. ""hich provides as I ri&ltt of 
membenhip OppOrtunities for membtn 10 work on job platemenlS in the labor market. As • defining 
characteristic or. ClubOOuoie Transitiooal Employ"",m program, the Clubhouse 1tJIrBnIetS co""'"'iC' on 
aU placements during member absences. In addition the Transitional Employment program meeU the 
following basi. criteria. 

a. The tlnl", to work is the single most important fiICtordetcnnining placement opponunity. 
b. Placetmnl opportunities will continue 10 be Ivailable reprdless of the le",,1 ofsucuss in previous - . c. Members "IlI"k a1 the rmpJoyer'. p]ate ofbusinns. 
d. Memben are paid the prevailing ... rate. but_least minimum wage. directly by the cmployCT. 
e. Transitional Employment placement! Ill' drawn from I wide variety of job Oppommitie$. 
f. Transitional Employment placementS arc part.timc ,nd tlme.limiled. generally] S 10 20 hours per 
.. "ttk and from SIK to nine months In duration. 
g. SelecTion and InUning of members 011 TransiliOlllI Employmenl is the responsibility of the 
Clubhouse. no! the rmplo)·cr. 

65

SPACE 
12. The Clu~ has 1111 own idenlily, induding il. O .. ·n name. mallinglllldrCSil and telephone number. 
11. The Clubl\ouse Is located In Its own physical ",,",c. II Is 5qlW8tc from any mental health center or 
inRitulionai Rllinp. ond is impermeable 10 otbor progantS. The Clubhouse Is designed to fadliwc: Ih¢ 
wort.~ cIIoy ond at the _time be IIlInKIiw, mcqUllte in sin . and COfM")" sense ofrepcctllld 
dignity. 
]4. An Clubhouse 5plI('e is member and staff aocessible. The .... are no .tl.ff only or member only ~paoes. 

WORK-ORDERED DAY 
15. The .. wk-onkred day engage! tmmbers and staff together. sidc:-by·sidc, in the nmningofthe 
Clubhouse. The Clubhouse- focuses onstmlgJhs., talmts and abilities; tberefOR", the Yiork-!lrtl=d day 
muss not i!lf;lude medic.ion clinics. clio)' trealmmI ortllefapy programs within doeClubbouse. 
16. The wort. doole. in the C1ubi>ow: Ls e""lusiwly the wort. ~ed by the Clubhouse in the opetatlon 
IIld enhancement of the Clubhouso: eomm..,ity. No wOflt for outside individU4ls or agencies. .. "ht1her for 
pay or not. is fl«eptable work in tM Clu~. Membc:n lire not paid for any Clubhouse worlt. nor are 
there any anificlal reward syslems. 
17. The Clubhoust: is open aileMI five days. week. The wonc-ordered day ~lIel, typical working -18. The Ctubllouso: Is orpni«d intO one or....,..., wort. unitS, ~h of whic:h hluufflcient staff. mc:mbm 
and mcaningM .. "Ori: k1lUStain . full ancImgaging .. -ork-ordcml day. UnillllKlina,s an held \0 f05lrr 
reLuionships IS well as 10 otpIlizc WId plan the .. "Ori: of the: day. 
19. All wOtt. in the Clubhouse is duigned to help members regain selfWQrth. pUl'"]Xl5e.oo 
confidence; il is nOI inlcooed 10 be job specific IBining. 
20. Members have the opponunity 10 panicipatc in.1I the work oflhe Clubhouse. incl udin~ 
admin istration. research, enrollment and orientation. Inch QUI. hiring. U1Iining and evaluation of 
siaff, publ ic rel'lions, advocaey and evaluation ofClubhousc effectiveness. 

EMPLOYto1£l'o'T 
21. The Clubl\ouse C1UIbles its membm 10 retum to paid work through Transition.! £mplo)'mellt, 
Supported Employmcnl and IndcJ)fndtnt Employment: thc:~fore. tho Clubhouse does not provide 
employmenl to members Ihrough In-houSf busincsse5. seg~galed Clubhouse enlerprise~ or ~hellcred 
works~. 

TRANSITIONAL EMPLOYM F..NT 
22. The Clubi>ow: ofTen ib own Transitional Employmenl program. .. "';~h provides as I rigln of 
mcmbnshlp opportunities for tmmbl!n to wotic on}ob plfl«menlS in the labor mart<et. As a Iklining 
characteristic of. ClubOOusc TTll/1$ilionai Employmmt program. the Clubhouse l~ces cove,.. on 
aU plllCemenlll during member absen«S. In addition lhe Transitional Employment program meeU lhe 
following basic crilma. 

s. The desi~ 10 work is the single most importanl fllClordmnnining pl_menl opportunily. 
b. PII.cenwnl opportunilies will continue 10 be ~vailable ~pnlless of the: level of success in pn'vious --c. Memben wott a1 the rmplO)'Cf'1 pi...., ofbusinns. 
d. Membel$ at!: paid the pn:vailina". nue. bul.lmll m.inimwn .. -age. directly by the ctnployer. 
e. Transitional Employment plllCemenlll an: drawn from I wide variety of lob opportunities. 
f. TransltlO!lllI Employment plac:emenlS are pan.timc and time-limited, generally 15 10 20 houri per 
week and from SIK 10 nine monlla In dutation. 
g. ScI~lion and tnliningofmembers on TransitiONI Employment is the: re5pOnSibilityof!hc 
Clubhouso:. not the rmployer. 



• 

h. Clubhouse members and staff ~ Tq)O!I$ an TE plKClMfllS for all appmpriaIe acme'''' deali", 
with mcmben' bmofiu. 
I. Transitional Employment placemenu are managed by Clubhouse staffand members and not by TE 
specialists. 

j . Thm: are no TE ptacemmts wilhin tilt Clubhouse. Tnsnsitional Employmmt placemmts III an 
1IISpi« ~y mUSl be off I'te &om the Club/>ou5e and JnCCI all of the.rove: eri~ .. 

SUPPORTED AN D INDEPENDEI'IT EMPLOYMENT 
23. The Clubhouse (lfTers iu Qwn Supported and Independent Employment ptO&I'm1lS 10 assist members 10 
_\Ire, sustain and lubse<jucnlly, to bener thc:ir employment. As • dcfinilll el\lrBcleristic ofClullhoux 
Supported Empklymmt. !he Clubhouse mainCains • relatK.ahip with the "'oriei .. member and the 
emplO)'t'r. "" .... ben and staffln pattneTS/lip~nnine the type, fmj""'-':Y and loouion ordeJ,i~ 
supports. 
24. Members woo are working independently tontin~ to have I vmilablc all Club/lousc IUpporu and 
opponuruli.,. including adVOC¥)l for cntitlnnmr" and -"tan« with housin" clinical, Icpl, financial 
and pnsonal islues,1I$ ",dillS pcticipalion in evening and "'~kmd JI"OI'1II!IS. 

EDUCATION 
25. The Clubhouse IIiIsi.!S members 1(1 reach their vocational and educational aoals by helping them take 
advanUIgI: of lIdull eduealion opportunities in 1M communiI)'. When tho: Clubhoosc: also provides an in
bo\ase educational po"",au •• itsijplifoc:anlly utilizes the \eadling and tutoring sldlls of tnmlbe~ 

FUNCTIONS OF TIlE HO USE 
26. The Clubhouse is located in an area where access to loxaltransporWion can be assured, boIh in temu 
ofse-ning \0 and from Ihc program and accessing TEopportunities."The Clubbowe provKtcs or arrsngcs 
for effective allmllllivn .. "henevcr access 10 public ~ion ;'limited. 
27. Communiry &uppon. services are provided by membe" and.sW'foflhc Clubhouse. Communiry 
support activities are cmtcrN in lhe woO; unit S\nICI= oflhe Clu~. They indllde helping wilh 
cntillemmts. hoklSina and advoclCy. promoling healthy Hfeslyles, as well as assis\.aIlc:e in finding qualiry 
medlcll. psychoiOilcal, ph:armacological and substance abuse SftVices in Ihc communiry. 
21. The Clubhouse Is commincd 10 KCuring a range: of choices of safe. deemt and affordable housing 
iociliding indepeudellt livina opportunities for.11 members. The Clubhouse has access to opportunities 
that meet ~ erileria, or ;run ..... ilable. Ihe Club/loux de ... elops il< Qwn housing program. Clubhouse 
hIlu,in& prognunl meet the fo11owing basic criteria. 
.. Members and IlAffIlWl&!!l' lhe ~ IOgetlo=r. 
b. Metnboer$ who live thenI do 110 by ,hoitc. 
f;. Memben ehoo5e the Ioo;atioo oflhcir housing and Ihcir roomllllllts. 
d. PCllides and procedures an: developed in. manner COII!IitlCni wilh lhe ~I oflhc Clubho\lse culture. 
c. The level of suPPIlrt increases or dec:re~s in response 10 the changing needs Qfthc member. 
f. Member'! ard ,lafI'acti ... dy reach OUlto help members keep Ihcir housing. especially durinaperiods of 
hosP;lalizalion. 
29. n..: Clullhou$c wndUClll an ot;ec:rive ew.Iualion of its eff1!Cliveness on • regular basis. 
)0. The Clubhouse direclor. members. staffand other appropriale perwns panicipa\e in a comprehensive 
IwO or three week training prt'ljJ.r8m in the Clubhouse Model II a ceni fied training base. 
) 1. The Clubhouse has recn:aliona\ and soci,1 pi"OiI'lIITIS during evening:! and on weekends. Holidays ue 
ccLdnled <XI Ihc klual day they ue observed. 

FUNmNG, GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
32. The Clubhouse has an indepenlkn! board of directorS. or Ifi! is .ffoliwed with. spOnSOring agency. 
tw • scparalt advisory board compri§cd of indi~lduaLs uniqlJely positioned 10 provide financial. legal. 
Ie&isLoli ... e. em.ploymenl developmenl. eon5U11lC'f and communiry suppon Ind ao:Ivocacy (or the Ctubhwse. 

66

• • 

h. Club/louK IIIC'II1bers and staff ~ rqlOfU ... TE p'-"nmls ror all appmpriaIe ..,,,d,,,, deali", 
w;lh members' bend,,,,. 
I. Transitional Employment placements are managed by Clubhouse staffand members and nOl by TE 
specialists. 

j . Then: are no TE placements within the Clubhouse. Transitional EmplO)'lllmI p/aumenlS" an 
auspi« lIpIII'y must be ofT lilC &om the Club/>ou5e and I!ICfl a1] or the .row: ,ri~ .. 

SUPPORTED AN D INDEPENDENT EMPLOYMENT 
23. The: Clubhouse "rrcIl! its own Supported and Independent Employment prOgrIrnS 10 usist members 10 
_ure, SUS(ain and IUb$cqIll!l1t1)'. 10 bener thc:ir employment. AI; I delini", cl\IrBctcristic. ofClubhouo;e 
Supported EmpLoymmt. the Clubilousc maincains I relati<w.hip with the worid,. member and the 
employer. Mmibets and staff In fMMmIIi p dt1IIrmine the type. fmjueno:y and loo;:a1ion or Iksircd 
supports. 
24. Members who are wooong Independently tOlllilluc to have I vailable all Clubhouse ,upports and 
opponllflilies inc:ludillg MVOC.,;:y for entitlo:mmts. and _iSIalV;C with houJin&- clinical, ~, fmancial 
and pmonal iswes. .s well as partidp;aion in ~HliIlJ! and ""cckmcl progr1IIlIS. 

EDUCATION 
2S. Thc: Clubhouse ."i.u membc" til reach their vocatiOOllI and educational aoals by helpl"S them take 
IIdvJn~ ofadu!! ed\lW.ion opportunities in the community. When the Clubhouse IIIso provides an in
house educational pmarmn. it sia,niroeandy Ulilius the !eaChina and tu!Orina Iokills of membe!s. 

II UNCTIONS 011 T ilE IIOUSt 
26. Th~ ClubhOUSll is louted in an ~a where acC(:SlliO local transpoo1alion can be assured, boIh in lemu 
of pn1na !<l and from the pror;ram and acccuina n; oppor1unitiQ. The: Clubbowe provides or ~ 
for cfTet;ti~ allmWiva .. "Iw:neva" /ICC<& 10 public ~ion ;., limited. 
27. Community support services ~ provided by memberl and $Wf of the Clubhouoc. Community 
suppon activities are cmtered in the woO; unit Str\)f;ture ofthe Clubhouse. They ind""c helping with 
entitlemmlS. housln& and advocacy. pro!11OIing healthy IifeSlyla, as well as assiJt.ance in finding qwllity 
medical. psycholoalc.al, pharmIIcolO8,ieal and substance abuse ~ices in the community. 
21. The Clubhouse Is committed 10 KCurina. ~ of choices of Afe. cie«nt and afTordable hou!Iing 
incl""lng independent living oPJlOl'lunilies for III membe!s. Thc: Clubhouse has access 10 opponunities 
that meet tMse criwia. 1)1" if unavailable. the Club/1owlo develops i", o",'n housing program. Clubhou5e 
housing progmml meet lhe follOwing basic criteria. 
.. Membetsand aaffrnanagc II", ~ together. 
b. MIIIIIl>ers ,,'110 live there do 10 by choice. 
f;. M .... berI choose !he Ioxation of their housina and thcir roornmatC5. 
d. Policies and pro<:cdUTe'l are developed in • manner cotI5iJtent wilh the: !"dl of the Clubhouse culture. 
c. The level ohupport i"",""ases or dec~ in response 10 the changing needs ohhc "",mbc •. 
f. Mernbenand , lafTarotively ruch out to help rntmbcn klXp Iholt housing. cspl'Cillly durinaperiods of 
hospitalinWon. 
29. "The Clubhou$e conducts WI ob;ectivc evahl&lion of its efTl!Cli'ICfICSS on • ~u1ar baIIis.. 
30. The Clubhouse director. membe!s. slafT and other approprille pcr.;onS participate in I comprehensive 
IwO or three week training proa.ram in the Clubhouse: Model III certitied ITllining base. 
l I. The Clubhouse has recrealionai and social proarams during tveflings and on weekends. Holiday. are 
ulelnled on the 1C1ua1 day they an: ~ 

FUNDING, GOVERNANCE AND ADMIN ISTRATION 
32. The Clubhouse has an independent board of directon. or If II is affi lillled with a sponso<ing agen>:y, 
has • 5eparale advisory board comprised of individuals uniquely positioned 10 pw;idc: financial, kgIl. 
Ic&IJllllive. employrnenl devdopmmt, eonsUlllC" and community support Ilnd ..tvocacy (or the Clubhouse. 



33. The Clubhouse ~evelop$ and rnaintaif\.5 its own budget. approved by the board or adYisory board prior 
10 !he beginning of the fiocal year aOO monliored rtlUIineiy dwina the rtSeal year. 
)4. Siflrrsalarin Ire ~pc"lili"" ... ith compmable posiliom in lhe menW huJth field. 
)5. The Club!>ou1.e has the support of af'l""OPl"iale mental bealih luthorities and all ne(:essar"y licenses and 
IICcreditBliOllll. The Clubhouse cOllaboratcs with people and organizations thai can increase its 
cffecti~ in the: broader community. 
)6. T1w:Clubbouse hoi'" open. forurm MId has procedu~ ... hicll enable mcmben and $lI.fflO actively 
p;orticipatc in decision. making. gencrally by COIlSCf\.5US. regarding govcmaoec, !'Oliey making, and the 
future direction .nd developmcnt of !he Clubho_ 

02011 Clubhouse International.""" All righl5 I"nC:n·ed. 
483 Tenth Avenuc. Suite 525 
New Yorl; NY 10018 USA 
Phone: 212 582 0)4) 
fax: 212 541 61179 
Web: ,,"ww.c1ubhouse-intl.org 
O:tOOer.1989 
Revised as ofO:tobcr 2012 

67

n. ~ Clubhouse ~eveloJ"l and rnaimaif\.5 its own bud&et. appro"ed by lhe board or advisory board prior 
Lo the be&inning of the fiocal year aOO monlL(ftd routInely during the rtSeal year. 
)4 . Staff salarin we o;ompctiLi~ ",1Lh compMllhle po$lliom in lhe menial huJlh field.. 
)5. ~ au~ has !he support Oraf'l""OPlialc menial health lonhorities and all neces.wy licenses and 
IICcredi1atiom. Tn. Clubhouse collaborates with people and organizations thai can increase its 
eff«tivene5S in the: broader community. 
36. Thc Club/>ouse hokh opetI rorunro aOO has procedu"", which enable mcmben ond $Ilfr lo lCtiYely 
participate in decision makinS,lImcno1ly by oonsef\.5U5, regarding governanc:e, poliey making, Ind the 
future direclion . nd development of Lhc Clubhouse 

o lOU Clubhouse InternationaL'" All rights men·ed. 
4S] Tenlh Avenue. Suite 525 
New York NY 10018 USA 
Phone: 2 I 2 582 0343 
fax: 212 S41 61179 
Web: " ........ c1ubhou5l:-inILorll 
OI:I~, 1989 
Revised as ofOl:tober 2012 



B.c. has hl&h« rateS of hospital otay. duo \0 mental illness than the ... ~upJ Iwww.vancouvmun.comlsrary -Pri n l.hlml?idoo I Q86Sj:w&.sp ... 

''''' 

B.C. has higher rates of hospital stays due to mental 
illness than the rest of Canada 
More treatment needed, Vancouver experts say, but not in psych 
wards 
IY VlIN ElUS. YAIrICOIJVEJISUI'I MARCH $ . :101$ 

. Mood disorders • Substance-use disorders 
• Schizophrenia 

Percentage* of Inpatient hospltallz.ations in 2013-2014 
8 

7 

6 

'Perceonage (akui.l!td using ill Kule in!»lle"! ~I!arllal lons in lhe Hospital MotbIdlty 
Da tab.lwand Ontario M@nlaIHNhhReponing$)'SIMlin2013-2014 withinmeproyince/territort 
Source;Ca~dlan institute lor Health Information 

B.C, ... "."9...tra,,_"poo.io .. fcr~_IO_~""'''-''-_ . ....... di .. lO • 
... - r.pan - Thuraday. 

B.C. has the highest rate among the provinces for hospitalization due to mentallllnes$ and substance 

abuse , according 10 a oatioQlI rlROft released Thurlday. 

MoISt provinces hawl at least one mental health condition alTlOl'lg their top 10 reasons for I'Iospila1 

adnUnloos. but B.C. stands out with three: mood disorders; substance abuse: and csetuslonal 

ditordefl. Including schizophrenia . These are credited wilt! more than s~ per cent of all hospital stays, 

double the national rate. according to the Canad~n Institute for Health Information. 

201~. j;$4 PM 

68

B.c. has higher rate$ of hospital 5I.ayl due \0 mental illness than !be .•. 

'''' ' 

B.C. has higher rates of hospital stays due to mental 
illness than the rest of Canada 
More treatment needed, Vancouver experts say, but not in psych 
wards 

. Mood disorders • Substance-use disorders 
• Schizophrenia 

Percentage* of Inpatient hospitalizations in 2013-2014 
8 

7 

6 

'~en\igt' (iJlcuLat~ using olIl K Ule InpMlent hmpita rtliJl !ons in lhe HospitiJl MofbId ity 
o,mbaWiJnd Ontario Ment.li HNlth Reponing System In 2013- 2014 wilhin me proyInce/tfrritOl'y 
Soutu:Canadlan Inst it ute forHelllth Informatlon 

B.C. _IPw~"II_II1e",o.;' ..... Io<~_Io"",.~""''''-_ ........ di .. lo. 
""daM! r.por! _ Tl'oncIay. 

B.C. has tile highe3t rate among the provinces for hospilallzation doo 10 mental illness and substance 

abuse, according to a natlgnal (aport released ThuMa~. 

Most provinces have alleaal one mental haalth condition among their top 10 reasons for hospital 

Itdmlaalolls, bu\ B.C. standi OU\ with tIlree: mood disoWer1;; substance abuse; and ~I 

ditordera. Including schizophrenia. These are credited witll more than six per oent of all hospital stays, 

double the national rate, aocordlng 10 the Canadian (nsllllAe for Health Information. 



ae. has bigber raItS 0( hospllal i l:ilyi due to menl:ill ilinesl lMn the .. , nltp.J/www .•. anrou •. mun.romiSIOt)...Jlrinl.html?ili-1086.U34&!p ... 

,., 

000 reaSOf'1 for the difference is that psychiatric petlenlll in B.C. are treated ir1 geoeral hospitals rather 

than spedal!zed facilities kke the former BJym!!lw Hpapl!al In Coquitlam. It once houNd thousands of 

patients, but officially closed in 2012. 

Angita Pit!, manager of elinieal adrTWlistra1iVe databases at CIHI , said ~ provil'lCM hive dtldieated 

p.ychi.trie no.pita,- that aren't induded In the anlWal report, Across Canada, about8e per cent of 

mental health patients ere admitted to general I'.ospitals compared to 99 per cent In B.C. 

SI. Paul's Hospital In downtown vancouver could be COIlsidered ground zero In the changing landscape 
for treaUng mental IJlness. Its emergency ward sew.n 88-per-<:ent increase in villts due 10 addictions 

and mentallllroess between 2009 and 201 • . Hid Dr, BiJi MacEwan, the hospital's head of psychiatry. 

"I can't tell you why Alberta, Quebec and Ontario nave kepi: psychiatric institutions. Ceruilnly In B.C. the 

move ...... s aw.y frOtn Iong-stay Institutions, which Is • meIhod of treating the mentally ill from the past" 

VohlIIe lhefe may ail! be a need for !IOITIe patients to be protected from the outside wotIcI in a psychiatric 

facility, MacEwan aays the real answer lies in oetting more effective treatment outside of hospiIaIs. 

"Are we getting there? I think we are. Do we have further to go? Absolutely." 

Metro vancouver and, to a lesser eJrtenI. Victoria are also unique because people from acrose the 
country migrate here for the milder weather. OMera and runaways wHh existing psychological 

problema can eKacertlate them with street drugs. 

"That presentation of incredibly high levela of addiction with multiple substance. In a pIII"1On....me 1\lI8 

schizophrenia or bipolar disorder Is I1'II.ICh more significant here in B.C. than eIsewI'l&re," he said. 

"Frankly, a decade ago. no one was talking about tills. Nobody would haYa been able to say we were 
going 10 navelhis kR:I of growth live yeara ago." 

'MIile the 68 psychiatric beds at Sl Paul'. are at "1()5.per-(l8nt capacity: MacEwan says adding more 

Isn't the an_. 

Jonny Morri • • public policy director 01 the Canadtan Mental Health Association , B.C. Dlvlelon, agreet. 

"The community Is an (mportant place !of mental heaHh treatment and is enough being Invested there 

to keep people from being admitted to hospital In the ftrst placa7 

Talking 10. psychologist is cosily lor the average person so innovative provincial programt such as 

offering free cogni!!y&=bel!avloural Iht"!!y over the phone 00Id promise, Morris saya. 

'MIiIe IhMe methods won't prevent a major paychotic episode, they could help !IOITIe people deal with 

their probIemt before readlil'lg a CflaII. 

~ eren~ II the point 01 having a fully Integrated system where mental health and addictions care Is a 

one-llop shop. Many families say people have to go to one place to receive their addictions treatment 

and h.ave to do that first. then get mental health care, We know these conditionll often coexillt: says 

69

H.C. bas higher rate, of hospital slay' dot to mental illness Ih:tn lhe ... hllp") /www." anrouvtnun .romI~1OI)' .,JIrinl .hlml?ida 1 0S6.'i5l4&.sp ... 

, ,,,, 

One reason for the difference is II'IDI psychiatric patlenlll in B.C. are treated in general hoIpitab rather 

than spedaliUld facilities ~ke the Iomler B!ymy!aw HPtollaf In CoquitIam. It onc;e housed thouunds of 

patients, but olfidally cIo$ed in 2012. 

Angita Pal. manager of clinical administrative dal8baMs at CIHI , said ~ provi!'lCft I'll .... dtldlcated 

ptychl.trie no.pitahI that aren't induded In the annual report. Across Canada. aboul 88 per cent of 

mental health patients are admitted to general t'ooepitals compared to 99 per cent In B.C. 

SI. Paul's Hospital In downtown vancouver could be considered ground zero In the changing landaceP8 

for treating mental Ulness. Its emergency ward saw.n 88-per-cent Increase In visits due 10 addictions 

and mental Illness between 2009 and :lOt., said Dr. BU! MacEwan, the hospital's head of psychiatry. 

"I can'lteil you why Alberta, Quebec and Ontario have kepc psychiatric Institutions, Cerullnly In e.c. the 

move was aw.y fl'om Iong-stay institutions, which Is a meIhod of treating the mentally III from the past" 

WhIle Chefa may still be a need for !IOITIe pallent:t 10 be proIecled from the outside world In a psychiatric 

facility, MacEwan says the real answer IieII in getting more elr9dive treatment outside of hospit.als. 

"Are we getting 1henI? I think we are. 00 we hava further to go? Absolutely." 

Metro Vancouver and, to a lesser aJrter'll, Vieloria ara also unique because peopla from acrop the 
country mlgfllte here for the milder weather. Driflel'land runaways with existing psychological 

problema can eKacertlate them with street drugs, 

"That presentation of Incredibly high Ie ..... s of addiction with multiple substances in a peqon 'lotio lias 

sdIIzophf8f1la or bipolar d isorder It I1'II.ICh more significant here In B.C. than elsawt!ere," he said. 

"Frankly, a dOc;ade ago. no one was talking about this. Nobody would hava been Ible to say we were 
going \I) have this kn:I of growth live ye~ ago." 

'MIlle the 68 psychiatric beds at St. Paul's are at " l()5.par-(l8ll1 capacity." Macewan says adding mont 

",,"Ihe .n_. 
JOflny MorrIs, public policy direClor 01 the Canadtan Mental Health Association , B.C. DIvision, agrees. 

'1lle community is an Important place fof mental health trtlatmentand is enough belng In~asted thare 

10 keep people from being admitted 10 hospital In lhe "I'll placeT 

Tllklng 10 a psydIoIogislis cosily for the average patSOn so innovative provincial progtamt such as 

o1I'ering free copnjtjye-behavloural !heraoy over the phone 00id promise, MorrIs says. 

'Mlile IheIe meIhods won't preYeIlI a major paythotic epi8ode. they could help .orne people deal with 

their problems before reacNrlg a Cflsjs. 

~ .ren~ It the point of having a fully Integrated system where mental health and addlCllons care Is a 

one-atop shop. Many families say people have to ItO to one place to receive their addictions lreatment 

and have to do that first. then get mental htlalth care. We know these conditions often toelClsl ." says 



B.C. hat hi&ha mlC:S ~ hospiUII SUI)"S due to menllll iUnw than tho: ..• 

, .. , 

"Working with people Ytith mild-Io-moderate problems ~ a really good way to spend smart. Most people 

deteriofate over dme when ~ comes to mental health and SI,Ibstance abuse." 

According to the e lHI report. haYing 1 baby ~ the top reason for being admitted 10 hospital across !tie 

country, resulting In 12.5 per cent of In-patlenl stays. The most eommon In-patl8nt surgefy is Iiso birth

relaled - caesarean section. 

NatiOll3IIy, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPO) came In al No. 2, followed by heart attacks 

(No. 3) and congestive heart failure (No. 4). Mood disorders and delusional dlsorde!"s including 

schizophrenia rate near the and of the national ~st al eight and ninth posltioo . 

C/icIs btl" tp rnpq<t. typo or visit vancouversun.com1ypo. 

I, \hefe more to ttQ story? 'Ne'd hkl lO hear from you about lhie or any othef ,tories you thInk_ 

should know .bout. CUCK HERE or go to vancowerwn.comfmoretotheslory 

cCop,o!gt!t(c) __ Sun 

2011KIJ-03.S:S4 PM 

70

R.C. has highu mtes or Iopital ~)"I due III mental mom !han thI: ..• 

, .. , 

"Working with peop~ v.1th mild-to-moderate problems Is a really good way to spend smart. Most people 

detefiorate over dme when ~ comes to mental health and wbstanC8 abusa." 

According to the CIHI report. haYing. baby is !he top reason for being admitted to IIospitaI across the 

country, resulting In t2.5 par cent of In-patient sl<Iys. The most common In-patkln! wfgefy is also birth-
related - caesareanlection. 

Nationally, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (CO PO) came in at No. 2, followed by heart attacks 

(No. 3) and congestive heart failure (No. 4). Mood disordets and delusional disordets Including 

tchizophrenla rate near the end of the national ist at eight and ninth position. 

C!jcIs btl" tp"pqcr. typg or visit vancouversun.com1ypo. 

I, there more to IhII story? We'd Uke to hear from you abolrt this or any othef "cries you thInk_ 
$houId know about CUCK HERE or go to vancowersun.eomfmoretothestory 

CCopyrigI"!t(c) Tho_Sun 

2OIMU-03.S:S4 PM 



 
Case Statement 

The Need for a Clubhouse International 
For the Greater Victoria Area  

 

We estimate that mental illness costs the GVA economy $600 million annually.  
Emergency services are expensive:  an acute bed can be as high as $1,500 per day.  On 
average 68 patients are readmitted to psychiatric emergency services within 28 days 
(into the same hospital for the same condition). 
 
It costs $31,000 per year for each homeless person on salaries of law enforcement 
officers, jail stays, emergency room visits and hospitalizations for medical and 
psychiatric issues.  Victoria has the highest homeless death rate per capita in BC.   In 
2010 it was estimated there were 1,400 homeless people in Victoria and it is estimated 
that up to 75% of the homeless have a mental illness. 
 
People who have a severe mental illness are over-represented in the homeless 
population, as they are often released from hospitals and jails without proper 
community supports in place. The homeless individuals with mental illness are the tip 
of the iceberg as depression and anxiety topped the list for chronic conditions, with 
63,135 patients for the GVA or 28.6% of the population. 
 
The services currently available in our community are inadequate as existing programs 
focus on temporary, clinical and provide acute treatment instead of offering an 
ongoing recovery process that meets the needs of the person. 
 
A Clubhouse International (CI) in the GVA will provide people living with a mental 
illness, aged 18 and over, along with their families, friends, emergency services and 
businesses, a low cost and effective option.  A CI will give people respect, hope and 
unlimited opportunity to access the same world of friendship, housing, education and 
employment as the rest of the community. 
 

Vision 
Our community Clubhouse will be a vibrant, innovative and collaborative space 
dedicated to creating opportunity and purpose for those with mental health 
challenges. The Clubhouse will be dedicated to nurturing respect, equality and dignity 
for all. 

Mission 
To afford people whose lives have been disrupted by mental illness the opportunity to 
recover meaningful and productive lives through reintegration within the workplace 
and the community. 
 

Benefits of the Clubhouse 
The primary benefit is to provide meaningful activity that helps people with mental 
illness stay out of hospitals and off the street by having the opportunity to achieve 
social, financial and vocational goals.  Current research on existing Clubhouses has 
shown the benefits of the Clubhouse model and the positive results that have been 
achieved.  The Victoria Clubhouse expects to achieve results comparable to other 
accredited Clubhouses.  The results documented are: 

71



	 2

Cost Savings:  Societal Return on Investment (SROI):  Richmond’s Clubhouse has 
proven that it saves $14 for every $1 invested.  The average cost for a member per day 
is $40. but can be as low as $10.00.  By comparison an acute bed costs $1,500 per day. 
 
Higher Employment:  Two studies have shown that the Clubhouse model produces 
higher rates of employment, longer job tenure and higher earnings than other 
programs offered for people with mental illness.  A study of seventeen Clubhouses has 
shown that longer job tenure and higher earnings correlates to longer Clubhouse 
membership. 
 
Reduced Hospitalization:  In one study, membership in a Clubhouse reduced the 
number of hospitalizations by one third and reduced the average number of hospital 
days by 70%.   
 
Reduced Incarcerations:  Criminal justice system involvement has been found to be 
substantially diminished during and after Clubhouse membership.  This would help to 
address the Victoria Police Department’s 356% increase in calls related to mental 
illness in a five-year period. 
 
Improved Well-Being:  Compared with individuals receiving services as usual, 
Clubhouse members ere significantly more likely to report that they have close 
friendships and someone they can rely on when they need help. 
 

Clubhouse Description 
The Greater Victoria Clubhouse will be a membership-based community where people 
living with persistent mental illness come to rebuild their lives.  Participants – who are 
called members, not patients – share ownership and responsibility for the success of 
the organization.  They work in a unique partnership with a small staff, building on 
strengths instead of focusing on illness.  The Clubhouse provides an accepting place to 
spend the day, valuable work to perform within the organization, opportunities to 
socialize with friends and co-workers and access to employment within the wider 
community.  Membership is for life and provides ongoing support. 
 
The  Greater Victoria Clubhouse community will be built upon the belief that every 
member can sufficiently recover from the effects of mental illness to lead a personally 
satisfying and productive life.  The Clubhouse is a community of people dedicated to 
one another’s success.  Recovery is achieved in a Clubhouse International through 
work and work-mediated relationships, which are proven to be restorative and provide 
a firm foundation for growth, self-respect and individual achievement. 
 
Clubhouse International promotes the development of Clubhouses through the world 
and provides a set of Clubhouse standards, a well-documented training process and 
certification for Clubhouses.  The Greater Victoria Clubhouse will be a member of the 
Clubhouse International Network and will aspire to meet the international standards. 

 
 

Clubhouse Location 
Currently, there is no Clubhouse in the GVA.  There are three in BC: Richmond, 
Sechelt and Port Alberni. There are Clubhouse Internationals in most major cities in 

72



	 3

Canada.  The Clubhouse will be in a central location and on a main bus route.  It will 
be in a building/office space of approximately 4000 – 5000 square feet with a kitchen 
and restroom facilities.  The space will be home-like and comfortable, convey a sense 
of respect and dignity and will be completely separate from any medical or treatment 
facility or any other organization.  
 
Ideally the location will provide space for a horticulture unit to allow for flowers and 
or vegetable gardening.  The Clubhouse will have a reception area, an 
office/administrative area, a conference room, a commercial food-service kitchen, a 
dining area and space for a gift/thrift shop.  All areas are open to members and staff. 
 

Clubhouse Staff and the Work Ordered Day 
The Clubhouse paid staff will be very small as directed by the Clubhouse International 
Model.  There will be an executive director/manager and 2 – 6 staff who are usually 
work in a generalist capacity.  Primarily the members will perform the work of running 
the Clubhouse.  The emphasis is on ability, not disability.  The environment and 
programs are designed to provide meaningful relationships and meaningful work for 
individuals that may otherwise be preoccupied with illness and disability.  The goal is 
to be open 7 days per week, including statutory holidays, as mental illness does not 
take a holiday.  The Clubhouse mirrors a typical workday.  Members work together 
side by side in getting work done.  Clubhouse International refers to this as the Work 
Ordered Day.  Additionally, “Transitional Employment” sites through mutually 
beneficial partnerships with community employers will be made available. 
 

Victoria Clubhouse Implementation 
The mandate for rehabilitation of the mentally ill lies with the Health Authorities.  
Vancouver Coastal Health Authority provides Richmond’s Clubhouse with a $1.3 million 
budget annually.  Island Health provides the funds to operate New Horizons in Port 
Alberni.  With the proper support from Island Health, the Victoria Clubhouse can be 
implemented in a relatively short time.  Once space is found (100 square feet is 
needed per member).  Staffing and startup requirements can be carried out within a 
two month period.   
 
If you would like further information or to get actively involved or support this venture 
in any way please contact momslikeus@gmail.com  
Websites www.momslikeus.ca  www.iccd.org  www.pathwaysclubhouse.com 
 
References: 

(1) Healthy Minds, Healthy People – A Ten Year Plan to Address Mental Health and 
Substance Use in British Columbia, November 1, 2010 

(2) Globe and Mail Jan. 20, 2012 
(3) Island Health Mental Health and Addictions 
(4) Times-Colonist July 5, June 22 and November 6, 2014 
(5) Coast Mental Health 2015 
(6) A Closer Look: Jody Paterson 2010 
(7) Island Health 2012 Local Health Area Profile 

January 18/16 

73



I I 

Clubhouse International 
Creating Community: Changing the World of Mental Health 

Clubhouses and Clubhouse Research Outcomes 

Clubhouses are community centers that provide members (adults and young adults diagnosed with 
mental illness) with supports with obtaining employment, education and housing and long-term 
relationships. Clubhouses offer people living with mental illness hope and opportunities to reach 
their full potential. The basic components of successful clubhouses are a Work-Ordered Day in 
which the day to day operations of the clubhouse are conducted with members working side by side 
with clubhouse staff, community based Employment Programs including Transitional, Supported, 
and Independent Employment, community supports, reach-out, education, housing, decision
making and governance, wellness and health promotion, and evening, and weekend and social 
activities. Over 330 clubhouses located in thirty countries and thirty-six states network through the 
Clubhouse International. Clubhouse International supports the development of new and existing 
clubhouses, maintains a set of International Clubhouse Standards; coordinates clubhouse training 
and technical assistance; and a certification process. The Clubhouse Model is included on the 
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Service Administration's (SAMHSA) National Registry of 
E"idence Based Practices and Programs (NREPP) and differences in clubhouse outcomes for 
accredited and non-accredited Clubhouses were published in SAMHSA's Mental Health United 
States. 2010. We describe some of the recent published research outcomes about clubhouses below. 

Recent Research Outcomes - Clubhouses 

Promote recovery: 

Carolan and colleagues examined pertains to social network support and social relationships in the 
clubhouse using a naturalistic inquiry approach. Personal narratives revealed that the overall 
clubhouse structure emerged as the center of social interaction and comfort for participants and a 
central sustaining means of social support. Carolan and colleagues state that the clubhouse provides 
an intentional environment that creates a sense of community and a place to belong. They say the 
clubhouse is very helpful in achieving recovery by providing opportunities to build shattered social 
networks and offering contact with others in similar contexts (Carolan, Onaga, Pernice-Duca, & 
Jimenez, 2011). 

A recent study found that clubhouse members were more likely to report being in recovery and 
having a higher quality of life compared with a group of participants from consumer run drop in 
centers (Mowbray, Woodward, Holter, et al, 2009). 

Clubhouse members indicate the clubhouse provides valuable opportunities to pursue meaningful 
activities that help them address their mental health recovery at their own pace (Stoffel, 2008). 

1 74

Clubh6use Internationl l 
Creating Community: Changing the World of Mental Health 

Clubhouses and Clubhouse Research Outcomes 

Clubhouses are community centers that provide members (adults and young adults diagnosed with 
mental illness) with supports with obtaining employment, education and housing and long-term 
relationships. Clubhouses offer people living with mental illness hope and opportunities to reach 
their full potential. The basic components of successful clubhouses are a Work-Ordered Day in 
which the day to day operations of the clubhouse are conducted with members working side by side 
with clubhouse staff, community based Employment Programs including Transitional, Supported, 
and Independent Employment, community supports, reach-out, education, housing, decision
making and governance, wellness and health promotion, and evening, and weekend and social 
activities. Over 330 clubhouses located in thirty countries and thirty-six states network through the 
Clubhouse International. Clubhouse International supports the development of new and existing 
clubhouses, maintains a set of International Clubhouse Standards; coordinates clubhouse training 
and technical assistance; and a certification process. The Clubhouse Model is included on the 
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Service Administration's (SAMHSA) National Registry of 
Eyidence Based Practices and Programs (NREPP) and differences in clubhouse outcomes for 
accredited and non-accredited Clubhouses were published in SAMHSA's Mental Health United 
States. 2010. We describe some of the recent published research outcomes about clubhouses below. 

Recent Research Outcomes - Clubhouses 

Promote recovery: 

Carolan and colleagues examined pertains to social network support and social relationships in the 
clubhouse using a naturalistic inquiry approach. Personal narratives revealed that the overall 
clubhouse structure emerged as the center of social interaction and comfort for participants and a 
central sustaining means of social support. Carolan and colleagues state that the clubhouse provides 
an intentional environment that creates a sense of community and a place to belong. They say the 
clubhouse is very helpful in achieving recovery by providing opportunities to build shattered social 
networks and offering contact with others in similar contexts (Carolan, Onaga, Pernice-Duca, & 
Jimenez, 2011). 

A recent study found that clubhouse members were more likely to report being in recovery and 
having a higher quality of life compared with a group of participants from consumer run drop in 
centers (Mowbray, Woodward, Holter, et al, 2009) . 

Clubhouse members indicate the clubhouse provides valuable opportunities to pursue meaningful 
activities that help them address their mental health recovery at their own pace (Stoffel, 2008). 

1 



Recent ~esearch Outcomes - Clubhouses (Cjl1t'd) 

Reduce hospital stays or costs associated with partial hospitalization: 

Plotnick & Salzer examined clubhouse costs in the context of system transformation initiatives. 
They analyzed three years of data (2003-2006) for 29 clubhouses that are part of the Pennsylvania 
Clubhouse Coalition in order to obtain program costs, annual costs per member, and costs per day. 
Their results indicate that clubhouses playa substantial role in the Pennsylvania mental health 
system, providing almost 180,000 units of contact to more than 2,400 people. They found that 
clubhouse costs are substantially lower than the costs of partial hospital services. Plotnick & Salzer 
report that clubhouses serve an important role in lowering costs associated with supporting those 
who would otherwise utilize partial hospital programs (plotnick, & Salzer, 2008). 

Membership in a clubhouse program resulted in a significant decrease in the number of 
hospitalizations (Di Masso, Avi-Itzhak, & Obler, 2001). 

Help members obtain community based employment: 

Researchers followed a group of individuals with severe mental illness who were randomly assigned 
to a Clubhouse or a Program of Assertive Community Treatment, They examined whether 
participation in the Clubhouse Work-Ordered Day had a positive effect on vocational outcomes. 
Schonebaum and Boyd evaluated the relationship between Work-Ordered Day participation and 
employment duration for participants enrolled in the Clubhouse (N=43). They found that 
participation in the Clubhouse Work-Ordered Day had a significant positive impact on average 
duration of employment. On average, a 1-hr increase in participation in the Work-Ordered Day 
prior to employment led to an increase of 2.3 weeks in competitive employment. Participants with 
more Work-Ordered Day program participation prior to employment had significantly longer 
average competitive employment duration even when controlling for prior work history 
(Schonebaum, & Boyd, 2012). 

Researchers conducted a randomized controlled trial comparing an assertive community treatment 
(ACT) program with an ICCD certified clubhouse in the delivery of supported employment services. 
Outcomes for participants in both programs met or exceeded most published outcomes for 
specialized supported employment teams. Compared with ACT participants, clubhouse participants 
worked significantly longer (median of 199 days vs. 98 days) for more total hours (median of 494 
hours vs. 234 hours) and earned more (median of $3,456 vs. $1,252 total earnings) (Macias, Rodican, 
Hargreaves, et aI, 2006). 

Using a longitudinal dataset which followed 2195 individuals employed in 3379 separate job 
placements over a four-year period, researchers explored movement between Transitional, 
Supported, and Independent Employment (fE, SE, and IE) offered by clubhouses. Sixty-four 
percent, of employed members held only one job while and 36% held multiple jobs during the study. 
Forty-six percent of individuals holding multiple jobs moved between employment types (fE, SE, 
and IE). When movement occurred, clubhouse members were significantly more likely to move 
from employment types offering more supports to those that offer less supports (McKay, Johnsen, 
Banks, et aI, 2006). 

2 75

Recent fesearch Outcomes - Clubhouses (Tl1t'd) 

Reduce hospital stays or costs associated with partial hospitalization: 

Plotnick & Salzer examined clubhouse costs in the context of system transformation initiatives. 
They analyzed three years of data (2003-2006) for 29 clubhouses that are part of the Pennsylvania 
Clubhouse Coalition in order to obtain program costs, annual costs per member, and costs per day. 
Their results indicate that clubhouses playa substantial role in the Pennsylvania mental health 
system, providing almost 180,000 units of contact to more than 2,400 people. They found that 
clubhouse costs are substantially lower than the costs of partial hospital services. Plotnick & Salzer 
report that clubhouses serve an important role in lowering costs associated with supporting those 
who would otherwise utilize partial hospital programs (plotnick, & Salzer, 2008). 

Membership in a clubhouse program resulted in a significant decrease in the number of 
hospitalizations (Di Masso, Avi-Itzhak, & Obler, 2001). 

Help members obtain community based employment: 

Researchers followed a group of individuals with severe mental illness who were randomly assigned 
to a Clubhouse or a Program of Assertive Community Treatment, They examined whether 
participation in the Clubhouse Work-Ordered Day had a positive effect on vocational outcomes. 
Schonebaum and Boyd evaluated the relationship between Work-Ordered Day participation and 
employment duration for participants enrolled in the Clubhouse (N=43). They found that 
participation in the Clubhouse Work-Ordered Day had a significant positive impact on average 
duration of employment. On average, a 1-hr increase in participation in the Work-Ordered Day 
prior to employment led to an increase of 2.3 weeks in competitive employment. Participants with 
more Work-Ordered Day program participation prior to employment had significantly longer 
average competitive employment duration even when controlling for prior work history 
(Schonebaum, & Boyd, 2012). 

Researchers conducted a randomized controlled trial comparing an assertive community treatment 
(ACT) program with an ICCD certified clubhouse in the delivery of supported employment services. 
Outcomes for participants in both programs met or exceeded most published outcomes for 
specialized supported employment teams. Compared with ACT participants, clubhouse participants 
worked significantly longer (median of 199 days vs. 98 days) for more total hours (median of 494 
hours vs. 234 hours) and earned more (median of $3,456 vs. $1,252 total earnings) (Macias, Rodican, 
Hargreaves, et aI, 2006). 

Using a longitudinal dataset which followed 2195 individuals employed in 3379 separate job 
placements over a four-year period, researchers explored movement between Transitional, 
Supported, and Independent Employment (fE, SE, and IE) offered by clubhouses. Sixty-four 
percent, of employed members held only one job while and 36% held multiple jobs during the study. 
Forty-six percent of individuals holding multiple jobs moved between employment types (fE, SE, 
and IE). When movement occurred, clubhouse members were significantly more likely to move 
from employment types offering more supports to those that offer less supports (McKay, Johnsen, 
Banks, et aI, 2006). 

2 



ClubhOUSjs: 

Are cost-effective: 

Gorman measured costs of member employment services in 43 US clubhouses. Gorman found that 
clubhouses dedicated a median of 120.55 hours and $3,438 to employment services for every 
member employed for at least 6 months in a given year. Gorman also found that for every hour a 
clubhouse staff member dedicates to employment services members earn $38.73 and for every dollar 
invested in employment services members earn $1.31 (Gorman, 2014). 

The cost of clubhouses is estimated to be one-third of the cost of the IPS model; about half the 
annual costs of Community Mental Health Centers; and substantially less than the ACT model 
(McKay, Yates, & Johnsen, 2007). 

Improve well being and physical and mental health: 

One study suggests that service systems should prioritize services that offer ongoing social supports 
like Clubhouses, as they enhance mental and physical health by reducing disconnectedness (Leff, 
McPartland, Banks, et al, 2004). 

Researchers examining the increased morbidity and mortality from physical health conditions of 
people diagnosed with a mental illness conducted a survey of members of a rural clubhouse in 
Virginia and found that involvement with a clubhouse program or other supportive psychosocial 
program may promote regular physical health screenings (Tratnack & Kane, 2010). 

Can successfully engage young adults: 

McKay and colleagues describes efforts to develop and offer supports for young adults within two 
clubhouse programs affiliated with Clubhouse International. These clubhouses share successful 
strategies used to engage young adults including outreach efforts led by young adults, developing 
supports and linkages with local educational institutions, addressing housing issues specific to young 
adults, and using current technologies that young adults find appealing. Clubhouses affiliated with 
the ICCD show promise in expanding their approach and services to engage and support young 
adults (McKay, Osterman, Shaffer, et al, 2012). 

Improve quality of life: 

Gold and colleagues examined whether participation in competitive employment improves quality of 
life using data from a two-year, randomized trial comparing a Clubhouse to a Program of Assertive 
Community Treatment (PACT) program. Their analyses showed that competitively employed 
Clubhouse participants reported greater global quality of life improvement, particularly with the 
social and financial aspects of their lives, as well as greater self-esteem and service satisfaction, 
compared to competitively employed PACT participants (Gold, Macias, & Rodican, 2014). 

3 76

ClubhOUSjs: 

Are cost-effective: 

Gorman measured costs of member employment services in 43 US clubhouses. Gorman found that 
clubhouses dedicated a median of 120.55 hours and $3,438 to employment services for every 
member employed for at least 6 months in a given year. Gorman also found that for every hour a 
clubhouse staff member dedicates to employment services members earn $38.73 and for every dollar 
invested in employment services members earn $1.31 (Gorman, 2014). 

The cost of clubhouses is estimated to be one-third of the cost of the IPS model; about half the 
annual costs of Community Mental Health Centers; and substantially less than the ACT model 
(McKay, Yates, & Johnsen, 2007). 

Improve well being and physical and mental health: 

One study suggests that service systems should prioritize services that offer ongoing social supports 
like Clubhouses, as they enhance mental and physical health by reducing disconnectedness (Leff, 
McPartland, Banks, et al, 2004). 

Researchers examining the increased morbidity and mortality from physical health conditions of 
people diagnosed with a mental illness conducted a survey of members of a rural clubhouse in 
Virginia and found that involvement with a clubhouse program or other supportive psychosocial 
program may promote regular physical health screenings (Tratnack & Kane, 2010). 

Can successfully engage young adults: 

McKay and colleagues describes efforts to develop and offer supports for young adults within two 
clubhouse programs affiliated with Clubhouse International. These clubhouses share successful 
strategies used to engage young adults including outreach efforts led by young adults, developing 
supports and linkages with local educational institutions, addressing housing issues specific to young 
adults, and using current technologies that young adults find appealing. Clubhouses affiliated with 
the ICCD show promise in expanding their approach and services to engage and support young 
adults (McKay, Osterman, Shaffer, et ai, 2012). 

Improve quality of life: 

Gold and colleagues examined whether participation in competitive employment improves quality of 
life using data from a two-year, randomized trial comparing a Clubhouse to a Program of Assertive 
Community Treatment (P AC1) program. Their analyses showed that competitively employed 
Clubhouse participants reported greater global quality of life improvement, particularly with the 
social and financial aspects of their lives, as well as greater self-esteem and service satisfaction, 
compared to competitively employed PACT participants (Gold, Macias, & Rodican, 2014). 

3 



Clubhouses (cont'd): 

Improve quality of life (cont'd): 

Researchers in South Korea examined differences in perceived stigma and quality of life of 521 
individuals diagnosed with schizophrenia and participating in the clubhouse model or a 
rehabilitation skills training model for over three months. Clubhouse participants reported 
significantly lower Perceived Stigma scores and significantly higher Quality of Life scores than the 
recipients of the rehabilitation skills training model. Clubhouse participants also reported 
significantly higher interpersonal relationship scores in the Korean Quality of Life Scale than 
participants in rehabilitation skills training model Oung & Kim, 2012). 

Researchers in China examined the effects of the clubhouse model on various psychosocial issues 
for people diagnosed with schizophrenia living in the community. Clubhouse participants showed 
significant improvements in their symptoms, self-esteem, and quality of life after attending the 
clubhouse for six months. The clubhouse participants' also had improved employment rates (Tsang, 
Ng, & Yip, 2010). 

Pernice-Duca and Onaga examined factors that influence staff perceptions of a clubhouse's 
organizational environment and found that staff in high fidelity clubhouses endorsed the presence of 
more empowering elements of the clubhouse as compared to low fidelity clubhouses. These 
empowering elements included more positive recovery attitudes to recovery and the importance of 
finding paid work for members (pernice-Duca & Onaga, 2009). 

Mowbray and colleagues conducted a NIMH funded study examining over 1800 participants in 31 
geographically matched pairs of clubhouses and consumer run drop-in centers. The researchers 
controlled for differences in demographics, psychiatric history, and receipt of mental health services 
and found that clubhouse members reported having a higher quality of life and were more likely to 
be in recovery (Mowbray, Woodward, Holter, et aI, 2009). 

4 77

Clubhouses (cont'd): 

Improve quality of life (cont'd): 

Researchers in South Korea examined differences in perceived stigma and quality of life of 521 
individuals diagnosed with schizophrenia and participating in the clubhouse model or a 
rehabilitation skills training model for over three months. Clubhouse participants reported 
significantly lower Perceived Stigma scores and significantly higher Quality of Life scores than the 
recipients of the rehabilitation skills training model. Clubhouse participants also reported 
significantly higher interpersonal relationship scores in the Korean Quality of Life Scale than 
participants in rehabilitation skills training model Oung & Kim, 2012). 

Researchers in China examined the effects of the clubhouse model on various psychosocial issues 
for people diagnosed with schizophrenia living in the community. Clubhouse participants showed 
significant improvements in their symptoms, self-esteem, and quality of life after attending the 
clubhouse for six months. The clubhouse participants' also had improved employment rates (Tsang, 
Ng, & Yip, 2010). 

Pernice-Duca and Onaga examined factors that influence staff perceptions of a clubhouse's 
organizational environment and found that staff in high fidelity clubhouses endorsed the presence of 
more empowering elements of the clubhouse as compared to low fidelity clubhouses. These 
empowering elements included more positive recovery attitudes to recovery and the importance of 
finding paid work for members (pernice-Duca & Onaga, 2009). 

Mowbray and colleagues conducted a NIMH funded study examining over 1800 participants in 31 
geographically matched pairs of clubhouses and consumer run drop-in centers. The researchers 
controlled for differences in demographics, psychiatric history, and receipt of mental health services 
and found that clubhouse members reported having a higher quality of life and were more likely to 
be in recovery (Mowbray, Woodward, Holter, et aI, 2009). 

4 



Refe~ences: . . I 
1. Carolan, M., Onaga, E., Perruce-Duca, F., & JImenez, T. (2011). A Place to Be: The role of 

clubhouses in facilitating social support. P.rychiatric Rehabilitation jo!l111a~ 35, 125-132. 
2. Mowbray, CT., Woodward, AT., Holter, M.C, MacFarlane, P., & Bybee, D. (2009). Characteristics 

of users of consumer-run drop-in centers versus clubhouses. jOIlJ71al of Behavioral Health Seroices & 
Research, 36(3):361-71. 

3. Stoffel, V.C (2007). Perception of the Clubhouse Experience and its Impact on Mental Health 
Recovery. 

4. Plotnick, D.F. & Salzer, M. (2008). Clubhouse costs and implications for policy analysis in the 
context of system transformation initiatives. P.rychiatric Rehabilitation jOIlJ71a~ 32, 128-131. 

5. Di Masso,]., Avi-Itzhak, T., & Obler, D.R (2001). The clubhouse model: An outcome study on 
attendance, work attainment and status, and hospitalization recidivism. Work, 17, 23-30. 

6. Schonebaum, A & Boyd,]. (2012). Work-Ordered Day as a catalyst of competitive employment 
success. P.rychiatric Rehabilitation jOIlJ71a~ 35, 391-395. 

7. Macias, C, Rodican, CF., Hargreaves, W.A,Jones, D.R., Barreira, P.]., & Wang, Q. (2006). 
Supported employment outcomes of a randomized controlled trial of ACT and Clubhouse Models. 
P.rychiatlic Smices, 57, 1406-1415. 

8. McKay, CE.,Johnsen, M., Banks, S., & Stein, R. (2006). Employment transitions for clubhouse 
members. IFork. 26(1):67-74. 

9. Gorman,]. (2014). Cost-benefit and cost-effectiveness anajysis of emplqyment set7Jices offered f?y the clubhouse mode/. 
Master's Thesis, American University. 

10. McKay, CE., Yates, B.T., & Johnsen, M. (2007). Costs of Clubhouses: An international perspective. 
Administration and Poliry in Mental Health and Mental Health S mices Research, 34(1), 62-72. 

11. Leff, H.S., McPartland, ].C, Banks, S., Dembling, B., Fisher, W., & Allen, I.E. (2004). Service quality 
as measured by service fit and mortality among public mental health system service recipients. Mental 
Health Smices Research, 6, 93-107. 

12. Tratnack, S.A. & Kane, C (2010). Preventive health screenings in a clubhouse setting for persons 
with serious mental illness. American jOllmal Jor Nurse Practitioners, 14, 8. 

13. McKay, CE., Osterman, R, Shaffer,]., Sawyer, E., Gerrard, E., & Olivera, N. (2012). Adapting 
services to engage young adults in ICCD Clubhouses. P.rychiatric Rehabilitation jOllma~ 35, 181-188. 

14. Gold, P., Macias, C, & Rodican, C (2014). Does competitive work improve quality of life for adults 
with severe mental illness? Evidence from a randomized trial of supported employment. jOIlJ71al of 
Behavioral Health Seroices & Research, 1-17. 

15. Jung, S.H. & Kim, H.]. (2012). Perceived stigma and quality of life of individuals diagnosed with 
schizophrenia and receiving psychiatric rehabilitation services: A comparison between the clubhouse 
model and a rehabilitation skills training model in South Korea. P.rychiatric Rehabilitation jouma~ 35, 
460-465. 

16. Tsang, AW.K., Ng, RM.K., & Yip, K.C (2010). A six-month prospective case-controlled study of 
the effects of the clubhouse rehabilitation model on Chinese patients with chronic schizophrenia. 
East Asian Archives ofP.rychiatry, 20, 23-30. 

17. Pernice-Duca, F. & Onaga, E. (2009). Examining the contribution of social network support to the 
recovery process among clubhouse members. American jOIlJ71al ofP.rychiatric Rehabilitation, 12, 1-30. 

18. Mowbray, CT., Woodward, A.T., Holter, M.C, MacFarlane, P., & Bybee, D. (2009). Characteristics 
of users of consumer-run drop-in centers versus clubhouses. jOIlJ71al of Behavioral Health Seroices & 
Research, 36, 361-371. 

5 78

Refe~ences: . . I 
1. Carolan, M., Onaga, E., Perruce-Duca, F., & JImenez, T. (2011). A Place to Be: The role of 

clubhouses in facilitating social support. P.rychiatric Rehabilitation jo!l111a~ 35, 125-132. 
2. Mowbray, CT., Woodward, AT., Holter, M.C, MacFarlane, P., & Bybee, D. (2009). Characteristics 

of users of consumer-run drop-in centers versus clubhouses. jOIlJ71al of Behavioral Health Seroices & 
Research, 36(3):361-71. 

3. Stoffel, V.C (2007). Perception of the Clubhouse Experience and its Impact on Mental Health 
Recovery. 

4. Plotnick, D.F. & Salzer, M. (2008). Clubhouse costs and implications for policy analysis in the 
context of system transformation initiatives. P.rychiatric Rehabilitation jOIlJ71a~ 32, 128-131. 

5. Di Masso,]., Avi-Itzhak, T., & Obler, D.R (2001). The clubhouse model: An outcome study on 
attendance, work attainment and status, and hospitalization recidivism. Work, 17, 23-30. 

6. Schonebaum, A & Boyd,]. (2012). Work-Ordered Day as a catalyst of competitive employment 
success. P.rychiatric Rehabilitation jOIlJ71a~ 35, 391-395. 

7. Macias, C, Rodican, CF., Hargreaves, W.A,Jones, D.R., Barreira, P.]., & Wang, Q. (2006). 
Supported employment outcomes of a randomized controlled trial of ACT and Clubhouse Models. 
P.rychiatlic Smices, 57, 1406-1415. 

8. McKay, CE.,Johnsen, M., Banks, S., & Stein, R. (2006). Employment transitions for clubhouse 
members. IFork. 26(1):67-74. 

9. Gorman,]. (2014). Cost-benefit and cost-effectiveness anajysis of emplqyment set7Jices offered f?y the clubhouse mode/. 
Master's Thesis, American University. 

10. McKay, CE., Yates, B.T., & Johnsen, M. (2007). Costs of Clubhouses: An international perspective. 
Administration and Poliry in Mental Health and Mental Health S mices Research, 34(1), 62-72. 

11. Leff, H.S., McPartland, ].C, Banks, S., Dembling, B., Fisher, W., & Allen, I.E. (2004). Service quality 
as measured by service fit and mortality among public mental health system service recipients. Mental 
Health Smices Research, 6, 93-107. 

12. Tratnack, S.A. & Kane, C (2010). Preventive health screenings in a clubhouse setting for persons 
with serious mental illness. American joumal Jor Nurse Practitioners, 14, 8. 

13. McKay, CE., Osterman, R, Shaffer,]., Sawyer, E., Gerrard, E., & Olivera, N. (2012). Adapting 
services to engage young adults in ICCD Clubhouses. P.rychiatric Rehabilitation jouma~ 35, 181-188. 

14. Gold, P., Macias, C, & Rodican, C (2014). Does competitive work improve quality of life for adults 
with severe mental illness? Evidence from a randomized trial of supported employment. jOIlJ71al of 
Behavioral Health Seroices & Research, 1-17. 

15. Jung, S.H. & Kim, H.]. (2012). Perceived stigma and quality of life of individuals diagnosed with 
schizophrenia and receiving psychiatric rehabilitation services: A comparison between the clubhouse 
model and a rehabilitation skills training model in South Korea. P.rychiatric Rehabilitation jouma~ 35, 
460-465. 

16. Tsang, AW.K., Ng, RM.K., & Yip, K.C (2010). A six-month prospective case-controlled study of 
the effects of the clubhouse rehabilitation model on Chinese patients with chronic schizophrenia. 
East Asian Archives ofP.rychiatry, 20, 23-30. 

17. Pernice-Duca, F. & Onaga, E. (2009). Examining the contribution of social network support to the 
recovery process among clubhouse members. American journal ofP.rychiatric Rehabilitation, 12, 1-30. 

18. Mowbray, CT., Woodward, A.T., Holter, M.C, MacFarlane, P., & Bybee, D. (2009). Characteristics 
of users of consumer-run drop-in centers versus clubhouses. journal of Behavioral Health Seroices & 
Research, 36, 361-371. 

5 



    

 
 
EMBARGOED UNTIL 10AM EDT JULY 18, 2014 

Fountain House/Clubhouse International To Receive $1.5 Million 
Conrad N. Hilton Humanitarian Prize 

Hilton Prize international jury selects NYC-based global organization whose innovative 
clubhouse program helps people living with mental illness lead productive lives  

NEW YORK CITY – July 18, 2014 – Fountain House/Clubhouse International, a 

pioneering organization that has created a successful model to help those suffering from mental 

illness to reclaim their lives and realize their potential through work and the support of a caring 

community, has been selected to receive the 2014 Conrad N. Hilton Humanitarian Prize of $1.5 

million. The Conrad N. Hilton Foundation presents the annual award, the world’s largest 

humanitarian prize, to an organization that is doing extraordinary work to alleviate human 

suffering. An independent international jury makes the final selection.  

About 450 million people worldwide suffer from mental and behavioral disorders, 

according to the World Health Organization. The National Alliance on Mental Illness reports that 

one in four people in the United States develop some kind of mental illness during their lives, 

most often during younger years. Half of cases begin by age 14 and three-quarters by 24. 

Mental disorders are a factor in 90 percent of the nearly 1 million global suicides each year.  

“The problem is staggering in its global impact and scale, with significant repercussions 

that adversely affect millions of families and society as a whole,” said Steven M. Hilton, 

Chairman, President, and CEO of the Conrad N. Hilton Foundation. “Mental illness is an issue 

that touches significant areas the Hilton Foundation has been working on for many years, such 

as chronic homelessness and substance use. The Fountain House/Clubhouse International 

program of social relationships and meaningful work has literally saved thousands of lives over 

the past 66 years. Its program is a beacon of hope for those living with mental illness who are 

too often consigned to lives of homelessness, imprisonment, social stigma, and isolation.”  

Today, Fountain House/Clubhouse International directly affects the lives of more than 

100,000 people who participate in 340 clubhouses in 32 countries. The concept of membership 

underpins every aspect of the community. Clubhouse members have shared ownership and 

79

http://www.fountainhouse.org/
http://www.hiltonfoundation.org/


shared responsibility for their community, starting with the “work-ordered day” that provides 

structure for their lives by assigning them duties to work side-by-side with staff to run the 

clubhouse.  

  “I have been moved by the fact that Fountain House purposefully depends on people 

with mental illness for its daily operation and future, from answering phones to designing and 

running programs and serving on the board of directors,” said Glenn Close, who has been a 

volunteer at Fountain House New York and previously nominated the organization for the Hilton 

Prize. “Shared responsibility builds self-esteem and alleviates the stigma and isolation that so 

often haunt people with mental disorders.” Close, inspired by what she learned at Fountain 

House, teamed with them and several other key mental health organizations to launch her own 

anti-stigma campaign, BringChange2Mind.  

A second pillar of the Fountain House model is a transitional employment program, in 

which local employers provide members with paid employment of 15–20 hours a week for six to 

nine months. A staff member trains with the clubhouse member and fills in if the member is 

unable to work. The program has proven benefits for members and employers. For example, 

Dow Jones & Company has employed over 360 members in New York, London, and Tokyo. 

Other employers have included American Express Publishing, Estee Lauder Companies, Fox 

Television, HBO, Young & Rubicam, Museum of Modern Art, Pfizer Inc., Cravath Swaine & 

Moore, and many others.  

“It is with enormous gratitude that Fountain House/Clubhouse International accepts the 

Hilton Humanitarian Prize,” said Kenneth Dudek, President of Fountain House. “With this award, 

the Hilton Foundation and its international jurors recognize mental illness as a global 

humanitarian crisis and acknowledge Fountain House/Clubhouse International’s evidence-

based approach to empowering people living with mental illness throughout the world. The prize 

belongs to the courageous and hardworking people connected to clubhouses everywhere.”  

Fountain House has compelling data to support its effectiveness. It is listed in the U.S. 

Registry of Evidence-based Programs and Practices. Clubhouse members have longer job 

tenure, higher earnings, and double the employment rate as compared to individuals living with 

mental illness who are not clubhouse members. It also has clear economic advantages. A two-

week stay in a New York City hospital averages $28,000. For this amount, Fountain House can 

secure member housing for an entire year, plus access to community services, health care, 

education, employment, and social support. 

80

http://www.bringchange2mind.org/


Fountain House/Clubhouse International started in the early 1940s at Rockland State 

Hospital in Orangeburg, N.Y. Seven patients formed a self-help group that met in a hospital 

“club room” to prepare themselves to be discharged and cope with the challenges of finding 

shelter and work and dealing with relationships and inevitable relapses. Soon after leaving the 

hospital, they began to meet on the steps of the New York City Public Library to re-create the 

clubhouse experience, believing that it would sustain their recovery, provide a mutual support 

system, and ultimately lead to changing society’s perception of people living with mental illness. 

They called it the “We Are Not Alone Society,” which became Fountain House in 1948, named 

for its West 47th Street building that had a fountain in its garden. 

As more people learned about Fountain House and how it benefitted members, they 

began to establish clubhouses in their communities. Fountain House recognized the need for a 

central global resource to assure its program was replicated properly in new clubhouses and 

formed Clubhouse International in 1994 to establish and certify International Standards. There 

are 10 Clubhouse International training centers in the U.S., Canada, Europe, Asia, and 

Australia. Fountain House/Clubhouse International clubhouses now span the globe, and 

independent studies have found that, compared with people living with mental illness in other 

programs, clubhouse members are more likely to report being in recovery; work longer and earn 

more; show significant improvement in their symptoms, self-esteem, and quality of life after 

attending a clubhouse for six months; along with decreased use of psychiatric inpatient care and 

other social and health services. 

Poor preventive care is an epidemic among people with serious mental illness, resulting 

in a life expectancy in the United States that is 25 years shorter than the national average. In 

October 2011, Fountain House opened the Peter B. Lewis and Adam Lewis Wellness Center in 

its New York location to promote healthy diets and exercise and to reduce obesity, smoking, 

and diabetes rates. The Wellness Center coordinates with the Sidney Baer, Jr. Center, a joint 

medical facility of Fountain House and St. Luke’s-Roosevelt Hospital in New York. The Baer 

Center has doubled the number of club members who receive psychiatric services from 300 to 

600 and primary medical care from 500 to 1,000. The re-hospitalization rate at the center is 7 

percent compared with 50 percent for the U.S. population living with mental illness.  

“Fountain House is an organization whose work has never been more relevant in our 

world, as we sadly see in daily headlines,” says Hilton. “Its work demonstrates that we can 

81



unshackle those with mental disorders from isolation and stigma and embrace them as 

productive independent people with talents and contributions important to our society.”  

### 

 

About the Conrad N. Hilton Humanitarian Prize: The 2014 Hilton Prize will be presented at the annual 
Conrad N. Hilton Humanitarian Prize Dinner on October 27, 2014, at the Waldorf Astoria in New York City 
following a one-day Humanitarian Symposium. The symposium gathers policymakers and leaders in the 
humanitarian field to address the most challenging issues facing the billions of people who make up the 
world’s most vulnerable populations. Africa: Continent at the Threshold is the theme this year.  

The current Hilton Prize jury includes: Princess Salimah Aga Khan, international ambassador for SOS 
Kinderdorf International; Catherine A. Bertini, professor of public administration, Syracuse University, 
and former executive director of the United Nations World Food Programme; Gro Harlem Brundtland, 
MPH, former director-general of the World Health Organization and former prime minister of Norway; 
James R. Galbraith, director, Conrad N. Hilton Foundation; Strive Masiyiwa, humanitarian, founder and 
executive chairman of Econet Wireless; Hawley Hilton McAuliffe, director, Conrad N. Hilton Foundation; 
and Professor Amartya Sen, Nobel Prize Laureate in economics and Lamont University professor at 
Harvard University.  

The Hilton Prize Laureates have formed a Collaborative to combine forces in the field in order to 
leverage their unique missions and achieve collective impact globally. These recognized leaders in the 
humanitarian world include: ECPAT International (Thailand) 2013; Help Age International (United 
Kingdom) 2012; Handicap International (France), 2011; Aravind Eye Care System (India) 2010; PATH 
(Washington), 2009; BRAC (Bangladesh), 2008; Tostan (Senegal), 2007; Women for Women 
International (Washington, DC), 2006; Partners In Health (Massachusetts), 2005; Heifer International 
(Arkansas), 2004; International Rehabilitation Center for Torture Victims (Denmark), 2003; SOS 
Children’s Villages (Austria), 2002; St. Christopher’s Hospice (United Kingdom), 2001; Casa Alianza 
(Costa Rica), 2000; AMREF Health Africa (Kenya), 1999; Doctors Without Borders (France),1998; 
International Rescue Committee (New York), 1997; and Operation Smile (Virginia), 1996. 

About the Hilton Foundation: The Conrad N. Hilton Foundation was created in 1944 by international 
business pioneer Conrad N. Hilton, who founded Hilton Hotels and left his fortune to help the world’s 
disadvantaged and vulnerable people. The Foundation currently conducts strategic initiatives in six 
priority areas: providing safe water, ending chronic homelessness, preventing substance abuse, helping 
children affected by HIV and AIDS, supporting transition-age youth in foster care, and extending Conrad 
Hilton’s support for the work of Catholic Sisters. In addition, following selection by an independent 
international jury, the Foundation annually awards the $1.5 million Conrad N. Hilton Humanitarian Prize to 
a nonprofit organization doing extraordinary work to reduce human suffering. From its inception, the 
Foundation has awarded more than $1 billion in grants, distributing $92 million in the U.S. and around the 
world in 2013. The Foundation’s current assets are approximately $2.4 billion. For more information, 
please visit www.hiltonfoundation.org. 
  

 

82

http://www.hiltonfoundation.org/


                                                                                        
 

 

 

 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
 

YOU CAN BUY HAPPINESS – IT’S NOT EVEN THAT EXPENSIVE:  
An Independent Review 

 
Wondering how to ensure you and your taxes get the most bang from your philanthropic buck in light 
of current news reports? Look no further than Richmond! Great news from a local non-profit! 
 
Richmond, BC – April 28, 2014  
Pathways Clubhouse, the Richmond location of the Canadian Mental Health Association participated in an 
independent review of the value created by the dollars received from our funders and donors.  We are delighted 

to announce that Pathways Clubhouse, right here in Richmond, produces a total of $14.00 in societal value to 

their members and to the larger community from every $1 received!  Fourteen to One!  That is approximately two 
thirds more than average well respected societies in North America.  
 
Success Markets independently evaluates charity programs based on their investigation of expected and actual 
results realized by beneficiaries relative to program costs and risks.  Benjamin McNamee, Senior Analyst of Success 
Markets, an experienced evaluator, states that “generally well-managed non-profits expect to receive a Social 
Return on Investment (SROI) in the $2-$5 range”.    
 
Executive Director of Pathways, Dave MacDonald, commented, “We are used to hearing  from our members and 
their families how Pathways has saved their life, provided them a place to call home, found them a job and new 
meaning to life.  We knew our impact was significant to those living with mental illness.  But now, to have 
independent evaluation on the true value of donors' dollars, gives us all a huge feeling of accomplishment and 
affirmation.”  Donors can be confident and satisfied that for every $100 they donate to Pathways, $1400 worth of 
value is received by the people and the community that Pathways touches.   
 
If you would like to know more about how we accomplish such fiscal excellence and solid results, receive a copy of 
this report, or would appreciate the opportunity of talking to our members who are recipients of our 
programming, please call or e-mail for a personal tour or more information. 
 
Pathways Clubhouse provides adults and youth dealing with crisis and endemic mental health issues with 
education support, employment support, stable housing, physical fitness, social activities, and a sense of 
community and belonging.  These regularly produce important sustained changes in many critical aspects of their 
lives.  

### 
 
GEORGINAPATKO        604–276-8834 ext. 25 
Resource Development/Media Relations     georgina.patko@cmha.bc.ca 
Pathways Clubhouse        www.richmond.cmha.bc.ca 
                                    

 

83



The Corporation of the District of Saanich 

Report 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Sharon Hvozdanski, Director of Planning 

Date: February 18, 2016 

Subject: Development Permit and Rezoning Application 
File: DPR00614; REZ00559 • 1550 Arrow Road 

PROJECT DETAILS 

Project Proposal: 

[g1~©~~~~[Q) 

FEB 1 9 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

L DISTRICT OF S.6.~NICH 

Address: 

Legal Description: 

Owner: 

Applicant: 

Parcel Size: 

Existing Use of Parcel: 

Existing Use of 
Adjacent Parcels: 

To rezone from RA-1 (Apartment Zone) to RA-3 (Apartment 
Zone) to construct one three-storey and one three/four-storey 
building for affordable seniors housing. The proposed 
development would occur in two phases. 
Phase one: construction of one three-storey, 100 unit building 
Phase two: construction of one three/four-storey, 140 unit 
building and demolition of the existing building. 

The proposed rezoning would accommodate the increased 
density for the entire project (both phases), however, the 
Development Permit Application is for Phase one only. A 
future Development Permit Amendment application would be 
required for Phase two. Variances are requested for 
horizontal building width, building separation, and the number 
of visitor parking spaces. 

1550 Arrow Road 

Lot A, Section 56, Victoria District, Plan 23817 Except Part in Plan 
27015 

Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society, Inc. No. S9640 

Number Ten Architectural Group c/o Mark Anthony 

1.61 ha 

Senior's Housing RA-1 (Apartment Zone) 

North: RS-6 (Single Family Dwelling Zone) and P-4N 
(Natural Park Zone)/ Bow Park 

84

The Corporation of the District of Saanich 

Report 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Sharon Hvozdanski, Director of Planning 

Date: February 18, 2016 

Subject: Development Permit and Rezoning Application 
File: DPR00614; REZ00559 • 1550 Arrow Road 

PROJECT DETAILS 

Project Proposal: 

[g1~©~~~~[Q) 

FEB 1 9 2016 
I LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
L DISTRICT OF S.6ANICH 

Address: 

Legal Description: 

Owner: 

Applicant: 

Parcel Size: 

Existing Use of Parcel: 

Existing Use of 
Adjacent Parcels: 

To rezone from RA-1 (Apartment Zone) to RA-3 (Apartment 
Zone) to construct one three-storey and one three/four-storey 
building for affordable seniors housing. The proposed 
development would occur in two phases. 
Phase one: construction of one three-storey, 100 unit building 
Phase two: construction of one three/four-storey, 140 unit 
building and demolition of the existing building. 

The proposed rezoning would accommodate the increased 
density for the entire project (both phases), however, the 
Development Permit Application is for Phase one only. A 
future Development Permit Amendment application would be 
required for Phase two. Variances are requested for 
horizontal building width, building separation, and the number 
of visitor parking spaces. 

1550 Arrow Road 

Lot A, Section 56, Victoria District, Plan 23817 Except Part in Plan 
27015 

Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society, Inc. No. S9640 

Number Ten Architectural Group c/o Mark Anthony 

1.61 ha 

Senior's Housing RA-1 (Apartment Zone) 

North: RS-6 (Single Family Dwelling Zone) and P-4N 
(Natural Park Zone)/ Bow Park 

HopkinDL
Text Box
CW Mar 14/16

HopkinDL
Text Box
CW  2



    South: RS-10 (Single Family Dwelling Zone) and RA-3 
(Apartment Zone) 

    East:  RS-6 and RS-10 (Single Family Dwelling Zones) 
    West:  RS-10 (Single Family Dwelling Zone) 
 
Current Zoning:  RA-1 (Apartment Zone) 
 
Minimum Lot Size:  n/a 

 
Proposed Zoning:  RA-3 (Apartment Zone) 
 
Local Area Plan:  Gordon Head  
 
LAP Designation:  General Residential 
 
Community Assn  Gordon Head   Referral sent June 5, 2015.  Response received  
Referral:    October 22, 2015 indicating no objection with comments relating 

to consultation and upgrades to Arrow Road.   
  
PROPOSAL 
 
To rezone from RA-1 (Apartment Zone) to RA-3 (Apartment Zone) to construct one three-
storey and one three/four-storey building for affordable seniors housing.  The proposed 
development would occur in two phases.  
Phase one: construction of one three-storey, 100 unit building (see Figure 1). 
Phase two: construction of one three/four-storey, 140 unit building and demolition of the 
existing building.   
 
The proposed rezoning would allow the increased density for the entire project (both 
phases), however, the Development Permit application is for Phase one only.  A future 
Development Permit Amendment application would be required for Phase two.  Variances 
are requested for horizontal building width, building separation, and the number of visitor 
parking spaces. 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
Official Community Plan (2008) 
4.2.1.1 “Support and implement the eight strategic initiatives of the Regional Growth Strategy, 

namely:  Keep urban settlement compact, Protect the integrity of rural communities; 
Protect regional green and blue space; Manage natural resources and the 
environment sustainably; Build complete communities; Improve housing affordability; 
Increase transportation choice; and Strengthen the regional economy.” 

 
4.2.1.2   “Maintain the Urban Containment Boundary as the principal tool for growth 

management in Saanich, and encourage all new development to locate within the 
Urban Containment Boundary.” 

 
4.1.2.18 “Encourage new development to achieve higher energy and environmental 

performance through programmes such as “Built Green”, LEED or similar accreditation 
systems.” 

 
 

85



 
Figure 1:  Site Plan  
 

o 
ARROW RD 

Meters 

3986 

3982 

3978 

3974 

Meters 
ARROW RD 

86

3986 

3982 

3978 

3974 

Meters 
ARROW RD 



4.2.1.20  “Require building and site design that reduce the amount of impervious surfaces and 
incorporate features that will encourage ground water recharge such as green roofs, 
vegetated swales and pervious paving material.” 

 
4.2.4.4 “Support institutional land uses that fit with the character of residential 

neighbourhoods.” 
 
4.2.2.5 “Encourage accessibility through incorporation of “universal design” in all new 

development and redevelopment.” 
 
4.2.3.4 “Investigate criteria for considering inclusionary zoning and density bonusing as part of 

development applications, in return for the provision of affordable and/or special needs 
housing.” 

 
4.2.3.7 “Support the following building types and land uses in Major and Neighbourhood 

Centres: 
 Townhouse (up to 3 storeys) 
 Low-rise residential (up to 4 storeys) 
 Mid-rise residential (up to 8 storeys) 
 Live/work studio & Office (up to 8 storeys) 
 Civic and institutional (generally up to 8 storeys) 
 Commercial and Mixed-Use (generally up to 8 storeys).” 

 
4.2.4.2 “Evaluate zoning applications for multiple family developments on the basis of 

neighbourhood context, site size, scale, density, parking capacity and availability, 
underground service capacity, adequacy of parkland and visual  and traffic impacts.” 

 
4.2.4.3  “Support the following building types and land uses in Neighbourhoods: 

 single family dwellings; 
 duplexes, tri-plexes, and four-plexes; 
 townhouses; 
 low-rise residential (up to 4 storeys); and 
 mixed-use (commercial/residential) (up to 4 storeys).” 

 
4.2.9.18 “Integrate transit with other modes of transportation by: 

 ensuring safe accessible pedestrian and cycle routes between transit stops and 
major local and regional destinations; 

 focusing particularly on sidewalks, corners and intersections, pick-up/drop-off 
points (for handyDART and conventional system), pathways and entranceways to 
buildings.” 

 
5.1.1.12 “Strengthen local sustainable agriculture by supporting “backyard gardening” and 

community gardening initiatives.” 
 
5.1.2.1 “Focus new multi-family development in “Centres” and “Villages”. 
 
5.1.2.2 “Evaluate applications for multi-family developments on the basis of neighbourhood 

context, site size, scale, density, parking capacity and availability, underground service 
capacity, school capacity, adequacy of parkland, contributions to housing affordability, 
and visual and traffic/ pedestrian impact.” 

 

87



5.1.2.16 “Integrate seniors and special needs housing into the community where there is good 
access to public transit and basic support services.” 

 
5.1.2.17 “Support the provision of a range of seniors housing and innovative care options within 

“Centres”, “Villages”, and Neighbourhoods, to enable people to “age in place”.” 
 
Gordon Head Local Area Plan (1997) 
5.5 “Use development permits to ensure that new multi-family developments respect the 

scale of adjacent uses and the environment character of Gordon Head.”  
 
Draft Shelbourne Valley Action Plan  
The subject property is within the study area for the draft Shelbourne Valley Action Plan 
(SVAP).  Although the SVAP has not yet been adopted, draft policies relevant to this proposal 
should be considered.   
 
5.1.2 “Consider site-specific changes to land use and height designations, where projects 

advance overall plan objectives and provide significant community contributions.”  
 
5.4.1 “Promote a range of housing types, forms and tenures to support a diverse, inclusive 

and multigenerational community.” 
 
5.4.5 “Subject to the Zoning Bylaw, seniors housing and care facilities, including congregate 

housing and nursing homes, shall be permitted in all areas designated for apartment 
use.” 

 
5.4.6 “Encourage seniors housing in walkable areas convenient to services and without hilly 

topography.” 
 
6.1.8 “Construct sidewalks on all residential streets within 500 metres of the primary 

intersection of a Centre or 200 metres of the primary intersection of a Village.” 
 
7.6.2  “Work with developers to provide drop-off bays that accommodate handyDART buses 

in developments that have a focus on seniors or other populations with potential 
mobility issues.” 

 
Development Permit Area Guidelines 
The development proposal is subject to the Saanich General Permit Area.  Relevant guidelines 
include: retaining existing trees and native vegetation where practical; designing buildings to 
reflect the character of surrounding developments with special attention to height; providing high 
quality architecture; balancing the needs of all transportation modes; reducing impervious site 
cover; designing above grade parking to be complementary to the surroundings; and 
encouraging pedestrian activity. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Neighbourhood Context 
The 1.6 ha (3.8 ac) subject property is located approximately 300 m north-west of the McKenzie 
Avenue and Cedar Hill Road intersection at the edge of the University Major “Centre”.  
Surrounding properties are primarily developed with single family dwellings, with multi-family 
developments along McKenzie Avenue and Cedar Hill Road.  
 
 

88



The property is currently developed with an 80 unit, affordable senior’s apartment that was 
constructed in 1970 and is owned and managed by the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
(MDSHS).  The MDSHS is one of several Charitable Housing Societies established by the 
Anglican Diocese of BC which operates as a separate legal entity. 
 
The property is located less than 300 m from a wide range of commercial and retail services 
within the University “Centre”. Bow Park is approximately 300 m walking distance away.  Nellie 
McClung Library is approximately 0.5 km distant and Gordon Head Recreation Centre and 
Lambrick Park are within 1.5 km.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Figure 2:  Context Map 
 

University 
Heights 

89



The property owners hold a private easement along the northern boundary of 3974 Bel Nor 
Place for a pathway to provide access to Bel Nor Place.  From Bel Nor Place public pathways 
provide a connection to Hopesmore Drive, where there is a pedestrian crosswalk at Cedar Hill 
Road (see Figure 3).  Arrow Road also has a non-separated asphalt sidewalk on one side from 
the subject property to Cedar Hill Road where there is another crosswalk.  Road improvements 
for the development include widening Arrow Road complete with curb, gutter and a 2 m 
separated sidewalk along the property frontage.  Land dedication of 1.55 m width along the 
property line would be provided to construct the necessary improvements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 3:  Aerial View of Surrounding Area  
 
Land Use and Density 
The property is zoned RA-1 (Apartment Zone) and currently contains a two-storey 80 unit 
apartment building.  The applicants propose to redevelop the site in two phases with a total 
build-out of 240 units.  The proposed development would not comply with the density permitted 
in the RA-1 zoning provisions, therefore rezoning to permit a higher density is required.   
 
The site has a current lot coverage of 12%. The existing building contains a housing mix of 72 
bachelor and 8 one-bedroom suites. The applicants propose to redevelop the site in two 
phases.  Phase one would retain the existing building and construct a new three-storey 100 unit 
building on the northern portion of the lot for a total density of 180 units.  The proposed dwelling 
units in Phase one would be 37 bachelor (393 ft2) units and 63 one-bedroom (509 ft2) units. 
 
Phase two would involve deconstructing the existing building and constructing a new 140 unit 
building for a total of 240 units at final build out.  At this time the Phase two building is 
envisioned as primarily a three-storey building with a fourth floor on that portion fronting Arrow 

Approximate Lot 
Boundaries 

Bow Lake / Park 

University 
Centre 

Public Pathway 
by Right-of-Way 

Private Pathway 
by Easement 

90



Road.  A Development Permit is requested for the Phase one building only, with a subsequent 
Development Permit Amendment being required in the future to address the design of Phase 
two.  Lot coverage would increase to 24% at the completion of Phase one and 27% at Phase 
two.  The anticipated time frame for Phase two is 10-30 years after the completion of Phase 
one.  It should be noted that although Phase two is conceptually shown as a three/four-storey 
building, a height variance would need to be approved by Council as part of a future 
Development Permit Amendment to realize the fourth storey.   
 
The existing access would be maintained as the main entrance into the site with some 
improvements such as additional banks of parking spaces, additional tree planting/landscaping 
and incorporating permeable pavers for the parking spaces.  The number of parking spaces 
would be increased from the current 53 to 95 at Phase one.  Additional parking would be added 
at Phase two.   
 
The phased approach to redevelopment of the site can be beneficial as it would: 
 Require the road and sidewalk improvements to occur as part of Phase one; 
 Permit the proposed Phase one building to be constructed in an open area at the rear of 

the property allowing the existing building closer to Arrow Road to remain; 
 Allow the positive and negative impacts of Phase one to be taken into consideration during 

the design of Phase two;  and  
 Introduce the streetscape changes along Arrow Road to occur more gradually over time.   

 
Proposals to rezone for new multi-family developments would be considered somewhat 
differently than redevelopment of existing sites.  A proposal to change the existing land use from 
single family to multi-family residential would generally be more supportable if the site is within, 
or in close proximity to, an identified “Centre” or “Village” or located on a major corridor.  Where 
there are existing multi-family sites in primarily single family neighbourhoods such as the subject 
property, redevelopment applications would be anticipated as those buildings age.  Due to the 
increased development cost since the time of original construction, a request for higher density 
would often be anticipated in order for the redevelopment to be economically sustainable, 
especially in a non-market housing situation.  However, even with the redevelopment of an 
existing site, consideration must be given to neighbourhood concerns, and often those concerns 
can be addressed through good design.  A key consideration with development proposals such 
as this is balancing the benefits provided to the broader community with the potential impacts on 
the existing neighbourhood.   
 
The proposed density of the development at build-out would have a floor space ratio (FSR) of 
0.835 and 150 units/ha.  Although the proposed density may raise concerns, by comparison it is 
significantly lower than similar developments approved as summarized in Table 1.  Density 
measured by unit count would not reflect variations resulting from the size of units and generally 
speaking, market housing would provide larger units than affordable housing developments. 
Unit density would also not capture floor area used for common amenities.  The overall impacts 
of a development resulting from the building mass is best represented by the FSR, which has a 
direct relationship to property size.  Density measured by units per hectare and the FSR are 
provided for comparison. 
 
Affordable Housing 
The site is managed by the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society (MDSHS) and all of the 
dwelling units are for rental purposes only, with tenants selected by age and income restrictions.  
Tenants must be 55 years or older with an annual income below a determined level.  The 
annual income level is set annually and currently residents must have an annual income of 
$30,000 or less.  The average income of existing tenants is just over $17,000.  Rental 

91



applications are coordinated through BC Housing’s Seniors Rental initiative which also oversees 
the Shelter Aid for Elderly Renters (SAFER) program.  Some housing providers choose to gear 
rent to income (30% of total income) or alternatively where rental rates are fixed, subsidies are 
available for tenants aged 60 or older paying more than 30% of their gross monthly income 
towards housing.  Currently, persons with monthly income above $2,223 (singles) do not qualify 
for the SAFER subsidies.  The proposed development would have a fixed rental rate with the 
expectation that many residents would qualify for subsidies through the SAFER program.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 4: University Major Centre Boundary 

Subject Property 

92



Address Purpose Lot Size Total Units Units/ha FSR 

3812 Carey Rd Affordable Seniors Rental, 
Independent living 

(portion of Campus of 
Care) 

6,073 m2 55 91 1.14 

4349 West Saanich Rd Social housing 
(Rosalie’s Village) 

3,750 m2 42 
(8 units as 

townhouses) 

112 1.2 

3811 Rowland Ave Market housing 6,178 m2 74 120 1.2 

114, 120 Gorge Rd W & 
2921 Earl Grey St 

Market housing 1,764 m2 24 136 1.2 

4000 Shelbourne St Market housing 3,974 m2 56 141 1.7 

931, 935, 945 Cloverdale 
Ave & 914, 922, 930 
Inverness Rd 

Market housing & 107 m2 
of commercial space 

2,180 m2 42 193 1.49 

1000, 1006, 1010 
Inverness Rd & 3315, 
3321, 3329, 3333, 3339 
Glasgow Ave 

Market housing 4400 m2 91 207 1.62 

994, 998 Gorge Rd W Senior’s facility – 
Independent, assisted, and 

community care 

6,344 m2 144 227 1.78 

3207 Quadra Street Seniors supportive housing 
(Cool Aid Society) 

1768 m2 45 254 1.2 

433, 437 Boleskine Rd & 
3385, 3389 Whittier Ave 

Market housing & 1,121 m2 
commercial space 

1,744 m2 60 344 4.24 

3185 Tillicum Rd & 273, 
279, 285 Burnside Rd W 

Rental housing & 224 m2 
commercial space 

2,811 m2 104 370 2.3 

Subject Application as 
proposed at build-out 

Affordable Seniors Rental, 
Independent living 

1.6 ha 240 150 0.835 

Table 1: Recent Multi-Family Developments 
 
The anticipated useful life of the existing building is up to 40 years with capital improvements 
and maintenance.  A market assessment undertaken by the applicants noted that in 2006 two 
thirds of senior renters were in core housing need compared to one third of senior owners.  
Core housing need is defined as housing requiring major repairs, housing costs representing 
30% or more of total before-tax income, or housing that has inadequate number of bedrooms for 
the household size.  The market assessment also noted that there were typically 80-90 seniors 
on a waiting list for non-market seniors housing in Saanich between 2012 and 2014.   A survey 
of residents in the existing building and at a similar housing development was conducted to 
determine the preferred features and amenities.  There were approximately 100 respondents 
that determined: the majority of respondents live alone, 75% were 65 years or older, the ratio of 
females to males is 2:1, approximately 50% own a car and one bedroom units are the preferred 
type of dwelling unit.  
 
Securing Affordability: 
There are two legal mechanisms for a local government to secure seniors affordable housing.  
 
 Title Agreements:  covenants or housing agreements are essentially legal agreements 

registered on Title that would have the same legal effect.  They can be registered on Title 

93



under agreement with the property owner and with the mortgage lenders agreeing to a 
priority agreement so they cannot be discharged in the event of foreclosure.   
 

 Zoning Bylaw: the other method available to secure affordable seniors housing is through a 
site specific zoning regulation.  The Local Government Act does allow a zoning bylaw to 
designate an area for affordable or special needs housing, however it must be done with 
consent from the property owners. 

 
The applicants have received pre-development financing from CMHC (Canadian Mortgage and 
Housing Corporation).  Mortgage insurance through CMHC is necessary to obtain the lowest 
rate of financing from lenders for project financing.  CMHC has advised the applicants that 
mortgage insurance would not be available if there are covenants on Title related to 
affordability, or zoning on the property that restricts the use to affordable housing.  Not having 
CMHC mortgage insurance may result in the project not receiving the lowest rate of financing 
available.  Staff have confirmed this matter through a conversation with a CMHC 
representatives.  CMHC’s concern is that should the property owner default on the mortgage, 
the restriction to affordable housing would impact the market value of the property.  
 
With this particular proposal the applicants have advised us the difference between insured or 
non-insured mortgage financing is a full percentage point.  On a project of this size the ability to 
obtain a CMHC insured mortgage would result in significant cost savings, which would 
ultimately be reflected in a monthly rental rate reduction for tenants of approximately $100 per 
month.   
 
Due to the financial impacts of not obtaining CMHC mortgage insurance for the project the 
applicants prefer not to register an affordability covenant, and for the same reason they do not 
consent to a site specific zoning regulation. 
 
The impact of not securing the project as affordable seniors housing imposes a risk that the 
development could become market housing in the future without requiring Council approval.   
When considering the level of risk that the project would be converted to market housing the 
following factors can be considered:  
 The applicants have a 40+ year track record of providing affordable seniors housing and 

they have clearly stated their intent to continue providing affordable seniors housing on a 
long term basis; 

 The development would remain as rental housing unless Council approval was granted to 
strata title the property in the future; and  

 The Development Permit drawings would control the form and character of what could be 
built on site, with any changes requiring Council approval. 

 
Given the above considerations and the potential cost savings that would be directed to 
maintaining rental rates as low as possible, staff are not recommending a covenant or restricting 
affordability through zoning as part of this project.   
 
Site and Building Design 
Prior to determining their redevelopment plan, the applicants undertook various surveys and 
studies to confirm the existing building condition, market demands, and the financial feasibility of 
the project.  
   
Redevelopment of the site has been designed to work around retaining the existing building and 
units until the new building is constructed, which allows the current tenants to remain in their 
homes.  Phase one would be constructed on the portion of the site that is primarily an open 

94



space with some garden plots.  The garden plots would be expanded and relocated elsewhere 
on the site.   
 
The proposed building has an L-shape configuration with the two wings parallel to the north and 
east property lines creating a south-west facing central courtyard that would be designed as a 
formal garden to serve as a common outdoor amenity area. 
 
Balconies are proposed for the south and west facing elevations overlooking the central garden 
area, but not on the north and east elevations.  The option of including balconies on all 
elevations was discussed with the applicants, however the applicants prefer not to construct 
balconies on the north and east elevations for the following reasons: 
 Seniors tend to be more sensitive to wind, cooler temperatures and drafts; 
 Balconies on the north and east elevations would not receive the same solar exposure as 

the south and west elevations would and therefore be cooler, darker areas less likely to be 
used for active living and could be prone to use as storage areas; 

 In addition to receiving more solar exposure, the west and south elevations also overlook 
the common courtyard area providing more opportunity for social interactions with other 
residents; 

 Excluding balconies on the north and east elevations also mitigates privacy concerns for 
adjacent properties; and  

 The overall development has also been designed to encourage socialization between 
tenants and discourage seniors to remain isolated within their dwelling unit, therefore 
residents would be encouraged to use the common outdoor living areas proposed.   

 
To encourage socialization the proposed development would include the following amenities: 
 A walking trail throughout the site which provides connectivity to various outdoor features 

and seating areas, as well as connecting to a scooter storage area (33m2);  
 An entry plaza (195m2) at the main entrance to the proposed building in the southeast 

corner.  The entry plaza is adjacent to the main lobby and interior waiting area (48m2) and a 
passenger drop-off/loading zone designed to accommodate handyDART services; 

 A central formal garden (785m2) bounded by the two wings of the proposed building which 
also connects to a central lounge area; 

 A central lounge area (126m2) which would include a multi-purpose/Chapel room; 
 A landscaped rain garden area that would include an outdoor seating area and be adjacent 

to an outdoor terrace connected to an interior sun room/family dining area (32m2); 
 Central lounges are also proposed on the second and third floor (each 67m2) with a laundry 

room/gathering area (18m2) on the second floor and exercise room (18m2) on the third floor; 
 A common fenced gardening area that would provide for 70 raised garden plots and a 

garden shed; 
 A gazebo that would provide for an outdoor smoking area; and 
 The new aviary noted above would also be located adjacent to the walking trail.  

 
The exterior finishes for the proposed building include a combination of light grey stucco, two 
colours of brown-toned cement board siding, light grey cement board panel and trim as window 
accents, and weathered zinc for roof canopies above balconies, projections over main living 
area windows, and the canopies above the main entrance and common terraces.  
 

95



 
Figure 5:  Southeast Elevation Looking at Main Entry Area – Note East Elevation without 

Balconies (Provided by Number Ten Architectural Group) 

 

 
Figure 6:  Partial West Elevation Looking into Central Courtyard - Note South and West Elevations 

with Balconies (Provided by Number Ten Architectural Group) 

96



 

Figure 7:  Neighbourhood Context – Looking Northwest (Provided by Number Ten Architectural Group) 
 

Figure 8:  Neighbourhood Context – Looking Northeast (Provided by Number Ten Architectural Group) 

 

97



 

Figure 9:  Streetscape at Phase 2 Build Out– Looking Northwest (Provided by Number Ten Architectural 

Group) 

 
The applicants provided a shadow study to determine the impacts of a three-storey building on 
the adjacent single family dwellings (see Figure 10).  Although the additon of a three-storey 
building in this location would be a change for neighbouring properties, the potential impacts 
from overshadowing are mitigated by a rear yard setback of 12 m and limiting the proposed 
building to three levels.  A comparison between the zone regulations and proposed 
development is summarized Table 2 below.  
 

 RA-1 (Current Zone) RA-3 (Proposed Zone) Proposed Building 
Rear Setback 10.5 m 12.0 m 12.0 m 
Height 7.5 m 11.5 m 10.1 m 
Levels n/a 5 with only 4 habitable 

above grade 
3 levels 

Table 2: Comparison of Current and Proposed Zone 
 
Height and Density 
A number of public submissions expressing concern about the proposal have indicated they 
would support a two-storey building.  The applicants have considered this option and 
determined that a two-storey building would not be financially sustainable for them nor provide a 
sufficient number of dwelling units to fulfill their mandate.  
 
To demonstrate visual impact of the proposal the applicants completed a view impact 
assessment from Bel Nor Place and Hopesmore Drive to show the extent that the proposed 
building would be visible.  The view angles were taken 5 ft above the road level as shown on 
Figure 11. 
 

98



 
3 

pm
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  N
oo

n 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9 

am
 

   
 June - Solstice September/March - Equinox December - Solstice 
Figure 10: Shadow Study of Proposed Building (Provided by Number Ten Architectural Group) 

99



 
From Bel Nor Place at Phase 1  (Dark Grey represents Phase 1 building) 

 
From Bel Nor Place at Phase 2 (Blue represents Phase 2 building) 

 
From Hopesmore Drive at Phase 1 (Dark Grey represents Phase 1 building) 

 
From Hopesmore Drive at Phase 2 (Dark Grey represents Phase 1 building – Phase 2 not 
visible) 

Figure 11: Visual Impact from Adjacent Streets 

100



Requested Variances 
The proposal includes the following variances: 
 To increase the maximum horizontal building width to 63.1 m (55 m permitted);  
 To reduce the building separation requirements on the same building to 1.5 m and between 

buildings of 11.5 m (12 m required); and 
 To reduce the required number of visitor parking spaces from 54 to 7, or to 0.038 spaces 

per dwelling unit from the required 0.3 spaces per dwelling unit. 
 
Horizontal Building Width: 
The maximum building width is intended to avoid creating large blank walls and to soften a 
building’s mass, which can be particularly important when the minimum setbacks are applied.  
 
The proposed building width would be 63.1 m in the east-west direction and 58.5 m in the north-
south direction (maximum of 55 m permitted).  Articulations along the relevant building 
elevations and the mix of exterior materials softens the building mass.  Due to the size of the 
subject property the relevant building face would represent 68% of the lot width.  Given the 
above, the variance is supportable.  
 
Building Separation:  
Building separation requirements are intended to provide privacy and access to daylight through 
windows.  A variance to this regulation is required for two purposes, one to allow for windows 
within small alcoves between dwelling units within the same building, and another for the 
separation between the existing and proposed buildings.  Depending upon where the windows 
are located relative to the habitable rooms or outside walls of the building, the separation 
requirements are 12 m or 15 m.   
 
Within the alcoves the separation between opposing windows, or windows and the outside wall, 
is as close as 1.5 m.  The alcoves are located on the north and east elevations where balconies 
are not proposed, therefore including windows on all walls within the alcove would maximize 
natural lighting.  The subject windows are not the main window in the living area, nor would the 
offending sightline extend any distance into the main living area.   
 
Between buildings the separation is 11.5 m to the outside corner of the existing building.  The 
end of the existing building has no windows or openings to habitable rooms and the area 
between buildings would be developed with trees and the common formal garden.  When Phase 
two proceeds the variance would no longer be applicable.  Given the above, the variances are 
supportable.  
 
Visitor Parking: 
The applicants had a parking study undertaken to determine the appropriate amount of parking 
required.  The study determined the rate of vehicle ownership for the subject site at 0.41 
vehicles per unit, which is consistent with ownership rates in eight similar housing developments 
in the region.  The report noted that more vehicles were parking in resident parking spaces than 
the number of vehicles owned by on-site residents.  The parking study indicates that peak 
parking demand rates for residents is 0.4875 per unit and 0.0375 per unit for visitors.  The 
amount of total parking spaces proposed is based on the Zoning Bylaw requirements of 0.5 per 
unit, which captures both resident and visitor parking.   
 
The Zoning Bylaw requirement for parking is based on a non-profit senior’s housing 
development, which is 0.5 parking spaces per dwelling unit.  However, as a multi-family 
development the proportion of visitor parking is 0.3 spaces per dwelling unit of the total number 
of required spaces.  This results in a disproportionate amount of visitor parking spaces, or that 

101



60% of the total required parking be designated for visitors.  The parking study provided 
recommends 7 visitor and 88 resident parking spaces be provided.  Based on the parking study 
a variance to reduce the total number of visitor parking spaces to 7 is requested, or 0.038 per 
dwelling unit compared to the required 0.3 per unit.  Given the above, the variance is 
supportable.   
    
Environment 
Stormwater management includes rain gardens, permeable pavers and underground detention 
chambers.  The rain garden and detention chambers would be constructed with impervious 
liners to prevent influence from, or additional runoff to, the groundwater system.  Permeable 
pavers in the parking spaces would also receive runoff from a hard surface drive aisle.  With 
both systems, overflow resulting from an extreme event would be directed to the municipal drain 
system with oil interceptors included with the parking drainage system.  
 
The applicants have committed that construction would meet, or be equivalent to, BUILT 
GREEN® Silver, although they would attempt to achieve a Gold performance level when 
working through final details at the Building Permit stage.  BUILT GREEN® Silver is comparable 
to the improved BC Building Code energy efficiency standards, therefore a covenant is not 
recommended to secure this commitment.  
 
Road Infrastructure and Traffic 
A number of residents in the area have submitted comments for Council’s consideration, 
including concerns about the existing condition of Arrow Road and potential traffic impacts.  
Arrow Road currently has a line painted, asphalt shoulder on the north side.  Due to the vertical 
curvature in the roadway a “Limited Sight Distance” sign and speed advisory sign of 20 km/h are 
posted.   
 
The servicing requirements for the proposed development will require a separated 2 m wide 
sidewalk as part of the improvements along the subject frontage which is approximately 81.5 m 
in length.  However, the concerns raised pertain to Arrow Road more generally and particularly 
that portion of Arrow Road between the site and Cedar Hill Road.  The road length from the 
eastern edge of the property to Cedar Hill Road is approximately 200 m in length.   
 
With respect to the condition of Arrow Road, Engineering have provided the following input.  
 Arrow Road is classified as a Residential Road, which typically do not have sidewalks. 
 Arrow Road currently has a line painted, asphalt shoulder on the north side. 
 The priority for sidewalk improvements initiated by the District are determined by the 

Pedestrian Priorities Implementation Plan (PPIP) and are broadly based on Pedestrian 
Safety and Demand. The PPIP was last updated in 2012.  

 Arrow Road has not been identified as a priority improvement in the PPIP.  
 Improvements to Arrow Road have not been identified in the Engineering 5-year Capital 

Works Program so road improvements would only be anticipated through the development 
application process.  

 
Engineering projects are prioritized based on objective criteria and implemented through the 5-
year Capital Works Program, which is reviewed annually.  Engineering has reviewed the section 
of Arrow Road between the proposed development and Cedar Hill Road against the other 
sidewalk needs of the Municipality.  Although this location has several merits for a new 
sidewalk, it does not rank high in priority when compared to other missing sidewalk locations 
throughout the municipality.  New sidewalks are prioritized based on proximity to “Centres” and 
“Villages”, schools, hospitals, parks, and transit.  Other considerations include traffic volumes 
and speed, sidewalk connectivity, and whether a location is already identified in a community 

102



plan.  This location will be kept on the missing sidewalk list but given current priorities, it does 
not fall within the 5-year transportation capital plan. 
 
The applicants had a traffic review undertaken to address concerns raised by the 
neighbourhood regarding traffic impacts, pedestrian accommodation and safety.  The traffic 
review considered the current condition and anticipated impacts resulting from the proposed 
increased density at Phase one and Phase two.  The traffic review was conducted during the 
time frame that is typically the busiest traffic period for residential roads.  
 
The study noted that traffic to/from the site contributes at most, 24% of Arrow Road traffic.  
Using the number of dwelling units the additional traffic loading to and from the site was 
calculated for both the western and eastern portions of Arrow Road.  With the addition of 100 
units at Phase one there would be a 2.3 times increase in traffic to/from the site, which equates 
to a 10% increase in peak hour traffic on the western portion and 20% increase on the eastern 
portion of Arrow Road.  That increase would equate to one additional vehicle trip every 6 min 40 
sec on average.   
 
With the additional 60 units at Phase two, the projection is a 15% increase in peak hour traffic 
on the western portion and 31% on the eastern portion.  That increase would equate to one 
additional vehicle trip every 4 min 17 sec on average.   
 
Overall the peak traffic hour along Arrow Road would increase from the existing 45 total 
vehicles, to 58 at Phase one, and 65 at Phase two.  The peak hour traffic is considered to be 
within the residential road limit of 100 total vehicles.  
 
The traffic review also noted that although the existing road does not meet the current road 
width specifications and does not provide a high degree of pedestrian comfort and safety, it is 
typical of many other residential roads throughout the District.  The option for residents to utilize 
the pathway through to Bel Nor Place provides a flatter, preferable pedestrian route.  One 
positive aspect of the limited sight lines and narrow roadway is that they inherently provide 
traffic calming.  
 
CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY 
 
Policy Context 
The Official Community Plan (OCP) adopted in 2008 highlights the importance of climate 
change and sustainability.  The OCP is broadly broken down into the pillars of sustainability 
including environmental integrity, social well-being and economic vibrancy.  Climate change is 
addressed under the environmental integrity section of the OCP and through Saanich’s Climate 
Action Plan.   
 
Climate change is generally addressed through mitigation strategies and adaptation strategies.  
Climate change mitigation strategies involve actions designed to reduce the emissions of 
greenhouse gases, primarily carbon dioxide from combustion, while climate change adaptation 
involves making adjustments and preparing for observed or expected climate change, to 
moderate harm and to take advantage of new opportunities.   
 
The following is a summary of the Climate Change and Sustainability features and issues 
related to the proposed development.   This section is not and cannot be an exhaustive list or 
examination of the issue.  However, this section is meant to highlight key issues for council and 
keep this subject matter at the forefront of council’s discussion. 
 

103



Climate Change 
This section includes the specific features of a proposal related to mitigation and adaptation 
strategies.  Considerations include: 1) Project location and site resilience, 2) Energy and the 
built environment, 3) Sustainable transportation, 4) Food security, and 5) Waste diversion.  
 
The proposed development includes the following features related to mitigation and adaptation:  
 The proposal is located at the edge of the University Major “Centre”. 
 The subject property is located approximately 250 m walking distance from public transit 

stops at Oakwinds Street and McKenzie Avenue, 325 m from stops at Hopesmore Drive and 
Cedar Hill Road, and 450 m from stops at McKenzie Avenue and Cedar Hill Drive.  

 The current level of public transit service in the area includes a total of four routes available 
on Cedar Hill Road at Hopesmore Drive (Rte #12), Oakwinds Street at McKenzie Avenue 
(Rte #17 and 26),  and Cedar Hill at McKenzie Avenue (Rte # 12, 17, 24,  26).  Buses travel 
along all four routes at an average of every 31 minutes during week days.  The average 
frequency of bus service at Oakwinds Street is approximately every 26 minutes and at 
Hopesmore Drive every 30 minutes.   

 The proposal includes a passenger drop-off/loading zone designed to accommodate 
handyDART services. 

 BC Transit’s response noted they would consider installing new, fully accessible bus stops 
on Cedar Hill Road at Arrow Road as a result of the increased transit service anticipated 
from the proposed development.   

 The proposal is an in-fill development that is able to use existing roads and infrastructure to 
service the development. 

 Sustainable development practices would be followed and the applicants have committed 
that construction would meet, or be equivalent to, BUILT GREEN® Silver, although they 
would attempt to achieve a Gold performance level when working through final details at the 
Building Permit stage.  Since BUILT GREEN® Silver is comparable to the improved BC 
Building Code a covenant is not recommended to secure this commitment.  

 The proposal enhances food security by including approximately 600 m2 of area allocated 
for 70 garden plots. 

 The construction company would designate a Waste Management Coordinator to oversee 
recycling procedures, documentation and proper handling of hazardous wastes.   

 
Sustainability 
Environmental Integrity  
This section includes the specific features of a proposal and how it impacts the natural 
environment.  Considerations include: 1) Land disturbance, 2) Nature conservation, and  
3) Protecting water resources.  
 
The proposed development includes the following features related to the natural environment: 
 The proposal is an infill development in an already urbanized area without putting pressures 

onto environmentally sensitive areas or undisturbed lands. 
 The proposal includes sustainable stormwater management practices by using a 

combination of rain gardens, permeable pavers, and underground detention chambers. 
 An erosion and sedimentation plan would be implemented during development. 
 Wood used in the construction would be certified by the Forest Stewardship Council.  
 
Social Well-being 

This section includes the specific features of a proposal and how it impacts the social well-being 
of our community.  Considerations include: 1) Housing diversity, 2) Human-scale pedestrian 
oriented developments, and 3) Community features. 

104



The proposed development includes the following features related to social well-being: 
 The proposed development would provide additional non-market housing for our low 

income, senior population, which is a recognized need for this sector of society.  
 The residential design incorporates a variety of outdoor areas for active use, seating and 

social interaction.  
 The proposal is designed to encourage physical activity and social interaction and includes 

409 m2 of indoor amenity space. 
 The proposed three-storey, L-shaped building includes three main areas where outdoor 

areas designed for active use are connected to, and form a human scale extension of, 
adjacent indoor common areas. 

 The site and dwelling units are designed to have barrier free access and be welcoming to 
people of all ages and physical ability and includes four fully accessible units that would be 
suitable for residents using wheelchairs.  

 The proposed development would create a human scale, pedestrian oriented development 
by including the range of outdoor features distributed throughout a relatively large 
development size, including a walking trail around the perimeter with a variety of seating 
areas.   

 The proposal would create a pedestrian friendly streetscape with a new separated sidewalk, 
which would be required as part of Phase one.  

 By constructing Phase one at the rear of the property and maintaining the existing building 
adjacent to the road the streetscape changes would occur more gradually over time.   

 A phased approach would allow both the positive and negative impacts of Phase one being 
taken into consideration during the design of Phase two.  

 
Economic Vibrancy 

This section includes the specific features of a proposal and how it impacts the economic 
vibrancy of our community.  Considerations include: 1) Employment, 2) Building local economy, 
and 3) Long-term resiliency.  

The proposed development includes the following features related to economic vibrancy: 
 The development would create short-term jobs during the construction period.   
 The owners are a Charitable Housing Society that have been managing and operating the 

existing site for the past 40 years and the property will be debt free this year.  
 The owners had an independent financial review to assess the estimated project costs, 

including ten-year projections, to confirm the project is economically feasible.  
 The owners have grant support from Vancity Community Foundations, secured pre-

development financing, and had their financial model approved in principle.  
 The overall project has been designed with the objective of cost containment in order to 

ensure rental rates remain as affordable as possible.  
 
COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION 
 
The proposed development is by nature a community contribution as it would provide affordable 
seniors rental housing.  When development proposals are supported because they would 
provide housing to a vulnerable sector of the community, such as low income seniors, usual 
practice is to recommend that it be secured by covenant.  Due to the financial impacts 
discussed above, staff are not recommending a covenant for this project. 
 
Over the long term, the development would remain as rental housing because Council approval 
would be required to strata title the property; however, the risk is that the development could 
become market rental with no age or income restrictions without requiring Council approval.   

105



CONSULTATION 
 
Applicant Consultation 
Prior to submitting an application the applicants held preliminary meetings with the Gordon 
Head Resident’s Association, current residents at Mount Douglas Housing Society, and with 
both residents and surrounding neighbours.  Subsequently, the applicants met with various 
neighbours individually to discuss specific issues that had been raised.  After submitting an 
application the applicants created a website to provide more information 
(www.anglicanfoundation.ca) and the website was included on the notice of development 
application sign posted on the property.  A meeting in September 2015 was held with the 
neighbours, current residents and directors of the Community Association to present the final 
design of the proposal as it would be presented to Council.   
 
The Gordon Head Resident’s Association (GHRA) has also played an active role, encouraging 
dialogue between concerned residents and the applicants to address specific concerns.  Due to 
continued input from residents, the GHRA hosted a meeting in early 2016 with a few directors of 
the GHRA, some select neighbours and the applicants.   The applicants have responded to any 
neighbours directly who have raised concerns with them throughout the process and provided 
additional information as required.   
 
Community Association 
The application was referred to the Gordon Head Resident’s Association (GHRA) who 
responded indicating no objections with additional comments summarized below. 
 Consultation:  The GHRA was glad to have been involved with early consultation and they 

encouraged the applicants to continue engaging with adjacent residents to address 
concerns and to provide contact information on the applicant’s website.  

 Arrow Road:  That upgrades should be considered to improve pedestrian/cycling safety and 
that the existing road and pedestrian shoulder are inadequate.   

 
Advisory Design Panel 
The application was considered by the Advisory Design Panel (ADP) at their September 2, 2015 
meeting.  The ADP recommended the proposal be accepted as presented with the applicants to 
consider the following suggestions:  
 Provide larger, fully accessible units in the southwest corner of each floor; 
 Redevelop the larger unit above the main entrance and repeat on each floor; 
 Better emphasize and identify the main entrance; and 
 Recess the elevators to provide more space for access and egress. 
 
In response to the ADP comments the applicants have provided the following:  
 The interior plans have been modified to provide four units that are fully accessible with two 

being bachelor and two being one-bedroom units;   
 The units above the entrance have been modified and the balconies have been pushed 

back from the end wall of the building and screened so their presence is reduced in order to 
have the main entry be more prominent (see Figure 12); 

 To enhance the main entrance into the building the proposed plans were revised to include 
one larger window beside the front doorway that would see into a common waiting area, the 
support columns for the entry canopy have been made larger in diameter with fewer of 
them, and the metal canopy was also increased in size and projected further (see Figure 
12); and 

 Consideration of revisions to improve access for the elevator will be considered at the 
building permit stage as no exterior changes would be required.  

 

106

http://www.anglicanfoundation.ca/


 
 
 

 
 

Main Entry Front View 
 
Note:  
Side balconies screened, 
Large window adjacent to 
doorway,  
Fewer but more prominent 
support columns 

 
 

Main Entry Aerial View 
 
Note: 
Enlarged, projected canopy, 
Fewer but more prominent 
support columns 

Figure 12: Revised Main Entrance (Provided by Number Ten Architectural Group) 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of the application is to rezone from RA-1 (Apartment Zone) to RA-3 (Apartment 
Zone) to construct one three-storey and one three/four-storey building for affordable seniors 
housing. The proposed development would occur in two phases.  
Phase one: construction of one three-storey, 100 unit building 
Phase two: construction of one three/four-storey, 140 unit building and demolition of the existing 
building.   
 
The proposed rezoning would allow the density for both phases with a total build-out of 240 
units, however, the Development Permit application is for Phase one only.  A future 
Development Permit Amendment application would be required for Phase two. Variances are 
requested for horizontal building width, building separation and the number of visitor parking 
spaces. 
 

107



DPR00614; REZ00559 - 25- February 18, 2016 

The 1.6 ha subject property is located approximately 300 m north-west of the McKenzie Avenue 
and Cedar Hill Road intersection at the edge of the University Major "Centre". The property is 
currently developed with a two-storey 80 unit, affordable senior's apartment that is owned and 
managed by the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society (MDSHS). All of the dwelling units 
are for rental purposes only and tenants are selected based on age and income restrictions. 

The proposal includes the following variances: 
• To increase the maximum horizontal building width to 63.1 m and 58.5 m (55 m permitted); 
• To reduce the building separation requirements on the same building to 1.5 m and between 

buildings of 11.5 m (12 m or 15 m required); and 
• To reduce the total number of visitors parking spaces to 7 (54 required) or 0.038 per 

dwelling unit (0.3 spaces per dwelling unit required) of the total required parking. 

Given the size of the property and the proposed use the variances are supportable. The 
proposed development fulfills a number of Official Community Plan objectives and is supported 
by staff. 

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the application to rezone from RA-1 (Apartment Zone) to RA-3 (Apartment Zone) be 
approved. 

2. That Development Permit DPR00614 be approved. 

Report prepared by: -=,)J!:.U~~...:r.=>AL,=,07""L_,:-,;e,-U_/a~~tcI:--_ _ ___________ _ 
j.(ndrea Pickard, Planner 

Report prepared by: 
et Matanowitsch, Manager of Current Planning 

Report reviewed by: 

APK/si 
H:\TEMPEST\PROSPERO\A n ACHMENTS\DPR\DPR00614\COUNCiLREPORT _1550ARROW .DOCX 

Attachment 

cc: Paul Thorkelsson, CAO 
Graham Barbour, Manager of Inspection Services 

ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS: 

I recommend that a Public H ring be called 

c,"'mJ ¥ Paul Th sson, CAD 

108

DPR00614; REZ00559 - 25- February 18, 2016 

The 1.6 ha subject property is located approximately 300 m north-west of the McKenzie Avenue 
and Cedar Hill Road intersection at the edge of the University Major "Centre". The property is 
currently developed with a two-storey 80 unit, affordable senior's apartment that is owned and 
managed by the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society (MDSHS). All of the dwelling units 
are for rental purposes only and tenants are selected based on age and income restrictions. 

The proposal includes the following variances: 
• To increase the maximum horizontal building width to 63.1 m and 58.5 m (55 m permitted); 
• To reduce the building separation requirements on the same building to 1.5 m and between 

buildings of 11.5 m (12 m or 15 m required); and 
• To reduce the total number of visitors parking spaces to 7 (54 required) or 0.038 per 

dwelling unit (0.3 spaces per dwelling unit required) of the total required parking. 

Given the size of the property and the proposed use the variances are supportable. The 
proposed development fulfills a number of Official Community Plan objectives and is supported 
by staff. 

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the application to rezone from RA-1 (Apartment Zone) to RA-3 (Apartment Zone) be 
approved. 

2. That Development Permit DPR00614 be approved. 

-;/' /) . 
Report prepared by: ?(.y;/CUL j 7../a!d 

'Kr?n~d7r~e=a~P~ic~k~a-rd7,~P~la-n-n-e-r---------------------------

Report prepared by: 
et Matanowitsch, Manager of Current Planning 

Report reviewed by: 

APKlsi 
H:\TEMPESnPROSPERO\A n ACHMENTS\DPR\DPR00614\COUNCiLREPORT _1550ARROW .DOC X 

Attachment 

cc: Paul Thorkelsson, CAO 
Graham Barbour, Manager of Inspection Services 

ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS: 

I recommend that a Public H ring be called 



DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 

TO: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society, Inc. No. S9640 
22-1550 Arrow Road 
Victoria BC V8N 1 C6 

(herein called "the Owner'') 

NO. DPR00614 

1. This Development Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the 
Municipality applicable thereto, except as specifically varied by this Permit. 

2. This Development Permit applies to the lands known and described as: 

Lot A, Section 56, Victoria District, Plan 23817 Except Part in Plan 27015 
1550 Arrow Road 

(herein called "the lands'') 

3. This Development Permit further regulates the development of the lands as follows: 

(a) By varying the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw 2003, Section 7.4 a) to permit the 
proportion of required Visitor Parking spaces to be reduced to 0.038 spaces per 
dwelling unit of the total required parking spaces for a total of 7 spaces (0.3 per 
dwelling unit or 54 spaces required). 

(b) By varying the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw 2003, Section 710.5 a) to permit from 
the centre of all windows in a living room of the same bUilding, a continuous 90 
degree horizontal arc with a radius of 1.7 m unencumbered by the same building 
(15 m required). 

(c) By varying the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw 2003, Section 710.5 c) to permit from 
the centre of a window to a wall or outside corner of the same building, a continuous 
90 degree horizontal arc with a radius of 1.5 m unencumbered by the same building 
(12 m required). 

(d) By varying the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw 2003, Section 710.5 c) to permit from 
the centre of a window to a wall or outside corner of another building, a continuous 
90 degree horizontal arc with a radius of 11.5 m unencumbered by the same building 
(12 m required). 

(e) By varying the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw 2003, Section 710.6 d) to permit a 
maximum horizontal building width of 63.1 m in the east to west direction and 58.5 m 
in the north to south direction (maximum 55 m). 

(f) By requiring the buildings and lands to be constructed and developed in accordance 
with the plans prepared by Number Ten Architectural Group., LADR Landscape 
Architects, and Westbrook Consulting, date stamped Received September 15, 2015, 
copies of which are attached to and form part of this permit. 

109

DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 

TO: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society, Inc. No. S9640 
22-1550 Arrow Road 
Victoria BC V8N 1 C6 

(herein called "the Owner") 

NO. DPR00614 

1. This Development Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the 
Municipality applicable thereto, except as specifically varied by this Permit. 

2. This Development Permit applies to the lands known and described as: 

Lot A, Section 56, Victoria District, Plan 23817 Except Part in Plan 27015 
1550 Arrow Road 

(herein called lithe lands") 

3. This Development Permit further regulates the development of the lands as follows: 

(a) By varying the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw 2003, Section 7.4 a) to permit the 
proportion of required Visitor Parking spaces to be reduced to 0.038 spaces per 
dwelling unit of the total required parking spaces for a total of 7 spaces (0.3 per 
dwelling unit or 54 spaces required). 

(b) By varying the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw 2003, Section 710.5 a) to permit from 
the centre of all windows in a living room of the same building, a continuous 90 
degree horizontal arc with a radius of 1.7 m unencumbered by the same building 
(15 m required). 

(c) By varying the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw 2003, Section 710.5 c) to permit from 
the centre of a window to a wall or outside corner of the same building, a continuous 
90 degree horizontal arc with a radius of 1.5 m unencumbered by the same building 
(12 m required). 

(d) By varying the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw 2003, Section 710.5 c) to permit from 
the centre of a window to a wall or outside corner of another building, a continuous 
90 degree horizontal arc with a radius of 11.5 m unencumbered by the same building 
(12 m required). 

(e) By varying the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw 2003, Section 710.6 d) to permit a 
maximum horizontal building width of 63.1 m in the east to west direction and 58.5 m 
in the north to south direction (maximum 55 m). 

(f) By requiring the buildings and lands to be constructed and developed in accordance 
with the plans prepared by Number Ten Architectural Group., LADR Landscape 
Architects, and Westbrook Consulting, date stamped Received September 15, 2015, 
copies of which are attached to and form part of this permit. 



DPR00614 - 2 -

4. The Owner shall substantially start the development within 24 months from the date of 
issuance of the Permit, in default of which the Municipality may at its option upon 10 days 
prior written notice to the Owner terminate this Permit and the Permit shall be null and void 
and of no further force or effect. 

5. Notwithstanding Clause 4, construction of driveways and parking areas, and delineation of 
parking spaces shall be completed prior to the issuance of an Occupancy Permit. 

6. (a) Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the Owner shall provide to the Municipality 
security by cash, certified cheque, or an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of 
$166,915.44 to guarantee the performance of the requirements of this Permit 
respecting landscaping. 

(b) A Landscape Architect registered with the British Columbia Society of Landscape 
Architects must be retained for the duration of the project until the landscaping 
security has been released. Written letters of assurance must be provided at 
appropriate intervals declaring the registered Landscape Architect, assuring that the 
landscape work is done in accordance with the approved landscape plan, and 
indicating a final site inspection confirming substantial compliance with the approved 
landscape plan (BCSLA Schedules L-1, L-2 and L-3). 

(c) All landscaping must be served by an automatic underground irrigation system. 

(d) The owner must obtain from the contractor a minimum one-year warranty on 
landscaping works, and the warranty must be transferable to subsequent owners of 
the property within the warranty period. The warranty must include provision for a 
further one-year warranty on materials planted to replace failed plant materials. 

(e) Any protective fencing of trees or covenant areas must be constructed, installed and 
signed according to the specifications in Appendix X. 

(f) No site activity shall take place prior to the installation of any required tree of 
covenant fencing and the posting of 'WARNING - Habitat Protection Area" signs. 
The applicant must submit to the Planning Department a photograph(s) showing the 
installed fencing and signs. Damage to, or moving of, any protective fencing will 
result in an immediate stop work order and constitute a $1,000 penalty. 

(g) The landscaping requirements of this Permit shall be completed within four months 
of the date of issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for the development, in 
default of which the Municipality may enter upon the lands, through its employees or 
agents, and complete, correct or repair the landscaping works at the cost of the 
Owner and may apply the security, interest at the rate payable by the Municipality for 
prepaid taxes. 

(h) In the event that any tree identified for retention is destroyed, removed or fatally 
injured, a replacement tree shall be planted in the same location by the Owner in 
accordance with the replacement guidelines as specified within the Saanich Tree 
and Vegetation Retention, Relocation and Replacement Guidelines. The 
replacement tree shall be planted within 30 days of notice from the Municipality in 
default of which the Municipality may enter upon the lands and carry out the works 
and may apply the security provided herein in payment of the cost of the works. For 
the purpose of this section, existing trees identified for retention and new trees 
planted in accordance with the landscape plan attached to and forming part of this 
permit shall be deemed to be "trees to be retained". 

110

DPR00614 - 2 -

4. The Owner shall substantially start the development within 24 months from the date of 
issuance of the Permit, in default of which the Municipality may at its option upon 10 days 
prior written notice to the Owner terminate this Permit and the Permit shall be null and void 
and of no further force or effect. 

5. Notwithstanding Clause 4, construction of driveways and parking areas, and delineation of 
parking spaces shall be completed prior to the issuance of an Occupancy Permit. 

6. (a) Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the Owner shall provide to the Municipality 
security by cash, certified cheque, or an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of 
$166,915.44 to guarantee the performance of the requirements of this Permit 
respecting landscaping. 

(b) A Landscape Architect registered with the British Columbia Society of Landscape 
Architects must be retained for the duration of the project until the landscaping 
security has been released. Written letters of assurance must be provided at 
appropriate intervals declaring the registered Landscape Architect, assuring that the 
landscape work is done in accordance with the approved landscape plan, and 
indicating a final site inspection confirming substantial compliance with the approved 
landscape plan (BCSLA Schedules L-1, L-2 and L-3). 

(c) All landscaping must be served by an automatic underground irrigation system. 

(d) The owner must obtain from the contractor a minimum one-year warranty on 
landscaping works, and the warranty must be transferable to subsequent owners of 
the property within the warranty period. The warranty must include provision for a 
further one-year warranty on materials planted to replace failed plant materials. 

(e) Any protective fencing of trees or covenant areas must be constructed, installed and 
signed according to the specifications in Appendix X. 

(f) No site activity shall take place prior to the installation of any required tree of 
covenant fencing and the posting of 'WARNING - Habitat Protection Area" signs. 
The applicant must submit to the Planning Department a photograph(s) showing the 
installed fencing and signs. Damage to, or moving of, any protective fencing will 
result in an immediate stop work order and constitute a $1,000 penalty. 

(g) The landscaping requirements of this Permit shall be completed within four months 
of the date of issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for the development, in 
default of which the Municipality may enter upon the lands, through its employees or 
agents, and complete, correct or repair the landscaping works at the cost of the 
Owner and may apply the security, interest at the rate payable by the Municipality for 
prepaid taxes. 

(h) In the event that any tree identified for retention is destroyed, removed or fatally 
injured, a replacement tree shall be planted in the same location by the Owner in 
accordance with the replacement guidelines as specified within the Saanich Tree 
and Vegetation Retention, Relocation and Replacement Guidelines. The 
replacement tree shall be planted within 30 days of notice from the Municipality in 
default of which the Municipality may enter upon the lands and carry out the works 
and may apply the security provided herein in payment of the cost of the works. For 
the purpose of this section, existing trees identified for retention and new trees 
planted in accordance with the landscape plan attached to and forming part of this 
permit shall be deemed to be "trees to be retained". 



DPR00614 - 3 -

7. The lands shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 
provisions of this Permit and shall comply with all Municipal bylaws except for those 
provisions specifically varied herein. Minor variations which do not affect the overall 
building and landscape design and appearance may be permitted by the Director of 
Planning or in her absence, the Manager of Current Planning. 

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7 of this Permit the following changes will be 
permitted and not require an amendment to this Permit: 

(a) When the height or siting of a building or structure is varied 20 cm or less provided, 
however, that this variance will not exceed the maximum height or siting 
requirements of the Zoning Bylaw. 

(b) Changes to the relative location and size of doors and windows on any fagade which 
do not alter the general character of the design or impact the privacy of neighbouring 
properties following consultation with the Director of Planning, or Manager of 
Current Planning in her absence. 

(c) Where items noted under Section 8(b) are required to comply with the Building 
Code and/or the Fire Code and those changes are not perceptible from a road or 
adjacent property. 

(d) Changes to soft landscaping provided the changes meet or exceed the standards 
contained on the landscape plans forming part of this Permit. 

9. The terms and conditions contained in this Permit shall enure to the benefit of and be 
binding upon the Owner, their executors, heirs and administrators, successors and 
assigns as the case may be or their successors in title to the land. 

10. This Permit is not a Building Permit. 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL ON THE 

DAY OF ------- _____ 20 

ISSUED THIS DAY OF ------
_____ 20 

Municipal Clerk 

111

DPR00614 - 3 -

7. The lands shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 
provisions of this Permit and shall comply with all Municipal bylaws except for those 
provisions specifically varied herein. Minor variations which do not affect the overall 
building and landscape design and appearance may be permitted by the Director of 
Planning or in her absence, the Manager of Current Planning. 

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7 of this Permit the following changes will be 
permitted and not require an amendment to this Permit: 

(a) When the height or siting of a building or structure is varied 20 cm or less provided, 
however, that this variance will not exceed the maximum height or siting 
requirements of the Zoning Bylaw. 

(b) Changes to the relative location and size of doors and windows on any fagade which 
do not alter the general character of the design or impact the privacy of neighbouring 
properties following consultation with the Director of Planning, or Manager of 
Current Planning in her absence. 

(c) Where items noted under Section 8(b) are required to comply with the Building 
Code and/or the Fire Code and those changes are not perceptible from a road or 
adjacent property. 

(d) Changes to soft landscaping provided the changes meet or exceed the standards 
contained on the landscape plans forming part of this Permit. 

9. The terms and conditions contained in this Permit shall enure to the benefit of and be 
binding upon the Owner, their executors, heirs and administrators, successors and 
assigns as the case may be or their successors in title to the land. 

10. This Permit is not a Building Permit. 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL ON THE 

DAY OF ------- _____ 20 

ISSUED THIS DAY OF ------ _____ 20 

Municipal Clerk 



DPR00614 - 4-

APPENDIX X 

PROTECTIVE FENCING FOR TREES AND COVENANT AREAS 

Protective fencing around trees and covenant areas is an important requirement in eliminating 
or minimizing damage to habitat in a development site. 

Prior to any activities taking place on a development site, the applicant must submit a photo 
showing installed fencing and 'WARNING - Habitat Protection Area" signs to the Planning 
Department. 

Specifications: 
• Must be constructed using 2" by 4" wood framing and supports, or modular metal fencing 
• Robust and solidly staked in the ground 
• Snow fencing to be affixed to the frame using zip-ties or galvanized staples 
• Must have a 'WARNING - HABITAT PROTECTION AREA" sign affixed on every fence face 

or at least every 10 linear metres 

o Damage to, or moving of, protective 
.1 g will result in a stop work order and a 

o penalty. 

112

DPR00614 - 4-

APPENDIX X 

PROTECTIVE FENCING FOR TREES AND COVENANT AREAS 

Protective fencing around trees and covenant areas is an important requirement in eliminating 
or minimizing damage to habitat in a development site. 

Prior to any activities taking place on a development site, the applicant must submit a photo 
showing installed fencing and 'WARNING - Habitat Protection Area" signs to the Planning 
Department. 

Specifications: 
• Must be constructed using 2" by 4" wood framing and supports, or modular metal fencing 
• Robust and solidly staked in the ground 
• Snow fencing to be affixed to the frame using zip-ties or galvanized staples 
• Must have a 'WARNING - HABITAT PROTECTION AREA" sign affixed on every fence face 

or at least every 10 linear metres 

a Damage to, or moving of, protective 
g will result in a stop work order and a 
o penalty. 



DPR00614 - 5 -

2.4M MAXIMUM SPAN 

38 x89 mm BOTTOM RAIL 
38 x 89mm POST ----<-----~ 

'---- TIES OR STAPLES TO SECURE MESH 

L 

TREE PROTECTION FENCING 

NOTES: 

1. FENCE WILL BE CONSTRUCTED USING 38 X 89 mm (2"X4") WOOD FRAME: 
TOP, BOTTOM AND POSTS. * 
USE ORANGE SNOW-FENCING MESH AND SECURE TO THE WOOD 
FRAME WITH "ZIP" TIES OR GALVANZIED STAPLES. 

2. ATTACH A 500mm x 500mm SIGN WITH THE FOLLOWING WORDING: 
WARNING·HABITAT PROTECTION AREA. THIS SIGN MUST BE AFFIXED 
ON EVERY FENCE FACE OR AT LEAST EVERY 10 LINEAR METRES. 

* IN ROCKY AREAS, METAL POSTS (T-BAR OR REBAR) DRILLED INTO ROCK 
WILL BE ACCEPTED 

DATE: Mart:h/08 

DRAWN: OM 
APP·D. RR 

DETAIL NAME: TREE PROTECTION FENCING 
SCALE: N.T.S. 

H:\shared\parks\Tree Protection Fencing.pdf 

113

DPR00614 - 5 -

2.4M MAXIMUM SPAN 

38 x89 mm BOTTOM RAIL 
38 x 89mm POST ----<-----~ 

'----- TIES OR STAPLES TO SECURE MESH 

TREE PROTECTION FENCING 

NOTES: 

1. FENCE WILL BE CONSTRUCTED USING 38 X 89 mm (2"X4") WOOD FRAME: 
TOP, BOTTOM AND POSTS. * 
USE ORANGE SNOW-FENCING MESH AND SECURE TO THE WOOD 
FRAME WITH "ZIP" TIES OR GALVANZIED STAPLES. 

2. ATTACH A 500mm x 500mm SIGN WITH THE FOLLOWING WORDING: 
WARNING-HABITAT PROTECTION AREA. THIS SIGN MUST BE AFFIXED 
ON EVERY FENCE FACE OR AT LEAST EVERY 10 LINEAR METRES. 

* IN ROCKY AREAS, METAL POSTS (T-BAR OR REBAR) DRILLED INTO ROCK 
WILL BE ACCEPTED 

DATE: MarchlO8 

DRAWN: DM 
APP·D. RR 

DETAIL NAME: TREE PROTECTION FENCING 
SCALE: N.T.S. 

H:\shared\parks\Tree Protection Fencing.pdf 



Memo 
To: Planning Department 

From: Jagtar Bains - Development Coordinator 

Date: August 10, 2015 

( 

~ 
~ 

ENGINEERING 

rm~©~OW!~fnI J 

AUG 1 0 2015 illJ 
PLANNING DEPT 

DISTRICT Of SAANicH 

Subject: Servicing Requirements for the Proposed Development· REVISED 

PROJECT: TO REZONE FROM RA-1 TO RA-3 TO CONSTRUCT TWO THREE 
STOREY BUILDINGS AND ONE FOUR STOREY BUILDING FOR 

SITE ADDRESS: 1550 ARROW RD 
PID: 003-146-626 
LEGAL: LOT A SECTION 56 VICTORIA LAND DISTRICT PLAN 
DEV. SERVICING FILE: SVS01947 
PROJECT NO: PRJ2015-00302 

The above noted application for rezoning & Development Permit has been circulated to the 
Engineering Department for comment. A list of servicing requirements has been attached on 
the following page(s). To allow Council to deal effectively with this application, we would 
appreciate confirmation, prior to the Public Hearing, that the applicant agrees to complete the 
servicing requirements. Should there be any disagreement with any of these requirements, it 
should be discussed with the undersigned prior to the Public Hearing. 

Jagtar Bains 
DEVELOPMENT COORD I NATOR 

cc: David Sparanese, MANAGER OF TRANSPORTATION & DEVELOPMENT 

Generallnfonnation on Development Servicing 
Servicing requirements are stated at this time for the applicant's information. The requirements must be met prior to building 
permit issuance, including consolidation or subdivision, payments and/or deposits. 

Services which must be installed by a developer must be designed by a Professional Engineer hired by the developer and installed 
under the Engineer's supervision. The design must be approved prior to building permit issuance. The approval process may take 
up to 30 working days of staff time to complete circulations and request revisions of the Engineer. Certain circumstances can 
lengthen the approval process. 

A Financial sheet is issued with the design drawing which will state: 
1) The estimated cost of developer installed servicing plus 20% which must be deposited 
2) The estimated cost of Municipal installed servicing which must be paid. 
3) The Development Cost Charges payable. 
4) Any special conditions which must be met. 

This information is not intended to be a complete guide to development procedures. A more complete listing may be found in 
Section 2 of the Engineering Specifications, Schedule H to Bylaw 7452 (Subdivision Bylaw). 

ENTERED 
IN CASE 

Page 1 of 1 
114

Memo 
To: Planning Department 

From: Jagtar Bains - Development Coordinator 

Date: August 10, 2015 

( 

~ 
~ 

ENGINEERING 

rm~©~UW!~fnI J 

AUG 1 0 2015 illJ 
PLANNING DEPT 

DISTRICT OF SAANicH 

Subject: Servicing Requirements for the Proposed Development- REVISED 

PROJECT: TO REZONE FROM RA-1 TO RA-3 TO CONSTRUCT TWO THREE 
STOREY BUILDINGS AND ONE FOUR STOREY BUILDING FOR 

SITE ADDRESS: 1550 ARROW RD 
PID: 003-146-626 
LEGAL: LOT A SECTION 56 VICTORIA LAND DISTRICT PLAN 
DEV. SERVICING FILE: SVS01947 
PROJECT NO: PRJ2015-00302 

The above noted application for rezoning & Development Permit has been circulated to the 
Engineering Department for comment. A list of servicing requirements has been attached on 
the following page(s). To allow Council to deal effectively with this application, we would 
appreciate confirmation, prior to the Public Hearing, that the applicant agrees to complete the 
servicing requirements. Should there be any disagreement with any of these requirements, it 
should be discussed with the undersigned prior to the Public Hearing. 

Jagtar Bains 
DEVELOPMENT COORD I NATOR 

cc: David Sparanese, MANAGER OF TRANSPORTATION & DEVELOPMENT 

Generallnfonnation on Development Servicing 
Servicing requirements are stated at this time for the applicant's information. The requirements must be met prior to building 
permit issuance, including consolidation or subdivision, payments and/or deposits. 

Services which must be installed by a developer must be designed by a Professional Engineer hired by the developer and installed 
under the Engineer's supervision. The design must be approved prior to building permit issuance. The approval process may take 
up to 30 working days of staff time to complete circulations and request revisions of the Engineer. Certain circumstances can 
lengthen the approval process. 

A Financial sheet is issued with the design drawing which will state: 
1) The estimated cost of developer installed servicing plus 20% which must be deposited 
2) The estimated cost of Municipal installed servicing which must be paid. 
3) The Development Cost Charges payable. 
4) Any special conditions which must be met. 

This information is not intended to be a complete guide to development procedures. A more complete listing may be found in 
Section 2 of the Engineering Specifications, Schedule H to Bylaw 7452 (Subdivision Bylaw). 

ENTERED 
IN CASE 

Page 1 of 1 



Develq lent Servicing Requiremen~ 

Development File: SVS01947 Date: Aug 10,2015 
Civic Address: 1550 ARROW RD 

Page: 1 

1. AN APPROPRIATELY SIZED STORM DRAIN CONNECTION IS REQUIRED TO SERVE THIS DEVELOPMENT FROM THE 
EXISTING 375 MM MAIN LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THIS PROPERTY. 

2. STORM WATER MANAGEMENT MUST BE PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SCHEDULE H 
"ENGINEERING SPECIFICATIONS" OF SUBDIVISION BY-LAW. THIS SUBDIVISION/DEVELOPMENT IS WITHIN TYPE II 
WATERSHED AREA WHICH REQUIRES STORM WATER STORAGE, OIUGRIT SEPARATOR OR GRASS SWALE AND 
SEDIMENT BASIN. FOR FURTHER DETAILS, REFER TO SECTION 3.5.16, STORM WATER MANAGEMENT AND EROSION 
CONTROL OF SCHEDULE H "ENGINEERING SPECIFICATIONS" OF SUBDIVISION BY-LAW. 

3. THE EXISTING SUBSTANDARD DRAIN ON ARROW ROAD, BETWEEN 375 MM MAIN AND THE SILT TRAP NEAR THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THIS PROPERTY, MUST BE UPGRADED PRIOR TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF ROAD 
IMPROVEMENTS. 

Gen 

1. THE BUILDING IS REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH THE 2012 BC BUILDING CODE AND MUNICIPAL BYLAWS. BUILDING AND 
PLUMBING PERMITS WILL BE REQUIRED FOR ALL WORKS. 

2. THIS PROPOSAL IS SUBJECT TO THE PREVAILING MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT COST CHARGES. 

3. TWO COPIES OF CONSTRUCTION FIRE SAFETY PLAN, PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE 
BC BUILDING CODE ARE TO BE SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW/COMMENT TO THE SAANICH FIRE DEPARTMENT ALONG WITH A 
FEE OF $100.00 PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF THE BUILDING PERMIT. 

4. ALL RELEVANT PRECAUTIONS IN PART 8 OF THE BC BUILDING CODE "SAFETY MEASURES AT CONSTRUCTION AND 
DEMOLITION SITES" MUST BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF THE BUILDING PERMIT. 

Hydro/tel 

1. UNDERGROUND WIRING SERVICE CONNECTION IS REQUIRED TO SERVE THIS DEVELOPMENT. 

Road 

1. THE CORPORATION WISHES TO ACQUIRE 1.55 M WIDE PROPERTY DEDICATION FOR ROAD ALLOWANCE ALONG THE 
ENTIRE FRONTAGE OF THIS PROPERTY ON ARROW ROAD. 

2. ARROW ROAD, FRONTING THIS PROPOSAL, MUST BE WIDENED TO 8.5 M RESIDENTIAL MUNICIPAL STANDARDS 
COMPLETE WITH NON-MOUNTABLE CONCRETE CURB, GUTTER AND SEPARATED 2.0 M WIDE SIDEWALK. 

Sewer 

1. AN APPROPRIATELY SIZED SEWER CONNECTION IS REQUIRED FROM THE EXISTING MANHOLE LOCATED AT THE 
REAR OF 3998 BEL NOR PLACE TO SERVE PHASE 1. PHASE 2 MUST BE CONNECTED TO THE EXISTING SEWER SYSTEM 
ON ARROW ROAD. 

2. SANITARY SEWER LOADING CALCULATIONS ARE REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT FROM A CONSULTING ENGINEER, 
BASED ON THE CURRENT B.C. BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS, TO DETERMINE WHETHER THE EXISTING SYSTEM CAN 
PROVIDE THE REQUIRED FLOW OR UPGRADING IS REQUIRED. 

Water 

\\lempestfs\Tempesl_App\Tempesl\prod\INHOUSE\CDIHOO 
2.QRP 

DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

115

Develq lent Servicing Requirement 

Development File: SVS01947 Date: Aug 10, 2015 
Civic Address: 1550 ARROW RD 

Page: 1 

1. AN APPROPRIATELY SIZED STORM DRAIN CONNECTION IS REQUIRED TO SERVE THIS DEVELOPMENT FROM THE 
EXISTING 375 MM MAIN LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THIS PROPERTY. 

2. STORM WATER MANAGEMENT MUST BE PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SCHEDULE H 
"ENGINEERING SPECIFICATIONS" OF SUBDIVISION BY-LAW. THIS SUBDIVISION/DEVELOPMENT IS WITHIN TYPE II 
WATERSHED AREA WHICH REQUIRES STORM WATER STORAGE, OIUGRIT SEPARATOR OR GRASS SWALE AND 
SEDIMENT BASIN. FOR FURTHER DETAILS, REFER TO SECTION 3.5.16, STORM WATER MANAGEMENT AND EROSION 
CONTROL OF SCHEDULE H "ENGINEERING SPECIFICATIONS" OF SUBDIVISION BY-LAW. 

3. THE EXISTING SUBSTANDARD DRAIN ON ARROW ROAD, BETWEEN 375 MM MAIN AND THE SILT TRAP NEAR THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THIS PROPERTY, MUST BE UPGRADED PRIOR TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF ROAD 
IMPROVEMENTS. 

Gen 

1. THE BUILDING IS REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH THE 2012 BC BUILDING CODE AND MUNICIPAL BYLAWS. BUILDING AND 
PLUMBING PERMITS WILL BE REQUIRED FOR ALL WORKS. 

2. THIS PROPOSAL IS SUBJECT TO THE PREVAILING MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT COST CHARGES. 

3. TWO COPIES OF CONSTRUCTION FIRE SAFETY PLAN, PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE 
BC BUILDING CODE ARE TO BE SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW/COMMENT TO THE SAANICH FIRE DEPARTMENT ALONG WITH A 
FEE OF $100.00 PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF THE BUILDING PERMIT. 

4. ALL RELEVANT PRECAUTIONS IN PART 8 OF THE BC BUILDING CODE "SAFETY MEASURES AT CONSTRUCTION AND 
DEMOLITION SITES" MUST BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF THE BUILDING PERMIT. 

Hydro/tel 

1. UNDERGROUND WIRING SERVICE CONNECTION IS REQUIRED TO SERVE THIS DEVELOPMENT. 

Road 

1. THE CORPORATION WISHES TO ACQUIRE 1.55 M WIDE PROPERTY DEDICATION FOR ROAD ALLOWANCE ALONG THE 
ENTIRE FRONTAGE OF THIS PROPERTY ON ARROW ROAD. 

2. ARROW ROAD, FRONTING THIS PROPOSAL, MUST BE WIDENED TO 8.5 M RESIDENTIAL MUNICIPAL STANDARDS 
COMPLETE WITH NON-MOUNTABLE CONCRETE CURB, GUTTER AND SEPARATED 2.0 M WIDE SIDEWALK. 

Sewer 

1. AN APPROPRIATELY SIZED SEWER CONNECTION IS REQUIRED FROM THE EXISTING MANHOLE LOCATED AT THE 
REAR OF 3998 BEL NOR PLACE TO SERVE PHASE 1. PHASE 2 MUST BE CONNECTED TO THE EXISTING SEWER SYSTEM 
ON ARROW ROAD. 

2. SANITARY SEWER LOADING CALCULATIONS ARE REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT FROM A CONSULTING ENGINEER, 
BASED ON THE CURRENT B.C. BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS, TO DETERMINE WHETHER THE EXISTING SYSTEM CAN 
PROVIDE THE REQUIRED FLOW OR UPGRADING IS REQUIRED. 

Water 

\\lempestfs\Tempesl_App\Tempesl\prod\INHOUSE\CDIHOO 
2QRP 

DISTRICT OF SAANICH 



Develc lent Servicing Requiremenf 

Development File: SVS01947 Date: Aug 10, 2015 
Civic Address: 1550 ARROW RD 

Page: 2 

1. FIRE FLOW REQUIREMENT CALCULATIONS FOR THIS PROJECT MUST BE SUBMITTED BY THE CONSULTING ENGINEER 
BASED ON FIRE UNDERWRITERS SURVEY TO ALLOW THE MUNICIPALITY TO DETERMINE WHETHER THE EXISTING 
WATER SYSTEM CAN PROVIDE THE REQUIRED FLOW OR UPGRADING IS REQUIRED. 

2. A PUMPER CONNECTION FOR THE FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT A LOCATION ACCEPTABLE TO 
THE FIRE DEPARTMENT AND WITHIN 45 M OF A FIRE HYDRANT. THIS PUMPER CONNECTION IS TO BE FREE-STANDING 
AND OUTSIDE OF COLLAPSE ZONE OF THE BUILDING. 

3. WATER METER SIZING CALCULATIONS MUST BE COMPLETED AS PER AWWA MANUAL M22 TO DETERMINE WHETHER 
THE EXISTING 75 MM SERVICE ON ARROW ROAD IS ADEQUATE TO SERVE PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2 OR UPGRADING IS 
REQUIRED. ONLY ONE FIRE LINE CONNECTION WILL BE PERMITTED. 

\\lempestfs\Tempesl_App\Tempesl\prod\INHOUSE\CDIHOO 
2.QRP 

DISTRICT OF SAANICH 
116

Develc lent Servicing Requiremenf 

Development File: SVS01947 Date: Aug 10, 2015 
Civic Address: 1550 ARROW RD 

Page: 2 

1. FIRE FLOW REQUIREMENT CALCULATIONS FOR THIS PROJECT MUST BE SUBMITTED BY THE CONSULTING ENGINEER 
BASED ON FIRE UNDERWRITERS SURVEY TO ALLOW THE MUNICIPALITY TO DETERMINE WHETHER THE EXISTING 
WATER SYSTEM CAN PROVIDE THE REQUIRED FLOW OR UPGRADING IS REQUIRED. 

2. A PUMPER CONNECTION FOR THE FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT A LOCATION ACCEPTABLE TO 
THE FIRE DEPARTMENT AND WITHIN 45 M OF A FIRE HYDRANT. THIS PUMPER CONNECTION IS TO BE FREE-STANDING 
AND OUTSIDE OF COLLAPSE ZONE OF THE BUILDING. 

3. WATER METER SIZING CALCULATIONS MUST BE COMPLETED AS PER AWWA MANUAL M22 TO DETERMINE WHETHER 
THE EXISTING 75 MM SERVICE ON ARROW ROAD IS ADEQUATE TO SERVE PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2 OR UPGRADING IS 
REQUIRED. ONLY ONE FIRE LINE CONNECTION WILL BE PERMITTED. 

\\lempestfs\Tempesl_App\Tempesl\prod\INHOUSE\CDIHOO 
2.QRP 

DISTRICT OF SAANICH 



o 0 0 

3955 
RT-1 

o 

o 50 100 150 

Meters 

o 00000 0 

RT-2 o 

o 0 0 03962 
RA-3 ° 

3960 -----~t&.I 
o 

o 0 

3958 
o 0 

o 0 

District of Saanich 

Planning Dept. 
June 8,2015 

117

o 50 100 

Meters 

P-4N ,,--. _ ____ .....L..-./ ~.-~.-.~-~-; ..... ~Q)_.'r'"_ 

o 0 0 

3955 
RT-1 

o 

150 

o 00000 0 

RT·2 o 

o 0 0 03962 
RA·3 ° 

3960 -----~.j.j 
o 

o 0 

3958 
o 0 

o 0 

District of Saanich 

Planning Dept. 
June 8,2015 



Built Green: Our Mission for Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society 

Our mission is to promote environmentally friendly building methods and practices, and 
to enhance our communities through leadership in sustainable development. After a 
preliminary review of the Built Green Checklist with the development team we feel we 
will be able to achieve a Silver rating (110 pts.). As the project progresses through the 
design process we are determined to target a Gold designation (125 pts.). 

Green Building 

Environmentally responsible and sustainable buildings are becoming increasingly 
integrated in building design, construction and operation, so that the end results are 
healthy, profitable and environmentally responsible places in which to live and work. 
Ledcor Building Construction has adopted the Built Green and LEED (Leadership in 
Energy and Environmental Design) philosophy's as the most universally accepted 
standards by which Ledcor's commitment to sound environmental and ecological 
practices can be measured. 

Built Green is a design and construction rating system intended to significantly reduce or 
eliminate the negative impacts of buildings on the environment and its occupants. It is a 
third party verification program that has become one of the most recognized systems for 
measuring the "green-ness" of a project. 

Each Built Green project is different; there are no fixed combinations. Each Region, 
each Project Site, each building type, each building program, and each Design Team 
will determine which of the optional Built Green Credits will be chosen to apply to a 
particular project. Furthermore, many Built Green Credits are interconnected and cross 
referenced. These Credits rarely stand alone and each building type, however, does 
tend to retarget similar Built Green Credits. For instance, office buildings will usually 
focus on a similar combination, but the geographic region, the building orientation, and 
the target market will vary the details. Shopping malls will likely focus on another 
predictable selection of credits but will differ in the details. 

Waste Management Plan Implementation: 

Ledcor will designate a Waste Management Coordinator who will instruct the 
Subcontractors on the application of the Waste Management Plan. The Waste 
Management Coordinator's responsibilities will include: 

• Ensuring Subcontractors maintain and document recycling procedures. 

• Ensuring that recycle and waste bin areas are maintained in an orderly manner 
and are clearly marked to avoid contamination by foreign or contaminating 
materials. 

• Ensuring Subcontractors segregate construction debris for reuse, recycling and 

salvage. I~~!~~~~~ 

118

Built Green: Our Mission for Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society 

Our mission is to promote environmentally friendly building methods and practices, and 
to enhance our communities through leadership in sustainable development. After a 
preliminary review of the Built Green Checklist with the development team we feel we 
will be able to achieve a Silver rating (110 pts.). As the project progresses through the 
design process we are determined to target a Gold designation (125 pts.). 

Green Building 

Environmentally responsible and sustainable buildings are becoming increasingly 
integrated in building design, construction and operation, so that the end results are 
healthy, profitable and environmentally responsible places in which to live and work. 
Ledcor Building Construction has adopted the Built Green and LEED (Leadership in 
Energy and Environmental Design) philosophy's as the most universally accepted 
standards by which Ledcor's commitment to sound environmental and ecological 
practices can be measured. 

Built Green is a design and construction rating system intended to significantly reduce or 
eliminate the negative impacts of buildings on the environment and its occupants. It is a 
third party verification program that has become one of the most recognized systems for 
measuring the "green-ness" of a project. 

Each Built Green project is different; there are no fixed combinations. Each Region, 
each Project Site, each building type, each building program, and each Design Team 
will determine which of the optional Built Green Credits will be chosen to apply to a 
particular project. Furthermore, many Built Green Credits are interconnected and cross 
referenced. These Credits rarely stand alone and each building type, however, does 
tend to retarget similar Built Green Credits. For instance, office buildings will usually 
focus on a similar combination, but the geographic region, the building orientation, and 
the target market will vary the details. Shopping malls will likely focus on another 
predictable selection of credits but will differ in the details. 

Waste Management Plan Implementation: 

Ledcor will designate a Waste Management Coordinator who will instruct the 
Subcontractors on the application of the Waste Management Plan. The Waste 
Management Coordinator's responsibilities will include: 

• Ensuring Subcontractors maintain and document recycling procedures. 

• Ensuring that recycle and waste bin areas are maintained in an orderly manner 
and are clearly marked to avoid contamination by foreign or contaminating 
materials. 

• Ensuring Subcontractors segregate construction debris for reuse, recycling and 

salvage. I~~!~~~~~ 



,~"" ~ 
~i!tc....... \~":-» _ 

• Verifying that Hazardous wastes are being separated, stored and disposed of in 
accordance with Regional and MOE Policies and EPA regulations. 

• Ensuring Subcontractors required by contract or by legislation to maintain their 
own containers on site are following the WMP and reporting their waste 
information accurately for the WMP ledger. 

• Conducting Waste Management meetings. All Subcontractors shall attend. The 
WMP will be discussed at the regular Subcontractor Progress Meetings, and 
adherence to the WMP reviewed . 

Erosion and sedimentation control Intent 

Erosion and sedimentation control is (ESC) essential to all Built Green projects and is 
used to control erosion and sedimentation to reduce negative impacts on the 
environment. 

The program will vary site-to-site, city-to-city, and region-to-region. It will also vary 
somewhat depending on the Owner, the Design Team (particularly the Civil Engineer) 
and Ledcor's Trades and forces on site . 

The Plan can be, and often is, both a written plan and a drawn plan. Components of the 
plan sometimes come as part of the Site Plan and the Specification by the Architects 
and particularly by the Civil Engineer/Landscape Architect, but can also be an in-house 
Works Area Plan by Ledcor illustrating Hoarding, First Aid and Emergency Response 
locations, Access Gates, Crane rotation, Skip Hoist locations, and delivery/lay-down 
areas. In summary, the Plan may be a jaint venture onto which the additional Erosion & 
Sedimentation Control measures are super-imposed. 

The plan shall meet the following objectives: 

• Prevent loss of soil during construction by storm water runoff and/or wind 
erosion, including protecting topsoil by stockpiling for reuse. 

• Prevent sedimentation of storm sewer or receiving streams. 
Prevent polluting the air with dust and particulate matter. 

Certified Wood 

Encourage environmentally responsible forest management. 

The object of Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) is to reduce or eliminate the use of 
virgin/natural forests as a wood and lumber source and to shift the market to sustainable 
practices - to a farmed and harvested model. 

The Forest Stewardship Council establishes the rules and regulations and awards the 
right to affix the FSC Brand to companies who conform to stringent practices. An FSC 

119

• Verifying that Hazardous wastes are being separated, stored and disposed of in 
accordance with Regional and MOE Policies and EPA regulations. 

• Ensuring Subcontractors required by contract or by legislation to maintain their 
own containers on site are following the WMP and reporting their waste 
information accurately for the WMP ledger. 

• Conducting Waste Management meetings. All Subcontractors shall attend. The 
WMP will be discussed at the regular Subcontractor Progress Meetings, and 
adherence to the WMP reviewed. 

Erosion and sedimentation control Intent 

Erosion and sedimentation control is (ESC) essential to all Built Green projects and is 
used to control erosion and sedimentation to reduce negative impacts on the 
environment. 

The program will vary site-to-site, city-to-city, and region-to-region. It will also vary 
somewhat depending on the Owner, the Design Team (particularly the Civil Engineer) 
and Ledcor's Trades and forces on site. 

The Plan can be, and often is, both a written plan and a drawn plan. Components of the 
plan sometimes come as part of the Site Plan and the Specification by the Architects 
and particularly by the Civil Engineer/Landscape Architect, but can also be an in-house 
Works Area Plan by Ledcor illustrating Hoarding, First Aid and Emergency Response 
locations, Access Gates, Crane rotation, Skip Hoist locations, and delivery/lay-down 
areas. In summary, the Plan may be a joint venture onto which the additional Erosion & 
Sedimentation Control measures are super-imposed. 

The plan shall meet the following objectives: 

• Prevent loss of soil during construction by storm water runoff and/or wind 
erosion, including protecting topsoil by stockpiling for reuse. 

• Prevent sedimentation of storm sewer or receiving streams. 
Prevent polluting the air with dust and particulate matter. 

Certified Wood 

Encourage environmentally responsible forest management. 

The object of Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) is to reduce or eliminate the use of 
virgin/natural forests as a wood and lumber source and to shift the market to sustainable 
practices - to a farmed and harvested model. 

The Forest Stewardship Council establishes the rules and regulations and awards the 
right to affix the FSC Brand to companies who conform to stringent practices. An FSC 



Brand ensures that a chain of custody has been followed throughout the harvesting, 
milling, transporting and delivery of their products. 

Energy-Efficiency 

The objective of this is to ensure that the final result of all the Built Green measures and 
construction efforts is a clean and uncontaminated structure ready for Occupancy. 

The opportunity to design a building efficiently from the start enables more and better 
efficiency measures to be used. The more new technologies and practices that are 
adopted in new construction, the more costs will come down and the measures become 
standard practice. By incorporating energy efficiency, renewable energy and sustainable 
green design features into a building at the outset, you can playa significant role - not 
only controlling your building's energy consumption - but also contributing to achieving a 
sustainable energy structure for our society. 

New buildings present a very real opportunity to achieve significant energy avoidance 
savings over the long term, especially when developers and building owners use a 
comprehensive systems approach to energy efficiency. Building to higher energy
efficiency standards requires an upfront commitment to a whole new way of thinking 
about design, construction and investment. The benefits of building to higher standards 
of energy efficiency are far-reaching and nearly immediate and benefit occupants for 
generations to come. 

By designing a new building holistically, with energy savings goals in mind, you can help 
to ensure that all systems work together effectively and you can incorporate major 
energy-efficiency components that would be difficult or impossible to retrofit and will 
save you significant amounts of money over your building's life 

Troy Lindsay 
Senior Estimator 
Ledcor Construction Limited 
203,830 Shamrock Street Victoria B,C V8X 2V1 

P 250-477-1831 I c 250-213-5284 I f 250-477-1846 
www.ledcor.com 

FORWARD. TOGETHER. 

120

Brand ensures that a chain of custody has been followed throughout the harvesting, 
milling, transporting and delivery of their products. 

Energy-Efficiency 

The objective of this is to ensure that the final result of all the Built Green measures and 
construction efforts is a clean and uncontaminated structure ready for Occupancy. 

The opportunity to design a building efficiently from the start enables more and better 
efficiency measures to be used. The more new technologies and practices that are 
adopted in new construction, the more costs will come down and the measures become 
standard practice. By incorporating energy efficiency, renewable energy and sustainable 
green design features into a building at the outset, you can playa significant role - not 
only controlling your building's energy consumption - but also contributing to achieving a 
sustainable energy structure for our society. 

New buildings present a very real opportunity to achieve significant energy avoidance 
savings over the long term, especially when developers and building owners use a 
comprehensive systems approach to energy efficiency. Building to higher energy
efficiency standards requires an upfront commitment to a whole new way of thinking 
about design, construction and investment. The benefits of building to higher standards 
of energy efficiency are far-reaching and nearly immediate and benefit occupants for 
generations to come. 

By designing a new building holistically, with energy savings goals in mind, you can help 
to ensure that all systems work together effectively and you can incorporate major 
energy-efficiency components that would be difficult or impossible to retrofit and will 
save you significant amounts of money over your building's life 

Troy Lindsay 
Senior Estimator 
Ledcor Construction Limited 
203,830 Shamrock Street Victoria B,C V8X 2V1 

P 250-477-1831 I c 250-213-5284 I f 250-477-1846 
www.ledcor.com 

FORWARD. TOGETHER. 



PLANNING 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

Parcel Address: CIVIC.: /550 A'fTl.cVl RD" VI{,jQrqA t f??C:, Y bN - I C ~ 

Applicant: ~: tV UM~t:!R T1:?N M<ctI17FUUt2lrt C, gqvf 
CI V p .. : Wf:l!, }6JitX>I< cmJ5UL-TJ M?t trP ' 

Date: NAI1 2P) I 2-0/5 
Contact Person: 

Telephone: 

hlttttTlM:: MAItJ< J. tWTJt)MI 

I+/2uHr1fa : (2'lO) ~"'() -2JO~ )( 5201 
(---11/4.: Bfl..tX£ C/2A<AJ~ 
CJVlL: (Z"lJ) ??q/- fj'~ ~L 

Storm water management is reviewed as part of the Development Permit Review process. 
Applications are required to meet: 

1. The Engineering Specifications detailed in Section 3.5.16 of Schedule "H" of the 
Subdivision Bylaw, 7452; and 

2. The intent of the Development Permit guidelines: 

a) Development Permit Areas #1. 2. 3. 6. through 15. 17. 18.20.21. 22.23 
• The total impervious cover of the site should minimize impact on the receiving 

aquatic environment. Consideration should be given to reducing impervious 
cover through reduction in building footprint and paved areas. 

• Storm water runoff controls should replicate the natural runoff regime. The 
controls could include on-site infiltration, storage in ponds or constructed 
wetlands, sand filtration and creative road/curb configurations. 

b) Development Permit Area #27 

Maintain pre-development hydrological characteristics should by the following 
means: 
• minimize impervious surfaces. 
• return the storm water runoff from impervious surfaces of the development to 

natural hydrologic pathways in the ground to the extent reasonably permitted by 
site conditions, and treat, store and slowly release the remainder per the 
specifications of Schedule H to the Subdivision Bylaw. 

• minimize alteration of the contours of the land outside the areas approved for 
buildings, structures and site accesses by minimizing the deposit of fill and 
removal of soil, and 

• minimize the removal of native trees outside the areas approved for buildings, 
structures and site accesses. 

Storm water Management Statement FORM: APPLB 
/o)[g©~DWrgf[jl 

. Ln} JUN 0 1 2015 lJd) 
PLANNING DEPT 

DISTRICT OF SAANiCH 

July 2013 

121

PLANNING 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

Parcel Address: CIVIC.: /550 A'fTl.cVl RD" VI{,jQrqA " f??G., y bN - Ie 1II 

Applicant: ~: NUM~t:!R n.>N Af<Cff17l;vut2lrt cUVf 
CI V I L- : Wf:l!, J6 Jitt)/< cmJ5lJL.T7 M?t lrP . 

Date: /'wiAtt 2P) I 1-0/5 
Contact Person: 

Telephone: 

~.ttttTlM:: MAU J. AtJTJt)M-I 

~ : (2,)0) ~"'O -2.JO~ X S201 

C~IJ4.: Bfl..tX£ C/2A<AJ~ 
(JVlL: (Z"iJ) ?7q/- 8~~L 

Storm water management is reviewed as part of the Development Permit Review process. 
Applications are required to meet: 

1. The Engineering Specifications detailed in Section 3.5.16 of Schedule "H" of the 
Subdivision Bylaw, 7452; and 

2. The intent of the Development Permit guidelines: 

a) Development Permit Areas #1, 2, 3, 6, through 15, 17, 18,20.21, 22,23 
• The total impervious cover of the site should minimize impact on the receiving 

aquatic environment. Consideration should be given to reducing impervious 
cover through reduction in building footprint and paved areas. 

• Storm water runoff controls should replicate the natural runoff regime. The 
controls could include on-site infiltration, storage in ponds or constructed 
wetlands, sand filtration and creative road/curb configurations. 

b) Development Permit Area #27 

Maintain pre-development hydrological characteristics should by the following 
means: 
• minimize impervious surfaces. 
• return the storm water runoff from impervious surfaces of the development to 

natural hydrologic pathways in the ground to the extent reasonably permitted by 
site conditions, and treat, store and slowly release the remainder per the 
specifications of Schedule H to the Subdivision Bylaw. 

• minimize alteration of the contours of the land outside the areas approved for 
buildings, structures and site accesses by minimizing the deposit of fill and 
removal of soil, and 

• minimize the removal of native trees outside the areas approved for buildings, 
structures and site accesses. 

Storm water Management Statement FORM: APPLB 
[O)~©~DWrgf[jl 

. Ln} JUN 0 1 2015 lJd) 
PLANNING DEPT 

DISTRICT OF SAANiCH 

July 2013 



Keeping in mind the requirements of Schedule "H", describe how your storm water management concept 
will meet the intent of the relevant development permit guidelines. Provide details on types of treatment 
systems that will be used, considering the following questions: 

a) Will there be an increase or decrease in impervious area compared to existing conditions? 
b) What percentage of the site will be impervious cover compared to existing conditions? 
c) How will impervious surface area be minimized (e.g. minimizing paved area and building footprints, 

pervious paving, green roofing, absorbent landscaping)? 
d) How will the proposed system detain and regulate flows and improve storm water quality (e.g. 

infiltration systems, engineered wetlands, bioswales)? 
e) If the intent of the guideline cannot be met, explain why. 

Use additional pages if necessary. Attach plans if available; detailed engineering plans will be required as 
part of the Building Permit process. 

NOTE: Meeting the Development Permit guidelines and issuance of a Development Permit does 
not relieve the requirements of Schedule "H" of the Subdivision Bylaw. 

a) Storm water management will be designed in accordance with Schedule "H" of Bylaw 7452. The site is located within a Type 2 

watershed. The proposed building will direct runoff from the roof and adjacent impervious surfaces to a proposed rain garden 

and a proposed detention chamber. The rain garden will release runoff by way of an under drain beneath the soil layer. The 

detention chamber will permit runoff to be released at the rate specified in Schedule H. 

b) Impervious surfaces will be minimized by way of using permeable surfaces within parking stalls, and on some walkways 

through the property. 

c) Runoff from the parking area will be directed to the permeable pavement within the parking stalls. The permeable 

pavement system will provide treatment of hydrocarbons and total suspended solids, as well as detain the runoff prior to 

discharge to the municipal system. Runoff infiltrated to the permeable pavement system will be collected by a perforated 

pipe under drain, and then directed to the municipal system. 

d) Impervious walkways will be directed to adjacent vegetated areas for infiltration to the natural ground. 

e) 

If you require clarification, please contact: 
The District of Saanich' Planning Department· 3rd Floor . Municipal Hall 

770 Vernon Avenue' Victoria' Be . vax 2W7 
Tel: 250-475-5471 Fax: 250-475-5430 

122

Keeping in mind the requirements of Schedule "H", describe how your storm water management concept 
will meet the intent of the relevant development permit guidelines. Provide details on types of treatment 
systems that will be used, considering the following questions: 

a) Will there be an increase or decrease in impervious area compared to existing conditions? 
b) What percentage of the site will be impervious cover compared to existing conditions? 
c) How will impervious surface area be minimized (e.g. minimizing paved area and building footprints, 

pervious paving, green roofing, absorbent landscaping)? 
d) How will the proposed system detain and regulate flows and improve storm water quality (e.g. 

infiltration systems, engineered wetlands, bioswales)? 
e) If the intent of the guideline cannot be met, explain why. 

Use additional pages if necessary. Attach plans if available; detailed engineering plans will be required as 
part of the Building Permit process. 

NOTE: Meeting the Development Permit guidelines and issuance of a Development Permit does 
not relieve the requirements of Schedule "H" of the Subdivision Bylaw. 

a) Storm water management will be designed in accordance with Schedule "H" of Bylaw 7452. The site is located within a Type 2 

watershed. The proposed building will direct runoff from the roof and adjacent impervious surfaces to a proposed rain garden 

and a proposed detention chamber. The rain garden will release runoff by way of an under drain beneath the soil layer. The 

detention chamber will permit runoff to be released at the rate specified in Schedule H. 

b) Impervious surfaces will be minimized by way of using permeable surfaces within parking stalls, and on some walkways 

through the property. 

c) Runoff from the parking area will be directed to the permeable pavement within the parking stalls. The permeable 

pavement system will provide treatment of hydrocarbons and total suspended solids, as well as detain the runoff prior to 

discharge to the municipal system. Runoff infiltrated to the permeable pavement system will be collected by a perforated 

pipe under drain, and then directed to the municipal system. 

d) Impervious walkways will be directed to adjacent vegetated areas for infiltration to the natural ground. 

e) 

If you require clarification, please contact: 
The District of Saanich' Planning Department· 3rd Floor . Municipal Hall 

770 Vernon Avenue' Victoria' Be . vax 2W7 
Tel: 250-475-5471 Fax: 250-475-5430 



( 

~ 

May 25, 2015 

District of Saanich 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Attn: Jagtar Bains 

( 

WESTBROOK 
Consulting Ltd. 

2898.02 

Re: 1550 Arrow Road - Proposed Development Preliminary Storm Water Management Plan 

Dear Sir: 

Westbrook Consulting has been retained by the Mt. Doug Seniors Housing to prepare the following 
storm water management plan for the proposed multi family residence. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The above development will be located at the north end of the 1550 Arrow Road property and will 
comprise of a new multi-family residence, parking area, and landscaped areas. 

The proposed storm water management system shall consist of a combination of rain gardens, 
permeable pavers for treatment and detention, and underground storage chambers for runoff detention 
to meet Schedule H of Bylaw 7452. 

DESIGN CRITERIA 

The site falls within the Type II watershed, the following criteria are required to be met: 

Item Criteria 

Storage 100 m3 per ha of impervious area 

Release Rate 10 LIs per ha of total contributory catchment 

Treatment Rain Garden / Permeable Pavers / 
System 

Oil &Grit Separators / Detention Chambers 

PROPOSED DESIGN 

The storm water management system divides the site into the following two catchment areas: 

,. The building's roof and patio areas 
,. The Parking Lot 

123

~ 

May 25, 2015 

District of Saanich 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Attn: Jagtar Bains 

( 

WESTBROOK 
Consulting Ltd. 

2898.02 

Re: 1550 Arrow Road - Proposed Development Preliminary Storm Water Management Plan 

Dear Sir: 

Westbrook Consulting has been retained by the Mt. Doug Seniors Housing to prepare the following 
storm water management plan for the proposed multi family residence. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The above development will be located at the north end of the 1550 Arrow Road property and will 
comprise of a new multi-family residence, parking area, and landscaped areas. 

The proposed storm water management system shall consist of a combination of rain gardens, 
permeable pavers for treatment and detention, and underground storage chambers for runoff detention 
to meet Schedule H of Bylaw 7452. 

DESIGN CRITERIA 

The site falls within the Type II watershed, the following criteria are required to be met: 

Item Criteria 

Storage 100 m3 per ha of impervious area 

Release Rate 10 LIs per ha of total contributory catchment 

Treatment Rain Garden I Permeable Pavers I 
System 

Oil &Grit Separators I Detention Chambers 

PROPOSED DESIGN 

The storm water management system divides the site into the following two catchment areas: 

,. The building's roof and patio areas 
.,. The Parking Lot 



Jagtar Bains 
District of Saanich 
May 28,2015 

Roof and Patios 

( ( 

Page 2 

The roof area and surrounding patio and sidewalk areas measure approximately 2500 square meters in 
area. The roof shall be divided into two catchments, with 1500 square meters being directed to a 
proposed rain garden to be located west of the proposed building, and 1000 square meters being 
directed to a proposed detention chamber to be located north of the proposed building. 

The neighbours have expressed concern that the groundwater levels not be negatively impacted by the 
development. As such, both the rain garden and detention chambers shall be lined with an impervious 
liner to prevent influence from the groundwater, and so as not to add additional runoff to the 
groundwater system. 

The rain garden will be sized to accommodate both the proposed building, and the potential for 2500 
square meters of future impervious surfaces. Runoff within the rain garden will infiltrate through the 
specified soil and be collected by an underdrain and directed to the municipal system. Runoff will be 
permitted to collect within the rain garden to a depth of 200mm. Runoff events that exceed the capacity 
of the rain garden will be permitted to overflow to a perched overflow manhole fitted with a "Beehive" 
style frame and grate. 

The detention cells will be connected to a flow control manhole that will restrict the flow of runoff to no 
more than 1.0 lis (10 lIs per ha of contributing catchment). The flow cQntrol manhole will then direct 
runoff to the municipal drain system via a proposed connection to be located at the northeast corner of 
the lot. 

Parking Area 

The proposed parking area measures approximately 3500 square meters of which 1300 square meters 
is proposed to be permeable unit pavers. 

The permeable pavers are proposed to be installed within the parking stalls to the lot, and to have the 
drive aisles paved with asphaltic concrete. 

It is proposed that the pavers be Aqua Pave unit pavers, or approved alternate, which will provide 
treatment of hydrocarbons within the underlying gravel base. 

Runoff from the asphalt driveway will be direct to sheet flow to the permeable paver parking stalls 
where it will be treated and detained, and infiltrated to ground to the ability the ground can accept it. 

Runoff within the permeable paver system gravels that are not infiltrated will be collected by a 
perforated pipe underdrain and directed to the municipal system. 

During major runoff events that are not infiltrated into the permeable paver system, runoff will be 
directed to a conventional catch basin and piped system. 

An oil interceptor will be provided to treat runoff that is not able to be treated by the permeable paver 
system. 

124

Jagtar Bains 
District of Saanich 
May 28,2015 

Roof and Patios 

( ( 

Page 2 

The roof area and surrounding patio and sidewalk areas measure approximately 2500 square meters in 
area. The roof shall be divided into two catchments, with 1500 square meters being directed to a 
proposed rain garden to be located west of the proposed building, and 1000 square meters being 
directed to a proposed detention chamber to be located north of the proposed building. 

The neighbours have expressed concern that the groundwater levels not be negatively impacted by the 
development. As such, both the rain garden and detention chambers shall be lined with an impervious 
liner to prevent influence from the groundwater, and so as not to add additional runoff to the 
groundwater system. 

The rain garden will be sized to accommodate both the proposed building, and the potential for 2500 
square meters of future impervious surfaces. Runoff within the rain garden will infiltrate through the 
specified soil and be collected by an underdrain and directed to the municipal system. Runoff will be 
permitted to collect within the rain garden to a depth of 200mm. Runoff events that exceed the capacity 
of the rain garden will be permitted to overflow to a perched overflow manhole fitted with a "Beehive" 
style frame and grate. 

The detention cells will be connected to a flow control manhole that will restrict the flow of runoff to no 
more than 1.0 lis (10 lIs per ha of contributing catchment). The flow cQntrol manhole will then direct 
runoff to the municipal drain system via a proposed connection to be located at the northeast corner of 
the lot. 

Parking Area 

The proposed parking area measures approximately 3500 square meters of which 1300 square meters 
is proposed to be permeable unit pavers. 

The permeable pavers are proposed to be installed within the parking stalls to the lot, and to have the 
drive aisles paved with asphaltic concrete. 

It is proposed that the pavers be Aqua Pave unit pavers, or approved alternate, which will provide 
treatment of hydrocarbons within the underlying gravel base. 

Runoff from the asphalt driveway will be direct to sheet flow to the permeable paver parking stalls 
where it will be treated and detained, and infiltrated to ground to the ability the ground can accept it. 

Runoff within the permeable paver system gravels that are not infiltrated will be collected by a 
perforated pipe underdrain and directed to the municipal system. 

During major runoff events that are not infiltrated into the permeable paver system, runoff will be 
directed to a conventional catch basin and piped system. 

An oil interceptor will be provided to treat runoff that is not able to be treated by the permeable paver 
system. 



Jagtar Bains 
District of Saanich 
May 28,2015 

SUMMARY 

( ( 

Page 3 

We feel the above proposed system meets the intent of Schedule H of Bylaw 7452 and will safely treat, 
detain, and dispose of runoff from the proposed impervious areas. 

If you have any questions or comments regarding the proposed storm water management plan, please 
contact our office. 

Yours truly, 

WESTBROOK CONSULTING LTD. 

~ ¥ ----=:>. 
Bruce Crawshaw, P.Eng., LEED AP 
Project Manager 

II PRI lJrn· ... 1\'l ... \11 D",,:! Snr~ H\lU~U1J.! 1J2(Tc~orolrl,J.;IM·11 ~tl~.!!- S\\\lr ("m~qn d ..... 
~~ U, ~III~ I I.:! (>\1 

125

Jagtar Bains 
District of Saanich 
May 28,2015 

SUMMARY 

( ( 

Page 3 

We feel the above proposed system meets the intent of Schedule H of Bylaw 7452 and will safely treat, 
detain, and dispose of runoff from the proposed impervious areas. 

If you have any questions or comments regarding the proposed storm water management plan, please 
contact our office . 

Yours truly, 

WESTBROOK CONSULTING LTD. 

Bruce Crawshaw, P.Eng ., LEED AP 
Project Manager 

II PRI IJrn ... ::!\'l" \fl O"U.: Snr~ HI1\.I11Oj.! n2(' L'un ~ro)r".J..'1M' I 1 ~tl~!~ S\\ ~Ir ("m~~'P1 J ..... 
!'1 U, ~tll~ I I! r~1 



( 

126

( ( 
.... I 



( 

~ GYE + ASSOCIATES 
~ Consultants in Urban Forestry and Arboriculture 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
250-386-7781-local 246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

Dear Peter: 

( 

September 29, 2015 

Re: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society (MDSHS), 1550 Arrow Road, Saanich 
Tree Assessment 

Herein, please find my tree assessment report, as requested. 
Assignment: 
You have asked me to assess two trees. 

1. A large Douglas Fir tree is located on the east property boundary that is shared with 3982 
Bel Nor Place. The resident at this address is concerned about the safety of the tree. Gye 
and Associates Ltd. have been asked to assess the health and condition of the tree and 
to evaluate the risk potential posed by the tree to the neighbour. 

2. A mature Garry Oak is located in the rear yard of 4008 Hopesmore Drive. Several limbs 
from the tree encroach over the fence into MDSHS property and have been inexpertly cut 
back close to the fence line by MDSHS grounds staff. The District of Saanich has 
inspected the tree and instructed MDSHS to retain an ISA Certified Arborist assess the 
tree pruning and undertake any remedial work necessary. 

The large Douglas Fir appears' healthy and sound. The tree exhibits no indications of disease or 
decay; the main roots of the tree appear well distributed around the root crown; the stem is well
tapered with a height-to-girth ratio well within acceptable limits for this species; and the tree is well 
branched down most of the stem (a healthy "live-crown ratio") . It looks like the branches on the 
neighbour's side have been trimmed back in the past to contain the canopy, indirectly reducing the 
risk of a branch failure to the neighbour. In its current condition, it is my opinion that this tree 
presents a minimal risk of branch or whole tree failure to the affected neighbour; consequently, I 
don't believe the District would support its removal. 

The neighbouring oak at the very back of the property (where you have cleared out the 
blackberry) needs some of the branch stubs and wounds cleaned up from your ground-keeper's 
pruning efforts. I recommend you use an ISA certified arborist to do this work. I have forwarded 
you by email the name and contact information of one such arborist, whose work I am familiar 
with. 

I am appending several pictures to this report to illustrate the points above. 

Urban Forests by Design 

T (250) 544-1700 
jgye@shaw.ca 

www.gyeandassociates.ca 

127

( 

GYE + ASSOCIATES 
_~ .. Consultants in Urban Forestry and Arboriculture 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
250-386-7781-local 246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

Dear Peter: 

( 

September 29, 2015 

Re: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society (MDSHS), 1550 Arrow Road, Saanich 
Tree Assessment 

Herein, please find my tree assessment report, as requested. 
Assignment: 
You have asked me to assess two trees. 

1. A large Douglas Fir tree is located on the east property boundary that is shared with 3982 
Bel Nor Place. The resident at this address is concerned about the safety of the tree. Gye 
and Associates Ltd . have been asked to assess the health and condition of the tree and 
to evaluate the risk potential posed by the tree to the neighbour. 

2. A mature Garry Oak is located in the rear yard of 4008 Hopesmore Drive. Several limbs 
from the tree encroach over the fence into MDSHS property and have been inexpertly cut 
back close to the fence line by MDSHS grounds staff. The District of Saanich has 
inspected the tree and instructed MDSHS to retain an ISA Certified Arborist assess the 
tree pruning and undertake any remedial work necessary. 

The large Douglas Fir appears 'healthy and sound. The tree exhibits no indications of disease or 
decay; the main roots of the tree appear well distributed around the root crown; the stem is well
tapered with a height-to-girth ratio well within acceptable limits for this species; and the tree is well 
branched down most of the stem (a healthy "live-crown ratio"). It looks like the branches on the 
neighbour's side have been trimmed back in the past to contain the canopy, indirectly reducing the 
risk of a branch failure to the neighbour. In its current condition, it is my opinion that this tree 
presents a minimal risk of branch or whole tree failure to the affected neighbour; consequently, I 
don't believe the District would support its removal. 

The neighbouring oak at the very back of the property (where you have cleared out the 
blackberry) needs some of the branch stubs and wounds cleaned up from your ground-keeper's 
pruning efforts. I recommend you use an ISA certified arborist to do this work. I have forwarded 
you by email the name and contact information of one such arborist, whose work I am familiar 
with. 

I am appending several pictures to this report to illustrate the points above. 

Uroan Forests by Design 

T (250) 544-1700 
jgye@shaw.ca 

www.gyeandassociates.ca 



( ( 

~ GYE + ASSOCIATES 
~ Consultants in Urban Forestry and Arboriculture 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jeremy Gye - President 
Gye and Associates, Urban Forestry Consultants Ltd. 

Consulting Arborist (Diploma. American Society of Consulting Arborists. 1997) 
ISA Certified Arborist (Certification No. PN-0144A) 
ISA Municipal Specialist (Certification No PN-0144AM) 
Certified Master Woodland Manager (Small Woodlands Program of BC) 

2 

128

( ( 

~ GYE + ASSOCIATES 
~ Consultants in Urban Forestry and Arboriculture 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jeremy Gye - President 
Gye and Associates, Urban Forestry Consultants Ltd. 

Consulting Arborist (Diploma. American Society of Consulting Arborists. 1997) 
ISA Certified Arborist (Certification No. PN-0144A) 
ISA Municipal Specialist (Certification No PN-0144AM) 
Certified Master Woodland Manager (Small Woodlands Program of BC) 

2 



( 

129

( 



THE CORPORATION OF THE DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 09, 2015 

ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL FROM: 

SUBJECT: APPLICATION BY NUMBER TEN ARCHITECTURAL GROUP FOR 
REZONING AND DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT ONE THREE 
STOREY AND ONE THREE/FOUR STOREY BUILDING FOR AFFORDABLE 
SENIORS HOUSING AT 1550 ARROW ROAD. THE PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT WOULD OCCUR IN nNO PHASES. THE PROPOSED 
REZONING WOULD ALLOW THE DENSITY IN BOTH PHASES; HOWEVER, 
THE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION IS IN REGARD TO PHASE I 
ONLY AND A FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT WILL BE REQUIRED FOR 
PHASE TWO. 
PLANNING FILES: DPR00614/ REZ00559 
CASE #2015/010 

BACKGROUND AND PRESENTATION 

The above referenced application was considered by the Advisory Design Panel at its meeting 
of September 2, 2015 meeting. 

Barry Cosgrave and Mark Anthony, Number 10 Architectural Group, Bev Windjack, LA.DR 
Landscape Architecture, and Peter Daniel, Diocese of British Columbia, attended to present 
design plans and answer questions from the Panel. 

The Planner briefly outlined the application. 

The applicants stated: 
• Phase I will include a total of 95 parking spaces. 
• A market study determined the proposal should only include studio and one bedroom 

units. 
• Articulation will be formed along the length of the building through the use of glazing and 

indentation in order to create a bay window like effect on the north and east sides of the 
building . Balconies will be introduced on the west and south sides of the building. 

• A custom, larger unit is proposed to be located above the entrance on the second and 
third floors. 

• Finishes include acrylic stucco and horizontal hardy panels, windows will be grouped 
with vertical hardy panel and hardy panel trim. 

• Existing vegetation will be retained and substantially added to with extensive trees and 
hedging on the north property line. Existing hedging on the west and east sides of the 
site will remain. 

• Permeable paving and a large rain garden will aid in the storm water drainage issues 
that exist on site. 

• The covered entrance plaza will include a loading / handyDART zone, benches and 
bicycle racks. 

• Stairs are not proposed into the building or within the exterior amenity spaces to ensure 
it is accessible; a new drop-off area will serve both buildings. 

Page 1 of 2 
130

THE CORPORATION OF THE DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 09, 2015 

ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL FROM: 

SUBJECT: APPLICATION BY NUMBER TEN ARCHITECTURAL GROUP FOR 
REZONING AND DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT ONE THREE 
STOREY AND ONE THREE/FOUR STOREY BUILDING FOR AFFORDABLE 
SENIORS HOUSING AT 1550 ARROW ROAD. THE PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT WOULD OCCUR IN nNO PHASES. THE PROPOSED 
REZONING WOULD ALLOW THE DENSITY IN BOTH PHASES; HOWEVER, 
THE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION IS IN REGARD TO PHASE I 
ONLY AND A FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT WILL BE REQUIRED FOR 
PHASE TWO. 
PLANNING FILES: DPR00614/ REZ00559 
CASE #2015/010 

BACKGROUND AND PRESENTATION 

The above referenced application was considered by the Advisory Design Panel at its meeting 
of September 2, 2015 meeting. 

Barry Cosgrave and Mark Anthony, Number 10 Architectural Group, Bev Windjack, LADR 
Landscape Architecture, and Peter Daniel, Diocese of British Columbia, attended to present 
design plans and answer questions from the Panel. 

The Planner briefly outlined the application. 

The applicants stated: 
• Phase I will include a total of 95 parking spaces. 
• A market study determined the proposal should only include studio and one bedroom 

units. 
• Articulation will be formed along the length of the building through the use of glazing and 

indentation in order to create a bay window like effect on the north and east sides of the 
building . Balconies will be introduced on the west and south sides of the building. 

• A custom, larger unit is proposed to be located above the entrance on the second and 
third floors. 

• Finishes include acrylic stucco and horizontal hardy panels, windows will be grouped 
with vertical hardy panel and hardy panel trim. 

• Existing vegetation will be retained and substantially added to with extensive trees and 
hedging on the north property line. Existing hedging on the west and east sides of the 
site will remain. 

• Permeable paving and a large rain garden will aid in the storm water drainage issues 
that exist on site. 

• The covered entrance plaza will include a loading / handyDART zone, benches and 
bicycle racks. 

• Stairs are not proposed into the building or within the exterior amenity spaces to ensure 
it is accessible; a new drop-off area will serve both buildings. 

Page 1 of 2 



Advisory Design Panel Report Page 2 of 2 

• A large rain garden and a common, deer-fenced garden area with raised beds are 
proposed on the east side of the site. A path will circumnavigate the site and will 
connect to Arrow Road. 

• A new aviary will be featured in the entrance off of Arrow Road and a gazebo is 
proposed for the centre island. 

Comments from Panel members: 
• The elevator should be rotated or recessed to allow for better traffic capabilities. 
• Some exterior corners could be more emphasized by adding additional eyebrows; 

elements over balconies could be considered. 
• The main entrance volume does not relate well with the proposed entrance doors. 
• The glazed balconies are a nice touch. 
• Although the south side aesthetic offers a lot more foundation plantings, a softer edge 

should be considered on the north side. 
• Storm water drainage issues need to be sufficiently addressed. 
• Additional lay-bys along the pathway should be considered to create circuit 

opportunities. 
• The main entrance lacks identity and limits effective assemblage. 
• Accessibility opportunities should be explored through providing a larger one bedroom 

unit and a studio unit in the southwest corner of each floor to better accommodate 
persons with disabilities. 

• The larger unit proposed for above the main entrance should be repeated on all floors. 
• The washroom proposed off of the main floor should be repeated on all floors. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That it be recommended that the design for Phase I of the proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
be approved as presented with the following suggestions: 

• Provide larger, fully accessible units in the southwest corner of each floor; 
• Redevelop the larger unit above the main entrance and repeat on each floor; 
• Better emphasize and identify the main entrance; and 
• Recess the elevators to provide more space for access and egress. 

Penny Masse, Secretary 
Advisory Design Panel 

cc: Director of Planning 
Manager of Inspections 
Number Ten Architectural Group 

131

Advisory Design Panel Report Page 2 of 2 

• A large rain garden and a common, deer-fenced garden area with raised beds are 
proposed on the east side of the site. A path will circumnavigate the site and will 
connect to Arrow Road. 

• A new aviary will be featured in the entrance off of Arrow Road and a gazebo is 
proposed for the centre island. 

Comments from Panel members: 
• The elevator should be rotated or recessed to allow for better traffic capabilities. 
• Some exterior corners could be more emphasized by adding additional eyebrows; 

elements over balconies could be considered. 
• The main entrance volume does not relate well with the proposed entrance doors. 
• The glazed balconies are a nice touch. 
• Although the south side aesthetic offers a lot more foundation plantings, a softer edge 

should be considered on the north side. 
• Storm water drainage issues need to be sufficiently addressed. 
• Additional lay-bys along the pathway should be considered to create circuit 

opportunities. 
• The main entrance lacks identity and limits effective assemblage. 
• Accessibility opportunities should be explored through providing a larger one bedroom 

unit and a studio unit in the southwest corner of each floor to better accommodate 
persons with disabilities. 

• The larger unit proposed for above the main entrance should be repeated on all floors. 
• The washroom proposed off of the main floor should be repeated on all floors. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That it be recommended that the design for Phase I of the proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
be approved as presented with the following suggestions: 

• Provide larger, fully accessible units in the southwest corner of each floor; 
• Redevelop the larger unit above the main entrance and repeat on each floor; 
• Better emphasize and identify the main entrance; and 
• Recess the elevators to provide more space for access and egress. 

Penny Masse, Secretary 
Advisory Design Panel 

cc: Director of Planning 
Manager of Inspections 
Number Ten Architectural Group 



132

My name is Lavonne Carson and I have lived at Mt. Douglas for approximately 5 

years. 

We all are probably aware in this audience, of the news reporting difficulty of 

finding affordable rental housing in Regional Victoria due to high rental rates and 

lack of housing. It is especially difficult for seniors living on very low pensions. I 

cannot afford market rentals due to income as many others at Mt. Douglas are. I 

was very fortunate to be told about Mt. Douglas Senior and find housing and 

welcome support there. 

Many neighbors I am sure, see the tenants going in and out in cars, bikes or 

walking and see it as just an apartment building. Few have been inside for a look 

or a tour to get any feeling for the place or those living there. 

I would like to share a bit of Mt. Doug's tenant home experience with you as I see 

it. We are an eclectic bunch of men and women between the ages of 55 to the 

high 80's. We are mothers, fathers, grandparents and great grandparents, as well 

as single folks. We have been and are gardeners, loggers, fishermen, shop 

workers, teachers, nurses, government workers, handicapped and able bodied 

people. We are kind, supportive, helpful and loving, as well as feisty, opinionated, 

passionate politically, with the odd activist amongst us. We are a community of 

seniors helping each other, aging in companionship which supports dignity. We 

are part of your community here too. 

I am in total support of additional housing being built on this property. Seniors 

need it and it will benefit all of us to add to our community as well as provide for 

affordable housing for future seniors. Please come and visit us, talk to residents. 

Coffee is usually on! Thank You. 

'. 
' . • 1 

'. lR1~©~O\y~[Q) 
. 

MAR 10 2016 ; " : - . . ' 

j LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

.. . 



133

Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

March 10,2016 

Dear Saanich Council, 

'--__ ----' Arrow Road 
Victoria, Be V8N 1 C6 

i'l,1e at.Mount Douglas Court at Arrow Road. 
'-----:----;-..--:---,.-,,' 

. After living in Winnipeg, I decided to move to Victoria 3 
years ago oecause my daughter and fier family had moved here. After arriving, I started looking 
for a place to live for low income seniors. I applied to many places, but the waitlists were long 
and the prospects were not promising. It was a real tragedy for me. There was despair, tears and 
hopelessness. 

Then, it was my lucky day. I noticed an ad in the Saanich News for an apartment at Mount 
Douglas Court. I was there the same day, I applied and I got in. I am so happy now living in an 
affordable, safe, clean, quiet building. 

I know there is a big demand for buildings like ours. That is why I support the proposed 
development at 1550 Arrow Road very strongly. 

Sincerely, 

www.mdshs.ca 
[R3[g©[gO~[g[Q) 

MAR 10 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 



134

--~,,-~_-_-c.-:k"'-~~"-l -4..; 
---) • ~I • 
. - - C/ ;I 

- --- ---------. -- ---- - --- ----- - ---- -,- -~·{L2-tc-c::~- - :C2/~-~- -
- ~ • ••• 0- ._ _ _ _ _ _ ___ "::::::.... _.,.. 

~~©~a\;ij~[Q) 
MAR 10 2011> 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 



135

Page 1 of 2 

ClerkSec - Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Road, Victoria, BC - Committee of 
the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 14,2016 at 7:00 PM 

From: 
To: 
Date: 

NANCEE LEWIS 
<clerksec@saan 
3/10/2016 10:56 AM 

Subject: Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Road, Victoria, BC - Committee of 
the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 14, 2016 at 7:00 PM 

CC: <Debra. Hopkins@saanich.ca> 
Attachments: Letter to Mayor Attwell and Council-March 10, 2016.docx 

March 10, 2016 

Mayor Richard Atwell and Council 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

[R1~©~OW~[Q) 
MAR 10 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Road, Victoria, BC - Committee of the Whole Meeting on 
Monday, March 14,2016 at 7:00 PM 

I am writing to you regarding my concerns with the proposed development for the Mount Douglas 
Seniors Housing located at 1550 Arrow Road in Saanich. 

I have resided in my home since it was built in 1985 and have raised my four children on this lovely 
quiet street. Our residential area is composed of one and two story residential homes on quiet no
through streets. My home is situated directly behind on the north side of the proposed housing 
development. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed redevelopment will have 
on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 residential 
housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society (MDSHS) 
has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is 
approved by Saanich Council, they plan to build a second building on their property that will be three 
stories high and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout Saanich and 
the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as the one proposed for this 
property should not be approved in its present design due to the major impact that this will have on 
our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfT emp/XPgrpwise/56E152FASaanichMun_Hall... 3/10/2016 



136

Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich -I understand that a review of 46 
multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of these 
were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 
Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that the three 
story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards set 
out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located along 
the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as a 
"major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I do support 
the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review the 
suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give serious 
consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and the design 
of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Respectfully, 

Nancee Lewis 
_ Hopesmore Drive 
Victoria, Be V8N 6A3 



137

Page 1 of 4 

ClerkSec - Critique of Planning Dept. report RE 1550 Arrow Rd. rezoning application 

From: 
To: 

Date: 
Subject: 
CC: 

David Mattison 
<mayor@saanich.ca>, <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 
<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <Fred.Haynes@saanich.ca>, 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <Colin. Plant@saanich.ca>, 
<vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, Leif Wergeland <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca>, 
ClerkSec <ClerkSec@saanich.ca> 
3/10/2016 10:07 AM 
Critique of Planning Dept. reoo BE 1 5 5 O-A r row Rd. rezo ina aoolication, ____ _ 
<d:ra'Le[s@.islandnet.com>, L...-_________ ----' L...-_______ -

j 
March 10,2016 I MAR 1 0 2016 

To: Mayor and Council 
, LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
LOISTRICT OF SAANICH 

Subject: Critique of the February 18, 2016 Planning Department Report to Mayor and Council RE 1550 
Arrow Road rezoning application 

While the Planning Department's (PD) report in support of the rezoning application for 1550 Arrow is 
comprehensive and well articulated, I feel the report is clearly biased towards the developer's point of 
view. 

SUMMARY 

Although the rezoning application fulfills several Official Community Plan objectives, other objectives, 
including those in the Gordon Head LAP and the draft Shelbourne Valley Action Plan, are not taken into 
consideration by the PD report. The development provides no community amenities other than a new 
sidewalk in front of the property. The PD report brushes aside neighbourhood concerns. The PD report 
is very clearly biased towards the developer. The population increase in a fully residential 
neighbourhood is not discussed at all in the PD report. The proposed development clearly does not fit 
the neighbourhood as it is out of scale and out of character (unsympathetic architecture). While fulfilling 
a need for affordable housing, rezoning to RA-3 will only compound a poorly planned rezoning decision 
nearly 50 years ago and will leave the door open to other developers with aging RA-1 and RA-2 
properties sited within fully single-family residential neighbourhoods on residential roads. 

LOCAL AREA PLANS 

The site is within the Gordon Head Local Area Plan (GHLAP). Throughout the PD report the GHLAP 
housing goal, "A predominantly single family dwelling neighbourhood with limited opportunities for infill 
housing where it respects the neighbourhood character, natural environment, and the scale of 
surrounding houses." (GHLAP, 2008, p. 10) is almost completely ignored. This project offers nothing to 
support the objectives of GHLAP housing policies 5.1 and 5.4 which are not quoted. 

In terms of the draft Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP), this project is in an area with hilly 
topography and without sidewalks. The only reference to the fact that Arrow Road is hilly topography is 
on p. 19 where the road is described as having a "vertical curvature." From having walked up and down 
Arrow Rd. to my home on Bel Nor PI. many times over the past two and half years, I can state that the 
speed limit and visibility caution signs do little to slow drivers down. I have even observed a Saanich 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/56E14767SaanichMun_Hall... 3/10/2016 



138

Page 2 of4 

utility vehicle speeding up the hill from Cedar Hill Rd. The PD report (p. 5) quotes SVAP point 6.1.8 
regarding sidewalk construction and places one edge of the property within 500 metres of the 
University Major Centre primary intersection. On p. 19 it turns out that Saanich somehow overlooked 
the existence of Arrow Rd. in its sidewalk planning, even though it is the only road north of McKenzie in 
the University Major Centre which runs east with an outlet to McKenzie. 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA GUIDELINES 

I feel that the PD report is not sufficiently critical of the developer's design both in terms of height, which 
is not reflecting the character of surrounding developments -- all one- or two-storey single family homes 
-- or the design itself, hardly high-quality architecture. As a closed, private site, "encouraging pedestrian 
activity" seems to apply only to the site itself. There are no neighbourhood amenities in terms of design 
other than a new sidewalk fronting the property which the developer has offered or Saanich has 
required. 

NEIGHBOURHOOD CONTEXT 

Throughout, the PD report minimizes as much as possible the fact that 1550 Arrow Rd. is completely 
surrounded by single-family residential properties. On p. 5 this statement is factually incorrect: 
"Surrounding properties are primarily developed with single family dwellings .... " The Saanich GIS 
indicates ALL surrounding properties are RS-zoned. On p. 6, the context map (figure 2) does not 
include a zone caption for the entire Hopesmore subdivision which borders approximately half the site 
on the north and east! The RA-3 and RT-1 properties on McKenzie Ave. are irrelevant to this 
application because they are buffered by an RS-10 zone and therefore are not immediately adjacent to 
the subject property. The PD report also does not disclose that this property was originally zoned 
residential at the time it was acquired by the Anglican Church Women and a rezoning application 
submitted in 1969. Since then an entire single-family residential neighbourhood has grown up around 
the property. While the developer has proposed widening its private easement leading to Bel Nor Pl., it 
should be noted that the public path from Bel Nor PI. to Hopesmore is also on a downward slope and 
that Hopesmore Dr. is also a residential road. Further, anyone with a walker or scooter who uses Bel 
Nor PI. and Hopesmore Dr. to get to University Heights will need to go down a ramp into the rear 
parking lot and loading dock area of Home Depot. One cannot therefore claim that this site is in a 
pedestrian-friendly neighbourhood, especially where seniors are concerned. 

LAND USE AND DENSITY 

This property, if rezoned to RA-3, would be unique in its location. Today, given the same set of 
circumstances, it is unlikely, that Saanich would permit a RA-1, let alone a RA-3, to be built within a 
fully single-family residential neighbourhood on a residential road. Having analyzed the Saanich GIS, I 
determined there are currently 140 addresses zoned as RA-3. Not one address is surrounded on all 
four sides by single-family homes (RS-zoned), even the six addresses that are on residential roads. 
Given the height and density issues, the matter of it being affordable housing is in my opinion irrelevant 
in this situation. If it were market housing would it be permitted? I ask that Saanich not triple, at a 
minimum, the population density of this complex. Rather, a two-storey building with no more than 80 
units is far more appropriate for the neighbourhood. 

Due to the length of time involved for the Phase 2 development, I ask that Saanich reject that portion of 
the rezoning application. There are too many unknowns involved in the 10 to 20 years of a phased 
development, let along the longer life span of new buildings. While the PD report does not mention this, 
I would hope that Saanich will be following, if it accepts the Phase 2 concept, the phased development 
agreement criteria of the Local Government Act. 

I fully understand the balance that must be achieved in this instance, however, tripling, at a minimum, 
the population density in a single-family neighbourhood is simply too extreme. I feel the "good design" 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/56E14767SaanichMun_Hall... 3/10/2016 



139

Page 3 of 4 

factor has not been sufficiently addressed in either phase. Regardless of how you spin the density 
issue (floor space ratio vs unit count), at the end of the day you are still adding a minimum of 240 
people to the neighbourhood. In fact, this complex, at the end of Phase 2 would be the single largest 
low-income independent seniors complex in the CRD. Even at the end of Phase 1 with 180 units, 
assuming the existing and new one-bedroom units are rented only to singles, it will serve two fewer 
tenants than North Park Manor (158 units rented to a maximum of 182 tenants). 

On p. 10 it states that the "anticipated useful life of the existing building is up to 40 years", however, the 
developer has indicated in writing on its website (www.anglicanfoundation.ca -- see the presentation 
link) that the building can last "another 40 years," thus bringing into question the need to redevelop the 
site at this time when other options such as selling the property and redeveloping Dawson Heights or 
any of its other dozen or so properties are available to the Anglican Diocese. The developer has shown 
little sensitivity to neighbourhood concerns. 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

I was surprised when looking at Table 1, "Recent Multi-family Developments" (p. 10) that a column 
indicating the zoning type was not included. Only two of these developments are RA-3: 3811 Rowland 
Ave. (there are two buildings, also 3815 Rowland Ave.) and 3207 Quadra St. While the former are on a 
residential road, with single-family residences opposite and to one side (excluding a small townhouse 
development on Huxley), it is market housing with the rear of the property overlooking Highway 17. The 
developer was required to put in a sidewalk fronting its property and also on the north side of Huxley for 
walking to Carey Rd. The Quadra St. property is for a Cool Aid Society project and is on a major road 
with a bus stop right there. In the context of this development's placement within a fully residential 
neighbourhood, the other properties are irrelevant because I doubt any of those non-RA-3 zones would 
be permitted or even exist now in a fully residential neighbourhood. What should stand out is the fact, 
again, that 1550 Arrow Rd. is huge for the immediate surrounding neighbourhood in terms of population 
density. 

I do not support the recommendation to not include a covenant or housing agreement as part of the 
rezoning application. When I met with the Mayor, I had recommended this approach precisely because 
relying on the "good faith," track record or intent of a developer are insufficient reasons. The developer 
is self-funding this project, so the likelihood of failure, especially over the proposed 20 to 30 year time 
span, is increased despite its track record. The PD report does not take into account the fact that 
stating an intent is not a legally binding commitment and that not including a covenant to restrict the 
property to low-income seniors rental housing would open a door for the developer to rent to other 
parties such as low-income non-seniors. I understand from anecdotal evidence that this has happened 
in the past (the society's name was formerly the Mount Douglas Court Society). In other words, if the 
CMHC has financial concerns then so should Saanich. Were the developer not self-funding they could 
likely more than make up for that crucial one percentage point through partnership funding. Since the 
PD report stresses the importance of securing affordable housing and assisting this developer as much 
as possible, there should be questions raised about the funding model chosen by the developer. 

SITE AND BUILDING DESIGN 

I am puzzled by this statement in the PD report that the developer does not support a two-storey 
building because it is not finanCially sustainable - only because they are self-funding -- nor would it 
"provide a sufficient number of dwelling units to fulfill their mandate." How many units would be 
sufficient? Why stop at 240 units for this site? By comparison, all the rental units of North Park Manor 
are smaller than the Phase 1 and 2 buildings and even at a smaller size, the one bedroom apartments 
at North Park Manor are rented only to couples. 

The developer's view impact assessment only covers Bel Nor PI. and Hopesmore Dr. What about 
Arrow Rd., Bow Rd. and Quiver Pl., all residents of which will also be impacted by Phase 1 and 2? The 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/56E14767SaanichMun_Hall... 3/10/2016 



140

Page 4 of 4 

developer's animated video only covers Bel Nor PI. and Hopesmore Dr. and shows non-existent trees 
on Hopesmore. 

I do not support the visitor parking variance. It seems i"ogical to expect that by more than doubling the 
number of units that only one additional visitor parking space would be required. If there is going to be 
increased on-site tenant parking, it follows in my mind that there will be an increase in the number of 
visitors, especially since there are now six visitor parking spots for 80 units. There should therefore be 
double the number of visitor parking spots for the proposed Phase 1. 

ROAD INFRASTRUCTURE AND TRAFFIC 

The traffic study undertaken by the developer was for one hour of one day. From a statistical viewpoint, 
I think drawing conclusions from such a low amount of data is dangerous. The PD report accepts the 
traffic study's conclusion without fully considering the study background and the amount of data 
collected. Can you really generalize and predict traffic impact on the basis of a one-hour sample? 

In terms of pedestrian safety on Arrow Rd., the PD report also does not take into account that residents 
besides those at 1550 Arrow Rd. utilize Arrow Rd. From personal experience, I can say that the 
signage, narrow road and limited sight lines do little to slow down drivers coming uphill from Cedar Hill 
Rd. or from Arrow Rd. at the entrance to Mount Douglas Court. The Bel Nor PI. to Hopesmore Dr. 
public path is flatter, but it is still on a downhill slope and there is no sidewalk on Hopesmore. There is 
also a downhill ramp to get into University Heights after crossing Cedar Hi" Road. There is only one 
bus stop on Cedar Hill Road heading towards McKenzie. From anecdotal evidence, this stop is little if 
ever used. 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY 

The pedestrian friendly streetscape would only exist along the Arrow Rd. portion of the property. 

I am encouraged that the PD report recognizes the risk that over the long term this development could 
become market rental property with no age or income restrictions, yet not securing by covenant any 
future use of this property for rental housing is protecting the developer's best interests, not those of 
Saanich or the surrounding single-family neighbourhood. 

CONCLUSION: THE UNINTENDED CONSEQUENCE 

Given the property's current unique status if rezoned to RA-3 -- making it the only such property fully 
surrounded by single-family properties on a residential road - this rezoning would represent a 
precedent. I believe Saanich wi" see other rezoning applications for both affordable and market 
housing of RA-1 and RA-2 properties also fully surrounded by RS-zoned properties. I doubt this is the 
outcome Saanich would wish for. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

David Mattison and Charlene Gregg 
L...------' Bel Nor PI. 

Victoria, BC 

cc Members of Gordon Head Residents Association 

file:IIIC :/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfT emp/XPgrpwise/56E 14 767SaanichMun_Hall... 3/10/2016 



141

Page 1 of 4 

ClerkSec - Planning Department Report, Development Permit and Rezoning Application, 
1550 Arrow Road 

From: 
To: 

Date: 
Subject: 

CC: 

"CE Gregg" 
<mayor@saanich.ca>, <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy .brownoff@saanich.ca>, 
<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, "Fred Haynes" <Fred.Haynes@saanich.ca>, 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, "Colin Plant" <Colin.Plant@saanich.ca>, 
<vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca>, 
<ClerkSec@saanich.ca> 
3/10/20169:19 AM 
Planning Department Report, Development Permit and Rezoning Application, 1550 
Arrow Road 
"Ray Travers" <rtravers@islandnet.com>,"Pete[Osteraaard __ " __ ..... 

=r------" "barbara tabata" "chris skelton" 

To: Mayor and Council 
fR1~©~Q~~[Q) 

MAR 1 0 2010 Dated: March 10, 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

Subject: Planning Department Report, Development Permit and Rezoning Application, 1550 Arrow Road -
dated February 18, 2016 

duty of procedural fairness - the principle that the individual or individuals affected should have the opportunity to present 
their easefully andfairly, and have decision affecting their rights, interests, or privileges made using afair, impartial and 

open process, appropriate to the statutory, institutional and social context of the decisions. 

On March 14, 2016 Saanich Mayor and Council will be asked to make an important decision on the rezoning of 
1550 Arrow Road. The results of the decision will impact this property and the surrounding area over the next 
30-40 years. It is vital that a fair and impartial hearing should be considered in the spirit of procedural fairness 
for all parties in this application. So far Council has heard the developer's objectives supported through much of 
the Planning Department's Report. It is time for Council to hear from the neglected party in this application, the 
neighbourhood surrounding 1550 Arrow Road. It has been stated in recent correspondence form the community 
and the Arrow Road Action Committee to Mayor and Council that the neighbourhood supports low cost senior's 
housing at 1550 Arrow Road in 2 story buildings with double the number of current residents. 

Report: 

This report should be commended for the extensive consultation and shared information that has been provided 
by the developer. However, that in itself has been a major contributing factor in the resulting strongly biased 
approach. Much of the information and supporting studies provided as background have been taken directly 
from the Mount Douglas Court website. There is little evidence of balancing the requirements of the 
development against the voiced concerns of the neighbourhood. This report cannot be considered strictly a 
neutral informational assessment of this development, it is in reality an unconditional endorsement. The 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/56E13COESaanichMun_Hal... 3/10/2016 



142

Page 2 of4 

majority of the supporting materials have been sensitively selected to provide little more than a one-sided 
argument without responsibly representing opposing concerns. Notably absent from the report is mention of 
the social well-being of the immediate community beyond the property lines of the site. 

Low-cost Seniors Housing: 

Neighbours of 1550 Arrow Road have supported and accepted low-cost housing for seniors in this location for 
many years and are aware that there will be an increased need for housing of this type in the future. However, 
the proposed expansion of Mount Douglas Court needs to be considered with acknowledgement of some issues: 
what is the best fit for the neighbourhood, suits the character, respects the surrounding homes, and explores 
the difficulties with the placement of institutional buildings in fully residential neighbourhoods. In our opinion 
this report does not address those issues. We would respectfully ask Council to question the conclusions offered 
in the Planning Report when considering acceptance of this application. 

Concerns: 

Over the last few months identified concerns of the neighbourhood have been forwarded to the Planning 
Department and Mayor and Council. The Arrow Road Action Committee, a group of neighbours created to 
inform the community about this development has been in contact with and heard from 90+ neighbours about 
their concerns. These include: 

• the proposed density at 3 times the current population 

• buildings too high in comparison to surrounding homes 
• overshadowing with close set-backs 

• a dangerous residential road that is narrow, steep, lacking formal sidewalks, unsuitable for the 
current number of pedestrians that will become treacherous when the population of 1550 Arrow 

expands three fold 

• RA-3 rezoning creating an anomaly in Saanich thereby setting a precedent for future 

developments situated in fully residential areas 

• parking issues 

• lack of adherence to sections ofthe Official Community Plan, Gordon Head Local Area Plan, and 

the proposed Shelbourne Valley Action Plan 

• the uncertainty of future uses for accommodation without a restrictive covenant 

• a two-phase development plan that supports an unknown reality for Phase 2 requiring only a 
Development Permit Application to proceed. 

Neighbourhood Context: 

Mayor and Council members may recall from recent neighbourhood tours and information packages 
provided by the Arrow Road Action Committee that this established neighbourhood of single family one 

and two story homes sits in an area distinctly separated from the busy arterial centre of McKenzie/Shelbourne 
Ave. The report would lead one to think that our neighbourhood is merely an urban area adjacent to a IIwide 
range of commercial and retail services 300 metres awayll. The reality is that our neighbourhood is as far 
removed from that description as possible. We are more than a one dimensional location on a plan; we are a 
cohesive vibrant community and Mount Douglas Court is a part of that community.The road fronting Mount 
Douglas Court is a very narrow residential road that is steep, meanders up a hill and down the other side. 
Residents who travel Arrow Road after leaving Cedar Hill soon find themselves transported onto a quiet 
residential area. It is not surprising that some residents in the area have called this their home for over 30 years. 
The current building for Mount Douglas Court is an unobtrusive two story building that fits well into the 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTempIXPgrpwise/56E13COESaanichMun_Hal... 3/10/2016 



143

Page 3 of4 

streetscape and established neighbourhood. When this property was first developed in 1970 the surrounding 
area was farm land, with green space and a few homes. It was originally zoned residential. The proposal to now 
construct a complex of 3 and 4 story buildings with more than 240 residents in a fully residential neighbourhood 
is difficult to imagine and will forever change our community. 

Reading the report one might also think that this development was situated in isolated site without context or 
neighbours. This might be news to the 24+ residents who live directly adjacent to the Arrow Road site, pay taxes, 
vote in municipal elections and consider themselves residents of Saanich with some rights and privileges. There 
is an expectation that concerns arising as a consequence of development should be seriously considered by the 
District of Saanich. Neighbourhood context forms an important part of the Planning Policy for Saanich: 

Official Community Plan - 4.2.4.4 "Support institutional land uses that fit with the character of residential 
neighbourhoods. "; 4.2.4.2 "Evaluate zoning applications for multiple family developments on the basis of 
neighbourhood context, site size, scale, density, parking capacity". Gordon Head Local Area Plan - 5.5 "Use 
development permits to ensure that new multi-family developments respect the scale of adjacent uses and the 
environment character of Gordon Head." Draft SVAP - 5.4.6 "Encourage seniors housing in walk-able areas 
convenient to services and without hilly topography."; Draft SVAP Land Use objectives - "Provide gradual 
transitions of height and density with the apex near the core of each Centre and Village transitioning to the lowest 
height and density at the periphery. " Development Permit Area Guideline - "designing buildings to reflect the 
character of surrounding developments with special attention to height; providing high quality architecture;" 

The Planning Report clearly identifies responsibilities" ... even with the redevelopment of an existing site, 
consideration must be given to neighbourhood concems, and often those concerns can be addressed through 
good design. A key consideration with development proposals such as this is balancing the benefits provided to 
the broader community with the potential impacts on the existing neighbourhood." However, there is scant 
evidence that these responsibilities were fully addressed. There are two references in the report that discuss 
comments from neighbours - traffic concerns and support for 2 stories. Discussion of the shadowing issue 

merely states: " .. the addition of a three-story building in this location would be a change for neighbouring 

properties ... " Championing the benefits to the broader community has been the central component of this 
report at the expense of the existing neighbourhood. 

Risks: 

The report mentions risks but suggests little to alleviate their burdens for home owners. By approving this 
development risks will be forever transferred onto the neighbourhood: 

• risk of negative impacts of Phase One, density, height, overshadowing, privacy. 
• risk that without a restrictive covenant the development could become market rental with no age or 

income restrictions without requiring Council approval 
• risk to traffic/pedestrians on Arrow Road - "One positive aspect of the limited sight lines and narrow 

roadway is that they inherently provide traffic calming". This sentence taken from the applicant's traffic 
study cannot be considered a responsible rationale for a road that does not meet even the current safety 
needs for the neighbourhood. 

• risk to adjacent neighbours of water issues. Surprisingly there is no mention in the report of the seasonal 
flooding of the northern portion of the site. The report mentioned storm water management but does 
not directly address the pond that sits on the property from fall to spring. 

• risk of the unknown future for Phase 2 

Conclusion: 

Background and supporting documentation in this report has been determinedly selected to ensure the 
approval of this development. Local issues and neighbourhood concerns have either been diminished or not 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/56E13COESaanichMun_Hal... 3/10/2016 



144

Page 4 of4 

identified, while the needs of the developer are the central focus. We would respectfully ask Council to seriously 
and impartially consider their obligation to all parties, question the conclusions offered by the Planning 
Department and acknowledge that the neighbourhood supports two story buildings with double the number of 
current residents for 1550 Arrow Road when making their decision regarding this application. 

Submitted by: 

Charlene Gregg -'-------...... 

David Mattison -

Barb Geddes -

Morven Wilson -
----------------~ 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTempIXPgrpwise/56E13COESaanichMun_Hal... 3/10/2016 



145

Council - For Committee of the Whole: Survey Document 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

"Morven Wilso 
<council@saanich.ca> 
3/10/20166:58 AM 
For Committee of the Whole: Survey Document 

Page 1 of 1 

Attachments: Survey Letter to Council.pdf; MDC Survey Response for Council.pdf 

Committee of the Whole: 2016 March 14 
Agenda Item: 1550 Arrow Road: Report to Council 

Please provide the Mayor and councilors with this survey document and its associated cover letter for their 
information. 

[The two should go together as a single package, please.] 

Thank you. 

Morven Wilson - on behalf of the Arrow Road Action Committee 

[R1~©~DW~[Q) 
MAR 10 2010 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

fil,::..,"r. ·1I1~p.r~/()rr~/AnnD;:da/LocalfT emo/XParowise/56E11 B32SaanichMun Hall... 3/10/2016 



146

Mayor Richard Atwell and Councillors 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Arrow.residents@gmail.com 
2016 March 10 

Results of a Survey of Neighbours of Mount Douglas Court: 1550 Arrow Road 

The Arrow Road Action Committee recently conducted an online survey amongst the 87 
members of its email distribution list. 

We had a very good participation rate: 72% of the membership. 

As you can see from the accompanying survey report1 "MOC Survey Response for Councif' 
there was 
• overwhelming opposition (97%) to the proposal in its current version, and 
• overwhelming opposition (93%) to any future proposal that would involve buildings taller 

than two stories. 

Nevertheless, we wish to remind you that as concerned residents of this neighbourhood, 
we would still like to create a win-win situation by: 

• accommodating the demonstrated need for additional, safe, low-income seniors housing, 
• maintaining the ambience and lifestyle of our neighbourhood of single family homes for 

both local residents and MDC tenants. 

To achieve these two aims we tried to reach agreement with the developer on a scaled-back, 
compromise solution. However, he has refused any compromise. 

Therefore, we will likely ask Saanich Council to require the developer to withdraw his proposal 
and submit a new proposal that 

• provides up to double the number of low-income units now on site (from 80 to 160), 
• uses buildings no taller than two stories, and 
• complies fully with the key planning visions, goals, principles, and policies found in sections 

of the Official Community Plan, the Gordon Head Local Area Plan, and the proposed 
Shelbourne Valley Action Plan. 

Respectfu lIy, 

The Members of the Arrow Road Action Committee: 
M. Buckland, C. Gregg, B. Geddes, L. Jackson, D. Mattison, W. Weicker, M. Wilson 

Cc: Gordon Head Residents Association 

1 We asked participants for their email addresses to ensure that the responses were authentic, but we assured them that we 
would keep their email addresses private. Accordingly, email addresses are not shown in the document. 



14
7

1550 Arrow Road Redevelopment Concerns Survey Results An Online Survey of Area Residents 

Response # 
1 
2 
3 

4 

5 

6 
7 
8 
9 
10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

Q1: Do you fully support the current proposal: a 3 story building in Phase 1 and a 3-and-4 story building in Phase 2 for a total of 240 units? 
63 responses: 61 opposed, 2 supporting - 97% opposed. 

Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 

Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 

Q2: Do you oppose any development higher than 2 stories? 
63 responses: 59 opposed, 4 supporting - 93% opposed. 

Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 

Support 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 

I Optional: Your comments and feedback are welcome 

As I live right next door to the 3-4 story proposal I am concerned with the intrusion both on Arrow Rd in terms of optics and 
volume of traffic, This is a single family and single structure neighbourhood which Saanich has allowed to develop as such and 
now they are considering a reversal of their original plan. Many have invested in this area and are now being asked to accept 
this intrusion and infusion. Not fair. 
This development is out of scale for a single-family residential neighborhood and will open the door for similar developments in 
any other single-family residential neighborhood in Saanich. The local area plans for the Gordon Head and the Shelbourne 
areas, along with the proposed Shelbourne Valley Action Plan, do not support either the density or location of this 
redevelopment. Under current zoning, likely its existing RA-1 would not even have been allowed had this large property been 
vacant and zoned residential. 
I could support 3 stories with additional screening but not 4. 

I do not think this property should have more than 180 units total 

Has anyone approached the municipality about pushing Feltham Rd through to Mckenzie .There was a right of way for that and 
believe it is still there. Why should Arrow Road and Oakwinds be the answer to Saanich traffic problems 
I will not support a change in the current zoning 
We bought our home on Oakdale Place not only because of the beautiful quiet cui de sac, but also the quiet surrounding area, 
low traffic on Arrow Rd, yet close to shopping, major roadway & the Feltham walking trails. Our neighbourhood will no longer be 
a quiet one with the present proposal. 
I think the ARAC suggestions for modifications are very good and quite reasonable. I think Peter Daniels is being rigid and 
inflexible and indifferent to residents concerns. I helped to canvass the neighbourhood and 90% of the people we spoke to were 
opposed to the height and density of the development. The entire neighbourhood is opposed to this development not just a few 
individuals. Peter Daniels is again being disingenuous in describing his development, our neighbourhood which is not designed 
for this kind of development, nor like other neighbourhoods which have this size and density of seniors housing, and in his 
description of the residents response which has been opposed to the development since we became fully aware of its scope and 
impact on our neighbourhood. . .. Arrow Road resident. 

Oppose Support It must be frustrating to deal with a project manager whose goal is to build the structure as is ... and instead has to deal with the 
neighbors around the senior home. I think it does not matter whether 8 or 20 or even 87 neighbors knock on his door ... his goal 

15 is to build the structure as planned. This project goes to Saanich Council in 4 weeks. My voice will be simple but I will try to email 
both Peter and our mayor. I really appreciate the work you 8 do ... it isn't easy to get 8 folks to attend meetings. 

Printed on 2016-03-10 at 06:50 Page 1 of 4 Arrow Road Action Committee 



14
8

1550 Arrow Road Redevelopment Concerns Survey Results An Online Survey of Area Residents 

R~!i~()n~~tL 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 
23 
24 
25 
26 

27 

28 
29 
30 
31 

Q1: Do you fully support the current proposal: a 3 story building in Phase 1 and a 3-and-4 story building in Phase 2 for a total of 240 units? 
63 responses: 61 opposed, 2 supporting - 97% opposed. 

Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 

Oppose 

Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Support 

Q2: Do you oppose any development higher than 2 stories? 
63 responses: 59 opposed, 4 supporting - 93% opposed. 

I Optional: Your comments and feedback are welcome 
Oppose 
Oppose We have lived in our residence on Quiver Place for over 36 years and enjoy the surrounding neighbourhood for its beauty, 

serenity and well planned residential development. A new seniors complex with a height up to four floors is too high fo the 
existing neighbourhood homes close to the location on Arrow Rd. 

Oppose 

Oppose 

Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 

Oppose 
Oppose 
Oppose 
Support 

We oppose the plan that is being promoted by project manager Peter Daniel. 
Saanich Council must not let this application proceed and ruin the very desirable community that it created over the last five 
decades. 
We are confident that an amiable compromise can be reached by both parties but Saanich Council will need to take the lead in 
future discussions. 
The current road, car and pedestrian traffic as well as hydro and utility issues need to be addressed for the existing residents of 
Arrow Rd. Failure to meet this need and facilitate the proposed plans for 1550 Arrow would prove to be a massive disregard for 
the existing residents. Saanich council and the proposed developer have extensive work to do before they line their own 
pockets. 
At the beginning of the process I asked if not building was an option. The answer was a definitive "No". Talking to anyone 
except the Mayor and Council I think is a waste of time. 

In addition to the proposed heights of the building, I am concerned and opposed to the overall density proposed. It is not in 
keeping with the neighborhood or with the density of other complexes, most of which are on major routes. 

I feel very strongly that the Mount Douglas Court Housing Society should revise their proposals for Phase 1 & Phase 2 to 
incorporate only two story structures as anything higher than two stories will significantly impact the residential nature of our 
community in many ways such as denisty, safety, etc .. The capacity of the development should not exceed 200 housing units. In 
addition, I feel that the District of Saanich should incorporate a restrictive covenant in the rezoning decision to ensure that all 
housing units are leased or rented only to residents who are 55 years old or older. If the MDCHS is unwilling to consider other 
alternative designs, then the rezoning decision should be declined by Saanich Council. 

Printed on 2016-03-10 at 06:50 Page 2 of4 Arrow Road Action Committee 



14
9

1550 Arrow Road Redevelopment Concerns Survey Results An Online Survey of Area Residents 

Q1: Do you fully support the current proposal: a 3 story building in Phase 1 and a 3-and-4 story building in Phase 2 for a total of 240 units? 
63 responses: 61 opposed, 2 supporting - 97% opposed. 

Q2: Do you oppose any development higher than 2 stories? 
63 responses: 59 opposed, 4 supporting - 93% opposed. 

Response # I Optional: Your comments and feedback are welcome 

Oppose Oppose Car and pedestrian traffic on Arrow Road will be more dangerous and deadly.. Even now if two cars meet, one has to drive onto 
32 the sidewalk when driving past the other one. Also, there will be more housing residents loitering on Arrow Road standing and 

smoking, discarding butts, and in the way of children walking to school, or other local foot traffic. 
33 Oppose Oppose 

Support Support We have the need for low-income seniors housing, we have the space there and developers who are committed to providing it. 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 

47 

48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 

Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 

Oppose Oppose 

Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 

Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 

Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 
Oppose Oppose 

Printed on 2016-03-10 at 06:50 

The shadow studies do not show blockage of sunlight to any neighbours. The services - groceries, buses, etc., are close by. It is 
fine to say NIMBY; the Shelbourne corridor has lots of development already, including housing for seniors of means - we need 
people and funding committed to providing for our vulnerable population - seniors without means. The Anglican church is willing 
to do this. Are any of you? Be part of the solution 

I find it very upsetting and disturbing that the developper is not willing to make any compromises in order to create housing that 
is suitable for our residential neighbourhood and that aligns with the official community plan for area. This should not be allowed. 

I am ok with density changes to residential areas but 240 units way beyond what should be allowed. Additionally, to rezone for 3 
stories in that neighbourhood is too high. A modest number of people in an appropriately heighted building is more acceptable. 

The road is to small no sidewalk. It is to congested as it is. 
Too large a development and too much traffic for this narrow residential street. The size of the current development and perhaps 
a little more is okay but what is proposed is inappropriate. Thank you for your consideration 
there is too much traffic on Arrow as it is, More is not better !! 
Increased Traffic will definitely be an issue if higher density is allowed. 

I'm concerned how this will change our low density housing neighbourhood. 

We have concerns that the proposed height of the development will not fit in visually with the neighbourhood. We also believe 
that the density (# of units) will create traffic problems on Arrow Road. It will also increase the risk to pedestrians, including 
those that live in the senior's housing, on Arrow Road between Cedar Hill Road and Oakwinds. 

As a resident of 1550 Arrow Rd. I am most concerned about the narrow Arrow Rd. 
Already provided to council, ARAC, and GHRA 

Page 30f4 Arrow Road Action Committee 



15
0

1550 Arrow Road Redevelopment Concerns Survey Results An Online Survey of Area Residents 

Q1: Do you fully support the current proposal: a 3 story building in Phase 1 and a 3-and-4 story building in Phase 2 for a total of 240 units? 
63 responses: 61 opposed, 2 supporting - 97% opposed. 

Q2: Do you oppose any development higher than 2 stories? 
63 responses: 59 opposed, 4 supporting - 93% opposed. 

Response # Optional: Your comments and feedback are welcome 

54 Oppose Oppose 
55 Oppose Oppose 
56 Oppose Oppose 
57 Oppose Oppose 
58 Oppose Oppose 
59 Oppose Oppose 
60 Oppose Oppose 
61 Oppose Oppose 
62 Oppose Oppose 
63 Oppose Oppose 

In Summary: 

Oppose: 61 59 
Support: 2 4 Our survey went out to the 87 members of the ARAC distribution list; we received 63 response - a very good 72% response rate. 
% opposition: 97% 93% 

Printed on 2016-03-10 at 06:50 Page 4 of4 Arrow Road Action Committee 



151

Council - Materials for Committee of the Whole: March 14 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

"Morven Wilson" 
<council@saanich.ca> 
3/10/20166:29 AM 
Materials for Committee of the Whole: March 14 
Newsletter Edition 1.pdf; Newsletter Edition 2.pdf 

Committee ofthe Whole: 2016 March 14 
Agenda Item: 1550 Arrow Road: Report to Council 

Page 1 of 1 

Please provide the Mayor and councilors with these two newsletters for their information. 

Thank you. 

Morven Wilson - on behalf of the Arrow Road Action Committee 

!Ri~©~D\yJ~[Q) 

MAR 10 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
O!S"! ,:'ICT or S,t..ANICH 

frl(::"'"r.·III~F'r~/()rr~/Annn~t~/1 nr.~IITp.mn/XPnrnwi~p./f)nF11450SaanichMun Hall... 3/10/2016 



152

To house low-income seniors, the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society proposes to build a 240-unit, 
3-and-4 story apartment complex at 1550 Arrow Road, triple the size of the existing building of 80 units. The 
Society will request RA-3 rezoning (for large apartment blocks) to accommodate this. 

Scores of local residents have expressed serious concerns about the massive scale of this development: 
completely out-of-character and totally out-of-scale with our quiet neighbourhood of single-family homes. 

The Arrow Road Action Committee (ARAC) is a team of seven local residents working to represent many other 
local residents. We have tried to find a compromise with the developer that would provide additional 
accommodation for low-income seniors while preserving the character of our neighbourhood 

This newsletter is to inform you of ARAC's existence and the current situation, and to encourage you to make 
your own views known to the Saanich Mayor and Council. 

It is clear that a genuine need exists in the broader 
community for additional housing for low-income 
seniors. We recognise that need and we support 
additional housing for low-income seniors at 
Mount Douglas Court. 

However, this huge redevelopment proposal 
raises serious neighbourhood concerns and 
ignores several Saanich planning principles. 

Our Neighbourhood at Present: a quiet, 
established, low-rise residential area composed of 
well-maintained, single family residences of one or 
two stories situated on low-traffic, no-through roads 
and cul-de-sacs. The existing Mount Douglas Court 
(MDC) building and its tenants fit well into our 
neighbourhood: the two-story structure sits in the 
middle of a large lot with trees and green space that 
feels well situated. We welcome Mount Douglas 
Court tenants as our neighbours. 

Our Concerns: While we fully support housing at 
Mount Douglas Court, we cannot support a 
redevelopment proposal that includes RA-3 rezoning 
for three-story and four-story buildings that will 
increase the number of units on this property from 80 
to 240. This is a huge increase in size and 
density, totally out-of-scale and out-of-character 
with our neighbourhood. 

Our website: https:/Isites.google.com/site/arrowrezoning/ 

CONCERN: The proposal is inconsistent with 
Saanich's Official Community Plan, Gordon Head 
Local Area Plan, and Shelbourne Valley Action 
Plan (SVAP). Its three-story and four-story buildings 
do not adhere to the planning guidelines set forth in 
these plans which cluster higher density and taller 
buildings along the valley's major arterial roads and 
'centres', and transitions to the lowest height and 
density at the periphery. Although 1550 Arrow is 
covered by the SVAP, that plan contains no 
indication of any future changes to the current land 
use designation of the property. Indeed, Section 5.4 
of the SVAP supports siting apartment buildings only 
on major and collector roads. 

In addition, the SVAP specifically notes that seniors' 
housing shall be permitted in all areas designated for 
apartment housing, except that "seniors housing 
should be discouraged in areas with hilly 
topography"-which is exactly that lengthy section 
of Arrow Road between Cedar Hill Road and Mount 
Douglas Court. The proposal does not even adhere 
to the height principles carefully illustrated on pages 
36-39 of the Saanich Land Use Plan, Section 3. 

CONCERN: RA-3 zoning is inappropriate for this 
site. The proposal would make this property the 
largest low-income seniors apartment complex in 
Saanich and it would be one of the largest low
income seniors apartment complexes in the CRD, on 

Our email: arrow.residents@gmail.com 



153

one of Saanich's narrowest roads. We have not 
found any other RA-3 property in Saanich that is 
located within a fully residential neighbourhood. 
If Saanich approves this change to RA-3, we believe 
it would set a serious and damaging precedent for 
other single-family neighbourhoods. 

CONCERN: Proposal Worsens Existing Traffic 
Issues: with Phase 1 and Phase 2 finished, 240+ 
residents with their estimated 120 vehicles will 
further strain Arrow Road-a busy, poorly aligned, 
badly maintained, narrow and dangerous street with 
a steep blind hill and limited vision. From Cedar Hill 
Road to the end of the Mount Douglas Court 
property there is only a painted white line separating 
vehicles from pedestrians and cyclists. If this 
proposal is approved then the chance of accidents 
on Arrow Road will be greatly increased. The 
expanded Mount Douglas Court will generate a 
significant increase in the number of visitors, 
caregivers, service vehicles, emergency vehicles, 
recycling, and garbage pickup, thereby creating 
more activity and noise for the entire neighbourhood. 

What We Do Support and Why: we support 
construction of new, two-story buildings for the 
following reasons: 
• Two-story buildings would conform with the 

Shelbourne Valley Action Plan: such density 
would be a much better fit into our low-rise 
neighbourhood while still allowing for additional 
units of housing for low-income seniors. The 
existing two-story building is barely visible from 
most surrounding lots, except those on Arrow 
and part of Hopesmore: new buildings of the 
same height would not seriously affect the 
surrounding streetscapes. 

• Two-story buildings would mitigate safety. 
traffic and parking Issues: new buildings 
restricted to two stories would mean a smaller 
increase in the number of seniors with vehicles 
using Arrow Road-meaning fewer pedestrians 
would be at risk from increased traffic. 

In Conclusion: As concerned residents of this 
neighbourhood, we would like to: 

(1) accommodate the demonstrated need for 
additional, safe, low-income seniors housing, 
(2) maintain the ambience and lifestyle of our 
neighbourhood for all residents and tenants. 

To achieve these two aims we tried to reach a 
compromise with the developer in order to maintain 
the character of our residential neighbourhood. For 
example, we asked that 12 units be removed from 
Phase 2 in order to reduce its height to three stories. 
However, we could reach no compromise. 

Therefore, we will be asking Saanich Council to 
require the developer to withdraw his proposal 
and resubmit a new proposal that (i) provides no 
more than double the number of units now on 
site, (ii) uses buildings no taller than two stories, 
and (iii) complies fully with the Official 
Community Plan, Gordon Head Local Area Plan, 
and Shelbourne Valley Action Plan. 

Useful Contacts: full contact information is also at 
our web site (see page footer). 

To make your views known to Saanich we 
recommend that you phone or mail: 

Richard Atwell Mayor 250-475-5510 
Susan Brice Councillor 250-598-6209 
Judy Brownoff Councillor 250-727-2008 
Vic Derman Councillor 250-479-0302 
Fred Haynes Councillor 250-708-0431 
Dean Murdock Councillor 250-889-0242 
Colin Plant Councillor 250-514-1439 
Vicki Sanders Councillor 250-592-0865 
Leif Wergeland Councillor 250-658-6558 

Mail: 770 Vernon Ave, Victoria BC vax 2W7 

Gordon Head Residents' Association email: 
contact@gordonhead.ca 

To be notified of Public Hearings reo 1550 Arrow 
Road, call Legislative Services at 250-475-1775 

The ARAC email address is in the page footer; please send us your opinions, and let us know if you would 
like to be added to our email distribution list. Your email address will NOT be shared or made public and will 
be used by ARAC solely to keep you informed of our activities on your behalf. 

Online Survey of Resident's Opinions on the Proposal: 

We have circulated an online survey to the 87 email addresses that we have on our email distribution list. After 
two weeks we have received 53 responses opposing the current proposal and 2 responses supporting it. You 
may participate in our survey at our survey web site: http://bit.ly/1NMpBS9 (N.B., case sensitive). 

Our website: https:/Isites.google.com/site/arrowrezoning/ Our email: arrow.residents@gmail.com 



154

If You Are Concerned Then Make Your Views Known 

The Saanich Council 'Committee of the Whole' will consider Saanich Planning's Report on the 
application for rezoning and development of 1550 Arrow Road at its meeting on Monday, March 14, 
2016 at 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers, Saanich Municipal Hall. All attendees have an 
opportunity to make a five-minute presentation to Mayor and Council. Even if you do not wish to make 
a presentation, we urge you to attend this meeting, as it is important for Council to see the number of 
residents concerned about the overwhelming scale and out-of-character nature of this proposal. You 
may be certain that the developer will ensure a large turnout of his supporters - even if they do not 
live in the immediate neighbourhood. 

The Report recommends approval of the rezoning application for 1550 Arrow Road, and that will be 
an important consideration for the Mayor and Council when they make their decision. However, the 
Arrow Road Action Committee finds the Report to be very one-sided, drawing heavily on propaganda 
from the developer while down-playing or ignoring the concerns of many neighbouring residents. 

The 'Committee of the Whole' meeting is the only opportunity that residents have to encourage 
Council to reshape this proposal: Council could accept or reject the proposal, or attach conditions to 
it. Then, at a subsequent 'Public Hearing' stage, the proposal would simply be approved or rejected: 
there will be no further opportunity to change it. 

If you wish Council to reduce the size and density of this proposal, or to impose restrictions 
on property use or future development allowances (e.g., floor space ratio, density, market-rent, non
senior tenants, etc.) then Council might change the proposal now, but definitely not later. 

If you are unable to attend the 'Committee of the Whole' meeting to make your views known then you 
may submit them in an e-mail or letter to Council. Written correspondence received up to 4:00 p.m., 
on the day of the meeting will be copied to Council members for their consideration. However, we 
suggest that you send your correspondence well ahead of that deadline to ensure that Councilors 
have time to read it, perhaps by Friday March 11. 

Correspondence may be sent to Mayor Richard Atwell & Council, 770 Vernon Ave., Victoria, 
BC vax 2W7, or clerksec@saanich.ca or mayor@saanich.ca or council@saanich.ca All 
correspondence submitted will form part of the public record and will be published in the agenda. 

Full details of the proposal, the concerns we have heard, and our constructive counter proposal, are 
on our website (see page footer). 

Thank you for your interest and support. We look forward to seeing you on March 14. 

The Arrow Road Action Committee: Barb, Charlene, David, Loti, Marg, Morven, Warren 

Our website: https://sites.google.com/site/arrowrezoning/ Our email: arrow.residents@gmail.com 



155

Council - Regarding 1550 Arrow Road 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

Judy Wilson 
<council@saanich.ca> 
3/8/2016 12:52 PM 
Regarding 1550 Arrow Road 

COPYT 
INFORMATION 
REPlY TO WRITER 

Page 1 of 1 

POSTED 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISlATIVE OMSION 
REPORT 0 

FOR --+=t--:-::~r----
ACKNOWLEDGED" 

I just read the Report from Saanich Planning concerning the rezoning of 1550 Arrow Road. I 
was horrified to see the size and density of the proposed development to this property that is 
situated in the middle of a single family neighborhood. The magnitude of these 2 buildings is 
overwhelming. 

And all arguments in this document are slanted in favour of the developer. It reads as if it 
already a done deal. 

The document also states that the Gordon Head Residents Association has approved the 
development and yet this association never contacted the residents living in this neighborhood 
to ask us for our opinion before they gave their go ahead. Wrong! 

A development of this size belongs on a major road not in the middle of a single family 
neighborhood where a 3 story building and then a 4 story building will tower over single family 
homes. 

There are aerial views of the property. However, there is no street view from Arrow of what 
these buildings would look like. 

And I frankly don't believe the shadow diagrams that I have seen as the current one is different 
from one I saw in the original proposal. Of course those huge buildings will deprive 
surrounding one story homes of light. 

I vote no to rezoning. 

I can only hope that council says "no" to a complex of this size and asks the developer to come 
back with plans for 2 story buildings that will fit in well and complement the existing 
neig hborhood. 

I also hope council demands the developer provide sidewalks all the way to Cedar Hill Road 
(not just in front of their land) and upgrades to the current, dangerous Arrow Road. 
Construction vehicles will certainly add to the deterioration of this narrow "walker unfriendly" 
road. 

Respectfully, 

Jud~Wilson 
Hopemore Drive 

1.....-----1 

Cheers, 
Judy 

[Rj~©~DW~[Q) 
MAR 09 2010 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56DECAFCSaanichMun_Hall... 3/9/2016 



156

Page 1 of 1 

ClerkSec - Mount Douglas Court Housing Society (MDSHS) 

From: 
To: 

Date: 
Subject: 
CC: 

Alf Birch > 
<mayor@saanich.ca>, <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 
<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, 
<dean.murdoch@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, 
<vicki.sanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca> 
3/7/20169:11 PM 
Mount Douglas Court Housing SOCiety (MDSHS)'-______ ---. 
<assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca>, Robbi Birch 1 (' 

We live atc=:J Livingstone Close, very near Mount Douglas Court. We drive or walk by the 
seniors' housing complex almost every day and are always glad to know there are places such 
as this for seniors with limited financial means. We believe affordable housing for seniors and 
others is one of the great needs in our society. 

We have studied the development plans which MDCHS has prepared. They appear to balance 
the need to maximize the number of units on the property, keep the cost of units affordable 
(such as avoiding underground parking construction expense), maintain a pleasant living 
environment (unit design, green space, etc) and minimize the impact of the development on 
the neighbourhood (sight lines, traffic, etc). 

We feel strongly that this is an important project which will support a growing seniors' 
population in our region. Mount Douglas Court residents have proven to be good neighbours 
for over 40 years. The alternative, if this development were to go elsewhere and a larger, 
commercial development were to take its place, would be much less acceptable. We therefore 
urge Saanich Council to approve the requested rezoning. 

Yours sincerely, 

Alfred and Roberta Birch 

~~©~~\§~[Q) 
MAR 08 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

POSTED 

tC::OP::-:-Y=TO-:~~~~~:.~-=.~~~~-I 
~ ~ 

INFORM,4TION - ~ 

REPLY TO WRITER ~ 
COpy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVlCiJ)I' g 

REPORT 0 '''c ~ 1, 

FOR I I 
ACKNOWlEDGED' }j (. r Y 1 -== I 

file:///C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56DE94BESaanichMun_Hall .. . 3/8/2016 



157

Council - Arrow Road Rezoning 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 
CC: 

4L1WiJ 

"sue colgate" 
<council@saanich.ca> 
3/7/20168:09 PM 
Arrow Road Rezoning 
<mayor@saanich.ca> 

XLZZ m'tm 

> 

"MES 

Page 1 of 1 

~~©~~'iW~[Q) 
MAR 08 2016 

-~-------------------------.-.---------------.. --.--------I--t,;..--EGISbA:r:I.vE-DI.vI~GN·-_lf..----·-·-

DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

Good evening, 
My name is Susan Colgate. I live at Arrow Road, Victoria, Be. I would just like you to know that I fully 
support the proposal for rezoning and developing of the Mount Doug Senior Housing Development on Arrow 
Road. 
Sincerely, 
Susan Colgate 

POSTED 

lfNFDflMATlO:N:-~~'-----
~ REPLY TO WRITER 

.~ COpy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
iliEPORT 0 
'I FOR_ 
i :!:, I(~IOWlE:-O-GE-fJ-' -r.:::::n.~:::-----
.. .. . ·'" .. · .·~'~"·e;:;~ .... ~====f 

file:///C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56DDE014SaanichMun_Hall... 3/8/2016 



158

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

David Nichol 
<clerksec@saan .ca> 
3/1/201612:19 PM 
Re Zone of 1550 Arrow Rd 

the re-zoning application of the above property, I am a. year resident of Arrow Rd 
o......:-~~----' . Over this time I have seen the traffic on Arrow Rd. increase 10-foldbeginning with the 
development of the end of Arrow rd and Livingstone, all single family homes, a development which stanch 
encouraged. 

The increase in density inherent in the application before us would add to the population in this 
neighbourhood and would change the character of this single family neighbourhood. With the 
development of Hopesmore sub devision to the north and east of this application this neighbourhood was 
fully supported by Stanch. With the introduction of the Melbourne Valley Plan. We were further 
encouraged by saanich's insulting neighbourhoods like ours from increased density, a situation that is 
being challenged by this development application. 

As I live adjacent to the property in question, separated by a 15 Foot Hedge my Privacy is now being 
threatened by the Zoning proposal of a 4 Storey possibility towering above the hedge in a Single family 
Characterized neighbourhood. I find this intolerable. 

I would also like to restate my earlier concerns expresses in a letter to council noting the anticipated 
increase in traffic not only for service trucks but for residents. The units proposed for the property in 
stage one number 100, while the number of actual residents I estimate could number 30% more if 
couples are accommodated. The traffic both pedestrian and auto, hands- dart, taxi or private will 
overpower an already inadequate Arrow Rd with Blind Vision warnings. the Sidewalk is so terrible that 
50% of the present residents walk on the road. The footing is uneven resembling a country trail. Arrow 
continues to be usednas a short cut for cedar Hill traffic wishing to avoid the traffic light at Mckenzie. 
During the times from 730 am to 930 am 5 cars pe minute cut thru the neighbourhood. 

Please consider with due diligence the goal of the SV Action Plan and the experiences of the 
neighbourhoods single family dwellers. 

Davi8d Nicholls 

for committee of the whole POST TO POSTED 

C~TO __ ~~~ ________ __ 

INFORMATION 
REPLY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
REPORT 0 

FOR ---""t=:J~r-----:::::----
ACKNOWLEDGED':W' r() == 

[f{j~©~llW@:[Q) 
MAR 02 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
ISTRICT OF AANI H 



159

( , 

From: yw:J 
To: 
Date: 

<council@saanich.ca>, <mayor@saanich.ca>, <planning@saanich.ca> 
2/18/20169:21 PM 

Subject: Rezoning of 1550 Arrow Road 

As residents of Hopesmore Drive and neighbours of this property we would like to add our concerns to 
those of the citizens group opposed to the current plans regarding this property. 
We agree with the conclusions of the Arrow Road Action Committee and hope that the pOints raised will 
be taken into consideration when rezoning of this property comes before council. We also would like to 
see the future buildings on this property restricted to two stories. 
Deborah Crichton 
Alex Crichton 

Hopesmore Drive 

REPLY TO WRITER 
COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE OMSION 

REPORT 0 ~ 
FOR I/~ ' 

ACKNOWLEDGED' hi m 

[R1~©~O\'§~[Q) 
FEB 1 9 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

J(e~. 



FEB 1 2 2016 
LEGISLATIVE ' 

Page 1 of 1 

Council - Proposed Expansion of Mount Douglas Court 

From: Charles Laidlaw < > 
To: "mayor@saanich.ca" <mayor@saanich.ca>, "council@saanich.ca" <council@saanich.ca>, 

"editor@saanichnews.com" <editor@saanichnews.com> 
Date: 2/11/2016 11:00 AM 
Subject: Proposed Expansion of Mount Douglas Court 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

I'm writing in regard to the proposed expansion of the Mount Douglas Court complex at 1550 Arrow 
Road (File: DPR00614 REZ00559). 
Phase 1 of the project would entail building a three storey structure to replace the existing two storey 
building, and expanding the capacity from 80 to 100 units. Phase 2 would have an additional four 
storey structure built on the site, allowing for 240 units altogether. 

Arrow Rd, from Cedar Hill Rd to Bow Rd (and beyond), is unsafe with the existing traffic volume. It is 
narrow, barely wide enough for large vehicles going in opposite directions to pass without easing onto 
the shoulders. It has no sidewalks: A slightly raised shoulder and a painted white line on one side only 
simply doesn't cut it. The combination of rat-runners avoiding a traffic backup at Cedar Hill and 
McKenzie, and local area residents treating it as their own personal Indy race track, make being a 
pedestrian anywhere along Arrow Rd a challenge: In poor light or at night, downright scary. 

The increase in traffic that a 240 unit complex at that location will bring would elevate 'unsafe', 
'challenge', and 'scary' to bloody dangerous. 

Unless the District of Saanich, in concert with the developers, has a plan to simultaneously upgrade 
Arrow Rd, expropriating property to create real raised sidewalks and a properly designed and 
engineered piece of road, this project should be given a "No" by Saanich council. 

Thank you, 
Chuck Laidlaw 

Oakwinds St 
Saanich BC V8N3B4 

FpOST TO 

DISTRICT . DIViSION 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/56BC69E1 SaanichMun_Hal... 2/11/2016 160

Page 1 of 1 

Council - Proposed Expansion of Mount Douglas Court 

From: Charles Laidlaw 
To: "mayor@saanich.ca" <mayor@saanich.ca>, "council@saanich.ca" <council@saanich.ca>, 

"editor@saanichnews.com" <editor@saanichnews.com> 
Date: 2/11/2016 11:00 AM 
Subject: Proposed Expansion of Mount Douglas Court 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

I'm writing in regard to the proposed expansion of the Mount Douglas Court complex at 1550 Arrow 
Road (File: DPR00614 REZ00559). 
Phase 1 of the project would entail building a three storey structure to replace the existing two storey 
building, and expanding the capacity from 80 to 100 units. Phase 2 would have an additional four 
storey structure built on the site, allowing for 240 units altogether. 

Arrow Rd, from Cedar Hill Rd to Bow Rd (and beyond), is unsafe with the existing traffic volume. It is 
narrow, barely wide enough for large vehicles going in opposite directions to pass without easing onto 
the shoulders. It has no sidewalks: A slightly raised shoulder and a painted white line on one side only 
simply doesn't cut it. The combination of rat-runners avoiding a traffic backup at Cedar Hill and 
McKenzie, and local area residents treating it as their own personal Indy race track, make being a 
pedestrian anywhere along Arrow Rd a challenge: In poor light or at night, downright scary. 

The increase in traffic that a 240 unit complex at that location will bring would elevate 'unsafe', 
'challenge', and 'scary' to bloody dangerous. 

Unless the District of Saanich, in concert with the developers, has a plan to simultaneously upgrade 
Arrow Rd, expropriating property to create real raised sidewalks and a properly designed and 
engineered piece of road, this project should be given a "No" by Saanich council. 

Thank you, 
Chuck Laidlaw 

1 Oakwinds St "----, 
Saanich BC V8N3B4 
'---___ I 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/56BC69E1 SaanichMun_Hal... 2/11/2016 



161

January 29, 2016 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Counbllors: 

Neighborhood concerns over rezoning application for 1550 Arrow Rd. 

BACKGROUND 

~~©~Ow~[Q) 
i FEB 0 1 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

We represent a group of residents who live in the vicinity of 1550Arrow Rd., currently the site of Mount 
Douglas Court (MDC), a low-income seniors two-story apartment building opened in 1970. The building is 
operated on behalf of the Anglican Diocese of BC by the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
(formerly the Mount Douglas Court Society). 

The property is the subject of a rezoning application. The developer would like to change the zoning from 
RA-l to RA-3 in order to accommodate the construction of two new buildings. 

I n Phase I, the immediate cause of the rezoning, a new three-story building of 100 units would be built on 
the north side of the propeliy overlooking palis of Hopesmore Drive, Quiver Place and Bel Nor Place. The 
parking would also be extended and a turnaround built. The parking would extend along the length of the 
rear property line of residents on the west side Bel Nor Place and the turnaround would be in the northeast 
corner. Garbage pickup would be at this location. 

The Phase 2 plan -- as we understand it from the developer's Web site (http://www.anglicanfolll1dation.ca) 
and a meeting with the developer and the Gordon Head Residents Association on January 9, 2016 -- would 
see, in 10 to 30 years (or sooner), the demolition of the existing 80-unit apartment building and the erection 
of a second building of four-stories facing the length of the property along Arrow Rd. This second building 
would contain 140 units. 

At the end of Phase 2, should the RA-3 rezoning be approved, there would be a minimum of 240 residents 
on this property. 

DENSITY (POPULATION) INCREASE TN A FULLY RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD 

We fully support additional housing for low-income seniors at MDC. 

However, the proposed total increase in two phases from 80 to 240 units is totally unacceptable for reasons 
we show below. 

You have heard from the developer's representative, Peter Daniel, who is the asset manager for the 
Anglican Diocese, that the RA-3 zoning is required to make the project economically viable. This is totally 
misleading given that they are self-funding this project -- unlike another recent low-income seniors housing 
project in Saanich: Carey Place (3812 Carey Rd.) was funded by a multi-government/private palinership 
led by Baptist Housing. 

Instead, we believe that the developer could, by seeking government funding, build out with fewer units 
and limit the height of new buildings to two stories, which would be architecturally in keeping with the 
surrounding neighborhood of single-family, one- and two-story homes. 



Unfortunately, Peter Daniel informed us at our meeting with him on January 9 that he is unwilling to 
compromise any further on this application. In his e-mailsto you of January 22 and25,Mr. Daniel has now 
confirmed this app1roach, which disregards our concerns as well as the visionl goals, principles and policies 
expressed in the Official Community Plan, local area plans (Gordon Head and Shelbourne) and the 
proposed Shelbourne Valley Action Plan. 

We finnly believe the RA-3 zoning is completely inappropriate for this site for two reasons: 

1. The increased density (number of residents) over the two phases. With the addition of a 1 OO-unit building 
in Phase 1, this property would become the largest low-income seniors apartment complex in Saanich, 
despite being located on a narrow, no-through residential road. The Arrow Rd. property would house more 
55+ seniors than Dawson Heights -- 132 units total according to a presentation given by Mr. Daniel to area 
residents on March 26 last year. 

2. After Phase 2, with a total of 240 units, Mt. Doug Court would be the largest low-income seniors 
apartment complexes in the Capital Regional District, despite being located on one of Saanich's narrowest 
roads. Based on the B.C. Housing Registry list, the North Park Manor/Fisgard House complex at 210 units 
is currently the region's largest low-income seniors rental housing. Unlike the Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society proposal these two apartment buildings are not located in the very heart of residential 
neighborhoods. 

NO OTHER RA-3 PROPERTIES FULLY SURROUNDED BY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES 

Using the Saanich GIS system, we evaluated each of the current RA-3 properties in the municipality, close 
to 50, in tenns of their locations. Not one is located within a fully residential neighborhood, that is, 
surrounded on all four sides by single-family homes. 

It is notable that all existing RA-3 properties in Saanich are either adjacent to main roads, next to other RA 
properties, or border parks or other non-residential properties. 

Should Saanich decide to approve this application to RA-3, we believe this would set a serious and 
damaging precedent for future developments in other single-family neighborhoods. 

DEVELOPER'S TRAFFIC STUDY 

As far as the developer's traffic study goes, we've identified a number of flaws in it, first and foremost 
being that it was for only one hour of one weekday. 

The traffic study does not address the different types of vehicles that access Mount Douglas Court, in 
particular the HandyDART vans, which take up nearly the full width ofArrow Rd., as well as numerous 
emergency vehicles. 

The traffic study does not fully address the additional pedestrian load on Arrow Rd. other than to 
recommend that Saanich consider improvements to the road. While widening the easement between Mount 
Douglas Court and Bel Nor Place will improve accessibility for those residents who are mobility impaired, 
it should be noted that the path from Bel Nor Place to Hopesmore Drive is not flat and that Hopesmore 
Drive also has no sidewalks. 

We believe that with increased pedestrian traffic along Arrow Rd. there will be an increased chance of a 
serious accident. 

162

Unfortunately, Peter Daniel informed us at our meeting with him on January 9 that he is unwilling to 
compromise any further on this application. In his e-mailsto you of January 22 and25,Mr. Daniel has now 
confirmed this app1roach, which disregards our concerns as well as the visionl goals, principles and policies 
expressed in the Official Community Plan, local area plans (Gordon Head and Shelbourne) and the 
proposed Shelbourne Valley Action Plan. 

We finnly believe the RA-3 zoning is completely inappropriate for this site for two reasons: 

1. The increased density (number of residents) over the two phases. With the addition of a 1 OO-unit building 
in Phase 1, this property would become the largest low-income seniors apartment complex in Saanich, 
despite being located on a narrow, no-through residential road. The Arrow Rd. property would house more 
55+ seniors than Dawson Heights -- 132 units total according to a presentation given by Mr. Daniel to area 
residents on March 26 last year. 

2. After Phase 2, with a total of 240 units, Mt. Doug Court would be the largest low-income seniors 
apartment complexes in the Capital Regional District, despite being located on one of Saanich's narrowest 
roads. Based on the B.C. Housing Registry list, the North Park Manor/Fisgard House complex at 210 units 
is currently the region's largest low-income seniors rental housing. Unlike the Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society proposal these two apartment buildings are not located in the very heart of residential 
neighborhoods. 

NO OTHER RA-3 PROPERTIES FULLY SURROUNDED BY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES 

Using the Saanich GIS system, we evaluated each of the current RA-3 properties in the municipality, close 
to 50, in tenns of their locations. Not one is located within a fully residential neighborhood, that is, 
surrounded on all four sides by single-family homes. 

It is notable that all existing RA-3 properties in Saanich are either adjacent to main roads, next to other RA 
properties, or border parks or other non-residential properties. 

Should Saanich decide to approve this application to RA-3, we believe this would set a serious and 
damaging precedent for future developments in other single-family neighborhoods. 

DEVELOPER'S TRAFFIC STUDY 

As far as the developer's traffic study goes, we've identified a number of flaws in it, first and foremost 
being that it was for only one hour of one weekday. 

The traffic study does not address the different types of vehicles that access Mount Douglas Court, in 
particular the HandyDART vans, which take up nearly the full width of Arrow Rd., as well as numerous 
emergency vehicles. 

The traffic study does not fully address the additional pedestrian load on Arrow Rd. other than to 
recommend that Saanich consider improvements to the road. While widening the easement between Mount 
Douglas Court and Bel Nor Place will improve accessibility for those residents who are mobility impaired, 
it should be noted that the path from Bel Nor Place to Hopesmore Drive is not flat and that Hopesmore 
Drive also has no sidewalks. 

We believe that with increased pedestrian traffic along Arrow Rd. there will be an increased chance of a 
serious accident. 



DEVELOPER'S PARKING STUDY 

The developer also conducted a parking study with recommendations with which we disagree. 

Currently, for 80 units, there are six spots. 

The Phase 1 plan would only add one more, for a total of seven spots for 180 units. 

The Phase 2 plan would only add a further two, for a grand total of nine spots for 240 units. 

Nine visitor parking spaces for Phases 1 and 2 seem out of keeping with the types of visits one might 
expect in a large complex such as this: for example, visitors for tea parties, bridge clubs, book clubs, 
caregivers, deliveries, and family visits. 

Once those visitor parking spaces are filled, then the only place for overflow parking is on Arrow Rd. and 
nearby roads, on which parking space is extremely limited given that Arrow Rd. is narrow and completely 
unsuitable for on-street parking. 

RECOMMEND CONSIDERATION OF A RESTRICTIVE COVENANT 

While the developer has assured us (and you) that the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society will 
continue to rent to low-income seniors, there is in fact nothing to stop the society from changing its bylaws 
and constitutions- to rent to other parties. We understand this has happened in the past. 

Two of our members met with Mayor Atwell and recommended consideration of a restrictive covenant to 
keep this property from being used for anything other than low-income seniors rental housing. 

QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELVES AS COUNCILLORS 

Some of the questions we hope you will be asking yourselves are: 

• If this development was not for special needs housing, would it even be considered at the density 
(number of units) required by the developer? 

• Do you want to further compound a historical anomaly, a true example of spot zoning given that 
1550 Arrow Rd. was originally zoned residential and the 1969 architect recognized that the 
neighborhood was predominantly residential? (Clive D. Campbell [architect] to Municipal Clerk, 
October 17, 1969, Saanich Archives, Planning Files, box 5, file 2, Rezoning, July-Dec 1969) 

• How willing are you to disregard the careful planning and community consultation that has gone 
into the Official Community Plan, the local area plans and the proposed Shelboume Valley Action 
Plan regarding the respect for and integrity and stability of single-family residential neighborhoods 
versus the need for low-income seniors housing? 

• Are you willing to disregard the very significant planning recommendations contained in the OCP, 
the SVAP, the Gordon Head and Shelboume local area plans, that relate to: 

Ensuring building height and density transitions from the valley core to the suburbs (i.e., 
taller/denser apartment communities in the core and lower/less dense communities of single 
family homes further out) 

Retaining existing architectural character in established, single family neighbourhoods 

163

DEVELOPER'S PARKING STUDY 

The developer also conducted a parking study with recommendations with which we disagree. 

Currently, for 80 units, there are six spots. 

The Phase 1 plan would only add one more, for a total of seven spots for 180 units. 

The Phase 2 plan would only add a further two, for a grand total of nine spots for 240 units. 

Nine visitor parking spaces for Phases 1 and 2 seem out of keeping with the types of visits one might 
expect in a large complex such as this: for example, visitors for tea parties, bridge clubs, book clubs, 
caregivers, deliveries, and family visits. 

Once those visitor parking spaces are filled, then the only place for overflow parking is on Arrow Rd. and 
nearby roads, on which parking space is extremely limited given that Arrow Rd. is narrow and completely 
unsuitable for on-street parking. 

RECOMMEND CONSIDERATION OF A RESTRICTIVE COVENANT 

While the developer has assured us (and you) that the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society will 
continue to rent to low-income seniors, there is in fact nothing to stop the society from changing its bylaws 
and constitutions- to rent to other parties. We understand this has happened in the past. 

Two of our members met with Mayor Atwell and recommended consideration of a restrictive covenant to 
keep this property from being used for anything other than low-income seniors rental housing. 

QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELVES AS COUNCILLORS 

Some of the questions we hope you will be asking yourselves are: 

• If this development was not for special needs housing, would it even be considered at the density 
(number of units) required by the developer? 

• Do you want to further compound a historical anomaly, a true example of spot zoning given that 
1550 Arrow Rd. was originally zoned residential and the 1969 architect recognized that the 
neighborhood was predominantly residential? (Clive D. Campbell [architect] to Municipal Clerk, 
October 17, 1969, Saanich Archives, Planning Files, box 5, file 2, Rezoning, July-Dec 1969) 

• How willing are you to disregard the careful planning and community consultation that has gone 
into the Official Community Plan, the local area plans and the proposed Shelboume Valley Action 
Plan regarding the respect for and integrity and stability of single-family residential neighborhoods 
versus the need for low-income seniors housing? 

• Are you willing to disregard the very significant planning recommendations contained in the OCP, 
the SVAP, the Gordon Head and Shelboume local area plans, that relate to: 

Ensuring building height and density transitions from the valley core to the suburbs (i.e., 
taller/denser apartment communities in the core and lower/less dense communities of single 
family homes further out) 

Retaining existing architectural character in established, single family neighbourhoods 



Siting apartment complexes only on arterial/collector roads 

Providing safe and accessible pedestrian enyironments 
I 

Providing proximity to transit for apartment dwellers 

Avoiding hilly topography for seniors' apartments 

• Are you willing to sacrifice our neighborhood to a Phase 1 population increase in excess of Dawson 
Heights and, at the end of Phase 2, an increase which will exceed the total capacity of today's largest 
low-income seniors apartment complex in the CRD: North Park Manor/Fisgard House? 

• Do you accept that the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society proposed rents are truly affordable 
for low-income seniors? 

• Will you support a restrictive covenant on this property, even without the RA-3 zoning, to prevent 
its use for anything other than low-income seniors rental housing? 

• What neighborhood amenities will you ask of the developer to offset the population increase? 

• We look forward to participating further as this application moves forward to the Committee of the 
Whole. 

Members of our committee will be contacting you soon to arrange for a meeting. 

For further information we invite you to visit our web site: https:llsites.google.com/site/arrowrezoning/ 

Our email forinquiries:arrow.residents@gmail.com 

Sincerely, 

Arrow Road Action Committee 
(Marg Buckland, Barb Geddes, Charlene Gregg, Loti Jackson, David Mattison, Warren Weicker, Morven 
Wilson) 

164

Siting apartment complexes only on arterial/collector roads 

Providing safe and accessible pedestrian enyironments 
I 

Providing proximity to transit for apartment dwellers 

Avoiding hilly topography for seniors' apartments 

• Are you willing to sacrifice our neighborhood to a Phase 1 population increase in excess of Dawson 
Heights and, at the end of Phase 2, an increase which will exceed the total capacity of today's largest 
low-income seniors apartment complex in the CRD: North Park Manor/Fisgard House? 

• Do you accept that the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society proposed rents are truly affordable 
for low-income seniors? 

• Will you support a restrictive covenant on this property, even without the RA-3 zoning, to prevent 
its use for anything other than low-income seniors rental housing? 

• What neighborhood amenities will you ask of the developer to offset the population increase? 

• We look forward to participating further as this application moves forward to the Committee of the 
Whole. 

Members of our committee will be contacting you soon to arrange for a meeting. 

For further information we invite you to visit our web site: https:llsites.google.com/site/arrowrezoning/ 

Our email forinquiries:arrow.residents@gmail.com 

Sincerely, 

Arrow Road Action Committee 
(Marg Buckland, Barb Geddes, Charlene Gregg, Loti Jackson, David Mattison, Warren Weicker, Morven 
Wilson) 



 

 

I 

POST TO 

COpy TO -"""""""-=7------.S:,-l~ 

From: Sue Thorpe < > REPLYTO WRITER 

To: <mayor@saanich.ca> I COpy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE OIVIS!{)N " 

Date: 1/26/2016 11:40 AM REPORT 0 a 

Subject: Development at 1550 Arrow Rd Saanich, by Church of Engl rC~':~DGEDJ2t Ql.... :_1 
Sirs and Madams -" 
I hope you can help. There is a development at 1556 Arrow Rd that is apparently starting in April. 

They are trying to change zoning from single family to where they can have 3 and 4 story buildings on the 
sight and on completion, have 240 residents, plus 120 uncovered parking spaces. 
At present our area of Saanich has one entrance off Cedar Hill Rd. The other entrance off McKenzie has 
no left turn from 9 till 6, and it's difficult to do a right turn out of there because of heavy traffic. The rest of 
our streets all have single family dwellings and are on dead end streets. Our streets are narrow, no 
formed sidewalks, and Arrow Rd has a hill with a blind spot. 

As it is at the moment this is lovely spot to live in, both for us, and the residents of .There are 
problems with people speeding up Arrow Rd where the blind spot is but so far so good. However more 
cars and pedestrians will seriously tip the balance. 

Just before the Christmas break Mr Daniels sent a letter informing us that if he did not get the planned 
rezoning he could build 2 story buildings for his 240 clients, and he sent us a blueprint. The whole lot was 
covered in buildings and car parks. He told us on the first meeting we had with him that the buildings were 
being done on a budget, so nothing fancy. This plan looked worse than a Fort McMurray workers plot. No 
green space for residents recreation, or trees for that matter. A slum in the making. He said he could also 
sell the place and a builder can come in and build a block of condos. He said that legally someone can 
get more than 240 people on that land. 

I do not believe that we on Arrow Rd have ever been slated for high density. 
I do think we need more affordable housing for seniors and would support him if his 3 buildings were 2 
story's high. 
I am also confused. I thought this was affordable housing for seniors but do not think the rents they are 
charging are affordable. 
If he is building rentals to rent at market rate I certainly do not support this development going ahead at 
all. There are plenty of areas in Saanich to build rentals that have good safe roads and access, and high 
buildings around them. I believe many of the residents of 1550 Arrow will not be able to move into the 
new units because of the cost. 
I appreciate having this avenue to inform my concerns and appreciate your time and efforts on this 
matter, 
Sincerely 
Sue Thorpe 

Arrow Rd 
Saanich 
V8N 1C4 

~~;;O~;~ I 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAA.NICH 

165

POST TO 

COpy TO :-:=~-±:T-----.S:....l~ 

From: S\Je Thorpe < > REPLYTO WRITER " 
To: <rJnayor@saanich.ca> I COpy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION i 

Date: 1/26/2016 11:40 AM REPORT 0 S 

Subject: Development al 1550 Arrow Rd Saanich, by Church of Engl m~~DBEDR ttl.. : J 
Sirs and Madams -» 
I hope you can help. There is a development at 1556 Arrow Rd that is apparently starting in April. 

They are trying to change zoning from single family to where they can have 3 and 4 story buildings on the 
sight and on completion, have 240 residents, plus 120 uncovered parking spaces. 
At present our area of Saanich has one entrance off Cedar Hill Rd. The other entrance off McKenzie has 
no left turn from 9 till 6, and it's difficult to do a right turn out of there because of heavy traffic. The rest of 
our streets all have single family dwellings and are on dead end streets. Our streets are narrow, no 
formed sidewalks, and Arrow Rd has a hill with a blind spot. 

As it is at the moment this is lovely spot to live in, both for us, and the residents of _ .There are 
problems with people speeding up Arrow Rd where the blind spot is but so far so good. However more 
cars and pedestrians will seriously tip the balance. 

Just before the Christmas break Mr Daniels sent a letter informing us that if he did not get the planned 
rezoning he could build 2 story buildings for his 240 clients, and he sent us a blueprint. The whole lot was 
covered in buildings and car parks. He told us on the first meeting we had with him that the buildings were 
being done on a budget, so nothing fancy. This plan looked worse than a Fort McMurray workers plot. No 
green space for residents recreation, or trees for that matter. A slum in the making. He said he could also 
sell the place and a builder can come in and build a block of condos. He said that legally someone can 
get more than 240 people on that land. 

I do not believe that we on Arrow Rd have ever been slated for high density. 
I do think we need more affordable housing for seniors and would support him if his 3 buildings were 2 
story's high. 
I am also confused. I thought this was affordable housing for seniors but do not think the rents they are 
charging are affordable. 
If he is building rentals to rent at market rate I certainly do not support this development going ahead at 
all. There are plenty of areas in Saanich to build rentals that have good safe roads and access, and high 
buildings around them. I believe many of the residents of 1550 Arrow will not be able to move into the 
new units because of the cost. 
I appreciate having this avenue to inform my concerns and appreciate your time and efforts on this 
matter, 
Sincerely 
Sue Thorpe 

Arrow Rd 
Saanich 
V8N 1C4 

~:;;O~;~ / 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAA.NICH 



 

January 21,2016 

Mayor and Council 
District of Saanich 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria BC 

Mayor and Council, 

I am an owner and builder of rental-housing buildings in Greater Victoria. I agree 
with the neighbours of 1515 Arrow Road, Mount Douglas Court, in recognizing 
the need for senior subsidized low cost housing. 

In fact, the need has become critical due to todays prohibitively high cost of market 
rental housing, and the huge increasing demand for rental housing for seniors. 

I support this rezoning application for the following reasons: 

• The site is in an established location for senior's low cost housing, having 
been established decades ago, well prior to the arrival of most of the 
neighbours. 
The existing building requires replacement. It is very expensive to operate, 
worn out and its safety is questionable. 

• The application for a three story building, one more floor than the existing 
structure, shows consideration for the neighbours. Similar retirement 
housing, because of land costs may be six stories or greater. 

• As the vast majority of seniors in subsidized housing do not own cars, due to 
age and affordability, traffic is not an issue. 

• This rezoning will decently house Saanich seniors, at a rent of at least one 
half of current market rent. 

This application does not set "a very serious prescient" in the district of Saanich, as 
there are very limited opportunities for a similar project. 

I am asking council to approve this application for Saanich seniors. 

Yours truly, 

Tim Hackett 

~~©~Dw~[Q) 
JAN 26 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

166

January 21,2016 

Mayor and Council 
District of Saanich 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria BC 

Mayor and Council, 

I am an owner and builder of rental-housing buildings in Greater Victoria. I agree 
with the neighbours of 1515 Arrow Road, Mount Douglas Court, in recognizing 
the need for senior subsidized low cost housing. 

In fact, the need has become critical due to todays prohibitively high cost of market 
rental housing, and the huge increasing demand for rental housing for seniors. 

I support this rezoning application for the following reasons: 

II 

.. 

• 

• 

• 

The site is in an established location for senior's low cost housing, having 
been established decades ago, well prior to the arrival of most of the 
neighbours. 
The existing building requires replacement. It is very expensive to operate, 
worn out and its safety is questionable. 
The application for a three story building, one more floor than the existing 
structure, shows consideration for the neighbours. Similar retirement 
housing, because of land costs may be six stories or greater. 
As the vast majority of seniors in subsidized housing do not own cars, due to 
age and affordability, traffic is not an issue. 
This rezoning will decently house Saanich seniors, at a rent of at least one 
half of current market rent. 

This application does not set "a very serious prescient" in the district of Saanich, as 
there are very limited opportunities for a similar project. 

I am asking council to approve this application for Saanich seniors. 

Tim Hackett 

JIACKETT 

D Sea Drive, Brentwood Be V8M 

~~©~Dw~[Q) 
JAN 26 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH __ i_ 



Page 1 of 1 

VAYd 
ClerkSec - Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

, 

From: "Peter Daniel" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> 
To: <arrow. residents@gmail.com>, <rtravers@islandnet.com> 
Date: 1/25/2016 10:31 AM 
Subject: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society - SUPPLEMENTARY 

INFORMATION 
CC: "'John G. Smith'" >, "'David RE Cooper'" 

< >, "'Jane Mason'" >, 
"'Stephen Martin'" < >, "'Barry Cosgrave'" 
< >, <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, 
<judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, <vic.derman@saanich.ca>, 
<fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, <dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, 
<colin.plant@saanich.ca>, <vicki.sanders@saanich.ca>, 
<Ieif. wergeland@saanich.ca>, <C lerkSec@saanich.ca> , 
<planning@saanich.ca>, <mayor@saanich.ca>, "Andrea Pickard" 
<Andrea.Pickard@saanich.ca> 

Attachments: SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION.docx 

Good Morning: 
As you may be aware, the Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society attended a meeting hosted by the Gordon 

Head Ratepayers Association with representatives of the Arrow Road Neighbours on Saturday January 9th . 

Subsequently, the Society forwarded minutes of that meeting to the attendees. 

Several days later, the Arrow Road Residents forwarded an email to neighbours summarizing the January 9th 

meeting. Coincidentally, they and placed that information on their web site. 
The Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society has received many letters of interest, concern and support over the 
past several months. 
We are sending this important SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION to those who have contacted us and to the 
Arrow Road Residents attending the meeting via their web site. 
We expect that this project will shortly be scheduled for public process with the District of Saanich and will place 
dates of any public meetings on the project web site at www.anglicanfoundation.ca 
Peter Daniel 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
250-386-7781-locaI246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

JAN 2 5 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIViSION 
DISTRICT OF SAA.NICH 

POST TO 

COPY TO -""'~~-----"""""r-
INFORMATION 

ACKNOWLEDGED' 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56A5F969SaanichMun_Hall... 1/25/2016 167

Page 1 of 1 

VAYd 
ClerkSec - Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

CC: 

, 

"Peter Daniel" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> 
<arrow. residents@gmail.com>, <rtravers@islandnet.com> 
1/25/2016 10:31 AM 
Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society - SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION 

, 
, "'Barry Cosgrave'" 

>, <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, 
<judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, <vic.derman@saanich.ca>, 
<fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, <dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, 
<colin.plant@saanich.ca>, <vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, 
<Ieif. wergeland@saanich.ca>, <C lerkSec@saanich.ca> , 
<planning@saanich.ca>, <mayor@saanich.ca>, "Andrea Pickard" 
<Andrea.Pickard@saanich.ca> 

Attachments: SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION.docx 

Good Morning: 
As you may be aware, the Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society attended a meeting hosted by the Gordon 

Head Ratepayers Association with representatives of the Arrow Road Neighbours on Saturday January 9th . 

Subsequently, the Society forwarded minutes of that meeting to the attendees. 

Several days later, the Arrow Road Residents forwarded an email to neighbours summarizing the January 9th 

meeting. Coincidentally, they and placed that information on their web site. 
The Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society has received many letters of interest, concern and support over the 
past several months. 
We are sending this important SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION to those who have contacted us and to the 
Arrow Road Residents attending the meeting via their web site. 
We expect that this project will shortly be scheduled for public process with the District of Saanich and will place 
dates of any public meetings on the project web site at www.anglicanfoundation.ca 
Peter Daniel 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
250-386-7781-locaI246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

JAN 2 5 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIViSION 
DISTRICT OF SAA.NICH 

POST TO 

COPY TO -""'~~-----"""""r-
INFORMATION 

ACKNOWLEDGED' 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56A5F969SaanichMun_Hall... 1/25/2016 



Recently some Arrow Road Neighbours (ARAC) posted information on their web site 

arrow.residents@gm~il.com 

We write to add some further information to that posting so that area residents are fully informed. 

The Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society originally planned a higher 4 story building concept. Saanich 

staff recommended reduction in height to 3 stories (first phase); we have accepted that 

recommendation and altered the project plans accordingly. 

New information posted on www.anglicanfoundation.ca shows videos on the "longer view" of this 

project from the neighbourhood. This demonstrates that the visual aspect of a 3 story building further 

from the property boundaries is not significantly different to that of a 2 story building crowding those 

boundaries. 

While senior's affordable housing is an accepted use by the neighbours, it needs to be recognized that 

the units to house them are less than half the size of standard apartments. So there are about twice the 

number of seniors units in a standard building envelope. Larger housing units cost more and are simply 

unaffordable for low income seniors. Affordability for seniors is a critical and growing social concern. See 

the presentation tab on the www.anglicanfoundation.ca site. 

A 2 story building solution on this property is not economically feasible because it would provide less 

units and/or underground parking, which would force rents up to unacceptable levels. This will not meet 

the mandate of the Society or the needs of the District of Saanich at this time of pressing and increasing 

demand. 

Density is not numbers of housing units; it is Floor Space Ratio (the ratio of the building's total floor area 

to the size ofthe property), and because of the smaller unit sizes, the project submitted to Saanich has a 

lower FSR than most nearby multi-residential projects, thereby preserving more green space than would 

otherwise be the case. 

As to traffic concerns, it should be recognized that the independent traffic study (see information on 

www.anglicanfoundation.ca site) confirms that the proposed project's impact on traffic will be minimal. 

Many of the residents (96% of which are single occupants) will not own cars and those with cars use 

them sparingly. Their lifestyles do not result in lots of visitors. 

Mount Douglas Court is and will continue to be an independent living facility with average age of 

residents over 65, with 2/3 being single ladies. There will neither be multiple visits from care providers, 

nor lots of staff. The present complement of 2 staff may eventually increase to 3:5. 

The present use of Arrow Road by people trying to avoid main road traffic is of course an entirely 

separate issue which will not be affected by the project. 

168

Recently some Arrow Road Neighbours (ARAC) posted information on their web site 

arrow.residents@gm~il.com 

We write to add some further information to that posting so that area residents are fully informed. 

The Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society originally planned a higher 4 story building concept. Saanich 

staff recommended reduction in height to 3 stories (first phase); we have accepted that 

recommendation and altered the project plans accordingly. 

New information posted on www.anglicanfoundation.ca shows videos on the "longer view" of this 

project from the neighbourhood. This demonstrates that the visual aspect of a 3 story building further 

from the property boundaries is not significantly different to that of a 2 story building crowding those 

boundaries. 

While senior's affordable housing is an accepted use by the neighbours, it needs to be recognized that 

the units to house them are less than half the size of standard apartments. So there are about twice the 

number of seniors units in a standard building envelope. Larger housing units cost more and are simply 

unaffordable for low income seniors. Affordability for seniors is a critical and growing social concern. See 

the presentation tab on the www.anglicanfoundation.ca site. 

A 2 story building solution on this property is not economically feasible because it would provide less 

units and/or underground parking, which would force rents up to unacceptable levels. This will not meet 

the mandate of the Society or the needs of the District of Saanich at this time of pressing and increasing 

demand. 

Density is not numbers of housing units; it is Floor Space Ratio (the ratio of the building's total floor area 

to the size ofthe property), and because of the smaller unit sizes, the project submitted to Saanich has a 

lower FSR than most nearby multi-residential projects, thereby preserving more green space than would 

otherwise be the case. 

As to traffic concerns, it should be recognized that the independent traffic study (see information on 

www.anglicanfoundation.ca site) confirms that the proposed project's impact on traffic will be minimal. 

Many of the residents (96% of which are single occupants) will not own cars and those with cars use 

them sparingly. Their lifestyles do not result in lots of visitors. 

Mount Douglas Court is and will continue to be an independent living facility with average age of 

residents over 65, with 2/3 being single ladies. There will neither be multiple visits from care providers, 

nor lots of staff. The present complement of 2 staff may eventually increase to 3:5. 

The present use of Arrow Road by people trying to avoid main road traffic is of course an entirely 

separate issue which will not be affected by the project. 



COPYTO ~iirt=~..I-l:~+";;:;;;"~ 

ClerkSec - FW: January 2016 Update on 1550 Arrow Road Rezoning Application 

From: "Michael Marson" < > 
To: <mayor@saanich.ca>, <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.b :rJ~~~s ich.ca>, 

<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, l C~YRESPONSETOLEGISLATMDMS1ON 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, REPORT 0 7 
<vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca I FOR 1\ 

Date: 1/22/2016 12:02 PM lACI<NOWLEOGEO f:;::L1rv 
Subject: FW: January 2016 Update on 1550 Arrow Road Rezoning Application 
CC: :~~~i~~:;~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ·~~;~o~.~:~fdn~~~So@~~:~~~::nic r-.c-~-.-))--~-©-,- I 

-- JAN 252010 I 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISIONJ 
DISTRICT OF..§!:\ANI 9Jj

Dear District Council and Staff; 

I am writing to you out of grave concern over the proposed rezoning and densification of 1550 Arrow 
Court. 
While I generally acknowledge the need to for affordable seniors housing - the proposed increase from 
the current 80 units to ultimately 240 units is completely incompatible with this neighbourhood. 

My family has lived in this single family neighbourhood for the past 13 years - in the homestead built in 
1944 by the owner of the original nine acre parcel adjacent to the lands where Arrow Court now 
stands. 
Over the past few years my wife and two young boys have seen the neighbourhood grow and change 
in ways we could not have anticipated when we chose to live in this middle-class "single family" 
neighbourhood. 
During our 13 years here we have seen a massive increase in non-conforming secondary suites - of the 
26 homes in our immediate area - 14 have secondary suites - this does not include the two houses that 
currently operate as tri-plexes. 
Renters and rental property owners have had a direct negative impact on the livability of this once 
quiet neighbourhood, bringing: increased parking issues/alteration; increased traffic (and speed); 
increased noise; a 300 plant grow-op and associated suicide; countless domestic disputes and 
subsequent police visits; garbage and trash left being on municipal property; and derelict vehicles and 
trash being stored on individual rental properties. 

There is already ongoing tension between renters, owners of houses with non-conformation secondary 
accommodation and single-family home owners - Saanich Parking; By-law Enforcement; Public Works; 
Police; and, Fire Services have each visited this comparatively small neighbourhood more frequently 
than I care to count over the past few years. In each case District resources have been expended 
addressing the real world issues brought on by less than ideally conceived in-fill development and 
densification. Arrow Court has contributed in part to this current situation with the frequency of visits 
from the fire department/police responding to false alarms and resident health (and mental health) 
issues. 

It's fair to say that this small neighbourhood has done more than its share to support those in need of 
affordable housing - be that an owner who could not live here without income from a secondary suite; 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56A5F082SaanichMun_Hall... 1/25/2016 1169

ClerkSec - FW: January 2016 Update on 1550 Arrow Road Rezoning Application 

"Michael Marson" < COPYTO ~iirt=~..I-l:~+";;:;;;"~ 
<mayor@saanich.ca>, <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.b :rJ~~~s ich.ca>, 
<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, l C~YRESPONSETOLEGISLATMDMS1ON 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, REPORT 0 7 
<vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca I FOR 1\ 

1/22/2016 12:02 PM lACI<NOWLEOGEO f:;::L1rv 

From: 
To: 

Date: 
FW: January 2016 Update on 1550 Arrow Road Rezoning Application 

:~~~i~~:;~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ·~~;~o~.~:~fdn~~~So@~~:~~~::nic r-.c-~-. -))--~-©-, - I 

-- JAN 2 52010 I 
Subject: 
CC: 

Dear District Council and Staff; LEGISLATIVE DIVISIONJ 
DISTRICT OF ..§!:\ANI9Jj 

I am writing to you out of grave concern over the proposed rezoning and densification of 1550 Arrow 
Court. 
While I generally acknowledge the need to for affordable seniors housing - the proposed increase from 
the current 80 units to ultimately 240 units is completely incompatible with this neighbourhood. 

My family has lived in this single family neighbourhood for the past 13 years - in the homestead built in 
1944 by the owner of the original nine acre parcel adjacent to the lands where Arrow Court now 
stands. 
Over the past few years my wife and two young boys have seen the neighbourhood grow and change 
in ways we could not have anticipated when we chose to live in this middle-class "single family" 
neighbourhood. 
During our 13 years here we have seen a massive increase in non-conforming secondary suites - of the 
26 homes in our immediate area - 14 have secondary suites - this does not include the two houses that 
currently operate as tri-plexes. 
Renters and rental property owners have had a direct negative impact on the livability of this once 
quiet neighbourhood, bringing: increased parking issues/alteration; increased traffic (and speed); 
increased noise; a 300 plant grow-op and associated suicide; countless domestic disputes and 
subsequent police visits; garbage and trash left being on municipal property; and derelict vehicles and 
trash being stored on individual rental properties. 

There is already ongoing tension between renters, owners of houses with non-conformation secondary 
accommodation and single-family home owners - Saanich Parking; By-law Enforcement; Public Works; 
Police; and, Fire Services have each visited this comparatively small neighbourhood more frequently 
than I care to count over the past few years. In each case District resources have been expended 
addressing the real world issues brought on by less than ideally conceived in-fill development and 
densification. Arrow Court has contributed in part to this current situation with the frequency of visits 
from the fire department/police responding to false alarms and resident health (and mental health) 
issues. 

It's fair to say that this small neighbourhood has done more than its share to support those in need of 
affordable housing - be that an owner who could not live here without income from a secondary suite; 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56A5F082SaanichMun_Hall... 1/25/2016 



Page 2 of 4 

students; those with low earning power; and, seniors on fixed income. To further increase the density, 
traffic, noise and strain on the built infrastructure by as many as 320 people (assuming two residents x 
160 new units) represe~ts the same impact as suddenly dropping 80 single family houses (assuming 
four family members) on the current site. Further densification and changes in the composition ofthis 
neighbourhood may be well beyond its resident's capacity to tolerate. 

As the Arrow Road Action Committee (ARAC} has articulated below, a new two-story building (that 
addresses nearby neighbours' concerns) of a similar capacity to the current facility is a reasonable 
means to provide additional densification of the Arrow Court site. 
That new structure still represents potentially 100-200 additional residents and vehicles coming and 
going in and around that location; a location proximal to narrow streets, poor sightlines, no sidewalks, 
limited street parking and regular "near-traffic misses" the entire length of Arrow Road. Any plan to 
build the second phase, 3/4-storey bUilding, mere feet from Arrow Road is completely inconsistent 
with the neighbourhood landscape and community fabric. 

As I'm sure District planning staff are well aware, 1550 Arrow Road is outside (or at best on the 
outermost fringe) ofthe Major Centre described in Saanich's OCP and in the Shelbourne Corridor 
Action Plan. A 240 unit development (at full build out) of this nature should be located in the heart of 
the Major Centre node, where its potential 480 residents' would have immediate access to shopping, 
public transportation, similar communities (e.g. Kensington, Berwick House) and the wide range of 
services today's seniors require. 

Given my education and years in provincial transportation/regional planning, as well as my work in the 
local government field, I am quite familiar with the RGS, OCP, Action Plan/Neighbourhood Plan, Zoning, 
DPA principles and the vibrant, sustainable community that Council and District staff are committed to 
creating through these tools. My many years as both a Director and Past President of the Gordon Head 
Resident's Association (GHRA) has given me the opportunity to contribute positively to the community 
- e.g. the San Juan and Gordon Head Coastal Greenways; #12 Kenmore community bus - and through 
the GHRA I have provided past councils with well-balanced and thoughtful community-based input on 
dozens of development and rezoning applications. 

There are many fine examples of well conceived planning/residential developments and political 
decision-making across the District; approving the rezoning of 1550 Arrow Road and increasing is 
density by between 125% and 200% would be a significant step in the opposite direction. 
Approving an unmodified Phase 1 application or allowing there to be a Phase 2 build-out, would have a 
lasting and detrimental impact on this community. 

I respectfully request that Council and planning staff: 
• work with the developer to address the ARAC/neighbourhood's concerns over the planned 

Phase 1 structure; 
• limit densification on the property to the 100 additional units proposed/sited in Phase 1 (i.e. no 

Phase 2 building); and, 
• take steps (e.g. zoning, covenant) to ensure no further densification or subdivision of this 

property occurs beyond the currently proposed 100 units. 

Yours truly, 

file://Ie :/Users/OrrslAppOata/Local1T emp/XPgrpwise/56A5F082Saanich M u n _ Hall... 1/25/2016 1170

Page 2 of 4 

students; those with low earning power; and, seniors on fixed income. To further increase the density, 
traffic, noise and strain on the built infrastructure by as many as 320 people (assuming two residents x 
160 new units) represe~ts the same impact as suddenly dropping 80 single family houses (assuming 
four family members) on the current site. Further densification and changes in the composition ofthis 
neighbourhood may be well beyond its resident's capacity to tolerate. 

As the Arrow Road Action Committee (ARAC} has articulated below, a new two-story building (that 
addresses nearby neighbours' concerns) of a similar capacity to the current facility is a reasonable 
means to provide additional densification of the Arrow Court site. 
That new structure still represents potentially 100-200 additional residents and vehicles coming and 
going in and around that location; a location proximal to narrow streets, poor sightlines, no sidewalks, 
limited street parking and regular "near-traffic misses" the entire length of Arrow Road. Any plan to 
build the second phase, 3/4-storey bUilding, mere feet from Arrow Road is completely inconsistent 
with the neighbourhood landscape and community fabric. 

As I'm sure District planning staff are well aware, 1550 Arrow Road is outside (or at best on the 
outermost fringe) ofthe Major Centre described in Saanich's OCP and in the Shelbourne Corridor 
Action Plan. A 240 unit development (at full build out) of this nature should be located in the heart of 
the Major Centre node, where its potential 480 residents' would have immediate access to shopping, 
public transportation, similar communities (e.g. Kensington, Berwick House) and the wide range of 
services today's seniors require. 

Given my education and years in provincial transportation/regional planning, as well as my work in the 
local government field, I am quite familiar with the RGS, OCP, Action Plan/Neighbourhood Plan, Zoning, 
DPA principles and the vibrant, sustainable community that Council and District staff are committed to 
creating through these tools. My many years as both a Director and Past President of the Gordon Head 
Resident's Association (GHRA) has given me the opportunity to contribute positively to the community 
- e.g. the San Juan and Gordon Head Coastal Greenways; #12 Kenmore community bus - and through 
the GHRA I have provided past councils with well-balanced and thoughtful community-based input on 
dozens of development and rezoning applications. 

There are many fine examples of well conceived planning/residential developments and political 
decision-making across the District; approving the rezoning of 1550 Arrow Road and increasing is 
density by between 125% and 200% would be a significant step in the opposite direction. 
Approving an unmodified Phase 1 application or allowing there to be a Phase 2 build-out, would have a 
lasting and detrimental impact on this community. 

I respectfully request that Council and planning staff: 
• work with the developer to address the ARAC/neighbourhood's concerns over the planned 

Phase 1 structure; 
• limit densification on the property to the 100 additional units proposed/sited in Phase 1 (i.e. no 

Phase 2 building); and, 
• take steps (e.g. zoning, covenant) to ensure no further densification or subdivision of this 

property occurs beyond the currently proposed 100 units. 

Yours truly, 

file:// Ie :/Users/Orrsl AppOata/Local1T emp/XPgrpwise/56A5F082Saanich M u n _ Hall... 1/25/2016 



Page 3 of 4 

Michael Marson, SA, MCPM 

Past Presidellt, Gordon Head Resident's Association 

From: Arrow Residents [mailto:arrow.residents@gmail.com] 
Sent: January-16-16 9:25 AM 
To: Arrow Residents 
Subject: January 2016 Update on 1550 Arrow Road 

Hello again: 

This email is being sent to 87 residents of the area regarding the rezoning application at 1550 Arrow Road. 

We are the Arrow Road Action Committee (ARAC) consisting of eight volunteer residents who have attempted to keep 
area residents informed, solicit feedback and input from you all, and present this information to the Mount Douglas 
Seniors Housing Society (MDSHS) and to Saanich Council. 

On Saturday January 9th we met with the project manager, Peter Daniel, and members of the Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS: the operators of Mount Douglas Court (MDC)); this meeting was mediated by the Gordon 
Head Residents' Association. 

Once again we assured Peter Daniel that the local residents were fully supportive of additional housing at MDC for low 
income seniors. 

Mr. Daniel led us through a summary of their proposal. 

We asked questions about the development and the updated information posted in December on the MDSHS website 
(http://www.anglicanfoundation.ca/). 

We voiced concerns from residents about neighbourhood issues. We related the opposition by the majority of 
residents to a development larger than two stories. We discussed the two story alternative proposal 
(http://www.anglicanfoundation.ca/media/1126/ra-3-existing-and-phase-1.pdD but the developer and the MDSHS made 
it plain that they were unwilling to consider a two-story building as a compromise. 

We suggested some design alternatives that might make the original plan a better fit for the neighbourhood. We did 
our best to bring to the attention of the developer that there are serious neighbourhood concerns with three and four 
story buildings proposed and tried to reach a compromise with some suggestions to make the original proposal fit in 
better with our neighbourhood. 

We suggested a terraced design with a lower height on the outside borders and higher height in the interior of the 
lot. This was rejected as too expensive. 

We suggested a reduction in the size of the Phase 1 building to 80-90 units to allow for increased setbacks. This 
was rejected: they are unwilling to build less than 100 units in Phase-i. 

We suggested the removal the fourth story in Phase-2 which would still provide 228 units. This was rejected: they 
are not willing to build less than 240 units in total. 

Peter Daniel then made it very clear that there was no room for any compromise on the overall aims of Phase 1 or 
Phase 2 proposal: i.e., 240 units in a 3 story building and a 3+4 story building. 

We asked if the 4 stories facing Arrow Road in Phase 2 could be reduced to three stories and instead make the 
adjacent attached building 4 stories? The architect agreed to look at this. 

We made other suggestions including relocating the garbage area closer to the centre of the site and planting additional 
trees to screen the building. The architect agreed to look at this. 

In closing the meeting, Peter Daniel claimed that he heard almost no support in the local community for ARAC's 
concerns; he thought the only real opposition was from the (eight) members of ARAC itself - not from local residents. 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/56A5F082SaanichMun_Hall... 1/25/2016 1171

Michael Marson, SA, MCPM 

Past Presidellt, Gordon Head Resident's Association 

From: Arrow Residents [mailto:arrow.residents@gmail.com] 
Sent: January-16-16 9:25 AM 
To: Arrow Residents 
Subject: January 2016 Update on 1550 Arrow Road 

Hello again: 

Page 3 of 4 

This email is being sent to 87 residents of the area regarding the rezoning application at 1550 Arrow Road. 

We are the Arrow Road Action Committee (ARAC) consisting of eight volunteer residents who have attempted to keep 
area residents informed, solicit feedback and input from you all, and present this information to the Mount Douglas 
Seniors Housing Society (MDSHS) and to Saanich Council. 

On Saturday January 9th we met with the project manager, Peter Daniel, and members of the Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS: the operators of Mount Douglas Court (MDC)); this meeting was mediated by the Gordon 
Head Residents' Association. 

Once again we assured Peter Daniel that the local residents were fully supportive of additional housing at MDC for low 
income seniors. 

Mr. Daniel led us through a summary of their proposal. 

We asked questions about the development and the updated information posted in December on the MDSHS website 
(http://www.anglicanfoundation.ca/). 

We voiced concerns from residents about neighbourhood issues. We related the opposition by the majority of 
residents to a development larger than two stories. We discussed the two story alternative proposal 
(http://www.anglicanfoundation.ca/media/1126/ra-3-existing-and-phase-1.pdD but the developer and the MDSHS made 
it plain that they were unwilling to consider a two-story building as a compromise. 

We suggested some design alternatives that might make the original plan a better fit for the neighbourhood. We did 
our best to bring to the attention of the developer that there are serious neighbourhood concerns with three and four 
story buildings proposed and tried to reach a compromise with some suggestions to make the original proposal fit in 
better with our neighbourhood. 

We suggested a terraced design with a lower height on the outside borders and higher height in the interior of the 
lot. This was rejected as too expensive. 

We suggested a reduction in the size of the Phase 1 building to 80-90 units to allow for increased setbacks. This 
was rejected: they are unwilling to build less than 100 units in Phase-i. 

We suggested the removal the fourth story in Phase-2 which would still provide 228 units. This was rejected: they 
are not willing to build less than 240 units in total. 

Peter Daniel then made it very clear that there was no room for any compromise on the overall aims of Phase 1 or 
Phase 2 proposal: i.e., 240 units in a 3 story building and a 3+4 story building. 

We asked if the 4 stories facing Arrow Road in Phase 2 could be reduced to three stories and instead make the 
adjacent attached building 4 stories? The architect agreed to look at this. 

We made other suggestions including relocating the garbage area closer to the centre of the site and planting additional 
trees to screen the building. The architect agreed to look at this. 

In closing the meeting, Peter Daniel claimed that he heard almost no support in the local community for ARAC's 
concerns; he thought the only real opposition was from the (eight) members of ARAC itself - not from local residents. 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/56A5F082SaanichMun_Hall... 1/25/2016 



Page 4 of4 

In contrast, the members of ARAC have heard widespread opposition. 

wd don't need to remind our supporters to take the time to voice th~ir opinions as many of you have already done this, 
but if you haven't then we do need to remind you to speak up now while there is still time. 

You should also take this opportunity to make any suggestions or concerns specific to your property DIRECTLY to the 
developer, Peter Daniel, Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia, Email: assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca. Office: 250
386-7781-local 246, Mobile:250-514-7797. 

This project will be in front of Saanich Council in the next 4-6 weeks. All area residents should now provide any last 
minute input/support/opposition to Peter Daniel and/or Saanich Mayor and Council as soon as possible-even if that is 
only a single sentence email voicing your support or opposition. Phone calls and/or face to face meetings with 
Councillors and/or the Major would be beneficial. 

Lastly, we would like to receive some direct feedback from you so we have attached a link to a simple online survey: 
we would appreciate you completing it. We will share the results with you. Thank you for providing your input. Click 
here for the survey. 

We will continue to make our concerns known to Saanich and plan on making a presentation to Council when the time 
comes. 

Sincerely, 

The Arrow Road Action Committee 

(Barb, Charlene, Craig, David, Loti, Marg, Morven, Warren) 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/56A5F082SaanichMun_Hall... 1/25/2016 1172

Page 4 of4 

In contrast, the members of ARAC have heard widespread opposition. 

wd don't need to remind our supporters to take the time to voice th~ir opinions as many of you have already done this, 
but if you haven't then we do need to remind you to speak up now while there is still time. 

You should also take this opportunity to make any suggestions or concerns specific to your property DIRECTLY to the 
developer, Peter Daniel, Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia, Email: assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca. Office: 250-
386-7781-local 246, Mobile:250-514-7797. 

This project will be in front of Saanich Council in the next 4-6 weeks. All area residents should now provide any last 
minute input/support/opposition to Peter Daniel and/or Saanich Mayor and Council as soon as possible-even if that is 
only a single sentence email voicing your support or opposition. Phone calls and/or face to face meetings with 
Councillors and/or the Major would be beneficial. 

Lastly, we would like to receive some direct feedback from you so we have attached a link to a simple online survey: 
we would appreciate you completing it. We will share the results with you. Thank you for providing your input. Click 
here for the survey. 

We will continue to make our concerns known to Saanich and plan on making a presentation to Council when the time 
comes. 

Sincerely, 

The Arrow Road Action Committee 

(Barb, Charlene, Craig, David, Loti, Marg, Morven, Warren) 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/56A5F082SaanichMun_Hall... 1/25/2016 



 

Page 1 of 1 

\/M& 
Council - rezoning 1550 Arrow Road 

, 
I 

From: 'Fsther Larson" < > 
To: ,V<planning@saanich.ca>, <council@saanich.ca>, <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> 
Date: 1/19/2016 10:01 AM 
Subject: rezoning 1550 Arrow Road 

I want to add my voice to those opposed to the rezoning of 1550 Arrow Road. I object to rezoning to 
allow a three story building to be constructed adjacent to our property in a residential area which 
should remain residential. 

My personal preference is that the undeveloped land be used for a community garden. Several 
residents have attractive productive gardens now. 

I am a Lutheran clergyman who, after I retired, asked the 
a vegetable garden. Permission was granted 

Mount Douglas Court's permission to use the 
land adjacent to my property for with the condition that 
the produce not be sold and that I provide my own seed water, etc. 

The first year was an experiment to determine feasibility. Each ofthe next three years I had 400 
potato hills, 85 tomato plants and numerous other vegetables. Some went for personal use, some was 
shared with Mount Douglas residents, but at least 75% went to the Upper Room soup kitchen and the 
Mustard Seed food bank. I figured 1500 -1600 pounds each year to assist low income people (that's 
over two tons in three years.) 

Then in the summer of the fourth year I received a letter from the Mount Douglas Court board 
informing me that I could no longer use the land. No explanation was given. 

For the last 13 summers I have looked out my window at the unused land. Consider the benefit to low 
income people if I had been allowed to continue and if others had been permitted to have similar 
gardens and make similar donations. Future use of the land in this way could well be of greater use to 
low income people than a three story building. 

O. Jack Larson < 'Z-Oito 
POSTED DT 2:e:>

[Rl~©~uw~[Q) -=~~!....AA'-I-_~ 
JAN 19 2016 REPLY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DMSION
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION REPORT 0 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

fA~~~o;-~-£}§-IQ-~bT.-+l-:-rr::::""?"l"t""-=--~-.~., 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/569E096ESaanichMun_Hall... 1/19/20161173

Page 1 of 1 

Council - rezoning 1550 Arrow Road 
'/M& 

i 

From: 
I ' 

'Fsther Larson" 
To: 
Date: 

,V<planning@saanich.ca>, <council@saanich.ca>, <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> 
1/19/2016 10:01 AM 

Subject: rezoning 1550 Arrow Road 

I want to add my voice to those opposed to the rezoning of 1550 Arrow Road. I object to rezoning to 
allow a three story building to be constructed adjacent to our property in a residential area which 
should remain residential. 

My personal preference is that the undeveloped land be used for a community garden. Several 
residents have attractive productive gardens now. 

I am a Lutheran clergyman who, after I retired, asked the Mount Douglas Court's permission to use the 
land adjacent to my property for a vegetable garden. Permission was granted with the condition that 
the produce not be sold and that I provide my own seed water, etc. 

The first year was an experiment to determine feasibility. Each ofthe next three years I had 400 
potato hills, 85 tomato plants and numerous other vegetables. Some went for personal use, some was 
shared with Mount Douglas residents, but at least 75% went to the Upper Room soup kitchen and the 
Mustard Seed food bank. I figured 1500 -1600 pounds each year to assist low income people (that's 
over two tons in three years.) 

Then in the summer of the fourth year I received a letter from the Mount Douglas Court board 
informing me that I could no longer use the land. No explanation was given. 

For the last 13 summers I have looked out my window at the unused land. Consider the benefit to low 
income people if I had been allowed to continue and if others had been permitted to have similar 
gardens and make similar donations. Future use of the land in this way could well be of greater use to 
low income people than a three story building. 

O. Jack Larson < 
'---------' 

[Rl~©~uw~[Q) 

JAN 19 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

'2-Qito 
POSTED DT 2:c> 

-=~~~'....J--~ 
REPLY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DMSION 
REPORT 0 

f ~~~~o;-~D-'§-IQ-~ b" -l+-:-rr;::-,o-lt""-=-.--~-.~ .' 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/569E096ESaanichMun_Hall... 1/19/2016 



Page 1 of 1 

Council - Letter of Support: Mount Douglas Expansion 

COpy TO ~:~!...J.--,..c----""""9I 

From: Kaye MellisHip <Kmelliship@greatervichousing.org> INFORMATION 
REPlY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION
To: "council@saanich.ca" <council@saanich.ca> 
Date: 1/13/20164:19 PM 

REPORT 0
Subject: Letter of Support: Mount Douglas Expansion 

-I~,~~~;;~PGED~~:.."::J'".<
Dear Mayor and Council of Saanich: 

I am writing to express my support for expansion of seniors rental housing proposed by the Mount Douglas 
Seniors Housing Society. 

Based on forecasts done by Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation and BC Non-Profit Housing Association 
we can see that the need for affordable rental housing for seniors is projected to grow over the next 20 years. 

Seniors who rely on rental housing are going to be challenged over the next few years, as many non-profits will 
be reducing the amount of really affordable units due to the expiry of federal and provincial operating 
agreements. Furthermore, a lot of the rental housing stock in the private market in Victoria is old and likely to 
be redeveloped for condominiums. 

Seniors deserve the chance to live in all parts of the region and the Mount Douglas project will make an 
excellent contribution to our regional supply. 

We provide housing to over 500 senior households and we find car ownership and use to be low, reducing the 
impact a project of this size will have on the neighbourhood. 

Yours truly, 

Kaye Melliship 
Executive Director 

fRi~©~OW~[Q) -! 

JAN 14 2016 
2326 Government Street LEGISLATIVE DIVIS/ON 
Victoria, BC, V8T 5G5 DISTR/CT OF SAANICH 
Tel: 250.384.3434 ex. 32 
Fax: 250 386.3434 
www.greatervichousing.org 

file:///C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/56967915SaanichMun_ HaiL.. 1/14/2016 1174

Council - Letter of Support: Mount Douglas Expansion 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

I 

Kaye MellisHip <Kmelliship@greatervichousing.org> 
"council@saanich.ca" <council@saanich.ca> 
1/13/20164:19 PM 
Letter of Support: Mount Douglas Expansion 

Dear Mayor and Council of Saanich: 

Page 1 of 1 

COpy TO 1: ~W--,.L-----~:t-[ 

INFORMATION 
REPlY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT 0 

-I~,~~~;;~PGED~~: .. "::J '".<-

I am writing to express my support for expansion of seniors rental housing proposed by the Mount Douglas 
Seniors Housing Society. 

Based on forecasts done by Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation and BC Non-Profit Housing Association 
we can see that the need for affordable rental housing for seniors is projected to grow over the next 20 years. 

Seniors who rely on rental housing are going to be challenged over the next few years, as many non-profits will 
be reducing the amount of really affordable units due to the expiry of federal and provincial operating 
agreements. Furthermore, a lot of the rental housing stock in the private market in Victoria is old and likely to 
be redeveloped for condominiums. 

Seniors deserve the chance to live in all parts of the region and the Mount Douglas project will make an 
excellent contribution to our regional supply. 

We provide housing to over 500 senior households and we find car ownership and use to be low, reducing the 
impact a project of this size will have on the neighbourhood. 

Yours truly, 

Kaye Melliship 
Executive Director 

2326 Government Street 
Victoria, BC, V8T 5GS 
Tel: 250.384.3434 ex. 32 
Fax: 250 386.3434 
www.greatervichousing.org 

fRi~©~OW~[Q) -! 

JAN 14 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVIS/ON 
DISTR/CT OF SAANICH 

file:///C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/56967915SaanichMun_ HaiL.. 1/14/2016 



   

 

!\YrtJ1AJ 
ROBERT A. WATTS 

Queenswood Drive, Victoria, BC. Canada V8N lX6 
telephone fax email: 

January 3, 2016 
Mayor Richard Atwell and Council 
770 Vernon Street 
Victoria, BC 
V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor and Councilors, 

Re: Mount Douglas Housing Society rezoning application 

I am writing in support of the application of Mt. Douglas Housing to construct a low 
income seniors housing project on its site on Arrow Road in Saanich. 

A recent market study that we commissioned provided an analysis on the availability of 
housing for low income independent seniors in Saanich. The study showed there is an 
increasing need for such housing. If local governments are not in a position to build and 
operate such units, then the private sector, made up of charitable societies or non-profit 
corporations, must carryon this role. 

I am the Chairman of Dawson Heights Housing Limited, a non-profit corporation, which 
has built and operates 130 suites in several buildings at Cedar Hill Road and Cedar Hill X 
Road for both independent and assisted living seniors on low income. All of the board 
members and advisors are volunteers and most have been involved with oversight of 
Dawson Heights for ten or more years. We do see the need for additional housing. Our 
waiting list proves it. 

I do ask you and the Council to approve the rezoning application. 

Thank you, 

Ro bert Watts 

[RS~©~Ow~[Q) 

JAN 07 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION I' 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH ___, 

175

l\-rrv1AJ 
ROBERT A. WATTS 

Queenswood Drive, Victoria, BC. Canada V8N l X6 
telephone fux lI~e~ln~a~il:JlIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII~ ____ __ 

Mayor Richard Atwell and Council 
770 Vernon Street 
Victoria, BC 
V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor and Councilors, 

Re: Mount Douglas Housing Society rezoning application 

January 3, 2016 

I am writing in support of the application of Mt. Douglas Housing to construct a low 
income seniors housing project on its site on Arrow Road in Saanich. 

A recent market study that we commissioned provided an analysis on the availability of 
housing for low income independent seniors in Saanich. The study showed there is an 
increasing need for such housing. If local governments are not in a position to build and 
operate such units, then the private sector, made up of charitable societies or non-profit 
corporations, must carryon this role. 

I am the Chairman of Dawson Heights Housing Limited, a non-profit corporation, which 
has built and operates 130 suites in several buildings at Cedar Hill Road and Cedar Hill X 
Road for both independent and assisted living seniors on low income. All of the board 
members and advisors are volunteers and most have been involved with oversight of 
Dawson Heights for ten or more years. We do see the need for additional housing. Our 
waiting list proves it. 

I do ask you and the Council to approve the rezoning application. 

Thank you, 

,.....--~--""~--
.. 

Ro bert Watts 

[RS~©~Ow~[Q) 

JAN 07 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION It 

DISTRICT OF SAANICH ___ , 



Page 1 of 2 

ClerkSec - FW: Letter of Support for MDSHS Arrow Rd Project 

i 
Frdm: "Peter Daniel" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> 
To: <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 

<vic. derman@saanich.ca>, <fred. haynes@saanich.ca> , 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, 
<vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saayich.ca>, 
<ClerkSec@saanich.ca>, <planning@saanich.cy. <mayor@saanich.ca> 

Date: 1/4/2016 12:55 PM 
Subject: FW: Letter of Support for MDSHS Arrow Rd Project 
CC: < >, '''John G. Smith'" >, "'JANE 

MASON'" >, '''Stephen Martin'" 
> 

Attachments: MDSHS letter of support dec 22.docx 

We are pleased to receive the attached letter of support for our project at 1550 Arrow Road from the 5t. Vincent 
de Paul Society. 

It is inaccurate about the rental levels for the new housing proposed. Rentals for these units will be $500 - $600 
per month for bachelor units and $700 - $800 per month for one bedroom units depending on mortgage rates 
available to the Society on completion of construction. These rental rates for new affordable housing should 
include some utilities. 

The lowest possible mortgage rates will be available if the project qualifies for CMHC mortgage insurance. That 
is likely only possible if the project does not provide an affordability covenant to be registered on title. 

Monthly rentals at the existing 80 unit building are under $450 per month average. There are no plans to raise 
these rates beyond annual inflation. This existing building has many years of useful life and is being retained 
until the Society can consider a second phase of construction to replace it and provide additional seniors 
affordable housing. 

Best Regards, Peter 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
250-386-7781-local 246 Office 

250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

From: Hollis Thorau [hthorau@svdpvictoria.com] 
Sent: January 4{ 2016 12: 10 PM 
To: assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

POST TO 

COpy TO -.::iIF-"'--~~~..:...r-
INfORMATION 
REPLY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE OMSION 
REPORT [] 

FOR I 
ACKNOWLEDGED·D) tYF'J' 

Subject: Letter of Support for MDSHS Arrow Rd Project 

Hello, 

Attached is a letter of support from the Society of Saint Vincent de Paul for the MDSHS development of 
1550 Arrow Rd. 

Please let me know if you need anything else. 

Cheers 
fRj~©~OW~[Q) 

JAN 05 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/568A6BA5SaanichMun_Hall... 1/5/20161176

Page 1 of 2 

ClerkSec - FW: Letter of Support for MDSHS Arrow Rd Project 

Frdm: 
i 

"Peter Daniel" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> 
To: <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 

Date: 

<vic. derman@saanich.ca>, <fred. haynes@saanich.ca> , 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, 
<vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saayich.ca>, 
<ClerkSec@saanich.ca>, <planning@saanich.cy. <mayor@saanich.ca> 
1/4/2016 12:55 PM 

Subject: 
CC: 

FW: Letter of S rt for MDSHS Arrow R~ 
'''John G. Smith'" ____ >, "'JANE 

>, '''Stephen Martin'" 

Attachments: MDSHS letter of support dec 22.docx 

We are pleased to receive the attached letter of support for our project at 1550 Arrow Road from the 5t. Vincent 
de Paul Society. 

It is inaccurate about the rental levels for the new housing proposed. Rentals for these units will be $500 - $600 
per month for bachelor units and $700 - $800 per month for one bedroom units depending on mortgage rates 
available to the Society on completion of construction. These rental rates for new affordable housing should 
include some utilities. 

The lowest possible mortgage rates will be available if the project qualifies for CMHC mortgage insurance. That 
is likely only possible if the project does not provide an affordability covenant to be registered on title. 

Monthly rentals at the existing 80 unit building are under $450 per month average. There are no plans to raise 
these rates beyond annual inflation. This existing building has many years of useful life and is being retained 
until the Society can consider a second phase of construction to replace it and provide additional seniors 
affordable housing. 

Best Regards, Peter 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
250-386-7781-local 246 Office 

250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

From: Hollis Thorau [hthorau@svdpvictoria.com] 
Sent: January 4{ 2016 12: 10 PM 
To: assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 
Subject: Letter of Support for MDSHS Arrow Rd Project 

Hello, 

POST TO 

COpy TO -"'F.J.-~~~~I--.
INfORMATION 
REPLY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE OMSION 
REPORT [] 

FOR I 
ACKNOWLEDGED·D) tYF'J' 

Attached is a letter of support from the Society of Saint Vincent de Paul for the MDSHS development of 
1550 Arrow Rd. 

Please let me know if you need anything else. 

Cheers 
fRj~©~OW~[Q) 

JAN 05 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/568A6BA5SaanichMun_Hall... 1/5/2016 



Page 2 of 2 

Hollis Thorau 

Administrative Assistant 
Society of Saint Vincent de Paul 
4349 West Saanich Road, Victoria Be 
V8Z 3E8 
2507270007 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppOata/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/568A6BA5SaanichMun_Hall... 1/5/20161177

Hollis Thorau 

Administrative Assistant 
Society of Saint Vincent de Paul 
4349 West Saanich Road, Victoria Be 
V8Z 3E8 
2507270007 

Page 2 of 2 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppOata/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/568A6BA5SaanichMun_Hall... 1/5/2016 



o'SAINT 
~VINCENT 
~DE PAUL 

4349 West Saanich Road 
Victoria, Be V8Z 3~8 
Phone: 250-727-0007 
Fax: 250-727-0771 

December 22, 2015 

Peter Daniel, MDC Project Manager and Asset Manager 
Anglican Synod of the Dioceses of BC 

Dear Mr. Daniels, 

I am writing this letter in support of the proposal of rezoning of the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society at 

1550 Arrow Road to accommodate an additional 100 apartments which would help meet an urgent housing 

need within the community. The extension of this property would help provide affordable housing at $450 per 

month (including heat, water and cable), for seniors whose average income is around $17,000 per year, 

meaning rent would be below CMHC affordability criteria. 

The Society of Saint Vincent de Paul also provides affordable housing for seniors thus allowing us insight into 

the challenges and increased needs for this population. In providing over 100 additional units of affordable 

housing for seniors, Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society is helping to address the needs of the community, 

but also of those living within the community. The Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society has already 

demonstrated success in helping address these needs within the Capital Regional District and would further do 

so with success in rezoning. 

Once again The Society of Saint Vincent de Paul fully supports the Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society in 

their efforts and feels that additional affordable senior housing would be a positive asset to the existing housing 

offered within the CRD. 

Sincerely, 

Angela Hudson, Executive Director 

178

o'SAINT 
~VINCENT 
~DE PAUL 

December 22, 2015 

4349 West Saanich Road 
Victoria, Be V8Z 3~8 
Phone: 250-727-0007 
Fax: 250-727-0771 

Peter Daniel, MDC Project Manager and Asset Manager 
Anglican Synod of the Dioceses of BC 

Dear Mr. Daniels, 

I am writing this letter in support of the proposal of rezoning of the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society at 

1550 Arrow Road to accommodate an additional 100 apartments which would help meet an urgent housing 

need within the community. The extension of this property would help provide affordable housing at $450 per 

month (including heat, water and cable), for seniors whose average income is around $17,000 per year, 

meaning rent would be below CMHC affordability criteria. 

The Society of Saint Vincent de Paul also provides affordable housing for seniors thus allowing us insight into 

the challenges and increased needs for this population. In providing over 100 additional units of affordable 

housing for seniors, Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society is helping to address the needs of the community, 

but also of those living within the community. The Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society has already 

demonstrated success in helping address these needs within the Capital Regional District and would further do 

so with success in rezoning. 

Once again The Society of Saint Vincent de Paul fully supports the Mount Douglas Senior Housing Society in 

their efforts and feels that additional affordable senior housing would be a positive asset to the existing housing 

offered within the CRD. 

Sincerely, 

Angela Hudson, Executive Director 



Page 1 of 2 

ClerkSec - Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

From: "Peter Daniel" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> 
To: <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 

<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, 
<vicki.sanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca>, 
<ClerkSec@saanich.ca>, <planning@saanich.~~-;7<mayor@saanich.ca> 

Date: 1/4/20169:26 AM V' 
Subject: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
CC: < >, "'John G. Smith'" < >, '''JANE 

MASON'" < >, "'Stephen Martin'" 
< > 

Good Morning: 
We received the following response from Isobel McKenzie, BC Seniors Advocate when we requested her position 
on our proposed Seniors Affordable Housing initiative at 1550 Arrow Road. 
Ms. McKenzie notes the need for affordable housing among BC Seniors with minimal annual incomes. 
Best Regards, Peter 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
250-386-7781-locaI246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

from: Seniors Advocate HLTH:EX [info@seniorsadvocatebc.ca] 
Sent: December 31, 2015 12:24 PM 
To: 'Peter Daniel' 
Subject: 299736 Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

Dear Mr. Daniel, 

i~p~OS~T~TO~~---··~--~~~~~·~
POSTED O t~f?4 

COPYTO ........:;~::::::7~c~-1-__ ,CSU 
REPlY TO WRITER ! 

.COPY RESPONSETO LEGISLATIVE DlVlSION I·
REPORT 0 .. 

FOR ~ 
ACKNOWLEDGED t2{ IT 'V .) 

Thank you for your recent letter outlining the current and future seniors' housing options provided by the 
Diocese. 

The need you are meeting is genuine. I can tell you that the #1 issue I hear from seniors is their concern about 
affordable housing. There are over 60,000 seniors in this province living on an annual income of $17,000 or less, 
and for these people in particular, the ability to access affordable housing is crucial. 

I wish you all the best in your ongoing efforts to support seniors. 

Sincerely, 

Isobel Mackenzie 

from: Peter Daniel [mailto:assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca] 
Sent: Tuesday, December 15, 2015 2:26 PM 
To: Biffard, Bev 

~~©~uw~[Q) 
JAN U 4 2016 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAA,NICH 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/568A3AD4SaanichMun_Hall... 1/4/2016179

Page 1 of 2 

ClerkSec - Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

From: "Peter Daniel" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> 
To: <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 

<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, 
<vicki.sanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca>, 
<ClerkSec@saanich.ca>, <planning@saanich.~~-;7<mayor@saanich.ca> 
1/4/20169:26 AM \I' Date: 

Subject: Mount Do las Seniors Housing Society 
CC: "'John G. Smith'" , '''JANE 

>, "'Stephen Martin'" 

Good Morning: 
We received the following response from Isobel McKenzie, BC Seniors Advocate when we requested her position 
on our proposed Seniors Affordable Housing initiative at 1550 Arrow Road. 
Ms. McKenzie notes the need for affordable housing among BC Seniors with minimal annual incomes. 
Best Regards, Peter 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
250-386-7781-locaI246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

From: Seniors Advocate HLTH:EX [info@seniorsadvocatebc.ca] 
Sent: December 31, 2015 12:24 PM 
To: 'Peter Daniel' 
Subject: 299736 Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

Dear Mr. Daniel, 

Thank you for your recent letter outlining the current and future seniors' housing options provided by the 
Diocese. 

The need you are meeting is genuine. I can tell you that the #1 issue I hear from seniors is their concern about 
affordable housing. There are over 60,000 seniors in this province living on an annual income of $17,000 or less, 
and for these people in particular, the ability to access affordable housing is crucial. 

I wish you all the best in your ongoing efforts to support seniors. 

Sincerely, 

Isobel Mackenzie 

From: Peter Daniel [mailto:assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca] 
Sent: Tuesday, December 15, 2015 2:26 PM 
To: Biffard, Bev I 

~~©~u\§~[Q) 

JAN U 4 2016 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAA,NICH 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/568A3AD4SaanichMun_Hall... 1/4/201f 



Page 2 of 2 

Subject: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

Good Afternoon Bev: 
We are getting significant NIMBY re~istance to our project and have been asked to generate lett1ers of support to 
Mayor and Council. 
Please have a look at the outline attached, review our web site at www.anglicanfoundation.ca and let me know 
if it is possible for your office (and or you personally) to write in support of this much needed project. Email 
addresses for Mayor and Council are included in the outline attached. 
We will be in the public arena in January and February and will need speakers for this project when we are. If 
that is a possibility it would be very helpful to have you attend and speak to the importance of affordable 
housing initiatives like ours. 
Any assistance you can provide will be much appreciated. 
Best Regards, Peter 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
250-386-7781-locaI246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

file:/IIC:/Users/Orrs/AppOata/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/568A3A04SaanichMun_Hall... 1/4/201180

Page 2 of 2 

Subject: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

Good Afternoon Bev: 
We are getting significant NIMBY re~istance to our project and have been asked to generate lett1ers of support to 
Mayor and Council. 
Please have a look at the outline attached, review our web site at www.anglicanfoundation.ca and let me know 
if it is possible for your office (and or you personally) to write in support of this much needed project. Email 
addresses for Mayor and Council are included in the outline attached. 
We will be in the public arena in January and February and will need speakers for this project when we are. If 
that is a possibility it would be very helpful to have you attend and speak to the importance of affordable 
housing initiatives like ours. 
Any assistance you can provide will be much appreciated. 
Best Regards, Peter 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
250-386-7781-locaI246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

file:/IIC:/Users/Orrs/AppOata/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/568A3A04SaanichMun_Hall... 1/4/201 a 



Page 1 of 1 

ClerkSec - FW: Saanich Affordable Housing 

From: "Susan Hollo~ay" < > 
To: "'Susan Holloway'" < 

COf'Y RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISIONDate: 12/28/20156:21 PM 
REPORT []Subject: FW: Saanich Affordable Housing 
,~~,..~£OR. ' 6Lt-~--

ACKNOWLEDGED_'_, rrJ.-:;;~=~~-:;:;" 

> REPLY TO WRITER 

Dear Mayor and Councillors of Saanich, 

We are writing you in order to show support for the planned project put forth to you by the Mt 
Douglas Seniors Housing Society. 
This project at 1550 Arrow Rd. is really a good plan for a much needed expansion of affordable 
housing in our municipality. It has been well thought out with great consideration given to the 
neighbours. 

Our Mother enjoyed several wonderful years in the present Arrow Road facility. She loved the 
area as it is so natural, quiet, safe, and serene in its environment. There is little traffic and as 
few of the seniors actually own cars, the added projected numbers of residents would have 
little impact on the area and its other residences nearby. 

The building plan, with the increase in building height should provide minimal negative impact 
to the few neighbours nearby as obviously a senior population do not cause noise or have wild 
parties! 

The neighbours could certainly be impacted in much more negative ways if the Society is 
unable to expand in order to keep rents at the lower level. Hopefully the neighbours realize that 
should the Society be unable to run the facility with these lower rents attained by this 
expansion project, that it could be sold to developers with much more impactful ideas! 

Having been a Saanich resident ourselves for 25 years, we do understand that as 
homeowners we naturally do not want change in OUR neighbourhood, however, this project 
may someday be just what we need as well! 

May you consider this project in the immediate future so it can move forward as soon as 
possible. 

Thanking you for your attention to this matter, 
We remain, 
Susan and Ross Holloway 

[pJ@©@DV:J@;[Q) 
DEC 29 2015 

LEGISLAT 
DISTRICT ~: DIVISION 

SAANICH 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/56825EEBSaanichMun_H... 12/29/201181

ClerkSec - FW: Saanich Affordable Housing 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

"Susan Hollo~ay" < 
"'Susan Holloway'" 
12/28/20156:21 PM 
FW: Saanich Affordable Housing 

Dear Mayor and Councillors of Saanich, 

Page 1 of 1 

REPLY TO WRITER 
COf'Y RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT [] 

,~~, .. ~£OR. ' 6Lt-~--

ACKNOWLEDGED_' _, rrJ.-:;;~=~~-:;:;" 

We are writing you in order to show support for the planned project put forth to you by the Mt 
Douglas Seniors Housing Society. 
This project at 1550 Arrow Rd. is really a good plan for a much needed expansion of affordable 
housing in our municipality. It has been well thought out with great consideration given to the 
neighbours. 

Our Mother enjoyed several wonderful years in the present Arrow Road facility. She loved the 
area as it is so natural, quiet, safe, and serene in its environment. There is little traffic and as 
few of the seniors actually own cars, the added projected numbers of residents would have 
little impact on the area and its other residences nearby. 

The building plan, with the increase in building height should provide minimal negative impact 
to the few neighbours nearby as obviously a senior population do not cause noise or have wild 
parties! 

The neighbours could certainly be impacted in much more negative ways if the Society is 
unable to expand in order to keep rents at the lower level. Hopefully the neighbours realize that 
should the Society be unable to run the facility with these lower rents attained by this 
expansion project, that it could be sold to developers with much more impactful ideas! 

Having been a Saanich resident ourselves for 25 years, we do understand that as 
homeowners we naturally do not want change in OUR neighbourhood, however, this project 
may someday be just what we need as well! 

May you consider this project in the immediate future so it can move forward as soon as 
possible. 

Thanking you for your attention to this matter, 
We remain, 
Susan and Ross Holloway 

[pJ@©@DV:J@;[Q) 
DEC 29 2015 

LEGISLAT 
DISTRICT ~: DIVISION 

SAANICH 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/56825EEBSaanichMun_H... 12/29/201'" 



THE DIOCESE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA 
The Anglican Church of Canada 

I 

The Rig~t Reverend Dr. L. McMenamie 
900 Vancouver Street, Victoria BC Canada V8V 3V7 
T 2503867781, ext. 250; F 250 3864013 
Email bishop@bc.anglican.ca 

December 14, 2015 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Members of Council: 

Re - Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society Project - 1550 Arrow Road, Saanich 

I am the Bishop of the Anglican Diocese of British Columbia and write to you with respect to 
the proposed initiative to expand and renovate the housing facility of Mount Douglas Court 
at 1550 Arrow Road, Saanich. 

As you are aware, the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society, a not-for-profit, has recently 
paid off all debts on its 4-acre property in the Shelbourne and McKenzie area of Saanich. It is 
now able to continue its mandate to provide additional affordable seniors housing. 

I am supportive of the Society's plans to invest in new facilities for seniors in financial 
difficulty, particularly with rental property in such demand in the greater Victoria region. 
We, as a Diocese, are increasingly concerned with the plight of seniors and others in our 
community with reduced incomes. 

We are aware that the Society requires tenants to qualify for rental housing on the basis of 
age and income levels. No other restrictions apply. 

The SOCiety has been providing affordable housing for seniors on this property for over 40 
years. The Diocese looks forward to having the Society continue to provide affordable 
housing with new buildings that will complement the area for many more years. 

Please support this important initiative when it comes before you for approvals during the 
public process. 

~[g©[gOw[g[Q) 

DEC 2 2 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

POST TO 

COpy TO ~""'-I--'7---

COPY RESPONSF fO LEGISLATIVE D1V1SION 
REPORT [J 

FOO ____~~~~~~__-
ACKNOWlEDGED

182

THE DIOCESE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA 
The Anglican Church of Canada 

I 

The Rig~t Reverend Dr. L. McMenamie 
900 Vancouver Street, Victoria BC Canada V8V 3V7 
T 2503867781, ext. 250; F 250 3864013 
Email bishop@bc.anglican.ca 

December 14, 2015 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Members of Council: 

Re - Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society Project - 1550 Arrow Road, Saanich 

I am the Bishop of the Anglican Diocese of British Columbia and write to you with respect to 
the proposed initiative to expand and renovate the housing facility of Mount Douglas Court 
at 1550 Arrow Road, Saanich. 

As you are aware, the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society, a not-for-profit, has recently 
paid off all debts on its 4-acre property in the Shelbourne and McKenzie area of Saanich. It is 
now able to continue its mandate to provide additional affordable seniors housing. 

I am supportive of the Society's plans to invest in new facilities for seniors in financial 
difficulty, particularly with rental property in such demand in the greater Victoria region. 
We, as a Diocese, are increasingly concerned with the plight of seniors and others in our 
community with reduced incomes. 

We are aware that the Society requires tenants to qualify for rental housing on the basis of 
age and income levels. No other restrictions apply. 

The Society has been providing affordable housing for seniors on this property for over 40 
years. The Diocese looks forward to having the Society continue to provide affordable 
housing with new buildings that will complement the area for many more years. 

Please support this important initiative when it comes before you for approvals during the 
public process. 

:/(' 
'-----..... 

[Ri[g(g[gOw[g[Q) 

DEC 2 2 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

COPY RESPONSF fO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
REPORT [J 

FOR __ --,."".....,.-j--=,....,....~",::_ __ , 

ACKNOWlEDGED-



302 - 895 Fort Street, Lekwungen Territories, Victoria, BC, Canada V8W 1H7 
Tel: (250) 361-3521 Fax: (250) 361-3541 Web: www.tapsbc.ca 

December 18,2015 

Dear Saanich Mayor and Council, 

I am writing this letter in SUppOlt of Mount Douglas Seniors I-lousing Society's rezoning 
application that would support the development of an additional 100 units of desperately needed 
low-income housing in the Capital Regional District. 

Together Against Poverty Society (TAPS) provides legal advocacy to low-income individuals in 
the areas ofprovincial income assistance, disability benefits, tenancy and employment standards. 
Over the past year TAPS served over 6,000 low-income individuals in the Capital Regional 
District, and a significant portion of those were living in Saanich. It is clear, based on the work 
that we do, that Saanich like many other municipalities in the Capital Regional District, is in dire 
need of affordable housing for its residents, especially for single seniors on fixed incomes. 
TAPS is also concerned with ensuring that housing for our society's most vulnerable is safe and 
secure and provided by high quality landlords. In our over 26 years of operations, TAPS has 
never heard a complaint from a tenant about Mount Douglas COutt. 

Truly affordable, housing that is safe and secure is extremely hard to come by in our region. 
With vacancy rates at .6 percent and perpetually low income assistance and provincial disability 
rates, low-income people are hard pressed to find adequate housing. This development comes at 
a time when our region needs it the most. I urge you to SUppOlt this vitally important, high 
quality development initiative. 

Sincerely, 

I 

Kelly Newhook 
Executive Director, TAPS 

Supported by: 
The Law Foundation of British Columbia, United Way of Greater Victoria, 

Province of British Columbia, 
The Provincial Employees Community SeN/ces Fund, 

and other generous donors. 

183

302 - 895 Fort Street, Lekwungen Territories, Victoria, BC, Canada V8W 1 H7 
Tel: (250) 361-3521 Fax: (250) 361-3541 Web: www.tapsbc.ca 

December 18,2015 

Dear Saanich Mayor and Council, 

I am writing this letter in suppOli of Mount Douglas Seniors I-lousing Society's rezoning 
application that would support the development of an additional 100 units of desperately needed 
low-income housing in the Capital Regional District. 

Together Against Poverty Society (TAPS) provides legal advocacy to low-income individuals in 
the areas of provincial income assistance, disability benefits, tenancy and employment standards. 
Over the past year TAPS served over 6,000 low-income individuals in the Capital Regional 
District, and a significant portion of those were living in Saanich. It is clear, based on the work 
that we do, that Saanich like many other municipalities in the Capital Regional District, is in dire 
need of affordable housing for its residents, especially for single seniors on fixed incomes. 
TAPS is also concerned with ensuring that housing for our society's most vulnerable is safe and 
secure and provided by high quality landlords. In our over 26 years of operations, TAPS has 
never heard a complaint from a tenant about Mount Douglas Couti. 

Truly affordable, housing that is safe and secure is extremely hard to come by in our region. 
With vacancy rates at .6 percent and perpetually low income assistance and provincial disability 
rates, low-income people are hard pressed to find adequate housing. This development comes at 
a time when our region needs it the most. I urge you to suppOli this vitally important, high 
quality development initiative. 

Sincerely, 
'--1_'-'.,. ___ , '~ __ ----. 

I 

Kelly Newhook 
Executive Director, TAPS 

Supported by: 
The Law Foundation of British Columbia, United Way of Greater Victoria, 

Province of British Columbia, 
The Provincial Employees Community SeNices Fund, 

and other generous donors. 



 

Page 1 of 2 

ClerkSec - New information on Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society project now on 
web site. All neighbours who have emailed us have been notified by email today.-:!;/""', /" 

From: "Peter Daniel" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> It U -~ 
To: <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, ! 

<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred. haynes@saanich.ca>, copy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATiVE DMRIO~I , ~ 
U /'<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, REPORT 0 I 

<vicki.sanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca , FOR V' ~ 
<ClerkSec@saanich.ca>, <plannjrrg@saanich.ca>, <mayo niG1!nt:~, en ...:.. f 

Date: 12/21/20152:51 PM v-~-~~= 
Subject: New information on Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society project now on web 

site. All neighbours who have emailed us have been notified b(f-la~~·~~~___--. 

''0""q"''''''+'''''\,~iFlffi~~!IIf'''''~-~:S
posT f/ ~ 

CC: < >, "'John G. Smith'" ~~~rguw~[fJ) 
MASON'" >, "'Stephen Martin'" . 
< > DEC 2 2 2015 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICHGood Morning: 

Recently the web site for the redevelopment of the 1550 Arrow Road project has been updated. Please view at 
www.anglicanfoundation.ca 
This is in response to some suggestions and recommendations from neighbours and others in emails; from a 

meeting held with neighbours on September 29th ; from suggestions from Saanich and the GHRA. 
New information on this project can be seen in the FAQ section where plans and videos now show the potential 
for development of the property (by others) under present zoning in place without the need for a rezoning 
process. This assumes that the property is sold to a third party who would want to develop to the maximum 
allowable under existing zoning in place. 
This is not the intent of the Society. It has been done to demonstrate what is currently allowed. 
The result shown here is buildings to the maximum allowable under existing zoning while still respecting 
setbacks, height (24.5 feet) and Floor Space Ratios. 
A video shows what development of a 2 level building to maximum density for zoning in place now might look 
like from across Bel Nor Place and Hopesmore Drive. 
Of note, the existing building on site is under 45,000 square feet in size while present RA-l zoning allows over 
91,000 square feet on this 4 acre site. The existing bachelor units are under 400 square feet in size (80 units in 
total). The property could be developed with 90 units of approximately 1,000 square feet each. 

A second new development option showing development under new rezoning applied for - RA-3 but with only 2 
stories height shows a plan that increases the first phase building footprint at the expense of a lot of green space 
and setbacks much closer to the eastern site boundary of the property. This is in order to achieve 100 new 
residential units (bachelor units approximately 400 square feet in size and 1 BR units approximately 510 square 
feet in size). Development of the second phase under RA-3 zoning would require a 4 story building close to the 
western property line or underground parking to accommodate a 2 story building. Neither of these alternatives 
is feasible for neighbours or the Society - underground parking is too expensive; 4 stories adjacent to neighbour 
producing shadows is not likely acceptable. The video for this plan shows what the 2 level development under 
RA-3 zoning with reduced setbacks would look like from across Bel Nor Place and Hopesmore Drive. 

There is also a third video showing the buildings applied for in rezoning and what this would look like from 
across Bel Nor Place and Hopesmore Drive. See this video under the tab "exterior concept" find the new "red 
NEW" area and click on the video to see this view. 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/567811 EOSaanichMun_Ha... 12/22/2015 2184

Page 1 of 2 

ClerkSec - New information on Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society project now on 
web site. All neighbours who have emailed us have been notified by email today.-:!;/""', /" 

''0""q"''''''+'''''\,~iFlffi~~!IIf'''''~-~:S 
posT f/ ~ 

"Peter Daniel" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> It U -~ 
<susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, ! 
<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred. haynes@saanich.ca>, copy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATiVE DMRIO~I , ~ 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, REPORT 0 U /' I 
<vicki.sanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca , FOR V' ~ 

From: 
To: 

<ClerkSec@saanich.ca>, <plannjrrg@saanich.ca>, <mayo niG1!nt:~, en ...:.. f 
Date: 12/21/20152:51 PM v-~-~~= 
Subject: New information on Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society project now on web 

CC: 
site. All ne hbours who have emailed us have been notified ~~~':!:;l;~~---_ 

Good Morning: 
Recently the web site for the redevelopment of the 1550 Arrow Road project has been updated. Please view at 
www.anglicanfoundation.ca 
This is in response to some suggestions and recommendations from neighbours and others in emails; from a 

meeting held with neighbours on September 29th ; from suggestions from Saanich and the GHRA. 
New information on this project can be seen in the FAQ section where plans and videos now show the potential 
for development of the property (by others) under present zoning in place without the need for a rezoning 
process. This assumes that the property is sold to a third party who would want to develop to the maximum 
allowable under existing zoning in place. 
This is not the intent of the Society. It has been done to demonstrate what is currently allowed. 
The result shown here is buildings to the maximum allowable under existing zoning while still respecting 
setbacks, height (24.5 feet) and Floor Space Ratios. 
A video shows what development of a 2 level building to maximum density for zoning in place now might look 
like from across Bel Nor Place and Hopesmore Drive. 
Of note, the existing building on site is under 45,000 square feet in size while present RA-l zoning allows over 
91,000 square feet on this 4 acre site. The existing bachelor units are under 400 square feet in size (80 units in 
total). The property could be developed with 90 units of approximately 1,000 square feet each. 

A second new development option showing development under new rezoning applied for - RA-3 but with only 2 
stories height shows a plan that increases the first phase building footprint at the expense of a lot of green space 
and setbacks much closer to the eastern site boundary of the property. This is in order to achieve 100 new 
residential units (bachelor units approximately 400 square feet in size and 1 BR units approximately 510 square 
feet in size). Development of the second phase under RA-3 zoning would require a 4 story building close to the 
western property line or underground parking to accommodate a 2 story building. Neither of these alternatives 
is feasible for neighbours or the Society - underground parking is too expensive; 4 stories adjacent to neighbour 
producing shadows is not likely acceptable. The video for this plan shows what the 2 level development under 
RA-3 zoning with reduced setbacks would look like from across Bel Nor Place and Hopesmore Drive. 

There is also a third video showing the buildings applied for in rezoning and what this would look like from 
across Bel Nor Place and Hopesmore Drive. See this video under the tab "exterior concept" find the new "red 
NEW" area and click on the video to see this view. 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/567811 EOSaanichMun_Ha... 12/22/2015 



Page 2 of 2 

Please note that all of the video views of all concepts are from approximately 50 feet back from the roads and 
from eye level approximately 5 feet above grade. These videos show tree shapes to match existing trees and 
they are accurate to Mount Douglas Court ground I~vels of proposed buildings. 

I 

Additionally, Parking and Traffic study information is now showing under the tab "exterior concept". These are 
independent consultant reports accounting for the parking use of our existing residents and estimating future 
needs for the new development proposed from that use analysis. It is on this basis that project parking is 
planned. 
The Traffic study is an independent consultant report on the impact of traffic form the existing building with 
projections of future impacts from the development proposed. This is not a traffic study of Arrow Road 
commuter uses. 
The Traffic study also shows our plans to widen the pedestrian path linking from our property to Bel Nor Place 
so that pedestrians, particularly seniors and those using walkers and scooters will have safe uninterrupted 
passage from the Mount Douglas site to safer level pedestrian pathways linking to Cedar Hill Road and 
commercial facilities nearby. 
The Society has a legal easement over property that will allow it to widen this narrow, gated pedestrian path to 
5 feet to accommodate safe passage. 

The Society anticipates that the project will be debated in Council at a Committee of the Whole meeting early in 
the new year. It also anticipates that the project will come to a public hearing in early spring 2016. 
When we know the dates of these meetings, that information will be placed on the web site. 

Regards, Peter 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
2S0-386-7781-locaI246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
2S0-386-7781-local 246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

file:///C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localffemp/XPgrpwise/567811 EOSaanichMun_Ha... 12/22/2015 2185

Page 2 of 2 

Please note that all of the video views of all concepts are from approximately 50 feet back from the roads and 
from eye level approximately 5 feet above grade. These videos show tree shapes to match existing trees and 
they are accurate to Mount Douglas Court ground I~vels of proposed buildings. 

I 

Additionally, Parking and Traffic study information is now showing under the tab "exterior concept". These are 
independent consultant reports accounting for the parking use of our existing residents and estimating future 
needs for the new development proposed from that use analysis. It is on this basis that project parking is 
planned. 
The Traffic study is an independent consultant report on the impact of traffic form the existing building with 
projections of future impacts from the development proposed. This is not a traffic study of Arrow Road 
commuter uses. 
The Traffic study also shows our plans to widen the pedestrian path linking from our property to Bel Nor Place 
so that pedestrians, particularly seniors and those using walkers and scooters will have safe uninterrupted 
passage from the Mount Douglas site to safer level pedestrian pathways linking to Cedar Hill Road and 
commercial facilities nearby. 
The Society has a legal easement over property that will allow it to widen this narrow, gated pedestrian path to 
5 feet to accommodate safe passage. 

The Society anticipates that the project will be debated in Council at a Committee of the Whole meeting early in 
the new year. It also anticipates that the project will come to a public hearing in early spring 2016. 
When we know the dates of these meetings, that information will be placed on the web site. 

Regards, Peter 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
2S0-386-7781-locaI246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

Peter Daniel 
Asset Manager Diocese of British Columbia 
2S0-386-7781-local 246 Office 
250-514-7797 mobile 
assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 

file:///C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localffemp/XPgrpwise/567811 EOSaanichMun_Ha... 12/22/2015 



Page 1 of 2 

ClerkSec - Housing 

From: "Audrey Harry" < :~:::::-:::IC:::;::::-::::O~:-/l:-----k 
To: <ClerkSec@saanich.ca> . JllLS~LS '0 ~[Q) 
Date: 12/21/2015 1 :24 PM DEC 2 2 2015 
Subject: Housing 

LEGISI:ATIVEDIVISIDN 
DISTRICT OF Sf.,Ll,NILf-L"~~~~~::.:=;::;;;:;;= 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

I {m writing to you to ask you to support the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society in 
its plans to provide additional affordable housing for seniors in Victoria and surrounding 
areas. 

Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society has owned and operated an 80 unit for more 
than 40 years. It is located at 1550 Arrow Road and is associated with the Anglican 
Diocese of Be. 

The property is zoned for apartment use, it is debt free and the suites rent for an 
average rate of $450 per month which includes heat, water and cable vision. The 
average income of thee residents is approximately $17000 p.a. This limits them from 
securing any other affordable housing. There is a large area of green space and the 
gardens are well cared for. The relationship with the neighbours, to date, has been 
amicable 

The Society wants to develop more affordable housing for seniors on this property; the 
plan is to do this in 2 phases. The first phase is to construct a building housing 100 
suites. Rezoning is required for this first building because the current zoning restricts the 
number of units to 90. The suites in the new unit will be both bachelor and one 
bedroom. Monthly rents will be well below CMHC levels and may include some utilities. 

The second phase would be constructed in 10-30 years time and this would include the 
removal of the current building and replacing it with a building which will house about 
140 units. 

Please look at the plans, the Frequently Asked questions, and the Presentation, on the 
project web site at www.anglicanfoundation.ca 

As the society is approaching rezoning, some neighbours have objected on the grounds 
that it is not appropriate in a residential neighbourhood. For the following reasons, 
increased traffic, the height of the building, pedestrian safety and increased density. 
These concerns have been addressed in the proposed plans for the new building and are 
available on the web site. 

The project has been reviewed and recommended for approval by Saanich Planning 
Staff and the Gordon head Residents Association. The Saanich Advisory Design Panel 

file:IIIC :/Users/Orrsl AppData/Local1T emp/XPg rpwise/5677FDA9Saan ichMu n _H... 12/22/2015 2186

ClerkSec - Housing 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

"Audrey Harry" 
<ClerkSec@saanich.ca> 
12/21/20151:24 PM 
Housing 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

~Ow~[Q) 
DEC 22 2015 

Page 1 of 2 

LEG ISI:ATIVEDIVISID N --1.;-----"',:"'-- .... _-.--.-.---.--_.-.- -----------... --/---.... -

H 

I {m writing to you to ask you to support the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society in 
its plans to provide additional affordable housing for seniors in Victoria and surrounding 
areas. 

Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society has owned and operated an 80 unit for more 
than 40 years. It is located at 1550 Arrow Road and is associated with the Anglican 
Diocese of Be. 

The property is zoned for apartment use, it is debt free and the suites rent for an 
average rate of $450 per month which includes heat, water and cable vision. The 
average income of thee residents is approximately $17000 p.a. This limits them from 
securing any other affordable housing. There is a large area of green space and the 
gardens are well cared for. The relationship with the neighbours, to date, has been 
amicable 

The Society wants to develop more affordable housing for seniors on this property; the 
plan is to do this in 2 phases. The first phase is to construct a building housing 100 
suites. Rezoning is required for this first building because the current zoning restricts the 
number of units to 90. The suites in the new unit will be both bachelor and one 
bedroom. Monthly rents will be well below CMHC levels and may include some utilities. 

The second phase would be constructed in 10-30 years time and this would include the 
removal of the current building and replacing it with a building which will house about 
140 units. 

Please look at the plans, the Frequently Asked questions, and the Presentation, on the 
project web site at www.anglicanfoundation.ca 

As the society is approaching rezoning, some neighbours have objected on the grounds 
that it is not appropriate in a residential neighbourhood. For the following reasons, 
increased traffic, the height of the building, pedestrian safety and increased density. 
These concerns have been addressed in the proposed plans for the new building and are 
available on the web site. 

The project has been reviewed and recommended for approval by Saanich Planning 
Staff and the Gordon head Residents Association. The Saanich Advisory Design Panel 

file:IIIC :/Users/Orrsl AppData/Local1T emp/XPg rpwise/5677FDA9Saan ich M u n _ H... 12/22/2015 



 

 

Page 2 of 2 

has¢approved the building plans which have designed to have the most minimal impact 
on the neighbourhood. It has been planned without government funding. 

I i 

The Society has spent 15 months in preparation for the rezoning proc~ss. It has met 
with the current residents of Mount Douglas Court; it has held 2 special meetings with 
the neighbourhood and on occasion, with individual neighbours in response to 
individual concerns. 

I am writing to you to ask you for your support for the Society in its plans to provide 
additional low cost housing for seniors in the Victoria district. Affordable housing for 
seniors is a major challenge and will only become more so as the years go by. The 
Society's mandate is to address that challenge in a timely manner and to do so with care 
and concern for all who live in the neighbourhood. We believe the plan is designed to 
achieve the best results for this purpose. 

Audrey Harry (Mount Douglas Court Board Member) 

Kentwood Lane 

Victoria V8Y 2Y7 

Ph. 

file:II!C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localff emp/XPgrpwise/5677FDA9SaanichMun_H... 12/22/2015 2187

Page 2 of 2 

has*approved the building plans which have designed to have the most minimal impact 
on the neighbourhood~ It has been planned without government funding. 

I· i 

The Society has spent is months in preparation for the rezoning proc~ss. It has met 
with the current residents of Mount Douglas Court; it has held 2 special meetings with 
the neighbourhood and on occasion, with individual neighbours in response to 
individual concerns. 

I am writing to you to ask you for your support for the Society in its plans to provide 
additional low cost housing for seniors in the Victoria district. Affordable housing for 
seniors is a major challenge and will only become more so as the years go by. The 
Society's mandate is to address that challenge in a timely manner and to do so with care 
and concern for all who live in the neighbourhood. We believe the plan is designed to 
achieve the best results for this purpose. 

Audrey Harry (Mount Douglas Court Board Member) 

_ Kentwood Lane 

Victoria V8Y 2Y7 

Ph 

file:II!C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localff emp/XPgrpwise/5677FDA9SaanichMun_H... 12/22/2015 



[Rj~©~Uw~lQ) 

DEC 22 2015December 18, 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAA~JICH

O""'-':;:;':'~~-~~~POr!MST~TO~~~2';;L::s:: 
r-__~~~~__~PO~S~T~~~~ 
COpy TO .:::tj> 
INFORMATION ~ ""- ~ 
REPlYTO WRITER ~0 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISIO~' ~ 
REPORT 0 f 

FOR ~ 
"ACKNOWLEDGED /"" ---I 
... - .. "C'iItl....~~~.:;~~;:;;;;::::-:-:,"""7;-: 

RE: Application to the Mayor and Council of Saanich regarding the urgent need for 
Seniors Housing 

It has come 10 our attention that an application has beellll1ade to the municipality of Saanich to 
build seniors housing at Mount Douglas Court. 

The BC Association of Community Response Networks is a provincial organization which 
supports community Community Response Networks throughout the province (60 to elate 
including one in the greater VictOlia region). These net\\'orks bring together service providers, 
agencies and professionals to create a coordinated response to the abuse, neglect and self-neglect 
of vulnerable adults the majority of who111 are older adults. Our other mandate is to do public 
education as a preventative measure to build awareness of the issue. 

We know that poorly housed adults are much more susceptible to abuse. If citizens have 
adequate housing and supports, they are not as likely to be preyed upon by friends, families and 
others. Financial abuse is by far the most common type of abuse. 

By supporting this application you will be helping to make many more of your citizens live safe, 
healthy and independent lives. 

Thank you for your consideration of this important issue. 

Sherry Baker, M.A. 
Executive Director 

1.5008 26th Avenue, Surrey, Be v4P 3H5 
Fox: 604.53 i .9493 {$ Ernoil: odministrotion@bccrns.co ~ Website: -,-,-,-,--,-c.:.=-=-",,-,-,,== 

I 

188

December 18, 2015 

[Rj~©~~w~lQ) 

DEC 22 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAAt'-JICH 

O"-':;:;';'.::::....:...:.~-~~7,;POr!MST~TO~~~2J::l'::s:: 
r-__ ~~~~ __ ~PO~S~T~~~~ 
COpy TO .::stJ> 
INFORMATION ~ ~ ~ I 

REPLYTO WRITER 0 ~ 
COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISIO~' F: 

REPORT 0 f 
FOR ~ 

"ACKNOWLEDGED' /" ---I 
... - "'O\''''OO:~~::~:;::;:;;;;;:;~~~_~'7;::; 

RE: Application to the Mayor and Council of Saanich regarding the urgent need for 
Seniors Housing 

It has come to our attention that an application has been made to the municipality of Saanich to 
build seniors housing at Mount Douglas Court. 

The BC Association of Community Response Networks is a provincial organization which 
supports community Community Response Networks throughout the province (60 to clate 
ineluding one in the greater VictOlia region). These netlNorks bring together service providers, 
agencies and professionals to create a coordinated response to the abuse, neglect and self-neglect 
of vulnerable adults - the majority of whom are older adults. Our other mandate is to do public 
education as a preventative measure to build awareness of the issue. 

We know that poorly housed adults are much more susceptible to abuse. If citizens have 
adequate housing and supports, they are not as likely to be preyed upon by friends, families and 
others. Financial abuse is by far the most common type of abuse. 

By supporting this application you will be helping to make many more of your citizens live safe, 
healthy and independent lives. 

Thank you for your consideration of this important issue. 

1\ 
.J 

Sherry Baker, M.A. 
Executive Director 

1.5008 - 26th Avenue, Surrey, Be v 4P 3H5 
Fox: 604.S3i .9498 {$ Ernoil: odministrotion@bccrns.ca e Website: ·wvNJ.bccrns.co 



1111 WEST GEORGIA, SUITE 2000 1111 CHEMIN GEORGIA 0, PORTE 2000 
VANCOUVER, Be VANCOUVER, BC 

V6E 4S4 V6E 4S4 

December 18, 2015 

Re: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society - Affordable Seniors Rental Housing Redevelopment 
1550 Arrow Road, Saanich, Be 

To Whom It May Concern: 

CMHC's Affordable Housing Centre supports Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society's (MDSHS) housing 

proposal of redeveloping 1550 Arrow Road, Saanich. We commend MDSHS on their predevelopment 

activities of site rezoning, meetings with the District of Saanich, existing residents at Mt. Douglas Court 

and with the neighborhood residents. A successful project is the result of early consultations with all 

parties involved, 

Through the provision of CMHC Seed and Proposal Development Funding, CMHC works with all levels of 

government, the nonprofit and private sectors to help Canadians in need access suitable, quality and 

affordable housings. The commitment of MDSHS to provide affordable housing for seniors without 

ongoing government subsidy continues to support our mission, 

Thank you for advancing affordable housing solutions in the community. 

srRegards, 

Affordable Housing Consultant· BC Region 
Tel: 604-737-4061 

dYip@cmhe.ca 

CAN A DAM 0 IITGAG E ,\ N D H 0 U 5 I N G COlt P 0 llAT ION SOCIETE CANADIENNE D'HYPOTHEQUES ET DE LOGEMENT 

Canada 
189

1111 WEST GEORGIA, SUITE 2000 
VANCOUVER, Be 

V6E 4S4 

December 18, 2015 

1111 CHEMIN GEORGIA 0, PORTE 2000 

VANCOUVER, BC 

V6E 4S4 

Re: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society - Affordable Seniors Rental Housing Redevelopment -
1550 Arrow Road, Saanich, Be 

To Whom It May Concern: 

CMHC's Affordable Housing Centre supports Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society's (MDSHS) housing 

proposal of redeveloping 1550 Arrow Road, Saanich. We commend MDSHS on their predevelopment 

activities of site rezoning, meetings with the District of Saanich, existing residents at Mt. Douglas Court 

and with the neighborhood residents. A successful project is the result of early consultations with all 

parties involved, 

Through the provision of CMHC Seed and Proposal Development Funding, CMHC works with all levels of 

government, the nonprofit and private sectors to help Canadians in need access suitable, quality and 

affordable housings. The commitment of MDSHS to provide affordable housing for seniors without 

ongoing government subsidy continues to support our mission, 

Thank you for advancing affordable housing solutions in the community. 

War~srRegards;--.... 
r--__ ,,:.Lc...J-....,. ",,-._~-,, 

ra I 

Affordable Housing Consultant· BC Region 
Tel: 604-737-4061 

dYip@cmhe.ca 

CAN A DAM 0 II T GAG E ,\ N D H 0 U 5 I N G COlt P 0 RA T 1 0 N SOCIETE CANADIENNE D'HYPOTHEQUES ET DE LOGEMENT 

Canada 



CLffDGU Page 1 of 2 

ClerkSec - Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 
CC: 

I POST TO 

"Kim Dixon" <executivejb.nh@shawbiz.ca> 
<mayor@saanich.ca> 
12/20/2015 4:52 PM REPLY TO WRITER 

Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society GOPYRESPONSETOLEGISLATIVEDtVISION 

<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca> REPORT 

<susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, FOR __-:--"""r-:-':-=-__ 

<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>~A::.:CK.::.:NO:::.:Wl:.:.=.::;EDG~ED;:"·-=:::::::==;;;;;:;l:;=== 
jvicki.sanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca>, 

V <planning@saanich.ca>, <ClerkSec@saanich.ca> 

Dear Mayor Atwell and members of Saanich Council, 

Re: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society: Rezoning Application 

I am writing to ask that, under your leadership, Saanich Council approve the rezoning of land at 
1550 Arrow Road to allow for an additional 100 low-rent apartment-style units. 

As the Executive Director of a Senior Activity Centre, I am well aware that there are surprisingly 
few apartment complexes suitable for low-income senior citizens to enjoy. Almost daily, I have 
seniors corning to talk to me about affordable housing as rents in the greater Victoria area are 
rising and unfortunately with the cost of living also rising, those on fixed incomes are finding it 
very difficult to find appropriate accommodation. 

As you are probably aware, a very recent study by the Community Social Planning Council has 
shown a growing gap between available housing and demand for housing among low income 
citizens in Greter Victoria, in particular the elderly; so these plans are a direct response to a 
documented need. A need, I might add, which is likely to become worse as a number of rental 
complexes have recently been purchased and the new owners are renovating and raising rents 
nearly $200 a month per unit. Indeed unfortunate circumstances to the senior's residing in these 
units and who are unable to afford this significant increase on their limited pensions. 

I urge you to consider the proposal from The Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society and vote in 
favour of development if an additional 100 apartments that will be available well below the 
CMHC affordability level criteria and may include some utilities. I cannot express to you how 
much this housing will mean to the seniors in the Greater Victoria community. 

Thank-you in advance for your time and consideration. I look forward to being able to tell seniors 
that there is an affordable housing alternative being built. 

Ifyou have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, ~©~uw~lQ) 

DEC 2 1 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

L.....J)!STRICT OF SAANICH 
Executive Director, 

James Bay New Horizons 

file:/I/C :/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/5676DCCDSaanichMun_H... 12/21/2015 
3190

CLffDGU Page 1 of 2 

ClerkSec - Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

I POST TO 

From: "Kim Dixon" <executivejb.nh@shawbiz.ca> 
To: <mayor@saanich.ca> 
Date: 12/20/2015 4:52 PM 
Subject: 
CC: 

REPLY TO WRITER 

Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society GOPYRESPONSETOLEGISLATIVEDtVISION I,' 

<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca> REPORT i 
<susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, FOR __ -:--"'r-:-.."....,::--___ ! 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca> ACKNOWlEDGED' ,J, 

jvicki.sanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca>, 
V <planning@saanich.ca>, <ClerkSec@saanich.ca> 

Dear Mayor Atwell and members of Saanich Council, 

Re: Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society: Rezoning Application 

I am writing to ask that, under your leadership, Saanich Council approve the rezoning of land at 
1550 Arrow Road to allow for an additional 100 low-rent apartment-style units. 

As the Executive Director of a Senior Activity Centre, I am well aware that there are surprisingly 
few apartment complexes suitable for low-income senior citizens to enjoy. Almost daily, I have 
seniors corning to talk to me about affordable housing as rents in the greater Victoria area are 
rising and unfortunately with the cost of living also rising, those on fixed incomes are finding it 
very difficult to find appropriate accommodation. 

As you are probably aware, a very recent study by the Community Social Planning Council has 
shown a growing gap between available housing and demand for housing among low income 
citizens in Greter Victoria, in particular the elderly; so these plans are a direct response to a 
documented need. A need, I might add, which is likely to become worse as a number of rental 
complexes have recently been purchased and the new owners are renovating and raising rents 
nearly $200 a month per unit. Indeed unfortunate circumstances to the senior's residing in these 
units and who are unable to afford this significant increase on their limited pensions. 

I urge you to consider the proposal from The Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society and vote in 
favour of development if an additional 100 apartments that will be available well below the 
CMHC affordability level criteria and may include some utilities. I cannot express to you how 
much this housing will mean to the seniors in the Greater Victoria community. 

Thank-you in advance for your time and consideration. I look forward to being able to tell seniors 
that there is an affordable housing alternative being built. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Executive Director, 

James Bay New Horizons 

~©~uw~lQ) 

DEC 2 1 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

L....J)!STRICT OF SAANICH 

file:/I/C :/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/5676DCCDSaanichMun_ H .. , 12/21/2015 



Page 2 of 2 

234 Menzies St 
Victoria, B.C. V8V 2G7 
Direct Line Phone: 250-386-4432 

www.iamesbaynewhorizons.ca 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/5676DCCDSaanichMun_H ... 12/21/2015 3191

234 Menzies St 
Victoria, B.C. V8V 2G7 
Direct Line Phone: 250-386-4432 

www.iamesbaynewhorizons.ca 

Page 2 of 2 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/5676DCCDSaanichMun_H ... 12/21/2015 



Page 1 of 1 

INfORMATION 

REPLY TO WRITER 

(/~.
ClerkSec - MDSHS Building plans 

I 
From: Derek Ellis < > 
To: <ClerkSec@saanich.ca> 
Date: 12/16/2015 10:14 PM COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT []Subject: MDSHS Building plans 
"'~~'FOR~~"--"'-~"~~~"--~-~-"~-~~--/-'-' 
ACKNOWLEDGED" V -, 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Re: Mt. Douglas Seniors Housing Society. 1550 Arrow Road - New Building plans 

I have been a volunteer member of the MDSHS Board for 14 years, as an Anglican Church 
Women nominee. This is an affordable housing building with the units renting for $450 on 
average, including heat, water and cable vision. 

There is a family atmosphere within the building, and the tenants hold social events quite 
regularly. We keep the building in good repair and the grounds well kept and in spite of the 
low rentals we have paid off our mortgage and are debt free. 

We wish to develop more affordable seniors housing to meet the obvious need. We have the 
land. We plan to develop another 100 units, one-bedroom and bachelor, in a separate 
building, to increase our capacity to 180 units. Monthly rentals are planned to be well below 
CMHC affordability level criteria. The zoning in place restricts the number of housing units or 
apartments to 90. Rezoning is needed for this new development. The plans are on the project 
website at www.anglicanfoundation.ca . 

Some neighbours are objecting to this project. They are afraid of traffic increases, pedestrian 
safety, the height of the building, etc. Virtually all these concerns have been addressed in the 
plans. The proposal has been reviewed and recommended for approval by Saanich Planning 
Staff, and has had a positive recommendation from the Gordon Head Residents Association. 
The new building is designed to retain, as much as possible, the pastoral "feel" of Mount 
Douglas Court so as to have a minimal impact on the neighbourhood. 

I am writing to request your support for this project, which is planned without Government 
funding and will increase the number of affordable housing units for seniors. 

Sincerely, Katharine Ellis 

rrt@;©~OW@;fIlJ 
)JEC 1 7 2015 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

file:II/C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/5671 E236SaanichMun_Ha... 12/17/2015 3192

ClerkSec - MDSHS Building plans 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

Derek Ellis < 
<ClerkSec@saanich.ca> 
12/16/2015 10:14 PM 
MDSHS Building plans 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

INfORMATION 

REPLY TO WRITER 
COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT [] 

"'~~'FOR~~"--"'-~"~~~"--~-~-"~-~~--/-'-' 
ACKNOWLEDGED" V -, 

Page 1 of 1 

(/~. 

Re: Mt. Douglas Seniors Housing Society. 1550 Arrow Road - New Building plans 

I have been a volunteer member of the MDSHS Board for 14 years, as an Anglican Church 
Women nominee. This is an affordable housing building with the units renting for $450 on 
average, including heat, water and cable vision. 

There is a family atmosphere within the building, and the tenants hold social events quite 
regularly. We keep the building in good repair and the grounds well kept and in spite of the 
low rentals we have paid off our mortgage and are debt free. 

We wish to develop more affordable seniors housing to meet the obvious need. We have the 
land. We plan to develop another 100 units, one-bedroom and bachelor, in a separate 
building, to increase our capacity to 180 units. Monthly rentals are planned to be well below 
CMHC affordability level criteria. The zoning in place restricts the number of housing units or 
apartments to 90. Rezoning is needed for this new development. The plans are on the project 
website at www.anglicanfoundation.ca . 

Some neighbours are objecting to this project. They are afraid of traffic increases, pedestrian 
safety, the height of the building, etc. Virtually all these concerns have been addressed in the 
plans. The proposal has been reviewed and recommended for approval by Saanich Planning 
Staff, and has had a positive recommendation from the Gordon Head Residents Association. 
The new building is designed to retain, as much as possible, the pastoral "feel" of Mount 
Douglas Court so as to have a minimal impact on the neighbourhood. 

I am writing to request your support for this project, which is planned without Government 
funding and will increase the number of affordable housing units for seniors. 

Sincerely, Katharine Ellis 

I ~~©~alY~©J 1 

)JEC 1 7 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

file:II/C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrr emp/XPgrpwise/5671 E236SaanichMun_Ha... 12/17/2015 



ClerkSec - Seniors' Housing Project on Arrow Road 

From: "Sarkh Smith" <ssmith@cridge.org> 
To: <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 

<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, 

~age 1 of 1]L5 
r."PO~S~T~TO-- PDSTI:D ,".(l," ~€ 
cOPY TO _.:;.a.....1..-+~..I....Q:~_-=::::CU 

REPlY TO WRITER I 
COPY ReSPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE OIVlSlmJ I 

REPORT [J t 

ACKN~EDGED bIiiI.~ ,~, r 
~-',./"t","'::"t"'''''-'''"''~~''''·'''''''_'''._''_ 

<vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca>, 
<ClerkSec@saanich.ca>, <planning@saanich.ca>, <mayor@saanich.ca> 

Date: 12/17/20152:18 PM 
Subject: Seniors' Housing Project on Arrow Road 
CC: "'Peter Daniel'" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> 

His Worship, Richard Atwell, Mayor of Saanich and Council, 
December 17,2015 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Council, 

DEC 1B 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

I am writing this letter on behalf of The Cridge Centre for the Family in enthusiastic support of the Mount 
Douglas Seniors Housing Society's plan to develop 100 additional units of Seniors low income rental 
accommodation on the Arrow Road site. 

I am the Manager of an Assisted Living Residence at The Cridge Centre and can't tell you how often I receive 
calls from seniors who are living on government pensions and have so few options for housing. To qualify for 

subsidized Assisted Living in the Island Health Authority a person must demonstrate both financial and physical 
need (assistance with showering, or dressing, for example). This leaves so many seniors unqualified if they are 

able to manage these personal care needs for themselves, but who could strongly benefit from income 
reduction, social interactions, and living in a community. Every day I am blessed to see the wonderful effect that 

moving into community brings to all of our residents -I often get calls from family saying "mom's never been so 

busy! She has friends and is always going off to meet someone for Bridge, or a visit". 
To see seniors' who are isolated and in extremely strained financial situations finally have some relief, and gain 
friendships, is a gift that our society should be striving to give them. 

In going over the plans for MDSHS's project, it appears as though all possible contingencies have been planned 

for - from off street parking, to beautiful outdoor space with raised garden beds available, and shared common 

indoor space. I believe this project will be a blessing both to the seniors who are fortunate enough to live there, 

and to the neighbours who are near such a lovely community. 

If I can provide any further insight from my experiences with this population group, I would be happy to speak 

with you, 
Sincerely, 

Manager, Seniors' Services 

The Cridge Village Seniors Centre 
(250) 220-8567 

This email is intended solely for the use of the addressee and may contain information that is privileged and confidential. If you are not 
the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying or distribution of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
communication in error, please notify us immediately by email. Thank you. 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/5672C43ESaanichMun_H... 12/18/2015 3193

ClerkSec - Seniors' Housing Project on Arrow Road 

From: 
To: 

"Sarkh Smith" <ssmith@cridge.org> 
<susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 
<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, 
<vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca>, 
<ClerkSec@saanich.ca>, <planning@saanich.ca>, <mayor@saanich.ca> 

Date: 12/17/20152:18 PM 
Subject: Seniors' Housing Project on Arrow Road 
CC: "'Peter Daniel'" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca> 

His Worship, Richard Atwell, Mayor of Saanich and Council, 
December 17,2015 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Council, 

DEC 1 B 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

I am writing this letter on behalf of The Cridge Centre for the Family in enthusiastic support of the Mount 
Douglas Seniors Housing Society's plan to develop 100 additional units of Seniors low income rental 
accommodation on the Arrow Road site. 

I am the Manager of an Assisted Living Residence at The Cridge Centre and can't tell you how often I receive 
calls from seniors who are living on government pensions and have so few options for housing. To qualify for 

subsidized Assisted Living in the Island Health Authority a person must demonstrate both financial and physical 
need (assistance with showering, or dressing, for example). This leaves so many seniors unqualified if they are 

able to manage these personal care needs for themselves, but who could strongly benefit from income 
reduction, social interactions, and living in a community. Every day I am blessed to see the wonderful effect that 

moving into community brings to all of our residents -I often get calls from family saying "mom's never been so 
busy! She has friends and is always going off to meet someone for Bridge, or a visit". 
To see seniors' who are isolated and in extremely strained financial situations finally have some relief, and gain 

friendships, is a gift that our society should be striving to give them. 

In going over the plans for MDSHS's project, it appears as though all possible contingencies have been planned 

for - from off street parking, to beautiful outdoor space with raised garden beds available, and shared common 

indoor space. I believe this project will be a blessing both to the seniors who are fortunate enough to live there, 

and to the neighbours who are near such a lovely community. 

If I can provide any further insight from my experiences with this population group, I would be happy to speak 

with you, 
Sincerely, 

Manager, Seniors' Services 

The Cridge Village Seniors Centre 
(250) 220-8567 

This email is intended solely for the use of the addressee and may contain information that is privileged and confidential. If you are not 
the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying or distribution of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
communication in error, please notify us immediately by email. Thank you. 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/5672C43ESaanichMun_H... 12/18/2015 



 

POST TO 

INfORMATIONClerkSec - regarding Mount Douglas Court 
REPtY'TOVJRlTEff'%"~» ,FTT;'T","T"'T',T"; 

I COPY RESPOND lEGISLATl1IE D1V1SfON 

From Kirsten Mueller <kmueller@ > REPORT 

To: "'susan.brice@saanich.ca"' <'susan.brice@saanich.ca'>, FOR-_--r--:;::;-:::::;'"?]~~_ 
"'judy.brownoff@saanich.ca"' <'judy.brownoff@saanich.ca'>, L:..:A;::;,;CK::.::NO~W:.:::LE~DG::.;:E~!Q!:;;==~== 
'"vic.derman@saanich.ca'" <'vic.derman@saanich.ca'>, '"fred.haynes@saanich.ca'" 
<'fred.haynes@saanich.ca'>, "'dean.murdock@saanich.ca'" 
<'dean.murdock@saanich.ca'>, "'colin.plant@saanich.ca'" 
<'colin.plant@saanich.ca'>, "'vicki.sanders@saanich.ca"' 
<'vicki.sanders@saanich.ca'>, "'Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca'" 
</eif.wergeland@saanich.ca'>, IIlClerkSec@saanich.ca'" <'ClerkSec@saanich.ca'>, 

'\Iplanning@saanich.ca'" <'planning@saanich.ca'>, "'mayor@saanich.ca'" 
<'mayor@saanich.ca'> 

Date: 12/15/2015 2:02 PM 
Subject: regarding Mount Douglas Court 
CC: "assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca>, D~~~~!r+--

< > 0 \:'~O;w~[iJ)-!" 
BC: ClerkSec 

.~~-DE;G--l~62m5- f 

LEGISLATIVE DIV/SfOf\j !
Good afternoon, D/STR/CT_QISAN!r.H 

-~~'"'''-'L' 

My husband and I live at Arrow Rd, and are neighbours of the proposed 
rezoning of the property on Arrow Rd. I am also an Outreach Social Worker 
for Capital City Volunteers, a small non-profit sister agency to Saanich 
Volunteers (which receives support from the city of Saanich). My catchment 
area is the city of Victoria. 

My job is to provide support and assistance to low income seniors and adults 
with disabilities living independently in the community. One of the hardest 
questions I get are those to do with housing and shelter. As an Outreach 
Worker I am in their homes almost every day. There are so few resources to 
draw on, and waiting lists are so long. Some have been waiting for up to ten 
years on the BC Housing waitlist. Some of my clients have lived for years in 
motels. Mold and bedbugs are not uncommon. Almost all of them have 
balance, mobility, vision and/or and hearing issues that impair their ability to 
stay independent, yet they persist. Almost none of them own their own home. 
In my position my caseload alone is approximately 200 individuals. 

At home, we had our neighbours come by and ask us to sign the petition to 
stop the rezoning. I ignored them but my husband wrote to the committee 
and voiced his objections to what they were trying to achieve. I want you to 
know that not all the neighbours are against this proposal. If the project 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56701 D92SaanichMun_Ha... 12/16/2015 3194

POST TO 

ClerkSec - regarding Mount Douglas Court INfORMATION 
t/«4?(378110'!!X!CZ"N:;,:0:e>"':;S"WiZ"*,:;::"""*,,!:?,%,,,%t3?"'*'?6JJ$[',,,,_'33'P/iZ!""it!$Jc!§1'i1FiKfJiii,g,i:10i:bb:ii!!f!&!!1::''''''''''iif1i7!;n'!¥c;:i50>k!iJ1k!!!{):Sii21?E210"ib?!7'Zii3C;i2i'S!1:1Jb§"8.",iiiii1i11'<;lIREPl:.Y"fO'VVRlTER"'1!~f1!W;:"'!'!bi&'S!k'0i!"K"E 

From 
To: 

Date: 

Kirsten Mueller <kmuel 
COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT 0 
"'susan.brice@saanich.ca"' <'susan.brice@saanich.ca'>, FOR __ -r~:::;""7j~~_ 
"'judy.brownoff@saanich.ca"' <'judy.brownoff@saanich.ca'>, L:..:A:::;;,CK::..:.NO:::.:.W:.::;LE::.:;:D.:;:;GE~~===== 
"'vic.derman@saanich.ca"' <'vic.derman@saanich.ca'>, '"fred.haynes@saanich.ca'" 
<'fred.haynes@saanich.ca'>, IIIdean.murdock@saanich.ca'" 
<'dean.murdock@saanich.ca'>, "'colin.plant@saanich.ca'" 
<'colin.plant@saanich.ca'>, "'vicki.sanders@saanich.ca"' 
<'vicki.sanders@saanich.ca'>, "'Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca"' 
</eif.wergeland@saanich.ca'>, "'ClerkSec@saanich.ca"' <'ClerkSec@saanich.ca'>, 

tVplanning@saanich.ca'" <'planning@saanich.ca'>, "'mayor@saanich.ca'" 
<'mayor@saanich.ca'> 
12/15/2015 2:02 PM 

Subject: regarding Mount Douglas Court 
"assetm an lican.ca" <assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca>, D/31Tr~~~r+--

D 'llilDlfllilFI 
CC: 

BC: ClerkSec 
~~-DE;G--l-62m5- f 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISfor'>! ! 

D/STR/CT_Q[ .SAAN!(';!'-l 
-~~. ", ' ",' 

Good afternoon, 

My husband and I live at Arrow Rd, and are neighbours of the proposed 
rezoning of the property on Arrow Rd. I am also an Outreach Social Worker 
for Capital City Volunteers, a small non-profit sister agency to Saanich 
Volunteers (which receives support from the city of Saanich). My catchment 
area is the city of Victoria. 

My job is to provide support and assistance to low income seniors and adults 
with disabilities living independently in the community. One of the hardest 
questions I get are those to do with housing and shelter. As an Outreach 
Worker I am in their homes almost every day. There are so few resources to 
draw on, and waiting lists are so long. Some have been waiting for up to ten 
years on the BC Housing waitlist. Some of my clients have lived for years in 
motels. Mold and bedbugs are not uncommon. Almost all of them have 
balance, mobility, vision and/or and hearing issues that impair their ability to 
stay independent, yet they persist. Almost none of them own their own home. 
In my position my caseload alone is approximately 200 individuals. 

At home, we had our neighbours come by and ask us to sign the petition to 
stop the rezoning. I ignored them but my husband wrote to the committee 
and voiced his objections to what they were trying to achieve. I want you to 
know that not all the neighbours are against this proposal. If the project 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56701 D92SaanichMun_Ha... 12/16/2015 



Page 2 of 2 

means more traffic, I am only hoping that it may mean a repaved road, and 
better sidewalks. I often see seniors walking up and down Arrow Rd, bringing 
back their groceries. Arrow Rd is narr6w and bumpy with many patches. I 
have no concerns about an increased height to the building, or increased 
density, in the face of the terrible need I see. Despite the density living there 
now, they are the quietest neighbours you could ever have! I think it's 
wonderful that there is a place for low income seniors that is quiet and 
idyllic, away from the higher crime and traffic areas that I serve in Victoria, 
yet so convenient to amenities. I can only hope the same for myself and my 
loved ones someday. 

Kirsten Mueller, MSW RSW 
Outreach Worker 
(250) 388 - 7844 ext 310 

Capital City Volunteers 
547 Michigan Street 
Victoria, BC V8V 1S5 

"Don't try to be young. Just open your mind. Stay interested in stuff." Betty White 

CON FIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication from James Bay Community Project is for the sale use of the intended 
recipient or recipients and may contain confidential, personal and/or privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, 
disclosure, distribution or other dissemination of this communication and/or the information contained therein is strictly 
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient of this communication, please contact the sender and destroy a/l copies of 
the original communication. 

E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error free, and the sender does not accept liability for errors or 
omissions. 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/56701 D92SaanichMun_Ha... 12/16/2015 3195

Page 2 of 2 

means more traffic, I am only hoping that it may mean a repaved road, and 
better sidewalks. I often see seniors walking up and down Arrow Rd, bringing 
back their groceries. Arrow Rd is narr6w and bumpy with many patches. I 
have no concerns about an increased height to the building, or increased 
density, in the face of the terrible need I see. Despite the density living there 
now, they are the quietest neighbours you could ever have! I think it's 
wonderful that there is a place for low income seniors that is quiet and 
idyllic, away from the higher crime and traffic areas that I serve in Victoria, 
yet so convenient to amenities. I can only hope the same for myself and my 
loved ones someday. 

Kirsten Mueller, MSW RSW 
Outreach Worker 
(250) 388 - 7844 ext 310 

Capital City Volunteers 
547 Michigan Street 
Victoria, BC V8V 1S5 

"Don't try to be young. Just open your mind. Stay interested in stuff." Betty White 

CON FIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication from James Bay Community Project is for the sale use of the intended 
recipient or recipients and may contain confidential, personal and/or privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, 
disclosure, distribution or other dissemination of this communication and/or the information contained therein is strictly 
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient of this communication, please contact the sender and destroy a/l copies of 
the original communication. 

E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error free, and the sender does not accept liability for errors or 
omissions. 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/56701 D92SaanichMun_Ha... 12/16/2015 



OJ'(lQtAJ 

DA-WSON HEIGHTS 

I 

December 8th 
, 2015 

Saanich Mayor Richard Atwell and Council 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mr. Atwell and Council members, 

Re: Mount Douglas Housing Society (MDHS) application for rezoning 

I am writing to lend my support to the Society's application which will enable them to increase access to 
affordable housing for seniors in a safe and supportive community. 

MDHS has been providing this level of housing support for the past 40 years. With only 80 units on a 
property of 4 acres, I believe that the Society is fulfilling a moral obligation to make use ofthe land for 
much needed housing. 

A 2015 market analysis by Lumina Services listed the average market rent for a one-bedroom apartment in 
Saanich as $856. An annual income of $34,200 would be required in order to afford a rent at that level 
based on the 30% criterion that defines affordable housing. In Saanich alone there are 1,315 renters who are 
55+ with incomes below $25,000; 1000 of these are below $20,000. With only 811 non-market seniors 
housing units in Saanich there is clearly a need for an increase in affordable housing. 

In her report on Seniors Housing in BC - May 2015, BC's Seniors Advocate stated that seniors are very 
clear that they want to live as independently as possible. Ifprovided with affordable, quality housing, in a 
safe and supportive community, seniors wiII often remain independent for very much longer. 

As an operator of affordable seniors housing services at Dawson Heights I am well aware of the unmet 
need. There are currently 63 people on our waiting lists for one-bedroom and studio units. With very little 
turnover of our suites, these people have little hope of ever securing affordable accommodation here at 
Dawson Heights. 

In MDHS we have a society that is debt free; a competitive construction climate; low interest rates; and a 
willingness to unde11ake construction to fill a much needed housing gap. If not now Mr. Mayor, when? 

FOR 
ACKNOWL-EOO-Eo-Plr:::::i}-:,a~\r--......,L-

Yours sincerely, 

.--. 
[RS[g©[g~W~[Q) I 

DEC 1 5 2015 
Karen Hope 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISIONJExecutive Director 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

DAWSON HEIGHTS HOUSJNG tTn 
'lhC' !)'~W501l • °111.;: C(;d;lr~" "lhe 

3710 C~~hr Hill Ru"J. Vk!<lri'!, BC V!H' 5\',) • lid: (250) 477·48:')0 I~J,}; (250) 4.77·4S<;1 "''''W,d;i!W1\(>I1hdghl~,,,a 
196

DA-WSON HEIGHTS 

December 8th
, 2015 

Saanich Mayor Richard Atwell and Council 
770 Vernon Avenue 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mr. Atwell and Council members, 

I 

FOR 
ACKNOWL-EOO-EO-PlT:::"i) -:, a':;:::7'i\r--....,.L... 

Re: Mount Douglas Housing Society (MDHS) application for rezoning 

I am writing to lend my support to the Society's application which will enable them to increase access to 
affordable housing for seniors in a safe and supportive community. 

MDHS has been providing this level of housing support for the past 40 years. With only 80 units on a 
property of 4 acres, I believe that the Society is fulfilling a moral obligation to make use ofthe land for 
much needed housing. 

A 2015 market analysis by Lumina Services listed the average market rent for a one-bedroom apartment in 
Saanich as $856. An annual income of $34,200 would be required in order to afford a rent at that level 
based on the 30% criterion that defines affordable housing. In Saanich alone there are 1,315 renters who are 
55+ with incomes below $25,000; 1000 of these are below $20,000. With only 811 non-market seniors 
housing units in Saanich there is clearly a need for an increase in affordable housing. 

In her report on Seniors Housing in BC - May 2015, BC's Seniors Advocate stated that seniors are very 
clear that they want to live as independently as possible. Ifprovided with affordable, quality housing, in a 
safe and supportive community, seniors will often remain independent for very much longer. 

As an operator of affordable seniors housing services at Dawson Heights I am well aware of the unmet 
need. There are currently 63 people on our waiting lists for one-bedroom and studio units. With very little 
turnover of our suites, these people have little hope of ever securing affordable accommodation here at 
Dawson Heights. 

In MDHS we have a society that is debt free; a competitive construction climate; low interest rates; and a 
willingness to unde11ake construction to fill a mLlch needed hOLlsing gap. If not now Mr. Mayor, when? 

Yours sincerely, 

Karen Hope 
Executive Director 

.--. 
[RS[g©[g~W~[Q) I 

DEC 1 5 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION.J 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

DAWSON HEIGHTS HOUSING LTD 
'Ih" !)'~WS(f1l • 'Il,,,, Ccd;lr~ " "nt<r 

3710 C~"(hr Hill RoaJ. Vkmri'!, Be V!W ,VS ·litl: (2$0) 477·48;50 I~J;); 



 

John G. Smith, 

Alec Road, Saanichton, B.C. V8M lS3 

Dear Mayor and Council Members for the District of Saanich 

I am on the Board of Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society, a society which operates under the 

auspices of the Anglican Diocese of B.C., and am writing to you in support of its application to rezone its 

4 acre property on Arrow Road to enable the Society to further fulfill its mandate to provide 

independent-living housing for low-income seniors. The Society has been providing this type of 

accommodation as an integral feature of the community for over 40 years. The immediate plan is to 

add a second 100 unit building to the present 80 unit building, 

I have been on the Society's Building Committee since its inception, and assure you that everyone 

involved - Board members, architects and other consultants - are committed to planning the project so 

as to provide a facility which we and the community of can be proud, and a model for other 

developments for this much needed type of accommodation. 

We have taken great care to listen to and meet with local residents, and a visit to our Presentation on 

the web site at www.anglicanfoundation.ca will show how comprehensively we have attended to the 

details of the project. 

The new building will provide for an attractive life-style for its residents, including social amenities and 

gardens, and has been designed with care and consideration for its neighbours, retaining, to the 

greatest extent possible, the pastoral "feel" of Mount Douglas Court. I understand that Saanich 

Planning Staff recommends approval of the project, and that the Gordon Head Residents Association 

and the Saanich Advisory Design Panel are supportive of the project and the building plans. 

We all know that affordable housing for seniors is a major challenge for municipalities in this region, and 

the District of Saanich recognizes that. By approving this project you will be showing leadership by 

catering significantly to the future needs of the community. 

Yours Sincerely 

John G. Smith 

197

John G. Smith, 

_ Alec Road, Saanichton, B.C. V8M lS3 

Dear Mayor and Council Members for the District of Saanich 

I am on the Board of Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society, a society which operates under the 

auspices of the Anglican Diocese of B.C., and am writing to you in support of its application to rezone its 

4 acre property on Arrow Road to enable the Society to further fulfill its mandate to provide 

independent-living housing for low-income seniors. The Society has been providing this type of 

accommodation as an integral feature of the community for over 40 years. The immediate plan is to 

add a second 100 unit building to the present 80 unit building, 

I have been on the Society's Building Committee since its inception, and assure you that everyone 

involved - Board members, architects and other consultants - are committed to planning the project so 

as to provide a facility of which we and the community can be proud, and a model for other 

developments for this much needed type of accommodation. 

We have taken great care to listen to and meet with local residents, and a visit to our Presentation on 

the web site at www.anglicanfoundation.ca will show how comprehensively we have attended to the 

details of the project. 

The new building will provide for an attractive life-style for its residents, including social amenities and 

gardens, and has been designed with care and consideration for its neighbours, retaining, to the 

greatest extent possible, the pastoral "feel" of Mount Douglas Court. I understand that Saanich 

Planning Staff recommends approval of the project, and that the Gordon Head Residents Association 

and the Saanich Advisory Design Panel are supportive of the project and the building plans. 

We all know that affordable housing for seniors is a major challenge for municipalities in this region, and 

the District of Saanich recognizes that. By approving this project you will be showing leadership by 

catering significantly to the future needs of the community. 

Yours Sincerely 

John G. Smith 



 

fRj~©~Ow~[Q) 
DEC 04 2015 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTF3J£I.OF SAANICH 

POST TO 

Page 1 of 2 

Council - Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

i 

I
From: "Jeff & Sheryl St.Gelais" < > 
To: <planning@saanich.ca>, <council@saanich.ca> 
Date: 12/4/2015 10:07 AM 
Subject: RE3-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located at 
1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story residential homes on 
quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you may be aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from 
RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they plan to build a 
second building on their property that will be three stories high and contain 100 
housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% increase in housing units on 
this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as the one 
proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design due to the 
major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

-
My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition of 
100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 
without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a major 
increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, service 
vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious safety concerns due 
to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and 
the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review of 46 
multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of these 
were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/566165C4SaanichMun_Hall... 12/4/2015 3198

Council - Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I 
From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

"Jeff & Sheryl St.Gelais" 
<planning@saanich.ca>, <council@saanich.ca> 
12/4/2015 10:07 AM 
RE3-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 

fRj~©~Ow~[Q) 
DEC 04 2015 Victoria, BC 

V8X 2W7 LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTF3J£I.OF SAANICH 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

Page 1 of 2 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located at 
1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story residential homes on 
quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you may be aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from 
RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they plan to build a 
second building on their property that will be three stories high and contain 100 
housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% increase in housing units on 
this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as the one 
proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design due to the 
major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

-
My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition of 
100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 
without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a major 
increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, service 
vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious safety concerns due 
to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and 
the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review of 46 
multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of these 
were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/566165C4SaanichMun_Hall... 12/4/2015 



 

Page 2 of 2 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that the 
three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards 
set out in the SVAP which requires th~t taller and higher density buildings be located 
along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as 
a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I do 
support the construction of a smaller new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review the 
suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give serious 
consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and the 
design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfu lIy, 

Jeff and Sheryl St Gelais 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfT emp/XPgrpwise/566165C4SaanichMun_Hall... 1214/2015 4199

Page 2 of 2 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that the 
three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards 
set out in the SVAP which requires th~t taller and higher density buildings be located 
along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as 
a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I do 
support the construction of a smaller new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review the 
suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give serious 
consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and the 
design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfu lIy, 

Jeff and Sheryl St Gelais 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfT emp/XPgrpwise/566165C4SaanichMun_Hall... 1214/2015 



200

Planning - Fwd: Re: Arrow Rd 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

Andrea Pickard 
Planning 
11/19/201512:17 PM 
Fwd: Re: Arrow Rd 

input to add to the file for 1550 Arrow Rd please, thanks 

»> "M & G" 4 r 11/3/20157:16 AM »> 
'---------------' 

Hello, 

Page 1 of 1 

I was under the impression that the neighbours adjacent to the proposed development wanted to stop 

any building for seniors there . We went to a meeting at Nellie McClung library to see what their objections 

were . I don't live in the neighbourhood but I do walk by. I can understand some of their objections. From what 
I gather they would support a 2 story building. SO AGAIN I SAY THANK YOU FOR BUILDING AFFORDABLE 

HOMES FOR SENIORS ON ARROW ROAD. I am happy to see this in Gordon Head .... and the land is available. f 
am wondering if its possible to have underground parking on the site? And I can understand those home 
owners backing on to the property objecting to a 3 story building being built. Of course there may be only 5 
homeowners? verses a home for 100 seniors .... With underground parking the building could be 2 stories high 
with a larger footprint. There are so many streets in Saanich that need sidewalks ... Arrow is one of them. Sure 
you can share this email with Saanich Council and good luck with building this worthwhile project. flook 
forward to see construction starting. 

Claudia Tessie~ 1 

From: Peter Daniel 
Sent: Monday, November 2, 2015 10:35 AM 
To: 'M &C' 
Subject: RE: Arrow Rd 

Than k you fo r you r su pportive position. I would like t o pass thi s on t o t he MO Li nt Douglas Seniors Housing Society Board 

and to Saan ich Planning. 

If can YO Li please call me to authori ze me doing th is. Best to cal i on my mobile phone. 

Best Regards, Peter 

Pete r Da niel 

Asset Manager Diocese of British Co lumbia 

250-386-7781-local 246 Office 

250-514-7797 mobile 

assetmgmt@bc.angl ican.ca 

From: M &C I 
Sent: Odober

L

- :::-:30:;---:-C15;:;-;:;-3 :--:::0-:::-9 --;:P-;-;M:-----' 
To: assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca 
Subject: Arrow Rd 

PLANNING DEPT. 

I think its awesome that the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society plans to build 100 additional housing units 
for low income seniors! I live on Cedar Hill Rd and often pass by the present complex on Arrow Rd. The 
property is large and the need is there . I cant see why anybody would object to this worthwhile project. Then 

in the future to replace the existing building with a more modern complex will improve the neighbourhood. 

Thank you for building this complex for seniors ... Claudia Tessier 

file:lIlC:lUsers/litzenbs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/564DBDDBSaanichMu... 11/19/2015 



,4 f?-.\2.ViU d<D 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 

REPlYTO WRITER 0
Victoria, BC Copy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT 0V8X2W7 
FOR 

ACKNOWl-ED-G-ED-';-BF">\:t:M:-::---- j 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: =~~~ 

Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court S~niors HQusil}g complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved -iwit5;i!l'r~ eeei!tl'l> 

due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

Victoria, Be V)'I/ I 1 ~ 

COPYTO 
INFORMATIO~N~;':"BJ=-----.c..]) 

201

_,4f?-.\2ViU d<r::> 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court S~niors HQusil}g complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved -i:wits4I'r.es.GAi eeei!tl'l> 

due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited yehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; I 

.. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

(;t"","ddl~( 
1'Ifi:-tV'~ a--( ~ ~'"{~ 2:.$"10~ 01-· 

:r >~T S '-"'1' pc-c>"T -f\;e rr (Vv-.> zA I~'v tfD c::....c> l'" ZD 
:!5 s-to~ b~tili "r - L· .... '-4 .F 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns aDDut the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
~e de8igA~Mhe~evi "fi&id_iaY$H5Ii~ 8S iH~~&f. [->

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

L-.. 0 (2. I<- fb il IV E <; C=> T "( 

print name print name 

202

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited yehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; I 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
no.ne ofthese were.l()cated in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency V\li~b~helbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three§t6ryQuilqing proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 

st~nd~r~§ .. ~.~t.?ut in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway" . 

..v;;-rV'~ e--t 4i: .e..:.."{~ Zos"1o-y 6f-· 

:r \;)£> :~T S 0....:1'1" PCl"-r ik c,.....o l'" rr tVvV- ZD· z..O (~. 
Q s-t"o~ b·, ...... I .. :\iU "r - L· .... """ .F 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns aDDut the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
~e de8ig~MR9~€:}\,V F@ioideeti::t!;!etli~ 8S iH~~etl: [-$. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature 

L-.. t:.:> {2. I<- fb il IV E <; c~ T --r 
print name 

signature 

print name 



203

"----_----'~Oakwinds St. 
Victoria, Be V8N 3B4 

r 

Phone~: ~~~~~~ __ __ 
e-mail: L-__________________ ~ 

Date: 2015 Nov 19 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

[f23~©[!OWl@[Q) 

NOV 2 0 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located at 
1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two storey residential homes on 
quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two storey build ing on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from 
RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they plan to build a 
second building on their property that will be three storeys high and contain 100 
housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% increase in housing units on 
this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area . However, I feel that a development such as the one 
proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design due to the 
major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows : 
• Use Of Arrow and Oakwinds St.- Currently there are many vehicles that use these 

streets as a way of avoiding the traffic light at McKenzie and Cedar Hill Rd . which 
already adds substantial , unsafe levels of traffic on these streets; 



• Visability -:- As Arrow runs east / west, it is EXTREMELY diffiqult to see people walking, 
riding, drivihg due to the slant of the SUN in your eyes. This v~ries depending on the 
season, but it occurs during ALL seasons. It is currently EXTREMELY difficult to 
negotiate the parked cars, people walking on the road (both sides) as there is only a 
facsimile of a sidewalk NOT A REAL SIDEWALK on the street. The sun obscures 
vision and we have narrowly missed both people and vehicles on this street. SO FAR; 

• Speed Tag - There already is a speed tag indicating 20mph speed on the street due to 
the dangers present; 

• Width of Street - Arrow is a very narrow street. It is not as wide as city streets are 
supposed to be. I had this conversation with a city engineer a number of years ago. I 
was almost involved in an accident at the corner of Arrow and Oakwinds. I tried to pull 
out onto Arrow from Oakwinds toward Cedar Hill. There was a car parked across from 
the intersection and there is a stone fence at the corner, as I tried to enter the street, a 
car came along in my lane (in order to get around the parked car) and almost hit me. 
Fortunately, I stopped in time. This driver was NOT aware that I was there AT ALL. It is 
NOT wide enough for 3 vehicles to be in the street at the same time. The city engineer 
agreed with me that the street was narrow and that he would like to see no parking in 
the intersection. He wanted to go ahead with a parking restriction, but the Police
Traffic Department said NO. Instead they erected a STOP SIGN. I'm not sure how this 
makes it safer for me trying to negotiate Arrow; 

• Construction - Currently there is a house under construction in this same area of the 
street. It has been under construction since spring. This situation has resulted in even more 
vehicles parked along this already too narrow and dangerous street. I am surprised that 
there have not been serious accidents as a result. It is only because people take extreme 
care to negotiate the area, however, with this proposed development I believe you are 
pushing the boundaries of safety - both personal and property, beyond the limits; 

• Use of Arrow - We are forced to use Arrow no matter where we are going. It is next 
to impossible to enter McKenzie from Oakwinds safely and there is a NO TURN sign 
posted on McKenzie so we have to use Arrow Rd to return home to our house as well. 
This already adds a great deal of traffic to the street; 

• Age of Drivers - If you add the significant number of elderly drivers proposed by this 
development to an already narrow and dangerous street who knows what will happen. It 
is already monumentally difficult to negotiate this street and it requires a great deal of 
skill and requires quick reflexes; 

• Increase in Density and Walkers- The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units 
in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning begs the 
question of how many additional people will be walking on the street; 

204

• Visability -:- As Arrow runs east / west, it is EXTREMELY diffiqult to see people walking, 
riding, drivihg due to the slant of the SUN in your eyes. This v~ries depending on the 
season, but it occurs during ALL seasons. It is currently EXTREMELY difficult to 
negotiate the parked cars, people walking on the road (both sides) as there is only a 
facsimile of a sidewalk NOT A REAL SIDEWALK on the street. The sun obscures 
vision and we have narrowly missed both people and vehicles on this street. SO FAR; 

• Speed Tag - There already is a speed tag indicating 20mph speed on the street due to 
the dangers present; 

• Width of Street - Arrow is a very narrow street. It is not as wide as city streets are 
supposed to be. I had this conversation with a city engineer a number of years ago. I 
was almost involved in an accident at the corner of Arrow and Oakwinds. I tried to pull 
out onto Arrow from Oakwinds toward Cedar Hill. There was a car parked across from 
the intersection and there is a stone fence at the corner, as I tried to enter the street, a 
car came along in my lane (in order to get around the parked car) and almost hit me. 
Fortunately, I stopped in time. This driver was NOT aware that I was there AT ALL. It is 
NOT wide enough for 3 vehicles to be in the street at the same time. The city engineer 
agreed with me that the street was narrow and that he would like to see no parking in 
the intersection. He wanted to go ahead with a parking restriction, but the Police
Traffic Department said NO. Instead they erected a STOP SIGN. I'm not sure how this 
makes it safer for me trying to negotiate Arrow; 

• Construction - Currently there is a house under construction in this same area of the 
street. It has been under construction since spring. This situation has resulted in even more 
vehicles parked along this already too narrow and dangerous street. I am surprised that 
there have not been serious accidents as a result. It is only because people take extreme 
care to negotiate the area, however, with this proposed development I believe you are 
pushing the boundaries of safety - both personal and property, beyond the limits; 

• Use of Arrow - We are forced to use Arrow no matter where we are going. It is next 
to impossible to enter McKenzie from Oakwinds safely and there is a NO TURN sign 
posted on McKenzie so we have to use Arrow Rd to return home to our house as well. 
This already adds a great deal of traffic to the street; 

• Age of Drivers - If you add the significant number of elderly drivers proposed by this 
development to an already narrow and dangerous street who knows what will happen. It 
is already monumentally difficult to negotiate this street and it requires a great deal of 
skill and requires quick reflexes; 

• Increase in Density and Walkers- The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units 
in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning begs the 
question of how many additional people will be walking on the street; 



III Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review of 46 
multi-unit residential properties in Saanich ~ith RA-3 zoning found that none of these 
were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

III Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that the 
three storey building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards 
set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located 
along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as 
a "major arterial roadway". 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval and, in view of the fact that there is no proposal to 
widen or redevelop the street, I suggest that the District of Saanich review the suitability of 
Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in density and traffic expected with this development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give serious 
consideration to my concerns and fears about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and 
the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Respectfully, 

Barb Hill 

205

III Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review of 46 
multi-unit residential properties in Saanich ~ith RA-3 zoning found that none of these 
were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

III Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that the 
three storey building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards 
set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located 
along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as 
a "major arterial roadway". 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval and, in view of the fact that there is no proposal to 
widen or redevelop the street, I suggest that the District of Saanich review the suitability of 
Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in density and traffic expected with this development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give serious 
consideration to my concerns and fears about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and 
the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Respectfully, 

Barb Hill 



Page 1 of 2 

f\Yr00 
ClerkSec - 1550 arrow road developmenr 

From: STEVE YARMIE < > 
To: <mayor@saanich.ca>, <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 

<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, 
<fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, <dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, 
<colin.plant@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.werland@saanich.ca>, <contact@gordonhead.ca> 

Date: 11/12/2015 1:09 PM 
Subject: 1550 arrow road developmenr 

Dear Mayor Attwell and Councillors: 

My name is Steve Yarmie. My wife Carole and I are residents and Saanich taxpayers for over 40 years at our 
Oakwinds Street address, which is in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing complex. We 

strongly urge Mayor and Council to deny the zoning application from R-1 to R-3 for the following reasons: 

1. If approved the change in zoning will permit the increase of housing units by 125% in phase 1 and an 
additional 60 units in phase 2. in the future. 

R-3 zoning in this area would set a president for other development in our residential area set by the 
Shelbourne Valley Action Plan. 
Arrow Road is not a "Major arterial roadway. 

2. 3 story buildings in this residential area do not adhere to the standards setout by the Action Plan 

3. The dramatic increase on population and traffic cannot be accommodated by Arrow Road and Oakwinds 
Street. I suggest Mayor and Council take time out soon from your busy schedule and take a driving experience 
up Arrow Road off Cedar Hill Road and left on Oakwinds Street. (watch our for the deer). Good luck attempting 
to make a left turn onto McKenzie Avenue. 

4. A simultaneous comprehensive traffic study of Arrow Road beginning at Cedar Hill Road and ending at 
Oakwinds Street and McKenzie Avenue will also determine the non-resident traffic that shortcuts the 
Cedar Hill/ McKenzie intersection. This cost to be bourne by the developer/applicant not the taxpayers of 
Saanich. 
5. The proposed sidewalk will empty onto a white line make-believe sidewalk. 

6. There may be a need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout greater Victoria and Saanich 
However I believe the applicant is not being transparent about this need whereby, the proposed dwelling 

units are minimal in size and the proposed rent is at the maximum, and the application for rezoning is at the 
maximum. 

7. Another concern is the ecosystem whereby rain water is vital to the surrounding area with duck pond at Bow 
park and tributaries of Bowker Creek depending on clean ground 

filtered water, not parking lot and roof run-off water. 

It is our expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give serious consideration to 
our concerns about the rezoning proposal at Arrow Road 

Respectfully submitted; POST TO 

COpy TO ~,dl...!....:r::------
Steve Yarmie Carole Yarmie INFORMATION 

REPLY TO WRITERNOV 16 2015 COpy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT £:] ~ 

ACK\:~~l.EDGED B rv:c : 
LEGISLATIVE DIViSION 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/5645EEE9SaanichMun_H... 11116/201206

Page 1 of 2 

f\Yr00 
ClerkSec - 1550 arrow road developmenr 

From: STEVE YARM IE 
To: <mayor@saanich.ca>, <susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 

<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <vickLsanders@saanich.ca>, 
<fred.haynes@saanich.ca>, <dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, 
<colin.plant@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.werland@saanich.ca>, <contact@gordonhead.ca> 

Date: 11/12/2015 1 :09 PM 
Subject: 1550 arrow road developmenr 

Dear Mayor Attwell and Councillors: 

~ame is Steve Yarmie. My wife Carole and I are residents and Saanich taxpayers for over 40 years at our 
_ Oakwinds Street address, which is in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Seniors Housing complex. We 
strongly urge Mayor and Council to deny the zoning application from R-1 to R-3 for the following reasons: 

1. If approved the change in zoning will permit the increase of housing units by 125% in phase 1 and an 
additional 60 units in phase 2. in the future. 

R-3 zoning in this area would set a president for other development in our residential area set by the 
Shelbourne Valley Action Plan. 
Arrow Road is not a "Major arterial roadway. 

2. 3 story buildings in this residential area do not adhere to the standards setout by the Action Plan 

3. The dramatic increase on population and traffic cannot be accommodated by Arrow Road and Oakwinds 
Street. I suggest Mayor and Council take time out soon from your busy schedule and take a driving experience 
up Arrow Road off Cedar Hill Road and left on Oakwinds Street. (watch our for the deer). Good luck attempting 
to make a left turn onto McKenzie Avenue. 

4. A simultaneous comprehensive traffic study of Arrow Road beginning at Cedar Hill Road and ending at 
Oakwinds Street and McKenzie Avenue will also determine the non-resident traffic that shortcuts the 
Cedar Hill/ McKenzie intersection. This cost to be bourne by the developer/applicant not the taxpayers of 
Saanich. 
5. The proposed sidewalk will empty onto a white line make-believe sidewalk. 

6. There may be a need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout greater Victoria and Saanich 
However I believe the applicant is not being transparent about this need whereby, the proposed dwelling 

units are minimal in size and the proposed rent is at the maximum, and the application for rezoning is at the 
maximum. 

7. Another concern is the ecosystem whereby rain water is vital to the surrounding area with duck pond at Bow 
park and tributaries of Bowker Creek depending on clean ground 

filtered water, not parking lot and roof run-off water. 

It is our expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give serious consideration to 
our concerns about the rezoning proposal at Arrow Road 

Respectfully submitted; 

Steve Yarmie Carole Yarmie 

NOV 16 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIViSION 

POST TO 

COpy TO ~,.a.."!""r:------
INFORMATION 
REPLY TO WRITER 

COpy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT £:] ~ 

ACK\:~~l.EDGED B rv:c : 
file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/5645EEE9SaanichMun_H... 11/16/201.t= 



Page 1 of 2 

Council - Douglas Court development 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 
CC: 
Attachments: 

"Garth Homer" < > 
<cduncil@saanich.ca> 
11/15/2015 3:30 PM 
Douglas Court development 
<contact@gordonhead.ca> 
Douglas Court.docx 

Garth and Penny Homer, 
Oakwinds St. 

Victoria, BC V8N 3B4 
Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W1 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, Be 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located at 
1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story residential homes on 
quiet no-through streets and one townhouse unit. 
I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed redevelopment will 
have on our residential area. 
As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from 
RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they plan to build a second 
building on their property that will be three stories high and contain 100 housing units. This 
would result in a very significant 125% increase in housing units on this property. 
I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as the one 
proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design due to the major 
impact that this will have on our residential area. I feel a careful rethinking of the design might 
well satisfy the current housing allotment without requiring a zoning change. 
My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition of 
100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 
without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a major 
increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, service vehicles, 
emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious safety concerns due to the narrow 
width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a 
sidewalk that meets Saanich requirements; 

Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review of 46 
multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of these were 
located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that the 
three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards set out 
in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located along the 
valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as a "major 
arterial roadway". 
Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I do support 
the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story building. 
As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review the 
suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this development. 
To be more specific: 

Arrow road is currently the only access to the neighbourhood for anyone proceeding 
south on Mackenzie given the left turn constrictions on Oakwinds St. This makes 
Arrow a very busy road at high traffic times. 
As pointed out above Arrow road has no sidewalk. Currently walkers and drivers have 
only a white line to delineate their space. This walk is frequently used by residents of 
Douglas Court some with walkers. Any parking on the road turn Arrow in a single lane 
and two cars passing on the blind hill must use the sidewalk to avoid a collision. 
Larger vehicles such as those used during construction will require all of Arrow road in 
some locations and could become a dangerous hazard. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and 
the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 
Thank you. 
Respectfully, 
Garth and Penny Homer. 

COPYTu_..,...+~::..-___ 
INFORMATION 
REPLY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
REPORT [] 

FOR / 

.•AC~WlEDGED~J}Cl~/: 

Garth and Penny Homer, 
Oakwinds St. 

Victoria, BC V8N 3B4 

NOV 16 2015 

file:/I/C:/Users/Orrs/AppOata/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/5648A529SaanichMun_Ha... 11/16/2015
207

Council - Douglas Court development 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 
CC: 
Attachments: 

"Garth Homer" < •••••••• > 
<cduncil@saanich.ca> 
11/15/2015 3:30 PM 
Douglas Court development 
<contact@gordonhead.ca> 
Douglas Court.docx 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W1 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Garth and Penny Homer, 
_ Oakwinds st. 

e-mail: ~
Victoria BC V8N 3B4 

Phone: 

Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, Be 
I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located at 
1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story residential homes on 
quiet no-through streets and one townhouse unit. 
I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed redevelopment will 
have on our residential area. 
As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from 
RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they plan to build a second 
building on their property that will be three stories high and contain 100 housing units. This 
would result in a very significant 125% increase in housing units on this property. 
I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as the one 
proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design due to the major 
impact that this will have on our residential area. I feel a careful rethinking of the design might 
well satisfy the current housing allotment without requiring a zoning change. 
My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition of 
100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 
without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a major 
increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, service vehicles, 
emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious safety concerns due to the narrow 
width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a 
sidewalk that meets Saanich requirements; 

Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review of 46 
multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of these were 
located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that the 
three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards set out 
in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located along the 
valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as a "major 
arterial roadway". 
Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I do support 
the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story building. 
As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review the 
suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this development. 
To be more specific: 

Arrow road is currently the only access to the neighbourhood for anyone proceeding 
south on Mackenzie given the left turn constrictions on Oakwinds St. This makes 
Arrow a very busy road at high traffic times. 
As pointed out above Arrow road has no sidewalk. Currently walkers and drivers have 
only a white line to delineate their space. This walk is frequently used by residents of 
Douglas Court some with walkers. Any parking on the road turn Arrow in a single lane 
and two cars passing on the blind hill must use the sidewalk to avoid a collision. 
Larger vehicles such as those used during construction will require all of Arrow road in 
some locations and could become a dangerous hazard. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and 
the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 
Thank you. 
Respectfully, 
Garth and Penny Homer. 

Page 1 of 2 

COPYT"",,.,:.L.+~~ __ -':"~~ 
INFORMATION 
REPLY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
REPORT [] 

FOR / 

.• AC!S!!.QWlEDGED~J}Cl~/: 

NOV 16 2015 

Garth and Penny Homer, 
_ Oakwinds St. 
Victoria, BC V8N 3B4 

file:/I/C:/Users/Orrs/AppOata/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/5648A529SaanichMun_Ha... 11/16/201 f\ 



---------------------------

~OPY RESPONSE Td LEGISLATIVE OMSION\! GeE~\"Oi'\~ 1!2. Victoria, Be __ 
IPhone: (:2 50 ) \t-([  ~ 00';2. 

COPYTQ 
INFORMAT/O;N~""fjj;j----~~4 
REPLY TO WRITER 

REPORT 

FOR_. 
~r\CKNOWLEDGED 5lPy 

e-mail: =

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. NOV 16 2015
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria are?,. However, I feel that a development such as . 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

208

i R d.- j. F:ovJ b.~- i:1.. 

_ \! GeE~\"Oi'\~ 1!2. Victoria, Be __ 
Phone: (:2 50 ) \t-([ - ~ 00';2. 

e-mail: 

COPYTQ 
INFORMAT/O;N~ .... fjj;j----~~4 
REPLY TO WRITER 

~OPY RESPONSE T 
REPORT d LEGISLATIVE OMSION 

FOR_. I 
~r\CKNOWLEDGED 5lPy =----------------------------

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

NOV 16 2015 

Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria are?,. However, I feel that a development such as . 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
. limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a si~ewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
t~e three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
I;>uildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfu lIy, 

signature signature 

print name print name 

209

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
. IimltfJdVehiCle visibility and the lack of a si~ewalk that meets Saanich 
reg uiremehts; 

• Re.,.Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of46ll1ulti-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
t~e three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
I;>uildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfu lIy, 

,-_,_ .. L'"J ___ . 

signature signature 

print name print name 



POSTTO 

COpy TO ~:Cl-7,,-----..;;:::ooo:-l 

INFORMATION A~AN d $.-4 I'RI-@Y -SAtI-EY~W~~  I 

COf'Y RESPONSEOTO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION Be-I NOf' PL Victoria, Be V!(l/l/ b & 
REPORT -

FOR . Phone 

ACKNOWLEDGEObUTI.:.-.-----==;;'\nail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council NOV i 9 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Aoplication - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, Be 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

210

POSTTO 

COpy TO ~i-l---t'-----~ 
INFORMATION 
REPLY TO y.,~ITER A J...AN 4- S'.-4 I'RI-@Y -SAtI-EY , 

COf'Y 'RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DlVISIO, 

REPORT 0 Be-I NOt' PI., Victoria, Be vgl\l b& 
FOR. ::: Phone: 

ACKNOWLEDGEo·<b1:,J.Xl.~~\-nail : 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Aoplication - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, Be 

NOV i 9 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility land the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich I 
requirements; 

.. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

RespectfuIly, 

signature 

print name print name 

211

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility land the' lack of a sidewalk that meets SCicmichl 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a SerioLJs Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns, about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfu Ily, 

signature 

BA<I-E'( 
print name print name 



November 10, 20 5 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, Be 

Please find attached liletters from concerned citizens regarding the re-zoning 
application for Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located at 1550 Arrow 
Rd. 

POSHO Ffllfl\EDl 9 201 

=~:,~ "]\
COPY RESPONSE TO LEG1SLATIVE DlVlS10N / 

REPORT 0 
roR ____,-.-~~~---

ACKNOWLEDGED 

212

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

November 10, 20 5 

Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, Be 

Please find attached liletters from concerned citizens regarding the re-zoning 
application for Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located at 1550 Arrow 
Rd. 

POSHO Ffllfl\EDl 9 201 

~E~::, ]\ 
COPY RESPONSE TO LEG1SLATIVE DlVlS10N / 

REPORT 0 
roR ____ ~._~~~---

ACKNOWLEDGED 



 

/ .I} ." .... ?' .. J JilJ/? m.L- J \ ICV ~ ~ \£ i-t- I ' 
86 L (VoR Victoria, Be JiliN '61}£ 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

213

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lac~ of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

i P--__
signa signature 

print name print name 

214

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lac~ of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

~I --:--u slgna'""--___________ , 

print name 

signature 

print name 



rvD l,)'} i-(_I-=~:-/__--

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

215

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

rv D l,)'} i-(_I-=~:-/ __ ---

Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle v1isibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

CIt Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

.. Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

!-/c./f TH ~Il 'f)./I v {t-S 
print name print name 

216

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle v1isibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets SaanIch 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - 1 understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

~ ____ ,L __________ hr~ ______ ~ 

signature signature 

H c./f77-/ t:'1\..... 'f)./I v I t-S 
print name print name 



Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

217

'I /Zv IV If- L h 2) ,4-V I l->--:$' i 

IIIIIIIIIII Q /1f( {J + ll:-tVictoria, Be v 21'11 3 !3> c- 1 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewJlk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

print name print name 

218

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidew~lk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been pr()posed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

print name print name 



 
 

j0 Ulj1iJ9.er (1 2fJ / 5" 
I 

1CLlrr('k ~ i !3VQfLS 
Ai,o J ct. Victoria, Be V8IV bG'1 
Phone: ( 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

219

j 0 Ulj1iJ9.er (1 2fJ / 5" 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

• I 
req Ulrements; 

It Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 

building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

print name print name 

220

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

I 
requirements; I 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

~-----~~---~ 
signature 

print name print name 



ot)\(]). L.tt- PL Victoria, Be ::1.£,J 38~ 
Phone:

e-mail: .

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

221

e-mail: .-----------------------------

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited v~hicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

I 

requirements; 
.. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 

of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

.. Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

- signature 

GetJ~Ge SE/I//\J / PIa-
print name print name 

222

safety concerns due t~. the narrow \iVidth of Ar\~w Ro~d, the steep blind spot with 
limited v~hicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

I 

requirements; 
• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 

of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

GetJ~Ge SE/I//\J / PI cr-
print name print name 



 

c~ • • 

. _ ~~~~~S:A.' <?'~~ C\,-y;V? J 
-I\l~i[ju....) fdV,ctona, Be v~N_1 

Phone: 
e-mail:r 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

223

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

fit Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

.. Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support 
building. 

constructionthe of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature) 

~- cJt~12k-\/\a:.. C ~0\"c~ ~ ~Yl\U~V)0r ~:J\~GL/ 
. t--Jprint name pnn name 

224

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibilIty and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

/J 

signature 

=?r-ot ~QQ v ,a:.. c:~ 0\ vc.:;;z ~ 
print name 

c=:-----J-r~--------~~'----~ 
signature) 

J3 ... · l\G~v)ol\ ~:J\~G\ L/ 

. t--J pnn name 



 
]?~ryJ 'fat Victoria, Be Vt, rJ 3~ \ 

Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Council!ors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

225

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Council!ors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
lirnit~d vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk thrt meets Saanich 
reqUirements; . 

ED Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

"--..----' 

signa"ture signature 

J\G\Dl(lCu \<cth\.'\ 
print name print name 

226

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
lirnit~d vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk thrt meets Saanich 
reqUirements; . 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this proj~ct as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

:-
slgna.,ture 

J \ G-mflCu \<cch\.'\ 
print name 

signature 

print name 



No\) _I( (~ J-"------

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Aoolication - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

227

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

I( (~ No\) _4-_-.:.....-=J ____ _ 

Re: Re-Zoning Aoolication - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the I~ck of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; i 

., Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

., Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Lfgnature signature 
I 

l~J ( ( Q le/t ~v ~C\{;~\f\\, C I~ 
print name print name 

228

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the I~ck of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; i 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

L .... ___ L'-_----. 

Lfgnature 

l~J ( ( Q 

signature 
I 

i\/\.Ov ~C\{;~V~\, c I~ 
print name print name 



 

r C' ,

' (P -
r 

- I 

+nul,J C . Victoria, BCViAJ (E / 
Phone: 
'1e-mal: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, Be 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
It Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

It Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

229

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
It Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

It Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

. I
reqUIrements; . 

Ell Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

Ell Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

! :;/ 

I Ignature signature v-- "' o CLl't1ck.", 
print name print name 

230

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

. I 
reqUIrements; , 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

~----~~-----~~ .. -----~----~ 
I 

/' 

~ature 
t/:-- " 

cJ CLl't 1 cR.", 

signature 

print name print name 



 
Qvt I\t~r P\O-Ge.. Victorik, Be v 8fJ II:{ B CO 
Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

231

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich I 

requirements; 

.. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich -I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

.. Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

print name print name 

232

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility a~d the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich I 

requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich -I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

~------~/_ .. ~-~----------~ 

signature signature 

fAj. PI (}crneroYj 
print name print name 



V<~~\"(';N <i¥ :T~ ... ~ f~ fY}dJh'te...
SeLl) f~oad . 

________Victoria, Be V<6N '3 Sf 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

233

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
Iimite~ vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that mJrets Saanich 
requirements; . 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

~ZV\~l+-W yY1 cvJ~£Z-t 
print name print name 

234

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limite~ vehicle visibility and the lack of asidewalklhat mfets Saanich 
requirements; . 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature 
c;t 

signa ure 

~zVl0l+-W 
print name print name 



Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

235

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concems about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visi1bility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanic~ 
requirements; . . 

oRe-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

It Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

.'-'
signature 

PEteR EARRJSCAL( ,,~U SA-Ii &4R RJe;: C/I i/ 
print name print name 

signature 

236

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visi!bility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanic~ 
requirements; . . 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

( IJ ____ L fI __ .f1 

signature signature 

PeteR BARRJSCJ.L( "S' U S A-1L( 
print name print name 



( 
./ 

.I3V,l I f)o/S 
I 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, tl'!ey 
plan to build a second building on their plroperty that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

237

( 
./ 

.I3V,l I f)o/S 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

I 

Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, tl'!ey 
plan to build a second building on their plroperty that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalkl that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

.. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signa(ure signature 

tJa, nCEe... LCA.0~'S 
print name print name 

238

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow. Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalkl that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

.. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

.. Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

~ __ ~d ni ______ ~ 

Signature signature 

NLA n (e ~ Leu.:> ~~ 
print name print name 



__I_V0 U· ) / IS

~ ") V' dIj 0..) t Ls 0 Ii ~ ?y,\ ~ r' ~ t'i'l LJ ; ISo fl 
M?D?,.slnc)f~e pNlctona, Be v<;?A/~S 
~ 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

239

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

__ I_V0 U· ) / IS-

Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and thr lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; , 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support 
building. 

two-storynewaofconstructionthe building, rather than a three-story 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

. I t 
sl~ra ure 

:r MdKv.:: tJ lc S'eJt\j 

print nalJe print name 

240

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and thp lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; , 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

/ I >-) t> / / ......... ,-

sign/at~.re . / 

J~dLl LV;' 1~6fJ 
print nalJe 

fI • . ___ -'-___ ----, 

J~ ___ )----
Sigr' ature 

"'--:r Md-K VE rJ \tV lc S'cttj 
print name 



/V)A K J -Pr=.r IjJ I II v' I "",r::::,"7 I 

Jfr)P!!5r1C~E Pf1Jv~ Victoria, Be V3'J ~ 

Phone: 
e-mail:r.\ 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
iii Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

iii Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

241

; , jvlA:f!.. '/ -Pr:.:f! .. j<., V i 

.. 

I! 

Jfr)P!!5r1C~E Pf1Jv~ Victoria, Be V3'J ~ 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
iii Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

iii Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sIdewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

Ell Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

Ell Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature f signature 

print name print name 

242

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sIdewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signatur~ signature 

print name print name 



 
R~o}(} KtJ ,Victbria, Be .ti!:I.-Lf: 8 

Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

243

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibilitYi and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

irequirements; 

• 

Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 

do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 

(J I ~ certaintY,cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". ~ .1 1<, ~ ([1;1/ 
L{!!i2& 1t1~!1 4l?RotJ awl- A(JW K(JA1) io ,4kt IIJL 7u2f3i Doz;~i ,A . 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I ~~~~ 
C ::I; 

("(J ~ 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

72cto ri ~UIY\r . 

print name print name 

244

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibilitYI and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

I requirements; 

Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 

(J I ~ certaintY,cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". ~ . "1 le ~ ([1;1/ 
L{!&& 1t1~!1 4l?RotJ awl. AQ"W K(Jfft) io ,4fZt IIJL 7&f31t Dez;~i ,A. 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I ~;:;~~ 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story C ;::}; 
building. ( "(J 0 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

I 
/2 

signature 0 signature 

76cto rLj ~UIY\r . 

print name 
--...J 

print name 



----------------------------

_--,--to{ v, (J( '(
I 

Victoria, Be 
--P-h-on-e

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

245

e-mail: ----------------------------

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limIted vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk thatl meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

print name 

246

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limIted vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk thati meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

5 V.' , 
signature 

1;:2 __ ~I_· ______ -, 

t ... o signature 

print -;;~; print name 



OClkW i flPLS S-h 
Victoria, Be VeAl ~g If 

---P-ho-n-e

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

247

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle yisibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saaryich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature 

print name _7 print name 

248

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle yisibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saaryich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature :7 

print name-
j 

print name 



&v:..-b"\l'c-' G~-.S 
Qu l V~( Pc 

------ Victoria Be 11B1'0 , ---
Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

., Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

iii 

249

&v:..-b"\l'c-' G~-.S 
Qu l v~v Pc 

Victoria Be 11 B 1'0 -------------======== ' 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

iii Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

., Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich , 
requirements; 

ED Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

CD Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway", 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the newaofconstruction two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

print name print name 

250

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich , 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway", 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

print name print name 



 
/1l ic4e/;;.a, tJw !1t8r'011 " 

Qu/Jet- (J)UG'G 
_______Victoria,1 Be vaN5:5'8 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria. BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

251

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria. BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility andl the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; . 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

(JJJctl£ CJ.1 Yh GPv(:JtJ 
print name print name 

252

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility andl the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; . 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 mUltlzunit r~sidential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

(JJJ ctl £, Cr) Yh GPv(:Jw 
print name print name 



dQ {S 

ntRJ2& fuC(LLPtt01'> I 

GAl\.uGfL PL. Victoria, Be ~5l$ 
.Phon~: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell &Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, Be 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

.. Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

253

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, Be 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

dQ { S 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

.. Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of rsidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

" Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich  I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

ED Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

~ 

signature signature 

print name print name 

254

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of r sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

c:: 
signature 

print name 

signature 

print name 



Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

255

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visib~lity and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich ! 

requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

print name' print name 

256

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibllity and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

print name' print name 



I Octb,vlYldc; ~ 
_________Victoria, Be __ 

Phone: ( ) --:-_____ 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

257

_________ Victoria, Be __ 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk t~at meets Saanich , , 

requirements; 

GI Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

GI Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 

building. 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

~y\ '~l\II pr~b:a~)J VLAprint name 

258

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
I:imited vehicle visibility and the'lack Of a sidewalkt~at meets Saanich , , 

requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential pr()perties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

~ ____ L~_. ______ ~ 

signature 

~y\ .~l\II 
print name 

signature 

pr8b:a~)J VLA 



-------

-------------------

I\l0. ~S,,~ ~"w-£r1< 

aVlU~ ,oL 

Victoria Be U ~ N e:;-Et;; 
Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell &Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

259

I\l0. ~ S,,~ < ~"w-£r1 

Ph 
e-mail: 

av l U 

----------------------------
Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle ,visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; I I 

It Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these Were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

.. Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfu lIyI 

signature 

print name print name 

260

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicleiVisibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; I ! 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these Were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfu lIy I 

signature signature 

print name print name 



----------------------------

0u l VE R PL- Victoria Be v3JJ 5 E g 
Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

261

e-mail: ----------------------------
Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited ivehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that merts Saanich 
requirements; . 

.. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

.. Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

RespectfulIy, 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 

signature signature 

print name print name 

262

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited ivehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that me~ts Saanich 
requirements; , 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfu lIy, 

'.L_. __ . 

signature signature 

print name print name 



Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

263

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle vi~ibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saani6h 

! ! 

requirements; 

III Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

III Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

print na e 

signature 

print name 

264

I 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle vi~ibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanidh 

! I 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in $aanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

s(gJJlture -= signature 

print na e print name 



I "" £! a tJE1../1//cJC 
I5fGl- lJae Pt--., Victoria, Be ~ £Rb 

Phone: 
e-mail: ~44 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-7 oning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 
safety concerns due to the narrow \lvidth of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 

265

e-mail: ~44 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-7 oning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 
safety concerns due to the narrow \lvidth of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 



limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewa!,k that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

I 

" Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

" Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

266

limited vehicle visibility and the Jack of a sidewa!ik that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

I 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Prece.dent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanic.h with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

I 

1), 

7)° ,- J~?" 

C~ 



 

---------------------------

Nov 3 
/ 
~/s-

&1 !Jov PIOtce Victoria Be viti /tKlE) V9 IV roz;:,,/o,, ---
Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 
safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 

267

Nov 3 ~/s-

e-mail: ----------------------------

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

/ 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 
safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 



certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirem1ents; I 

.. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

e Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

268

limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirem1ents; I 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

I I 



J?e L(\fof:flVictoria, Be VlJA( 
Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, Be 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

269

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, Be 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a kidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

It Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

'_-
signature 7 signature 

6j)tAJf7~p :JBckSi')~ ) bTl 
print name print name 

270

safety c099(,;rm; due tg thenarrow width. of Arr.ow ;.Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack. a kidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent fQr Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

6]JW-Ft f?-P 
print name 

TBcksnAL 
print name 



Nov t;( dlJ/S

~.....,e:po I ,~/}-f'--( A ..5 I /'--1 t4-5 
I 

/S,eL-(r-vR PC, Victbria, Be V8rv' 6 E ~ 

Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application _. 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicych3 and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 
safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 

271

~.....,e:po 

EeL-(r-vR 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Nov t;( dlJ/S-

Re: Re-Zoning Application _. 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicych3 and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 
safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 



limited vehicle visibility and the lack Df a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; , 

eRe-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project c~s it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the tvvo-storynewaofconstruction building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration tel iTly concerns about the re-zoning proposal at '1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

272

limited vehicle visibility and the lack f)f a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; , 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedeilt for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties !.in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project ClS it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new tvvo-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipat~d increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as ourl9lected municipal representatives, will give 
Serious consideration to irly concerns abolJtthe re-zoning proposal at '1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

63 

II ________________ L-~I __ ~--__ --------~I-----
t 
;tiC/Me ~ (! -~11~40 



IlbyaUliJI/ i 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

273

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the la~k of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

• I
requirements; 

CIt Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I under$tand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns 
two-storyofconstruction 

asprojectthisabout it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the a new building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature· 

JbfL 
print name 

117274

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the la~k of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

• I 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I under$tand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

print name print name 



 
t1llfflLt/I(/ ~fftYFl Deft?.. 

WA1dr;;ps ,5rVidoria, Be tI.1;V :1/?'f 
Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

275

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehiclE1 visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Sa1nich 
requirements;! . 

CIt Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

Ell Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

1 

signature signature 

/1IMIL l ll./ ~{!HrJt£( vE~ 
. I

print name print name 

276

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehiclE1 visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Sa1nich 
requirements; I ' 

It Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

__ L ___ ----. 
'------'-1 -..~.__...._~-_L 

signature signature 

print name 



i Nd{/~ 01 Tkomt//,on i 
,JfJv uJ adVictoria~ (/ IS 1\( ;;; ![3 I 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

&I Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

277

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

&I Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

I 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfu Ily, 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 

signature signature 

print name print name 

278

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 

I 
requirements; 

.. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

III Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfu Ily, 

r ----'--<-<> II 

signature signature 

print name print name 



Mil: f rvtv-;5 ;(- /4-r +~ 
Bow fSci Victoria, Be ~AI~t3 ;L 

Phone: ( ) ______ 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

279

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limitedl,vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that me~ts Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather thana three-story 
projectthisaboutconcernsDespite my as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 

building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to rny concel ns about tile re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

print name print name 

280

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limitedl,vehicle visibility and the lack of asidewalkthat me~ts Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather thana three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to rny concel ns about tile re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

~--_/\~\----------~ 

signature signature 

print name print name 



 

:lOllAi r t1IlR/~ W4-rrs I 
£f(tMJ ROAD' Victoria, Be tI<iN1C~ 
Phone: 

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

281

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack ofl a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; , 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

signature signature 

print name print name 

A-r-t0VJ RJ .-JCL~ 
r)~d87L~ . 

282

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack.ofla sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; , 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Prececj,ent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential pr~perti~s in 9aanich ,with HA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

t 
signature 

print name 

signature 

print name 



20 {s;

:JoflrJ S~ itA rrTI',vc;E I~ 
Of))(~N£ Victoria, Be LE..I\L3S6-. 

Phone: 
e-mail: "$---=-----------------------

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. Iftheir application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

283

e-mail: ---=------------------------

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

20 {s;-

Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. Iftheir application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 

addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



 ________ _ 

1/1 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich I 

requirements; 

Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

o Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about thE: fe-zoning proposal at 1550 Arroilv Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signa.fure 

:;]Of/tJ SCflll-rTI;yqEIG 
print name print name 

clcJe ,e ;/oil. :;/ cJo/;;

f)c[A/c~tll ~}J(ce. 

do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

~ signature 

284

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
limited vehicle visibIlity and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the fe-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signiiture ' v 25 

:;]Of! N Scflrt} (T;,A/ q (31 G 
print name 

clc..;r; ,e rIov. :J / cJo/;;

I I f) d.--kci c~tt! ~?<t(C e . 

signature 

print name 



 CC01\]~ ~L. 
________Victoria, BC\.)«,/IJ Sq~ 

Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 

plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 

285

e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
60 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
'imit~d vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk trat meets Saanich 
requirements; 

,. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building_ 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

'---
~~L ~\~ 
print name print name 

286

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
'imit~d vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk trat meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building_ 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature 

'-----
~~L ~\~ 
print name 

signature 

print name 



safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
'imit~d vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk trat meets Saanich 
requirements; 

,. Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building_ 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature signature 

'---
~~L ~\~ 
print name print name 

287

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with 
'imit~d vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk trat meets Saanich 
requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building_ 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

signature 

'-----
~~L ~\~ 
print name 

signature 

print name 



 

 

Hopesmore Drive 
Victoria, BC V8N 6A2 
Phone: 
e-mail: 

Date: 2015 November 04 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

We are residents in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located 
at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed ofone and two story residential homes 
on quiet no-through streets. 

We have reviewed the proposed re-zoning for the redevelopment of 1550 Arrow Road. 
Having lived in Saanich for some 30 years we are extremely concerned about the 
significant impact that this redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 residential 
housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
(MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If 
their application is approved by Saanich Council, they plan to build a second building 
on their property that will be three stories high and contain 100 housing units. This 
would result in a very significant 125% increase in housing units on this property. 

We understand and acknowledge the increaSing need for additional subsidized seniors 
housing throughout Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, we feel that a 
development such as the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its 
present design due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

Our concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition of 

100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 
without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

288

_ Hopesmore Drive 
Victoria, BC V8N 6A2 
Phone: 
e-mail: 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Date: 2015 November 04 

Re: Re-Zoning Application -1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

We are residents in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located 
at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story residential homes 
on quiet no-through streets. 

We have reviewed the proposed re-zoning for the redevelopment of 1550 Arrow Road. 
Having lived in Saanich for some 30 years we are extremely concerned about the 
significant impact that this redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 residential 
housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
(MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If 
their application is approved by Saanich Council, they plan to build a second building 
on their property that will be three stories high and contain 100 housing units. This 
would result in a very significant 125% increase in housing units on this property. 

We understand and acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors 
housing throughout Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, we feel that a 
development such as the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its 
present design due to the major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

Our concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 
• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition of 

100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 
without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 



e Increase in Traffic Volumes  The increase in housing units will result in a major 
i~crease in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, ~ncluding cars, trucks, service 
vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious safety concerns due 
to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and 
the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich requirements; 

III Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich  We understand that a review of 
46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of these 
were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

III Inconsistency with SheRbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - We understand that the 
three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards 
set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located 
along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as 
a Umajor arterial roadway". 

Despite concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, We 
would potentially support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a 
three-story building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, we suggest that the District of Saanich review the 
suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this development. 

It is our expectation that each 
serious consideration to our concerns about the re-zoning proposal 

you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give of 
at 1550 Arrow Road and 

the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

James R. Waugh Cheryl L Gollub p 

289

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a major 
i~crease in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, ~ncluding cars, trucks, service 
vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious safety concerns due 
to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and 
the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich requirements; 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - We understand that a review of 
46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of these 
were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - We understand that the 
three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards 
set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located 
along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as 
a Umajor arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, We 
would potentially support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a 
three-story building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, we suggest that the District of Saanich review the 
suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this development. 

It is our expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to our concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and 
the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

James R. Waugh Cheryl L Gollub 

\ 



Page 1 of 1 

Council - Concerns About 1550 Arrow Road Redevelopment Proposal 

i 
From: Arrow Residents <arrow.residents@gmail.com> 
To: <planning@saanich.ca>, <mayor@saanich.ca>, <council@saanich.ca>, 

<assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca>, <synod@bc.anglican.ca>, 
< >, <victoria@numberten.com> 

Date: 11/10/2015 11 :54 AM 
Subject: Concerns About 1550 Arrow Road Redevelopment Proposal 
CC: <contact@gordeonhead.ca> 
Attachments: Letter to Council.pdf 

We are a group of neighbours concerned with the rezoning application for 1550 Arrow Road. 
We represent scores of other concerned residents of the area who turned out for a neighbourhood meeting on 
Nov 1 st to discuss this proposal. 
The attached PDF letter expresses these concerns, and our website provides additional material. 

NOV iO 2015 

POSTTO 

COPYTO 

REPLY TO WRITER 
COpy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT 0 
FOR A 

ACKN~LEDGED'~~/ 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrfemp/XPgrpwise/5641 DBOASaanichMun_H... 11/10/20290

Page 1 of 1 

Council - Concerns About 1550 Arrow Road Redevelopment Proposal 

i 
From: Arrow Residents <arrow.residents@gmail.com> 
To: <planning@saanich.ca>, <mayor@saanich.ca>, <council@saanich.ca>, 

<~glican.ca>, <synod@bc.anglican.ca>, 
<_>, <victoria@numberten.com> 

Date: 11/10/2015 11 :54 AM 
Subject: Concerns About 1550 Arrow Road Redevelopment Proposal 
CC: <contact@gordeonhead.ca> 
Attachments: Letter to Council.pdf 

We are a group of neighbours concerned with the rezoning application for 1550 Arrow Road. 
We represent scores of other concerned residents of the area who turned out for a neighbourhood meeting on 
Nov 1 st to discuss this proposal. 
The attached PDF letter expresses these concerns, and our website provides additional material. 

NOV iO 2015 

POSTTO 

COPYTO 

REPLYTO WRITER 0 
Copy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT 0 
FOO ____ ,-~~~ ____ ~--

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrfemp/XPgrpwise/5641 DBOASaanichMun_H... 11/10/20' 



2015 November 09 

To: Saanich Mayor and Council Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
I 

Saanich Planning Department Anglican diocese of BC 
Gordon Head Residents Association Number TEN Architectural Group 

Concerning an Application for Rezoning (RA-1 to RA-3) of Mount Douglas Court 
1550 Arrow Road 

As neighbours of the Mount Douglas Court property, we wish to submit our concerns about the 
proposed redevelopment of Mount Douglas Court by the Anglican Diocese of British Columbia. 

Recognising The Need: It was evident from a recent presentation by the developers for the 
Anglican Diocese that a genuine need exists in the community for additional subsidised 
seniors housing. We understand and support additional subsidised housing for low-income 
seniors at Mount Douglas Court; however, this redevelopment proposal ignores several 
Saanich planning objectives and raises serious neighbourhood concerns. 

Neighbourhood at Present: a quiet, established, low-rise residential area composed of well
maintained, single family residences of one or two stories situated on low-traffic, no-through 
roads and cul-de-sacs. The existing Mount Douglas Court (MOe) building and its residents fit 
well into our neighbourhood: the two-story structure sits in the middle of a large lot with 
trees and green space that feels well situated. We welcome Mount Douglas Court residents 
as our neighbours. 

Our Concerns: Phase 1 of the proposal for Mount Douglas Court would see a new three-story 
building with 100 units positioned at the rear (north) ofthe property. While we recognize and 
support seniors' subsidised housing at Mount Douglas Court, we cannot support a 
redevelopment p'roposal that includes a three-story building in Phase 1 that will increase the 
number of units on this property from 80 to 180-and later in Phase 2 to 240 units with an 
additional three/four story building. This is a huge increase in density, totally out of 
character with the neighbourhood. 

Proposal Is Inconsistent with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan1
: It is most notable that this 

three-story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the planning 
guidelines set forth in the Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) which clusters higher 
density and taller buildings along the Valley's major arterial roads and 'centres', and 
transitions to the lowest height and density at the periphery. Although 1550 Arrow is 
covered by the SVAP, there is no indication in that plan that a change or alteration to the 
current land use designation of this property is envisaged. Indeed, Section 5.4 of the SVAP 

supports siting apartment buildings only on major and collector roads. 

1 Council consulted carefully with residents of the Shelbourne valley to develop the SVAP. This is a test case: if 
Council accepts this development proposal as-is then it will call into question Council's commitment to the 
SVAP and to residents' shared vision of the future of the Shelbourne valley. Developers will feel free to ignore 

the SVAP, destroying its purpose. 

Page 1 of 3 

291

To: Saanich Mayor and Council 
I 

Saanich Planning Department 
Gordon Head Residents Association 

2015 November 09 

Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
Anglican diocese of BC 
Number TEN Architectural Group 

Concerning an Application for Rezoning (RA-1 to RA-3) of Mount Douglas Court 
1550 Arrow Road 

As neighbours of the Mount Douglas Court property, we wish to submit our concerns about the 
proposed redevelopment of Mount Douglas Court by the Anglican Diocese of British Columbia. 

Recognising The Need: It was evident from a recent presentation by the developers for the 
Anglican Diocese that a genuine need exists in the community for additional subsidised 
seniors housing. We understand and support additional subsidised housing for low-income 
seniors at Mount Douglas Court; however, this redevelopment proposal ignores several 
Saanich planning objectives and raises serious neighbourhood concerns. 

Neighbourhood at Present: a quiet, established, low-rise residential area composed of well
maintained, single family residences of one or two stories situated on low-traffic, no-through 
roads and cul-de-sacs. The existing Mount Douglas Court (MOe) building and its residents fit 
well into our neighbourhood: the two-story structure sits in the middle of a large lot with 
trees and green space that feels well situated. We welcome Mount Douglas Court residents 
as our neighbours. 

Our Concerns: Phase 1 of the proposal for Mount Douglas Court would see a new three-story 
building with 100 units positioned at the rear (north) ofthe property. While we recognize and 
support seniors' subsidised housing at Mount Douglas Court, we cannot support a 
redevelopment p'roposal that includes a three-story building in Phase 1 that will increase the 
number of units on this property from 80 to 180-and later in Phase 2 to 240 units with an 
additional three/four story building. This is a huge increase in density, totally out of 
character with the neighbourhood. 

Proposal Is Inconsistent with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan1
: It is most notable that this 

three-story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the planning 
guidelines set forth in the Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) which clusters higher 
density and taller buildings along the Valley's major arterial roads and 'centres', and 
transitions to the lowest height and density at the periphery. Although 1550 Arrow is 
covered by the SVAP, there is no indication in that plan that a change or alteration to the 
current land use designation of this property is envisaged. Indeed, Section 5.4 of the SVAP 

supports siting apartment buildings only on major and collector roads. 

1 Council consulted carefully with residents of the Shelbourne valley to develop the SVAP. This is a test case: if 
Council accepts this development proposal as-is then it will call into question Council's commitment to the 
SVAP and to residents' shared vision of the future of the Shelbourne valley. Developers will feel free to ignore 

the SVAP, destroying its purpose. 

Page 1 of 3 



Also, that Plan specifically notes that seniors' housing shall be permitted in all areas 
I 

designated for apartment housing, except that seniors housing should be discouraged in 
areas with hilly topography-which is exactly that lengthy section of Arrow Road between 
Cedar Hill Road and Mount Douglas Court. The proposal does not even adhere to the 
height principles carefully illustrated on pages 36-39 of the Land Use Plan Section 3. 

Proposal's Need for Rezoning Sets a Serious Precedent: To rezone this property from RA-1 to 
RA-3 in order to accommodate a three-story building sets a precedent affecting the future 
of all Saanich residential neighbourhoods. Our review of 46 properties currently zoned 
RA-3 in Saanich has found that they are either (i) located on or adjacent to a major road, or 
(ii) bordered by a park or sloping green space. We were unable to locate an example of a 
three-story building in Saanich with an RA-3 designation that is located within a fully 
residential area similar to that of 1550 Arrow: i.e., one with single-family homes bordering 
four sides of the lot, on a residential street. This property, if rezoned RA-3, will be an 
anomaly and unique in the municipality. In our opinion, it will set a very serious precedent 
for similar future proposals within the District of Saanich. 

Proposal Worsens Existing Traffic Issues: Phase 1 itself will bring an additional 100+ residents 
with their estimated fifty vehicles to further strain Arrow Road-a busy, poorly aligned, 
badly maintained, narrow and dangerous street with a steep blind hill and limited vision. 
Even in its present inadequate state it has become a high speed, cut-through from Cedar 
Hill Road to McKenzie Avenue west. Adding more vehicles onto this road will create even 
more hazards. From Cedar Hill Road to the end of the Mount Douglas Court property there 
is only a painted white line separating vehicles from cyclists and pedestrians. If the Phase 
1 proposal is approved as presented then the chance of accidents on Arrow Road will be 
greatly increased. We anticipate an increased level of traffic and noise during construction 
from vehicles, trucks and equipment on Arrow Road-a road that was not built to 
withstand this heavy usage-for a year or more. When completed, the new units at Mount 
Douglas Court will generate a significant increas~ in the number of service vehicles, 
emergency vehicles, recycling, and garbage pickup thereby creating more activity and noise 
for the entire neighbourhood. Phase 2 will make things even worse as 240+ residents make 
MDC their home. 

Proposal Does Not Improve Pedestrian Safety Issues: The developer has suggested that 
pedestrians should be encouraged to use the right-of-way paths that link Bel Nor Place and 
Hopesmore Drive to access Cedar Hill Road. However, there are no sidewalks on either of 
these streets. [We have heard that the cut-through from MDC to Bel Nor Place may simply 
be an 'understanding' that the property owner has with MDC and is not actually municipal 
land.] 

What We Support and Why: we support construction of new two-story buildings for the 
following reasons: 

Conforms to the Shelbourne Valley Action Plan: such zoning and density would conform to 
the SVAP and be a much better fit into our low-rise neighbourhood landscape while still 
allowing for additional units of housing for low-income seniors. The existing two-story 

Page 2 of 3 

292

Also, that Plan specifically notes that seniors' housing shall be permitted in all areas 
I 

designated for apartment housing, except that seniors housing should be discouraged in 
areas with hilly topography-which is exactly that lengthy section of Arrow Road between 
Cedar Hill Road and Mount Douglas Court. The proposal does not even adhere to the 
height principles carefully illustrated on pages 36-39 of the Land Use Plan Section 3. 

Proposal's Need for Rezoning Sets a Serious Precedent: To rezone this property from RA-1 to 
RA-3 in order to accommodate a three-story building sets a precedent affecting the future 
of all Saanich residential neighbourhoods. Our review of 46 properties currently zoned 
RA-3 in Saanich has found that they are either (i) located on or adjacent to a major road, or 
(ii) bordered by a park or sloping green space. We were unable to locate an example of a 
three-story building in Saanich with an RA-3 designation that is located within a fully 
residential area similar to that of 1550 Arrow: i.e., one with single-family homes bordering 
four sides of the lot, on a residential street. This property, if rezoned RA-3, will be an 
anomaly and unique in the municipality. In our opinion, it will set a very serious precedent 
for similar future proposals within the District of Saanich. 

Proposal Worsens Existing Traffic Issues: Phase 1 itself will bring an additional 100+ residents 
with their estimated fifty vehicles to further strain Arrow Road-a busy, poorly aligned, 
badly maintained, narrow and dangerous street with a steep blind hill and limited vision. 
Even in its present inadequate state it has become a high speed, cut-through from Cedar 
Hill Road to McKenzie Avenue west. Adding more vehicles onto this road will create even 
more hazards. From Cedar Hill Road to the end of the Mount Douglas Court property there 
is only a painted white line separating vehicles from cyclists and pedestrians. If the Phase 
1 proposal is approved as presented then the chance of accidents on Arrow Road will be 
greatly increased. We anticipate an increased level of traffic and noise during construction 
from vehicles, trucks and equipment on Arrow Road-a road that was not built to 
withstand this heavy usage-for a year or more. When completed, the new units at Mount 
Douglas Court will generate a significant increas~ in the number of service vehicles, 
emergency vehicles, recycling, and garbage pickup thereby creating more activity and noise 
for the entire neighbourhood. Phase 2 will make things even worse as 240+ residents make 
MDC their home. 

Proposal Does Not Improve Pedestrian Safety Issues: The developer has suggested that 
pedestrians should be encouraged to use the right-of-way paths that link Bel Nor Place and 
Hopesmore Drive to access Cedar Hill Road. However, there are no sidewalks on either of 
these streets. [We have heard that the cut-through from MDC to Bel Nor Place may simply 
be an 'understanding' that the property owner has with MDC and is not actually municipal 
land.] 

What We Support and Why: we support construction of new two-story buildings for the 
following reasons: 

Conforms to the Shelbourne Valley Action Plan: such zoning and density would conform to 
the SVAP and be a much better fit into our low-rise neighbourhood landscape while still 
allowing for additional units of housing for low-income seniors. The existing two-story 

Page 2 of 3 



 

 

 

 

 

 

building is barely visible from most surro1unding lots, except those on Arrow and part of 
Hopesmore: new buildings of the same Height would not seriously affect the surrounding 
streetscapes. 

Existing Zoning is There for Good Reason: historically Saanich determined that the best use 
for this property was an RA-1 zoning for seniors' housing-and there has been no reason to 
alter it since. 

Mitigates Traffic and Safety Issues: new buildings restricted to two stories would mean a 
smaller increase in the number of seniors with vehicles using Arrow Road-meaning fewer 
pedestrians would be at risk from increased traffic. 

In Conclusion: As concerned residents of this neighbourhood, we would like to: 

(1) accommodate the demonstrated need for additional, safe, low-income seniors housing, 
{2} preserve the integrity of the Shelbourne Valley Action Plan, and 
(3) maintain the ambience and lifestyle of our neighbourhood for ~ residents of the area. 

Restricting the site only to new, two-story buildings will best satisfy these considerations. 

Therefore, we ask respectfully that Council require the proponent to withdraw this proposal 
and resubmit a new proposal that (i) provides additional units of seniors' housing, and 

(ii) complies fully with the SVAP for all future buildings on this site. 

We thank you for the opportunity to inform you of our concerns and we look forward to your 
response. 

Sincerely, 

Concerned Neighbours of Mount Douglas Court 
(Email Addresses)

M. Buckland 

C. Evans 

B. Geddes 

c.Gregg 

L. Jackson 

D. Mattison 

W. Weicker 

M. Wilson 

Quiver PI 

Arrow Crt 

Quiver PI 

Bel Nor PI 

Bel Nor PI 

Bel Nor PI 

Quiver PI 

Hopesmore Dr 

Page 3 of 3 

293

building is barely visible from most surro1unding lots, except those on Arrow and part of 
Hopesmore: new buildings of the same Height would not seriously affect the surrounding 
streetscapes. 

Existing Zoning is There for Good Reason: historically Saanich determined that the best use 
for this property was an RA-l zoning for seniors' housing-and there has been no reason to 
alter it since. 

Mitigates Traffic and Safety Issues: new buildings restricted to two stories would mean a 
smaller increase in the number of seniors with vehicles using Arrow Road-meaning fewer 
pedestrians would be at risk from increased traffic. 

In Conclusion: As concerned residents of this neighbourhood, we would like to: 

(l) accommodate the demonstrated need for additional, safe, low-income seniors housing, 
{2} preserve the integrity of the Shelbourne Valley Action Plan, and 
(3) maintain the ambience and lifestyle of our neighbourhood for ~ residents of the area. 

Restricting the site only to new, two-story buildings will best satisfy these considerations. 

Therefore, we ask respectfully that Council require the proponent to withdraw this proposal 
and resubmit a new proposal that (i) provides additional units of seniors' housing, and 

(ii) complies fully with the SVAP for all future buildings on this site. 

We thank you for the opportunity to inform you of our concerns and we look forward to your 
response. 

Sincerely, 

M. Buckland 

C. Evans 

B. Geddes 

c.Gregg 

L. Jackson 

D. Mattison 

W. Weicker 

M. Wilson 

Concerned Neighbours of Mount Douglas Court 

Page 3 of 3 



294

~~©~~~~© 
NOV' 10 2015 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DISTRICT OF SAANICH 

(' 

,IVa {Q r--b t> Y" ~ I 2--p 15 

L--_-'-:-~..:....:....;_;.;......;..f=l.A=&~V'_'_'ic=to=r.:=ia, Be v 8N b S b 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC 
V8X2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 
Re: Re-Zoning Application ~ 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria. BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 
residential housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society (MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re
zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, they 
plan to build a second building on their property that will be three stories high 
and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. ' HovJ~ver, I feel that a d~velopment such 'as 
the one proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design 
due to the major impact that this wnt have on our residential area. 

~ \ . I '" 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows : 

. ' Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the 
addition of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 
130 units in Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a 
major increase in pedestrian. bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars , trucks, 
service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. This raises serious 



safety concerns due to thE[ narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot wi~h 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk-that meets Saanich 
requirements; . 

• Re-Zoning Sets a SeriousPrec~dent'for Saanich -I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were loc~ted" in afully reside~ti~1 area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

295

safety concerns due to thE[ narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep blind spot wi~h 
limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk-that meets Saanich 
requirements; . 

• Re-Zoning Sets a SeriousPrec~dent'for Saanich -I understand that a review 
of 46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that 
none of these were loc~ted" in a fully reside~ti~1 area such as ours; 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) -I understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which. requires that taller and higher density 
buildings be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road 
certainly cannot be described as a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite my concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, I 
do support the construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story 
building. 

As a condition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated increase in traffic expected with this 
development. 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road 
and the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

,--__ .1<-___ -

. signature signature 

ielNOrt ~o.tJ/d &:J;<. 
-p~rin-t~n~a-m~e~~----------------~~ame ( 



 

From: Murray Goode < > 
To: <council@saanich.ca> 
CC: "mayor@saanich.ba" <mayor@saanich.ca> 
Date: 11/6/2015 5:48 PM 
Subject: 1550 Arrow Road Developent 

Hello council and Mayor, 

We live on Bow Road which is a dead end street off of Arrow Road. We are concerned about the number 
of units that are being proposed for the Senior's Low Income home on Arrow Road. We agree that more 
housing for low income seniors is needed in the region. However, the proposal triples the number of units 
already there so it would definitely increase the amount of traffic coming down Arrow. Arrow Road is 
VERY narrow from Cedar Hill Road heading towards Bow Road and is already a hazard for pedestrians, 
cyclists and drivers. We would suggest the development be limited to half the number of units suggested 
by the developer (maybe only one building not two) and be built to a maximum of 2 stories. This would fit 
more with the Shelbourne Valley Action plan that is in place. If this proposal is accepted by Saanich we 
would also suggest that the road be widened from Cedar Hill Road to The Senior's complex at the 
developer's or Saanich's expense. A real sidewalk would also be a very good idea on this stretch of road. 

Thank you for your time and consideration in this manner, 

Sincerely, 
Marilyn and Murray Goode 

Bow Road, 
Victoria, BC 
V8N 3B2 

COPYTO ..........;;;.d.,.~7--____ 

REPLY TO WRITER 

COpy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT ~ 
FOR . 

~NOWlEDGEDC. tv \ 

iOirr= Y\:lr2"\1~
Uu LS(~~U\:/LS;LQ) I 

NOV 0 9 2015 ~J 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DiSTRiCT OF SAA,NICH 

296

From: 
To: 
CC: 
Date: 
Subject: 

Murray Goode 
<council@saanich.ca> 
"mayor@saanich.ba" <mayor@saanich.ca> 
11/6/2015 5:48 PM 
1550 Arrow Road Developent 

Hello council and Mayor, 

We live on Bow Road which is a dead end street off of Arrow Road. We are concerned about the number 
of units that are being proposed for the Senior's Low Income home on Arrow Road. We agree that more 
housing for low income seniors is needed in the region. However, the proposal triples the number of units 
already there so it would definitely increase the amount of traffic coming down Arrow. Arrow Road is 
VERY narrow from Cedar Hill Road heading towards Bow Road and is already a hazard for pedestrians, 
cyclists and drivers. We would suggest the development be limited to half the number of units suggested 
by the developer (maybe only one building not two) and be built to a maximum of 2 stories. This would fit 
more with the Shelbourne Valley Action plan that is in place. If this proposal is accepted by Saanich we 
would also suggest that the road be widened from Cedar Hill Road to The Senior's complex at the 
developer's or Saanich's expense. A real sidewalk would also be a very good idea on this stretch of road. 

Thank you for your time and consideration in this manner, 

Sincerely, 
Marilyn and Murray Goode 
_Bow Road, 
Victoria, BC 
V8N 3B2 

REPLY TO WRITER 

COpy RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

REPORT ~ 
FOR . 

~NOW~gpGEDC. tv \ 

iOirr= Y\:lr2"\1~ 
Uu LS (~~U\:/ LS;LQ) I 

NOV 09 2015d 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
DiSTRiCT OF SAA,NICH 



(jXTQLU 

Council - rezoning at 1550 Arrow Rd 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

I
HOllY VICKERS < > 
<cou nci I@saanich.ca> 
11/8/20152:54 PM 
rezoning at 1550 Arrow Rd 

Page 1 of 1 

FOO ______~~____----T

ACKNOWLEDGED· 

Dear Sir or Madam 

I have informed myself about the proposed rezoning of 1550 Arrow Rd, Mt Doug Court, and feel this type of 
accommodation is very necessary in our city and that the property in question can definitely handle more 
buildings. I'm not as keen about the plans to have a four storey building eventually - would really rather see the 
buildings at three storeys, with good landscaping near to the road to have the property in keeping with the 
neighbourhood. 

While Arrow Rd is short and narrow and just residential, there are many services (stores, busses, etc.) a block 
away and I often see people walking down to the stores from Mt Doug Court and realize they help maintain those 
local services to the benefit of all of us and have good benefit themselves from the proximity to those stores and 
affordable transportation. 

I do hope the project goes ahead. I do not feel it would negatively affect my property value or the livability of my 
neighbourhood. The mandate of the society that runs Mt Doug Court is to provide affordable independent living 
spaces for those who are 55 and up who have only small incomes - very needed in a town that has not many 
vacant rental units and not many safe, affordable ones. 

Thanks for your time. 

Holly Vickers 
Arrow Rd 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION i 
DISTRiCT OF SA,lI,ljIClL.l 

NOV 09 2015 I 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/locallTemp/XPgrpwise/563F6224SaanichMun_HaIL.. 11/9/20
297

Council - rezoning at 1550 Arrow Rd 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

HOllY vickERS < 
<cou nci I@saanich.ca> 
11/8/20152:54 PM 
rezoning at 1550 Arrow Rd 

Dear Sir or Madam -

Page 1 of 1 

REPLY TO WRITER 
COPY RESPONSE TO LEGISlMlVE DMSION 

REPORT I 0 
FOR __ --::--r ____ -r-

ACKNOWLEDGED· 

I have informed myself about the proposed rezoning of 1550 Arrow Rd, Mt Doug Court, and feel this type of 
accommodation is very necessary in our city and that the property in question can definitely handle more 
buildings. I'm not as keen about the plans to have a four storey building eventually - would really rather see the 
buildings at three storeys, with good landscaping near to the road to have the property in keeping with the 
neighbourhood. 

While Arrow Rd is short and narrow and just residential, there are many services (stores, busses, etc.) a block 
away and I often see people walking down to the stores from Mt Doug Court and realize they help maintain those 
local services to the benefit of all of us and have good benefit themselves from the proximity to those stores and 
affordable transportation. 

I do hope the project goes ahead. I do not feel it would negatively affect my property value or the livability of my 
neighbourhood. The mandate of the society that runs Mt Doug Court is to provide affordable independent living 
spaces for those who are 55 and up who have only small incomes - very needed in a town that has not many 
vacant rental units and not many safe, affordable ones. 

Thanks for your time. 

MVickers 
Arrow Rd 

I NOV 09 2015 I 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION i 
DISTRiCT OF SA,lI,ti.I.ClL..l 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/locallTemp/XPgrpwise/563F6224SaanichMun_Hall... 11/9/201 ~ 



298

~~©~~~~[Q) 
NOV 09 2015 

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
From: David Nicholls 1 DISTRICT OF SAANICH 
Date: November 1, 2015 at 6 :26:31 PM PST 
To: mayor@saanich.ca 
Cc: susan .brice@saanich .ca , judy.brownoff@saanich.ca, vic.derman@saanich .ca, 
fred.haynes@saanich .ca, dean.murdock@saanich.ca, colin.plant@saanich.ca , 
vicki.sanders@saanich.ca, leif.wergeland@saanich.ca, ClerkSec@saanich.ca , 
andrea.pickard@saanich.ca, assetmgmt@bc.anglican .ca, contact@gordonhead .ca 
Subject: Proposed Rezoning Application for 1550 Arrow Rd. Saanich, B.C 

Dear Mayor Atlwell and Council 

Ww have been residents of D Arrow Rd. bordering (westside) the Mt Douglas Court 
Seniors Housing Complex located at 1550 Arrow Rd . Our residential area is composed 
of one and two storey residential homes on a once quiet no thru street. We have lived 
here for 40 years and can appreciated how the neighbourhood has evolved in that time. 
In all these years Saanich has not made any effort to address the increased traffic or 
alter the character of the neighbourhood other than to develop the area around us as a 
neighbourhood of single family homes. Increased traffic is a consequence. No 
improvement to roads or sidewalks have occurred. 

We are EXTREMELY CONCERNED ABOUT THE SIGNIFICANT IMPACT THAT THIS 
PROPOSED RE-DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION WILL HAVE ON OUR RESIDENTIAL 
AREA. 

Currently there is a two storey building on the site that contains 80 residential housing 
rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
has made an application to have the above property re-zones from RA-1 to RA-3. If 
their application is approved by Saanich Council, THEY PLAN TO BUILD A SECOND 
BUILDING THAT WILL BE THREE STOREYS HIGH ADDING 100 SUITES TO THE 
PROPERTY (totalling 180 overall) A 125% INCREASE IN HOUSING UNITS ON THE 
PROPERY. 

While we can appreciate the need for additional subsidized senior housing throughout 
Saanich and the Greater Victoria area we feel that a development such as the one 
proposed should not be approved in its present design DUE TO THE MAJOR IMPACT 
IT WILL HAVE ON OUR RESIDENTIAL AREA. 

OUR CONCERNS ARE AS FOLLOWS; 

INCREASE IN DENSITY - With an additional 100 units in Phase 1and in future, an 
additional 60 units in Phase 2 (without the need for additional zon ing change) the total 
density for the property would now be 240 units in a single family neighbourhood. I 
MIGHT ADD THAT THIS NEIGHBOURHOOD HAS BEEN ALLOWED TO DEVELOP 
AS A SINGLE FAMILY NEIGHBOURHOOD FOR OVER 40 YEARS. 



-INCREASE. IN TRAFFIC VOLUMES - Increase in units will result in major increase in 
pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks (not just in construction 
phase), service vehicles, emergency and public transit. Service vehicles already 
disrupt the area at 7 AM daily. This raises serious safety concerns due to the narrow 
width of Arrow Rd, with a steep blind spot and limited visibility and a lack of a sidewalk 
that meets Saanich standards. This street has also become a short cut for non resident 
vehicles detouring off Cedar Hill Rd. 

-RE-ZONING SETS A SERIOUS PRECEDENT FOR SAANICH - We understand that 
after identifying 46 multi unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 none are 
located in fully residential areas like ours. 

-INCONSISTANCY WITH THE SHELBOURNE VALLEY ACTION PLAN - It is our 
understanding that the three storey building proposed for our neighbourhood does not 
adhere to the standards as set out in the plan where they Plan requires taller and 
high-density buildings to be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow 
Rd certainly cannot be considered a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite our concerns about the proposed plan we would support a two storey 
building. As an adjacent resident to the subject property we would extremely object to 
anything about two storeys in future plans especially fronting Arrow Rd. 

The suitability of Arrow Rd for more Traffic should also be reviewed in conjunction with 
plans for this proposal 

It is our expectation that each elected representative give this serious review re the 
re=zoning application of 1550 Arrow Rd. 

Respectfully 

David Nicholls 
Margaret Nicholls 

299

-INCREASE. IN TRAFFIC VOLUMES - Increase in units will result in major increase in 
pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks (not just in construction 
phase), service vehicles, emergency and public transit. Service vehicles already 
disrupt the area at 7 AM daily. This raises serious safety concerns due to the narrow 
width of Arrow Rd, with a steep blind spot and limited visibility and a lack of a sidewalk 
that meets Saanich standards. This street has also become a short cut for non resident 
vehicles detouring off Cedar Hill Rd. 

-RE-ZONING SETS A SERIOUS PRECEDENT FOR SAANICH - We understand that 
after identifying 46 multi unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 none are 
located in fully residential areas like ours. 

-INCONSISTANCY WITH THE SHELBOURNE VALLEY ACTION PLAN - It is our 
understanding that the three storey building proposed for our neighbourhood does not 
adhere to the standards as set out in the plan where they Plan requires taller and 
high-density buildings to be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow 
Rd certainly cannot be considered a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite our concerns about the proposed plan we would support a two storey 
building. As an adjacent resident to the subject property we would extremely object to 
anything about two storeys in future plans especially fronting Arrow Rd. 

The suitability of Arrow Rd for more Traffic should also be reviewed in conjunction with 
plans for this proposal 

It is our expectation that each elected representative give this serious review re the 
re=zoning application of 1550 Arrow Rd. 

Respectfully 

David Nicholls 
Margaret Nicholls 



 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

"Esther Larson" <l > 
<cou ncil@saanich.ca> 
11/3/201511:41 AM 
Rezoning 1550 Arrow Road 

I would like to add my voice to those opposed to the re-zoning of 1550 Arrow Road as it would have a 
negative impact on our community. 

In my opinion, a better use of the underdeveloped land would be a community garden. Several 
residents have attractive productive gardens now. 

Fifteen years ago the board of Mt. Douglas Court permitted me for four years to have a large garden on 
the area adjacent to my property. The last three years I took over two tons of fresh vegetable to the 
soup kitchen and food bank. Consider how much could be produced for those in need if all the 
undeveloped area were in community gardens. 

The 'Vancouver Sun' had an article (Nov. 2, p. A 15) on "Garden Power: Using public land for urban 
farms offers benefits far beyond the produce harvested./I 

Respectfully 
OJ. Larson 

Hopesmore Drive 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppOata/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/56389051 SaanichMun_Hall... 11/3/20151300

Page 1 of 1 

Council - Rezoning 1550 Arrow Road 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

"Esther Larson" 
<cou ncil@saanich.ca> 
11/3/201511:41 AM 
Rezoning 1550 Arrow Road 

V~ 

I would like to add my voice to those opposed to the re-zoning of 1550 Arrow Road as it would have a 
negative impact on our community. 

In my opinion, a better use of the underdeveloped land would be a community garden. Several 
residents have attractive productive gardens now. 

Fifteen years ago the board of Mt. Douglas Court permitted me for four years to have a large garden on 
the area adjacent to my property. The last three years I took over two tons of fresh vegetable to the 
soup kitchen and food bank. Consider how much could be produced for those in need if all the 
undeveloped area were in community gardens. 

The 'Vancouver Sun' had an article (Nov. 2, p. A 15) on "Garden Power: Using public land for urban 
farms offers benefits far beyond the produce harvested./I 

Respectfully 
O.J. Larson 
II Hopesmore Drive 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppOata/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/56389051 SaanichMun_Hall... 11/3/201 [" 



Page 1 of 2 

Council - Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Road. Victoria, BC 

'------"'~ 

From: JenniferlScigliano < > 
To: <mayor@saanich.ca>, <planning@saanich.ca>, <council~~rtm~. 

<susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 
<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred. haynes@saanich.ca>, 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, 
<vicki.sanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca 

Date: 11/4/20157:41 PM 
Subject: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Road. Victoria, BC 
CC: <contact@gordonhead.ca> 

NOV 05 2015 
Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

DISTRICT OF S,C,jl/·II;:! i 

We are residents in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing-c~~pTex-' . 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. We are extremely concerned about 
the significant impact that this proposed redevelopment will have on our 
residential area. 

Our main concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

- Increase in Traffic Volumes and the Safety of pedestrians - The increase in 
housing units will result in a major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular 
traffic, including cars, trucks, service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. 
This raises serious safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep 
blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements. We worry about the safety of our children and the current residents 
but adding this amount of traffic is extremely concerning. We worry that someone 
would have to be seriously injured or killed before anything would be done about 
pedestrian safety on Arrow Road; 

- Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition 
of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in 
Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

- Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - We understand that a review of 
46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of 
these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

-Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan(SVAP) -We understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings 
be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be 
described as a "major arterial roadway". We choose to move into this neighbourhood 
just over a year ago for the quiet neighbourhood that it is with plenty of green spaces 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/563A5F79SaanichMun_Hall... 11/5/2015
1301

Page 1 of 2 

Council - Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Road. Victoria, BC 

POST TO 

From: Jenniferl Scigliano 
To: <mayor@saanich.ca>, ann ng@saanich.ca>, <council~~HmJtl, 

Date: 

<susan.brice@saanich.ca>, <judy.brownoff@saanich.ca>, 
<vic.derman@saanich.ca>, <fred. haynes@saanich.ca>, 
<dean.murdock@saanich.ca>, <colin.plant@saanich.ca>, 
<vicki.sanders@saanich.ca>, <Ieif.wergeland@saanich.ca 
11/4/20157:41 PM r......;;...;..;.;.,;.;,.;;~;;;.....-s:= 

Subject: 
CC: 

Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Road. Victoria, BC 
<contact@gordonhead.ca> 

NOV 05 2015 
Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 

DISTRICT OF S,C,jl/·II;:! i 

We are residents in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing-c~~pTex-' . 
located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story 
residential homes on quiet no-through streets. We are extremely concerned about 
the significant impact that this proposed redevelopment will have on our 
residential area. 

Our main concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

- Increase in Traffic Volumes and the Safety of pedestrians - The increase in 
housing units will result in a major increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular 
traffic, including cars, trucks, service vehicles, emergency and public transit vehicles. 
This raises serious safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Road, the steep 
blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich 
requirements. We worry about the safety of our children and the current residents 
but adding this amount of traffic is extremely concerning. We worry that someone 
would have to be seriously injured or killed before anything would be done about 
pedestrian safety on Arrow Road; 

- Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition 
of 100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in 
Phase 2 without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

- Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - We understand that a review of 
46 multi-unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of 
these were located in a fully residential area such as ours; 

-Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan(SVAP) -We understand that 
the three story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the 
standards set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings 
be located along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be 
described as a "major arterial roadway". We choose to move into this neighbourhood 
just over a year ago for the quiet neighbourhood that it is with plenty of green spaces 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocalfTemp/XPgrpwise/563A5F79SaanichMun_Hall... 11/5/201 ~ 



 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 

and this would be significantly changed under this proposed development. 

As a co4dition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated incre~se in traffic expected with this 
development. Please ensure that our children and all residents would be kept 
safe! 

It is our hope and expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal 
representatives, will give serious consideration to our concerns about the re-zoning 
proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and the design of the new residential building as it is 
currently proposed. 

We thank you in advance for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

J enn and Frank Scigliano 

Livingstone Avenue South 

Victoria, Be V8N 3A4 

Phone: 

e-mail: 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/563A5F79SaanichMun_Hall... 1115/20151302

Page 2 of 2 

and this would be significantly changed under this proposed development. 

As a co4dition of the re-zoning approval, I suggest that the District of Saanich review 
the suitability of Arrow Road for the anticipated incre~se in traffic expected with this 
development. Please ensure that our children and all residents would be kept 
safe! 

It is our hope and expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal 
representatives, will give serious consideration to our concerns about the re-zoning 
proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and the design of the new residential building as it is 
currently proposed. 

We thank you in advance for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

J enn and Frank Scigliano 

_ Livingstone Avenue South 

Victoria, Be V8N 3A4 

Phone: 

e-mail: 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrr emp/XPgrpwise/563A5F79SaanichMun_Hall... 1115/201 [" 



1303

Planning - Letter To Mayor and Council about 1550 Arrow 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

"Morven Wilson" 1 (> 
Planning.Mun_Hall.Saanlch@saamch.ca 
11/3/20155:19 PM 
Letter To Mayor and Council about 1550 Arrow 
1550 Arrow Letter. pdf 

Page 1 ot 1 

FYI, I attach a copy of my letter to Mayor and Council stating my concerns about the Anglican Church's proposal 
to rezone the Mount Douglas Court property at 1550 Arrow Road. 

The Mayor and each councilor received the' same letter but I show only the mayor's name here, 

Sincerely, 

Morven Wilson 

file:///C:/Users/litzenbs/AppOata/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/5638EC90SaanichMun_, '. 1114/2015 



304

Mayor Richard Atwell 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria, BC V8X 2W7 

Dear Mayor Atwell : 

L-----.JHopesmore Drive 
Victoria , BC V8N 6A3 

November 2, 2015 

lication for Mount Dou las Court: 1550 Arrow Road 

I find it profoundly insulting to the residents of Saanich- and S :-:" 'i'>If ' 0.J.s~ ouncil-that the 
proponent can blatantly ignore the Shelbourne Valley Action PI P) and Shelbourne 
Valley Land Use and Urban Design Study. Neither m . C./y'!{C;;;' . the high densities and 

greater heights of an RA-3 zoning at any location sim ad . 

Plan Section 3, pages 36-39, of the Shelbourne Local Area strate ,c!early how building 
heights should transition from multistory bUildin9s,.do»,·Q ,~~. Single-family ' ,rl'~ i9·tj-b~k~OOdS as one 
moves away from the 'spine' and the 'villag~r :,~fibe SH~l~~~rne Valley. This~'~g9nt Douglas 
Court redevelopment proposes exactly t~.~,g(~;~.ps ite , d~~~,~i.~.ing high density, three/four story 
buildings right in the middle of a low densit~,;)i}!~~%~.i:~':(i.Q :I~,.~pourhood of single family homes in 
the area covered by the SVAP. This<~igh den~i:;l~.\)ii.~ igD ... ri?e 'redevelopment is neither in the valley 
core nor on an arterial or collec;torrQCicf ,CiS requir~cf he SVAP. 

Furthermore, the proposal ~~b~~'6~lIbQ~ill§ i;~r~gar~:for.-;:t~~c~;~l:ty of all residents of the Mount 
Douglas Court neighbourh86q ,but especI~iirf~rthe aa9i.~tgpal scores of low-income seniors 
expected to live there. Th~ ,_~;9~gpent expea§ 'tH~_hfewer residents of Mount Douglas Court will 

have cars, but se~rT1s perfe~~~:"~j,! tLQ~ to cond'~_i1J~Q\~~U-less seniors to walk along Arrow Road . 
Has the pro walk~~ •• / ~lg'~~i.t.~::Cistetri~nd of Arrow Road? Council members will 
know that . Iy maint~jQ:~,'<,Bigi "", gned, narrow and dangerous street with a 
steep blin d vision. Even."5'gr~~,,)IIS rapidly becoming a high-speed cut-through 
from Ced oad to McK~nzie Avenue . An increase in pedestrian accidents seems 
inevitable. 

carefully witb <r~§idents of the Shelbourne valley to develop the SVAP. This is 
a test case: if Q.~'i.l. a??E?~t~ :t,~ls development proposal as-is then it will call into question 
Council's commitm'~~t td\~e 8VAP and to our shared vision of the future of the Shelbourne 
valley. 

Council should require the proponent to withdraw this proposal and resubmit one that provides 
some additional units of sen iors' housing but also fully complies with the SVAP . 

~<:) 
Yours sincerely, ~.v~rrl'+~ ... ---------_ 

<v~~ I ' ~~"S:7.A-=-U 

Morven Wilson 

\ 
\ 

I ffil'*l'itMUoo;;DlE:fffr. 
l~ffi~£aTam=~WiH 



> 

Page 1 of 2 

Council - Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I 

From: Nehal Ekramoddoullah < 
To: <council@saanich.ca> 
Date: 11/2/20153:40 PM 
Subject: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 
CC: <planning@saanich.ca>, <contact@gordonhead.ca> 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located at 
1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story residential homes on 
quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 residential 
housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
(MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If 
their application is approved by Saanich Council, they plan to build a second building 
on their property that will be three stories high and contain 100 housing units. This 
would result in a very significant 125% increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as the one 
proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design due to the 
major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

-Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition of 100 
additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 without the 
need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

-Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a major increase in 
pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, service vehicles, emergency 
and public transit vehicles. This raises serious safety concerns due to the narrow width of 
Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that 
meets Saanich requirements; 

- Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review of 46 multi
unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of these were located 
in a fully residential area such as ours; 

file:IIIC:/Users/vandenhe/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/563783DESaanichMu... 11/3/2015 1305

Council - Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 
CC: 

I 

Nehal Ekramoddoullah 
<council@saanich.ca> 
11/2/20153:40 PM 
Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 
<planning@saanich.ca>, <contact@gordonhead.ca> 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

Page 1 of 2 

I am a resident in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court Seniors Housing complex located at 
1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is composed of one and two story residential homes on 
quiet no-through streets. 

I am extremely concerned about the significant impact that this proposed 
redevelopment will have on our residential area. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two story building on this site that contains 80 residential 
housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
(MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. If 
their application is approved by Saanich Council, they plan to build a second building 
on their property that will be three stories high and contain 100 housing units. This 
would result in a very significant 125% increase in housing units on this property. 

I acknowledge the increasing need for additional subsidized seniors housing throughout 
Saanich and the greater Victoria area. However, I feel that a development such as the one 
proposed for this property should not be approved in its present design due to the 
major impact that this will have on our residential area. 

My concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

-Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition of 100 
additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 without the 
need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

-Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a major increase in 
pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks, service vehicles, emergency 
and public transit vehicles. This raises serious safety concerns due to the narrow width of 
Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk that 
meets Saanich requirements; 

- Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - I understand that a review of 46 multi
unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 zoning found that none of these were located 
in a fully residential area such as ours; 

file:IIIC:/Users/vandenhe/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/563783DESaanichMu... 11/3/2015 



Page 2 of 2 

-Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that the three 
story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards set out in the 
SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located along the valley's 
major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as a "rhajor arterial 
roadway". 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give serious 
consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and the 
design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

Nehal Ekramoddoullah 

Bow Road 

Victoria BC, 

V8N 3B2 

[Rj~©~~'\§~rg 

NOV U J 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
PISTRICT OF SAAN!CH 
~~~".-~..."".".~.... ".

file:///C:/Users/vandenhe/AppOata/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/5637830ESaanichMu... 11/3/2015 1306

Page 2 of 2 

-Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - I understand that the three 
story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards set out in the 
SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located along the valley's 
major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as a "rhajor arterial 
roadway". 

It is my expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give serious 
consideration to my concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and the 
design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

Nehal Ekramoddoullah 

.. Bow Road 

Victoria BC, 

V8N 3B2 

[Rj~©~~'\§~rg 

NOV U J 2015 
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION 
PISTRICT OF SAAN!CH 
~~ ~".-~ ... "".".~ .... ".-

file:///C:/Users/vandenhe/AppOata/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/5637830ESaanichMu... 11/3/2015 



Page 1 of 2 

Council - Re-zoning application for 1550 Arrow Road 1 POSTED/ 

From: David Mattison < > .'=~..->~-
To: <council@saanich.ca> COpy RESPONSE TO lEGISlATIVE DNiSION 

Date: 11/1/20157:00 PM REPORT D 
Subject: Re-zoning application for 1550 Arrow Road FOR_--r--f-:---..:--n-__ 

CC: <andrea.pickard@saanich.ca>,<assetmgmt@bc.anglica ~~;'VLEOGE~O::"'·~=======:::J 
<contact@gordonhead.ca>, < >, <victoria@numberten.com> 

November 1, 2015 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 

770 Vernon Ave. [Ri j 
NOV 02 2015 .Victoria, BC 

V8X 2W7 l-~f~~~t~+'~I~~~:gd 
council@saanich.ca 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

We are residents in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court seniors housing complex located at 
1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is consists of one and two story residential homes zoned 
RS-6, RS-8 and RS-10 on quiet no-through streets. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two-story building on this site that contains 80 residential 
housing rental units for low-income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
(MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. 
We understand from the MDSHS proposal that if their application is approved by Saanich 
Council, they would build a second building on the north side of their property that will be three 
stories high and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

While we acknowledge the need for additional seniors housing throughout Saanich and the 
greater Victoria area, we feel that a development such as the one proposed for this property 
should not be approved in its present design due to the major impact it will have on our 
residential area. 

Our concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - we strongly believe the 
three-story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards 
set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/56366168SaanichMun_Hall... 11/2/20151307

From: 
To: 
Date: 

David Mattison 
<cou ncil@saanich.ca> 
11/1/20157:00 PM 

Page 1 of 2 

Subject: Re-zoning application for 1550 Arrow Road , . FOR __ -r--f-' .,-, --..:'"-n---
<andrea.pickard@saanich.ca~.anglica ~~;VLEOGE:=.:O:::...· :1&::.=1 =-=====::J 
<contact@gordonhead.ca>, <_>, <victoria@numberten.com> 

CC: 

November 1, 2015 

Mayor Richard Atwell & Council 

770 Vernon Ave. [Ri j 
NOV 02 2015 . 

l-~f~~~t~+'~I~~~:gd 
Victoria, BC 

V8X 2W7 

council@saanich.ca 

Dear Mayor Atwell and Councillors: 

Re: Re-Zoning Application - 1550 Arrow Rd. Victoria, BC 

We are residents in the vicinity of the Mount Douglas Court seniors housing complex located at 
1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area is consists of one and two story residential homes zoned 
RS-6, RS-8 and RS-10 on quiet no-through streets. 

As you are aware, there is currently a two-story building on this site that contains 80 residential 
housing rental units for low-income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 
(MDSHS) has made an application to have the above property re-zoned from RA-1 to RA-3. 
We understand from the MDSHS proposal that if their application is approved by Saanich 
Council, they would build a second building on the north side of their property that will be three 
stories high and contain 100 housing units. This would result in a very significant 125% 
increase in housing units on this property. 

While we acknowledge the need for additional seniors housing throughout Saanich and the 
greater Victoria area, we feel that a development such as the one proposed for this property 
should not be approved in its present design due to the major impact it will have on our 
residential area. 

Our concerns about this proposed development are as follows: 

• Inconsistency with Shelbourne Valley Action Plan (SVAP) - we strongly believe the 
three-story building proposed for our residential area does not adhere to the standards 
set out in the SVAP which requires that taller and higher density buildings be located 

file:IIIC:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Localrremp/XPgrpwise/56366168SaanichMun_Hall... 11/2/201 [' 



Page 2 of 2 

along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as 
a "major arterial roadway". 

" Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - we conducted a review of 46 RA-
3-zoned residential properties in Saanich and found that none w6re located within a fully 
residential area such as ours; 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition of 
100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 
without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

" Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a major 
increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, principally cars, trucks, service and 
emergency vehicles. This raises serious safety concerns due to the narrow width of 
Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk 
that meets Saanich requirements; 

Despite our concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, we are in 
favour of construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story building. 

It is our expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to our concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and 
the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Sincerely, 

David Mattison and Charlene Gregg 

Bel Not Place 

Victoria, BC V8N 6B6 

copies to: 

Andrea Pickard, Planner, District of Saanich 

Gordon Head Residents' Association 

Peter Daniel, Asset Manager, Diocese of British Columbia 

Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

Number Ten Architectural Group 

file:/I/C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56366168SaanichMun_Hall... 11/2/20151308

Page 2 of 2 

along the valley's major arterial roadways. Arrow Road certainly cannot be described as 
a "major arterial roadway". 

• Re-Zoning Sets a Serious Precedent for Saanich - we conducted a review of 46 RA-
3-zoned residential properties in Saanich and found that none wbre located within a fully 
residential area such as ours; 

• Increase in Density - The significant increase in property density with the addition of 
100 additional housing units in Phase 1 and, in future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 
without the need to for a future additional change in zoning; 

• Increase in Traffic Volumes - The increase in housing units will result in a major 
increase in pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic, principally cars, trucks, service and 
emergency vehicles. This raises serious safety concerns due to the narrow width of 
Arrow Road, the steep blind spot with limited vehicle visibility and the lack of a sidewalk 
that meets Saanich requirements; 

Despite our concerns about this project as it has been proposed by the MDSHS, we are in 
favour of construction of a new two-story building, rather than a three-story building. 

It is our expectation that each of you, as our elected municipal representatives, will give 
serious consideration to our concerns about the re-zoning proposal at 1550 Arrow Road and 
the design of the new residential building as it is currently proposed. 

Sincerely, 

David Mattison and Charlene Gregg 

Victoria, BC V8N 6B6 

copies to: 

Andrea Pickard, Planner, District of Saanich 

Gordon Head Residents' Association 

Peter Daniel, Asset Manager, Diocese of British Columbia 

Mount Douglas Seniors Housing Society 

Number Ten Architectural Group 

file:/I/C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/LocallTemp/XPgrpwise/56366168SaanichMun_Hall... 11/2/201 f 



 

 

I 
r-V;:'IIU 

fRj@:©~ow§~ 
C~TO 

• 

~ 
INfORMATION fNOV 02 2015 
REPlY TO WRITER 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGlSLATlVE DIVISION .LEGISLATIVE DIVISION I 
Frqm: David Nicholls illUBLfT QE_$6f N1 <2tLJ "': 0 ~.Date: November 1, 2015 at 6:26:31 PM PST I~- ACKNO~EDGED· hi. r:D'\C_ ~.To: mayor@saanich.ca 
Cc: susan.brice@saanich.ca, judy.brownoff@saanich.ca, 
vic.derman@saanich.ca, fred.haynes@saanich.ca, dean.murdock@saanich.ca, 
colin.plant@saanich.ca, vicki.sanders@saanich.ca, leif.wergeland@saanich.ca, 
ClerkSec@saanich.ca, andrea.pickard@saanich.ca, assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca, 
contact@gordonhead.ca 
Subject: Proposed Rezoning Application for 1550 Arrow Rd. Saanich, B.C 

Dear Mayor Attwell and Council 

Ww have been residents of Arrow Rd. bordering (westside) the Mt Douglas 
Court Seniors Housing Complex located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area 
is composed of one and two storey residential homes on a once quiet no thru 
street. We have lived here for 40 years and can appreciated how the 
neighbourhood has evolved in that time. In all these years Saanich has not made 
any effort to address the increased traffic or alter the character of the 
neighbourhood other than to develop the area around us as a neighbourhood of 
single family homes. Increased traffic is a consequence. No improvement to 
roads or sidewalks have occurred. 

We are EXTREMELY CONCERNED ABOUT THE SIGNIFICANT IMPACT THAT 
THIS PROPOSED RE-DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION WILL HAVE ON OUR 
RESIDENTIAL AREA. 

Currently there is a two storey building on the site that contains 80 residential 
housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society has made an application to have the above property re-zones 
from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, THEY 
PLAN TO BUILD A SECOND BUILDING THAT WILL BE THREE STOREYS 
HIGH ADDING 100 SUITES TO THE PROPERTY (totalling 180 overall) A 125% 
INCREASE IN HOUSING UNITS ON THE PROPERY. 

While we can appreciate the need for additional subsidized senior housing 
throughout Saanich and the Greater Victoria area we feel that a development 
such as the one proposed should not be approved in its present design DUE TO 
THE MAJOR IMPACT IT WILL HAVE ON OUR RESIDENTIAL AREA. 

OUR CONCERNS ARE AS FOLLOWS; 

- INCREASE IN DENSITY - With an additional 100 units in Phase 1and in 
future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 (without the need for additional zoning 
change) the total density for the property would now be 240 units in a single 
family neighbourhood. I MIGHT ADD THAT THIS NEIGHBOURHOOD HAS 

309

Frqm: David Nicholls 
Date: November 1, 2 
To: mayor@saanich.ca 

fRj@:©~ow§~ 
NOV 02 2015 

r-V;:.IIU • 

C~TO ~ 
INfORMATION f 
REPlY TO WRITER I 

COPY RESPONSE TO LEGlSLATlVE DIVISION . 

"': 0 ~. 
ACKNO~EDGED· hi. r:D'\C_ ~. 

Cc: susan.brice@saanich.ca, judy.brownoff@saanich.ca, 
vic.derman@saanich.ca, fred.haynes@saanich.ca, dean.murdock@saanich.ca, 
colin.plant@saanich.ca, vicki.sanders@saanich.ca, leif.wergeland@saanich.ca, 
ClerkSec@saanich.ca, andrea.pickard@saanich.ca, assetmgmt@bc.anglican.ca, 
contact@gordonhead.ca 
Subject: Proposed Rezoning Application for 1550 Arrow Rd. Saanich, B.C 

Dear Mayor Attwell and Council 

Ww have been residents of" Arrow Rd. bordering (westside) the Mt Douglas 
Court Seniors Housing Complex located at 1550 Arrow Rd. Our residential area 
is composed of one and two storey residential homes on a once quiet no thru 
street. We have lived here for 40 years and can appreciated how the 
neighbourhood has evolved in that time. In all these years Saanich has not made 
any effort to address the increased traffic or alter the character of the 
neighbourhood other than to develop the area around us as a neighbourhood of 
single family homes. Increased traffic is a consequence. No improvement to 
roads or sidewalks have occurred. 

We are EXTREMELY CONCERNED ABOUT THE SIGNIFICANT IMPACT THAT 
THIS PROPOSED RE-DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION WILL HAVE ON OUR 
RESIDENTIAL AREA. 

Currently there is a two storey building on the site that contains 80 residential 
housing rental units for low income individuals. The Mount Douglas Seniors 
Housing Society has made an application to have the above property re-zones 
from RA-1 to RA-3. If their application is approved by Saanich Council, THEY 
PLAN TO BUILD A SECOND BUILDING THAT WILL BE THREE STOREYS 
HIGH ADDING 100 SUITES TO THE PROPERTY (totalling 180 overall) A 125% 
INCREASE IN HOUSING UNITS ON THE PROPERY. 

While we can appreciate the need for additional subsidized senior housing 
throughout Saanich and the Greater Victoria area we feel that a development 
such as the one proposed should not be approved in its present design DUE TO 
THE MAJOR IMPACT IT WILL HAVE ON OUR RESIDENTIAL AREA. 

OUR CONCERNS ARE AS FOLLOWS; 

- INCREASE IN DENSITY - With an additional 100 units in Phase 1and in 
future, an additional 60 units in Phase 2 (without the need for additional zoning 
change) the total density for the property would now be 240 units in a single 
family neighbourhood. I MIGHT ADD THAT THIS NEIGHBOURHOOD HAS 



BEEN ALLOWED TO DEVELOP AS A SINGLE FAMILY 
NEIGHBOURHOOD FOR OVER 40 YEARS!. 

-INCREASE IN TRAFFIC VOLUMES - Increase in units will result in major 
increase in pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks (not 
just in construction phase), service vehicles, emergency and public transit. 
Service vehicles already disrupt the area at 7AM daily. This raises serious 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Rd, with a steep blind spot and 
limited visibility and a lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich standards. This 
street has also become a short cut for non resident vehicles detouring off Cedar 
Hill Rd. 

-RE-ZONING SETS A SERIOUS PRECEDENT FOR SAANICH - We understand 
that after identifying 46 multi unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 none 
are located in fully residential areas like ours. 

-INCONSISTANCY WITH THE SHELBOURNE VALLEY ACTION PLAN - It is 
our understanding that the three storey building proposed for our neighbourhood 
does not adhere to the standards as set out in the plan where they Plan requires 
taller and high-density buildings to be located along the valley's major arterial 
roadways. Arrow Rd certainly cannot be considered a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite our concerns about the proposed plan we would support a two storey 
building. As an adjacent resident to the subject property we would extremely 
object to anything about two storeys in future plans especially fronting Arrow Rd. 

The suitability of Arrow Rd for more Traffic should also be reviewed in 
conjunction with plans for this proposal 

It is our expectation that each elected representative give this serious review re 
the re=zoning application of 1550 Arrow Rd. 

Respectfully 

David Nicholls 
Margaret Nicholls 

310

BEEN ALLOWED TO DEVELOP AS A SINGLE FAMILY 
NEIGHBOURHOOD FOR OVER 40 YEARS!. 

-INCREASE IN TRAFFIC VOLUMES - Increase in units will result in major 
increase in pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular traffic, including cars, trucks (not 
just in construction phase), service vehicles, emergency and public transit. 
Service vehicles already disrupt the area at 7 AM daily. This raises serious 

safety concerns due to the narrow width of Arrow Rd, with a steep blind spot and 
limited visibility and a lack of a sidewalk that meets Saanich standards. This 
street has also become a short cut for non resident vehicles detouring off Cedar 
Hill Rd. 

-RE-ZONING SETS A SERIOUS PRECEDENT FOR SAANICH - We understand 
that after identifying 46 multi unit residential properties in Saanich with RA-3 none 
are located in fully residential areas like ours. 

-INCONSISTANCY WITH THE SHELBOURNE VALLEY ACTION PLAN - It is 
our understanding that the three storey building proposed for our neighbourhood 
does not adhere to the standards as set out in the plan where they Plan requires 
taller and high-density buildings to be located along the valley's major arterial 
roadways. Arrow Rd certainly cannot be considered a "major arterial roadway". 

Despite our concerns about the proposed plan we would support a two storey 
building. As an adjacent resident to the subject property we would extremely 
object to anything about two storeys in future plans especially fronting Arrow Rd. 

The suitability of Arrow Rd for more Traffic should also be reviewed in 
conjunction with plans for this proposal 

It is our expectation that each elected representative give this serious review re 
the re=zoning application of 1550 Arrow Rd. 

Respectfully 

David Nicholls 
Margaret Nicholls 



1311

Page 1 of 1 

Planning - Mt. Doug Court 

From: > 

To: 
Date: 

"Planning .Mun_Hall .Saanich@saanich.ca" <Planning.Mun_HaII.Saanich@saanic ... 
10/30/2015 4:36 PM 

Subject: Mt. Doug Court 

Saanich Department of planning 

Saanich Council 

To those in authority 

I am seriously concerned about the possibility of re zoning of Mt Douglas Court to allow 
for 3 and 4 story structures. 
While I fully support the Church increasing the facility to include more homes for low 
income seniors, I believe that increasing it from 80 to approx. 110, then to 240 
residents is detrimental to the character and infrastructure in our area. 

It will also set a precedent and allow condominiums to spring up in this and the 
surrounding streets . It's not in the plan for this area . 

The seniors, plus transport for them will hugely impact this small area around Arrow, 
which has 4 dead end roads and only 2 roads in and out. 
Widening the street to accommodate this traffic will add to the change in character and 
to shortcuts and speeding, as well as pave the way for those condominiums, thus 
increasing the problem. 
One or 2 stories at the back and front of the property will give more low income 
housing, and fit better with this single family area. The extra people and cars can be 
slowly digested into the area. 

I have only lived in this area for about 6 years . We expected to live here forever. I've 
invested a lot in improving the house and landscape, and a lot in knowing my 
neighbours. I know some of the people at Mt Doug Court as well . It all works well right 
now. Please don't let them bite off more than they or we can chew. 
I wonder about sewer drainage and power. I don't know who pays for that infrastructure 
building? 
When zoning is considered for phase one, please consider phase 2. The impact of both 
will be devastating for this area. Building one 10 years after the first just destroys the 
area in slow motion . 
Could you reply to my question about sewer water etc, and please allow my letter to be 
considered when the important decision is made about the re~ning 
Thank you tfi::.~ is} 
Sue Thorpe fo~V l~ 

t !Arrow Rd $~:-_",_",~","_,_"_"«_" ,,,-~,-~-~-~~ 
Saanich V8N 1 C4 '>.;, \ '\' ~ '\ '\'2 (.:::..":1 \5. -i\l\\ ril e; !\!01 \ 

. I \ J .::3 \ l n" "V t C'-I I 
\ U,\ L'::-...:l '-...'::/ ,,,:-..:.1 U ...J t.=~ l 

\ lfu ~~~:N~N! :~~~ b \ 
l DiST!~WT OF S?\I\N ICH ~ L_ .. _. __ ..;..-·- ::;,,;: .. ,·,·,,· ·· ·-"'--'--~-

file:/IIC :/Usersllitzenbs/AppData/LocallT emp/XPgrpwise/56339C79SaanichMun_.. . 11/2/2015 



312

Planning - Fwd: Mt Doug Court Development Application, 1550 Arrow Road 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Andrea Pickard 
Planning 
10/22/20157:59 AM 
Fwd: Mt Doug Court Development Application, 1550 Arrow Road 
Saanich REFERRAL, Mt Doug Court.docx 

Please attach to prospero 

»> Ray Travers <rtravers@islandnet.com> 10/22/20154:24 AM »> 
Hello Andrea: 
cc Peter, Chris (GHRA Directors) 

Page 1 of 1 

Thanks for your inquiry to the Gordon Head Resident's Association (GHRA) requesting 
comments on 1550 Arrow Road. My comments are: 

1. On June 16, 2015 the GHRA sent the following comments to Saanich on 1550 Arrow 
Road "In accordance with the June 5, 2015 Saanich Referral from the Number Ten 
Architectural Group, 1550 Arrow Road, aka Mount Douglas Court Housing Society, the 
Gordon Head Residents Association (GHRA), have no objection, subject to the six comments 
in the attached Saanich Planning referral document. 

file:IIIC:/Usersllitzenbs/AppData/LocalffempIXPgrpwise/5628974BSaanichMun... 10/22/2015 



313

District of Saanich 
Current Planning 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria BC vax 2W7 

t. 250-475-5471 
f.250-475-5430 
saanich.ca 

Comments: Add additional pagers) if necessary 
1. The proponents are to be commended for engaging Mount Douglas Court residents, adjacent 
residents, and the GHRA Board early in the review process; 
2. The Mt Douglas Court Society and its consultants should continue to engage adjacent residents, 
particularly concerning building setbacks, fencing, and vegetation buffers to reduce the impact of the 
higher density and site coverage; 
3. Upgrades to Arrow Road should be considered to improve safety for pedestrians and cyclists: the 
existing road and contiguous paved pedestrian path are already deficient for existing traffic volumes; 
4. Please clarify, under "Project Description" above. Please confirm, the two phase application is for 
two buildings, not three. 
5. A rezoning application notification sign should be erected on the site as soon as possible: as of 
June 10, no such sign had been erected. 
6. Information on the proposal will be posted on the Mt Douglas Court Society website, with contact 
names provided for questions or concerns. 



314

District of Saanich 
Current Planning 
770 Vernon Ave. 
Victoria Be V8X 2W7 

t. 250-475-5471 

f.250-475-5430 
saanich.ca 

Comments: Add additional pagers) if necessary 

Overall Transit Impact 
The proposed site: 

PLANNING 

• Is located within 400 metres of existing transit selVice, with the nearest stops located on McKenzie 
Avenue at Oakwinds Street, and on Cedar Hill Road at Hopesmore Drive. 

• Is expected to have a significant impact on existing transit selVice. 

Land Use 
• The proposed densities and orientation to the street are supportive of transit and walkability. 

Bus Stops and Stations 
• As this is designed as a high-density, affordable development exclusively for seniors, construction of 

an on-site handyDART zone that works for bus operations should be considered. Additionally, BC 
Transit will consider installing new, fully accessible bus stops on Cedar Hill Rd at Arrow Rd. 

Thank you for the opportunity to review this development application. If you have any questions or would like 
further comments, please contact: 

Alison McDonald 
Transportation Planner 
BC Transit Planning Dept. 
Phone: 250-385-2551 ext 5341 
Email: alisonmcdonald@bctransit.com 

ro)[g©~DWrg@ 
U1l JUN 0 5 20/5 IJ:!) 

!~~4NNjNG DEPT. 
- OI;)TidCT OF SMNIGH ---I 


	Agenda
	4247, 4253, 4255 Dieppe Road
	4400 West Saanich Road
	Fire Dispatch and Communicatios Services Agreement with the Township of Esquimalt
	Sole Source Purchase of Oracle Licenses for the JD Edwards Upgrade adn HR-Payroll Software Projects
	RFP 08-16 - JD Edwards Systems Implementation and Managed Services
	CRD Bylaw No. 4058, Capital Regional District Climate Action and Adaptation Service Establishment Bylaw, 2008, Amnedment Bylaw No. 1, 2016
	LGBTQ Sub-Committee Terms of Reference
	Pop for Parks - Establishing a Fund for Nature's Future
	Reduction of Non-Migratory Geese Population to help Sustain Local Food
	Moms Like Us
	1550 Arrow Road



